
 

 

AGENDA 

 
 

 
BWRDD ADFYWIO A DATBLYGU CYNALIADWY’R CABINET 

 
DYDD GWENER, 3 RHAGFYR 2021 

  
YN SYTH AR ÔL CYFARFOD PWYLLGOR CRAFFU POLISÏAU AC 

ADNODDAU'R CABINET  
 

O BELL TRWY TEAMS 
 

 
RHAID GOSOD POB FFÔN SYMUDOL AR Y MODD DISTAW AR 

GYFER PARHAD Y CYFARFOD 
 
 

Rhan 1 
 

1.  Penodi Cadeirydd   
 

2.  Croeso a galw’r enwau   
 

3.  Datganiadau o fuddiannau   
 

4.  Cofnodion y Cyfarfod Blaenorol  (Tudalennau 5 - 10) 
 

5.  Blaenraglen Waith 2018-19  (Tudalennau 11 - 12) 
 

6.  Deddf Llywodraeth Leol (Darpariaethau Amrywiol) 1976 - 
Mabwysiadu Safleoedd Tacsi  (Tudalennau 13 - 24) 
 

7.  Rheoliadau Lles Anifeiliaid (Trwyddedu Gweithgareddau sy’n 
Ymwneud ag Anifeiliaid) (Cymru) 2021  (Tudalennau 25 - 30) 
 

8.  Deddf Teithio Llesol (Cymru) 2013 - Adolygiad o Deithio Llesol 
CNPT   
 

9.  Dangosyddion Perfformiad Allweddol 2021/2022 - Chwarter 2  
(Tudalennau 31 - 36) 



 
10.  Cynllun Datblygu Lleol newydd Castell-nedd Port Talbot 2021-2036  

(Tudalennau 37 - 318) 
 

11.  Grant Creu Lleoedd - Trawsnewid Trefi  (Tudalennau 319 - 330) 
 

12.  Estyniad Contract yn unol â Rheol 7.2 o'r Rheolau Gweithdrefnau 
Contractau  (Tudalennau 331 - 340) 
 

13.  Eitemau brys   
Unrhyw eitemau brys (boed yn gyhoeddus neu wedi'u heithrio) yn ôl 
disgresiwn y Cadeirydd yn unol ag Offeryn Statudol 2001 rhif 2290 
(fel y'i diwygiwyd). 
 

14.  Mynediad i gyfarfodydd   
Penderfynu gwahardd y cyhoedd o'r eitemau canlynol yn unol â 
Rheoliad 4 (3) a (5) Offeryn Statudol 2001 rhif 2290 a'r paragraffau 
eithriedig perthnasol o Ran 4 Atodlen 12A o Ddeddf Llywodraeth 
Leol 1972. 
 
Rhan 2 
 

15.  Twnnel y Rhondda (eithriedig dan Baragraff 14)   
(Tudalennau 341 - 450) 
 

16.  Cynnig Arfaethedig i Gael Gwared ar Eiddo (eithriedig dan 
Baragraff 14)  (Tudalennau 451 - 464) 
 

 
K.Jones 

Prif Weithredwr 
Canolfan Ddinesig 
Port Talbot  
 26/11/2021 
 

 
 
Aelodau’r Bwrdd Adfywio a Datblygu Cynaliadwy’r Cabinet:  
 
 
Y Cynghorwyr   L.Jones a/ac A.Wingrave 
 
 



- 1 - 
 

221021 

 
EXECUTIVE DECISION RECORD 

 
22 OCTOBER 2021 

 
REGENERATION AND SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT CABINET 

BOARD 
 

 
 
Cabinet Members: 
 
Councillors: 
 

L.Jones and D.Jones 
 

Officers in Attendance: 
 
C.Morris, A. Collins, J.Davies, N.Headon and C.Davies 
 
Cabinet Invitees: 
 
Councillors:  S.K.Hunt (Chair) and R.Taylor (Vice Chair) 
 
 

 
1. APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRPERSON  

 
Agreed that Councillor L.C.Jones be appointed Chairperson for the 
meeting. 
 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
The following Members made a declaration of interest at the start of the 
meeting: 
 

Councillor S.K.Hunt - RE Covid-19 Grant Support for Local 
Businesses from March 2020 to 
present, as he is a member and 
Chairman of various charities and 
organisations that were recipients of 
the Covid 19 Grant Support Fund  

 
Councillor R.L.Taylor RE Covid-19 Grant Support for Local 

Businesses from March 2020 to presents, 

Tudalen3

Eitem yr Agenda4



- 2 - 
 

221021 

as she is a trustee of Taibach Library 
which received the NNDR grant 

 
 
It was noted that Members have a dispensation which allowed them to 
speak and vote. 
 
 

3. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
Decision:  
 
That the minutes of the 17 September 2021, be approved 
 
 

4. COMMERCIAL PROPERTY GRANT: 23 CHURCH PLACE, NEATH, 
SA11 3LL  
 
Decision: 
 
That having given due regard to the Integrated Impact Assessment that 

the Commercial Property Grant scheme to grant aid external 

improvement works to the commercial property 23 Church Place, Neath 

SA11 3LL, be approved. 

 
Reason for Decision:  
 
To implement the provisions of the Commercial Property Grant scheme 
in accordance with the criteria and terms of administration of the grant, in 
order to contribute to the regeneration of Neath town centre. 
  
Implementation of Decision:  
 
The decision will be implemented after the three day call in period. 
 
 

5. COVID-19 GRANT SUPPORT FOR LOCAL BUSINESSES FROM 
MARCH 2020 TO PRESENT  
 
Members thanked officers for all their hard work during difficult times. 
 
Decision: 
 
That the report be noted. 

Tudalen4



- 3 - 
 

221021 

6. KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 2019/2020 - QUARTER 1 (1 
APRIL 2021 - 30 JUNE 2021)  
 
Decision: 
 
This item was deferred to the next meeting. 
 
 

7. FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME 2021/2022  
 
Decision:  
 
That the Forward Work Programme 2021/2022 be noted. 
 
 

8. ACCESS TO MEETINGS  
 
RESOLVED:  That pursuant to Regulation 4(3) and (5) of Statutory 

Instrument 2001 No. 2290, the public be excluded for 
the following item of business which involved the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
Paragraph 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A to the Local 
Government Act 1972. 

 
 

9. RHONDDA TUNNEL PROJECT UPDATE  
 
Decision: 
 
This item was deferred to the next meeting. 
 
 

10. PROPOSED DISPOSAL OF DEVELOPMENT LAND KNOWN AS 
PLOT 1, NANT YR CAFN DULAIS ROAD, SEVEN SISTERS  
 

Decision: 
 
That having given due regard to the Integrated Impact Screening 
Assessment that the Head of Property and Regeneration be provided 
with delegated authority to dispose of land, as detailed in the private 
circulated report. 
  
 
 

Tudalen5



- 4 - 
 

221021 

Reason for Decision:  
 
To enable the disposal of a surplus development land and to attain a 
capital receipt. 
  
Implementation of Decision:  
 
The decision will be implemented after the three day call in period 
 
 

11. PROPOSAL TO COMPLETE OUTSTANDING WORKS AT YGG 
PONTARDAWE  
 
Decision: 
 
That having given due regard to the first stage Integrated Impact 
Assessment that the Head of Property and Regeneration be granted 
approval to complete negotiations for outstanding works at YGG 
Pontardawe, as detailed in the private circulated report.  
 
Reason for Decision:  
 
To enable the essential completion of outstanding work at YGG 
Pontardawe to enable the school to fully utilise its facilities.  
 
Implementation of Decision:  
 
The decision will be implemented after the three day call in period 
 
 

12. PROPOSED ACQUISITION OF LAND AND DOMESTIC GARAGE AT 
THE JUNCTION OF A48 AND WATER STREET MARGAM FOR THE 
PROPOSED FOOTPATH/CYCLEWAY SCHEME LINKING EGLWYS 
NUNYDD AND ST DAVID’S PARK, MARGAM  
 
Decision: 
 

That having given regard to the first stage Integrated Impact 
Assessment the terms and conditions for the acquisition of land at the 
junction of A48 and Water Street Margam for the footpath/cycleway 
scheme linking Eglwys Nunydd and St David’s Park, Margam, Port 
Talbot, as detailed in private circulated report, be approved. 
 
 

Tudalen6



- 5 - 
 

221021 

Reason for Decision:  
 
The acquisition will assist in facilitating the proposed footpath/cycleway 
scheme linking Eglwys Nunydd and St David’s Park, Margam, Port 
Talbot. 
  
Implementation of Decision:  
 
The decision will be implemented after the three day call in period 
 
 

13. URGENT ITEM  
 
Because of the need to deal now with the matters contained in Minutes 
No. 14 below, the Chairperson agreed that these could be raised at 
today’s meeting as urgent items pursuant to Statutory Instrument 2001 
No.2290 (as amended). 
 
Reason:  Due to the time element. 
 
 

14. PROPOSED DISPOSAL OF LAND AT HARBOURSIDE TO NPT 
COLLEGE TOGETHER WITH THE PROPOSED ACQUISITION OF 
LAND AT FABIAN WAY FROM WELSH GOVERNMENT  
 
Decisions: 
 
That having given due regard to the Integrated Impact Screening 
Assessment:  
 

1. That the Head of Property and Regeneration be provided with 
delegated authority to dispose of land at Harbourside, as detailed 
in the private circulated report.   
 

2. That the Head of Property and Regeneration be provided with 
delegated authority to acquire land from Welsh Government at 
Fabian Way, as detailed in the private circulated report  

 
 
Reason for Decisions:  
 
To enable the disposal of surplus land and to attain a capital receipt, 
together with the acquisition of a strategic employment site. 
  

Tudalen7



- 6 - 
 

221021 

Implementation of Decisions:  
 
The decision will be implemented after the three day call in period 

 
 
 

CHAIRPERSON 

Tudalen8



FWP for R&SD Cabinet Board, 3 December 2021 – Contact Officer Tammie Davies 

Regeneration and Sustainable Development Cabinet Board 

 

Meeting 
Date 

 
 

Agenda Item Type Contact Officer 

14 January 
2022 

APB Governance framework and Risk Sharing 
Agreement 
 

Decision Chris Millis/Claire Jones 

   

   

   

   

   
 

4 March 
2022 

 

2021/22 Quarterly Performance – Quarter 3 
 

Monitor Simon Brennan / Ceri 
Morris 

   

   

 

8 April 2022 
 

   

   

   

   

T
udalen9

E
item

 yr A
genda5



FWP for R&SD Cabinet Board, 3 December 2021 – Contact Officer Tammie Davies 

   
 

T
udalen10



 

   

NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

Regeneration and Sustainable Development Cabinet Board 
3 December 2021 

 

Report of the Head of Legal Services – Craig Griffiths 

 

Matter for Decision 
 

Wards Affected: Port Talbot, Neath North  

Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 - 
Adoption of Taxi Stands 

Purpose of the Report  

1. To consider the adoption of hackney carriage stands in accordance with 
section 63 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976. 

Executive Summary  

2. Currently, Neath Port Talbot has made Traffic Regulation Orders to 
create parking spaces for hackney carriage vehicles under Part 1 of the 
Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984. 

3. These parking spaces can only be used by hackney carriage vehicles and 
unlawful parking can be enforced by means of fix penalty notices, but 
these parking spaces do not constitute a hackney carriage stand within 
the meaning of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 
1976. 

4. It is proposed that the Council creates hackney carriage stands under 
Section 63 Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976, at the 
same locations as the existing parking spaces for hackney carriage 

Tudalen11

Eitem yr Agenda6



 

   

vehicles, which have been created under Part 1 of the Road Traffic 
Regulation Act 1984. 

Background  

5. Hackney carriage vehicles are regulated in accordance with the Town 
Police Clauses Act 1847 and the Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1976  

6. The Council is able to appoint stands for hackney carriages under Section 
63 Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976.  A hackney 
carriage vehicle is then able to stand for hire on stands which have been 
appointed for this purpose.  

7. The Council has however not appointed any stands for hackney carriages 
within the County Borough.  Instead it has created Traffic Regulation 
Orders, to designate a number of on-street locations as parking spaces 
for hackney carriage vehicles, in accordance with the Road Traffic 
Regulation Act 1984. 

8. These parking spaces can only be used by hackney carriage vehicles and 
unlawful parking can be enforced by the parking enforcement officers by 
means of fix penalty notices. 

9. Appointing hackney carriage stands will provide the Council with 
additional enforcement powers to compliment the powers already held by 
the parking enforcement officers to tackle unauthorised parking.    

10. Hackney carriage stands will also allow for the better regulation of the 
stands by introducing offences for not moving along the queue or 
otherwise causing an obstruction.   

Officer Report 

11. Before appointing any stands for hackney carriages, the Council must 
consult with the Chief Officer of Police, publish a notice on one occasion 
in a local newspaper and take into consideration any objections or 
representations made within the period of 28 days of publication of the 
notice. 

Tudalen12



 

   

12. It is proposed that the Council creates hackney carriage stands under 
Section 63 Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976, at the 
same locations as the existing parking spaces for hackney carriage 
vehicles, which have been created under Part 1 of the Road Traffic 
Regulation Act 1984. 

13. The proposed locations for the hackney carriage stands are detailed in 
table 1 below. 

Location No. of 
Vehicles 

Times 

Cramic Way, Port Talbot (north east side) from its 
junction with Oakwood Road between points 
approximately 100 metres and 112 metres in a 
north westerly direction 

        2 Permanent 

Station Road, Port Talbot (East Side) between 
points approximately 26 metres and 66 metres 
north of its junction with the northern kerbline of 
Grove Place 

        8 

 

Permanent 

 

Station Road rear lane to Service Bay (South West 
Side) between points approximately 30 metres and 
103 metres north west of its junction with Station 
Road 

       14 Permanent 

The Parade, Neath (East Side) from its junction 
with Green Street for a distance 40 metres in a 
northerly direction 

        8 6pm - 8am 

Queen Street Back Road/Summerfield Place (North 
East Side) between points approximately 10 metres 
and 40 metres east of its junction with Windsor 
Road 

        6 Permanent 

Tudalen13



 

   

Financial Implications  

14. Before creating a taxi stand the Council must give public notice of the 
proposal by advertisement in at least one local newspaper.  The 
reasonable costs associated with the administration of the hackney 
carriage and private hire functions, are however recovered in the licence 
fees.  

Integrated Impact Assessment 

15. A first stage Impact Assessment has been undertaken to assist the 
Council in discharging its legislative duties (under the Equality Act 2010, 
the Welsh Language Standards (No.1) Regulations 2015, the Well-being 
of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and the Environment (Wales) Act 
2016. The first stage assessment, attached at Appendix 1, has indicated 
that a more in-depth assessment is not required 

Legal Impacts 

16. The power for the Council to appoint hackney carriage stands is 
contained in Section 63(1) Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) 
Act 1976. This legislation enables the Council to appoint taxi stands on 
any highway with the consent of the Highway Authority and on any land 
that does not form part of the highway with consent of the land owner.  It 
must however not unreasonably prevent access to any premises or 
impede buses. 

17. Before creating a taxi stand, the Council must give notice to the Chief 
Officer of South Wales Police. It shall also give public notice of the 
proposal by advertisement in at least one local newspaper and consider 
any responses received as a result of this public consultation. This 
consultation process must allow a minimum of 28 days for people to 
respond. 

18. The Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 section 64 
makes it an offence for any person to cause or permit any vehicle other 
than a hackney carriage to wait on any stand for hackney carriages and 
this is a comprehensible ban on all other vehicles. 

19. Hackney Carriage stands on the Public Highway must be marked out and 
signed in accordance with the Traffic Sign Regulations and General 

Tudalen14



 

   

Directions 2002, Regulations 11 and Schedule 6. In particular, the road 
markings must be coloured yellow for full time taxi stands. 

Risk Management 

20. Not applicable 

Consultation 

21. Consultation to be carried out in accordance with statutory requirements. 

Recommendation 

22. That members approve the commencement of the process to adopt 
hackney carriage stands in accordance with Section 63(1) Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976. 

Reasons for Proposed Decision  

23. To enable the Council's Legal Regulatory Services Manager to carry out 
the necessary consultation and advertising prior to a further report being 
presented to Cabinet. 

Implementation of Decision 

24. The decision is proposed for implementation after the three day call in 
period. 

Appendices  

25. Appendix 1 - Integrated Impact Assessment Screening 
 

List of Background Papers 

26. Town Police and Clauses Act 1847 
The Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 
Neath Port Talbot Taxi Licensing Policy 

Tudalen15



 

   

 

Officer Contact 

27. Craig Griffiths 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services 
Tel (01639) 763767 
Email c.griffiths2@npt.gov.uk 
 

28. Neil Chapple 
Legal Regulatory Manager 
Tel (01639) 763050 
Email n.chapple@npt.gov.uk 

 

Tudalen16

mailto:n.chapple@npt.gov.uk


1 

 

Impact Assessment - First Stage 
 

1. Details of the initiative  
  

Initiative description and summary: Hackney Carriage Stands Adoption 

Service Area:  Legal Regulatory Services 

Directorate: Chief Executives 

 
2. Does the initiative affect:   
 

 Yes No 

Service users ✔  

Staff  ✔ 

Wider community ✔  

Internal administrative process only   ✔ 

 
3. Does the initiative impact on people because of their:  
 

 Yes  No None/ 
Negligible 

Don’t 
Know 

Impact 
H/M/L 

Reasons for your decision (including evidence)/How 
might it impact? 

Age    ✔   The proposal to adopt hackney carriage (“taxi”) stands in 
accordance with the Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1976, is simply replicating what is 
already in place under the Road Traffic Regulation Act 
1984.  To the general public, there will appear to be no 
change to existing taxi stand provisions, but the adoption 
of taxi stands under the LG(MP) Act 1976, will allow 
better enforcement and regulation of their use.  

Disability    ✔   

Gender Reassignment   ✔   

Marriage/Civil Partnership   ✔   

Pregnancy/Maternity   ✔   

Race   ✔   

Religion/Belief   ✔   

T
udalen17



2 

 

Sex   ✔   

Sexual orientation   ✔   

 

 

 

4. Does the initiative impact on: 

 

 Yes  No None/ 

Negligible 

 Impact 
H/M/L 

Reasons for your decision (including evidence used) / 
How might it impact? 

People’s opportunities 
to use the Welsh 
language  

 ✔    The proposal is to adopt taxi stands, this does not impact 
upon the use of the Welsh Language. 

Treating the Welsh 
language no less 
favourably than English  

 ✔    The proposal is to adopt taxi stands, this does not impact 
upon the use of the Welsh Language. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5. Does the initiative impact on biodiversity: 

 Yes  No None/ 
Negligible 

Don’t 
know 

Impact 
H/M/L 

Reasons for your decision (including evidence) /  
How might it impact? 

To maintain and 
enhance biodiversity  

 ✔  
  The proposal is to adopt taxi stands, this does not impact 

upon biodiversity. 

T
udalen18



3 

 

To promote the 
resilience of 
ecosystems, i.e. 
supporting protection of 
the wider environment, 
such as air quality, flood 
alleviation, etc.  

 ✔  

  

The proposal is to adopt taxi stands, this does not impact 
upon the resilience of ecosystems. 

 

 

6. Does the initiative embrace the sustainable development principle (5 ways of working): 

 Yes  No Details 

Long term - how the initiative 
supports the long term well-being of 
people  

✔  
Taxis play an important part in the night time economy and efficient 
and effective taxi stands are essential to promote public safety.  By 
adopting taxi stands under the LG(MP)Act 1976, officers will have 
greater powers to regulate taxis using the stands and greater 
enforcement powers against those that unlawfully park and obstruct 
them. 
   

 

Integration -  how the initiative 
impacts upon our wellbeing 
objectives  

✔  
Taxis play an important part in the night time economy and efficient 
and effective taxi stands are essential to promote public safety.  By 
adopting taxi stands under the LG(MP)Act 1976, officers will have 
greater powers to regulate taxis using the stands and greater 
enforcement powers against those that unlawfully park and obstruct 
them. 
 

Involvement -  how people have 
been involved in developing the 
initiative  

✔  
The Licensing Authority has informally engaged with the trade and 
there are statutory consultation requirements involved in adopting 
taxi stands. 

T
udalen19



4 

 

 

 

 

 

7. Declaration - based on above assessment (tick as appropriate): 

A full impact assessment (second stage) is not required  ✔ 

Reasons for this conclusion    

This report is to consider the adoption of taxi stands in accordance with the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 
1976.  It is proposed that taxi stands be appointed at the existing locations which already have traffic orders in place under the 
Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984.  This does not have a negative effect on any of the protected characteristics, welsh language, 
nor biodiversity.    

 
 
 

 

Collaboration - how we have worked 
with other services/organisations to 
find shared sustainable solutions 

✔  
The Licensing Authority has worked with the highways department 
to identify the most suitable location for taxi stands.  
 

Prevention -  how the initiative will 
prevent problems occurring or getting 
worse  

✔  
By adopting taxi stands under the LG(MP)Act 1976, officers will 
have greater powers to enforce against unlawful parking and 
obstruction of the taxi stands.  By working with the Police and 
Parking Enforcement, it is hoped that the taxi stands will effectively, 
offering those who use taxis in the daytime and night time a safe 
place to picked up and dropped off.  

 

T
udalen20



5 

 

  Name Position Date 

Completed by Neil Chapple  Legal Regulatory Manager 23/09/21 

Signed off by  Craig Griffiths 
Head of Legal and 
Democratic Service  

23/09/21 

T
udalen21



M
ae’r dudalen hon yn fw

riadol w
ag



 

   

NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

3 December 2021 

 

Regeneration and Sustainable Development Cabinet 
Board  

 
Report of the Head of Legal and Democratic Services 

Mr Craig Griffiths 
 

   

Matter for Decision 
 

Wards Affected: All 

 

Animal Welfare (Licensing of Activities Involving Animals) 
(Wales) Regulations 2021 

Purpose of the Report  

1. To seek approval from members to set an appropriate scheme of 
delegated authority for the Animal Welfare (Licensing of Activities 
Involving Animals) (Wales) Regulations 2021. 

Executive Summary 

2. This report seeks to obtain approval to set an appropriate scheme of 
delegated authority for the Animal Welfare (Licensing of Activities 
Involving Animals) Wales Regulations 2021.  

3. The question of whether a function is an executive function [i.e. one for 
Cabinet or Cabinet Board or a Council function of the Licensing 
Committee, is determined by either the relevant legislation itself or by the 

Tudalen23

Eitem yr Agenda7



 

   

Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Functions and 
Responsibilities) (Wales) Regulations 2007, made by the Welsh 
Assembly Government.  In this instance the legislation itself is silent on 
the matter and no such regulations have been made in respect of the 
Animal Welfare (Licensing of Activities Involving Animals) (Wales) 
Regulations 2021 determining whether the function should be exercisable 
as an executive or non-executive function.  This means that by virtue of 
Section 13 of the Local Government Act 2000 the function by default 
becomes the responsibility of an Executive under a local authority's 
executive arrangements. 

Background  

4. The Animal Welfare (Licensing of Activities Involving Animals) (Wales) 
Regulations 2021 requires, subject to qualifying criteria, any person 
wishing to sell animals in the course of a business to obtain a licence 
from their local authority under these regulations. 

5. This requirement replaces the requirement to obtain a licence under the 
Pet Animals Act 1951 Wales. 

6. The Main changes introduced by the regulations are 

 Require the licensing of operators which sell animals as pets in the 
course of a business including keeping animals in the course of a 
business with a view to their being sold or resold.   

 Introduce stricter welfare standards for those that sell animals as pets.  

 Introduce mandatory licensing conditions for those licensed to sell 
animals as pets. 

 Introducing a ban on the commercial third party sale of puppies and 
kittens. 

7. In order to deal efficiently with applications and animal welfare issues, it is 
proposed that the powers listed below be delegated to both the Head of 
Legal Services and the Legal Regulatory Manager. 

 Power to grant a licence 

Tudalen24



 

   

 Power to refuse a licence 

 Power to renew a licence 

 Power to vary a licence 

 Power to vary a licence with immediate effect 

 Power to impose conditions 

 Power to suspend a licence 

 Power to suspend a licence with immediate effect 

 Power to reinstate a suspended licence 

 Power to revoke a licence 
 

Financial Implications 

8. Not applicable 

Integrated Impact Assessment  

9. As this report is in respect of governance and delegated powers alone 
there is no requirement for an integrated impact assessment. 

Legal Impacts 

10. The report will enable the Council to implement the requirements of the 
Animal Welfare (Licensing of Activities Involving Animals) (Wales) 
Regulations 2021.  Any person who is aggrieved by the refusal to grant or 
renew, or the decision to revoke, a licence may appeal to the Magistrates' 
Court 

Risk Management 

11. The report will enable the Council to implement the requirements of the 
Animal Welfare (Licensing of Activities Involving Animals) (Wales) 
Regulations 2021.   

Tudalen25



 

   

Consultation 

12. There is no requirement under the constitution for external consultation 
on this item 

Recommendation 

13. It is recommended that the following powers contained in the Animal 
Welfare (Licensing of Activities Involving Animals) (Wales) Regulations 
delegated to both the Head of Legal and Democratic Services and the 
Legal Regulatory Manager 

Power to grant a licence 
Power to refuse a licence 
Power to renew a licence 
Power to vary a licence 
Power to vary a licence with immediate effect 
Power to impose conditions 
Power to suspend a licence 
Power to suspend a licence with immediate effect 
Power to reinstate a suspended licence 
Power to revoke a licence 

And that the Head of Legal and Democratic Services be authorised to 
update the Neath Port Talbot Council Constitution accordingly. 

Reasons for Proposed Decision  

14. Delegated Authority is required in order to deal efficiently with 
applications and animal welfare issues under the Animal Welfare 
(Licensing of Activities Involving Animals) (Wales) Regulations 2021. 

Implementation of Decision 

15. The decision is for immediate implementation with the consent of the 
Chair of the appropriate Scrutiny Committee.  

Appendices  

16. Not Applicable 

Tudalen26



 

   

List of Background Papers 

17. Animal Welfare (Licensing of Activities Involving Animals) (Wales) 
Regulations 2021 

Officer Contact 

18. Craig Griffiths 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services 
Tel. No: - 01639 763767 
Email address: c.griffiths2@npt.gov.uk 

19. Neil Chapple 
Legal Regulatory Manager 
Tel. No:- 01639 763050 
Email address: n.chapple@npt.gov.uk 

 

Tudalen27

mailto:c.griffiths2@npt.gov.uk
mailto:n.chapple@npt.gov.uk


Mae’r dudalen hon yn fwriadol wag



  

 
 
 
 

 
NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
Regeneration and Sustainable Development Cabinet Board 

 
3 December 2021 

 
 Joint Report of  

The Head of Planning and Public Protection – C Morris 
The Head of Property and Regeneration – S Brennan 

 
 
Matter for Monitoring 
 
Wards Affected: All Wards 
 
Report Title: Key Performance Indicators 2021/2022 – Quarter 2 
(1st April 2021 – 30th September 2021) 
 
 
Purpose of the Report:  
 
To report quarter 2 performance management data for the period 1 
April 2021 to 30 September 2021 for Regeneration and Sustainable 
Development Cabinet Board.  This will enable the Regeneration and 
Sustainable Development Cabinet Board and Scrutiny Members to 
discharge their functions in relation to performance management. 
 
Executive Summary: 
 
A list of quarter 2 Corporate Plan KPI’s with progress comments on 
each indicator are attached as appendix 1, these do not include those 
KPI’s collected on an annual basis, these will be reported in quarter 

Tudalen29

Eitem yr Agenda9



4. The full suite of Corporate Plan KPI’s can be found in the 
Corporate Plan 2018-2022. 
 
KPI’s that have improved on or achieved target are GREEN status, 
KPI’s that have not achieved target but performance is within 5% are 
AMBER status and KPI’s that are 5% or more below target are RED 
status. 
 
Where available, performance indicators report quarter 2 target and 3 
years of quarter 2 data for comparison. 
 
Appendix 2 provides quarter 2 information for Compliments and 
Complaints data, collected in line with the Council’s Comments, 
Compliments & Complaints Policy for Cabinet and relevant Cabinet 
Board purviews. 
 
Appendices 1 and 2 are new reports from the Corporate Performance 
Management System (CPMS), which went live in August 2018. 
 
Background: 
 
Not applicable. 
 
Financial Impact: 
 
The performance described in the report is being delivered against a 
challenging financial backdrop.  
 
Integrated Impact Assessment: 
 
There is no requirement to undertake an Integrated Impact 
Assessment as this report is for monitoring / information purposes. 
 
Valleys Communities Impacts: 
 
No implications. 

Tudalen30

https://www.npt.gov.uk/media/9325/corporate-plan-2018-22-eng.pdf
https://www.npt.gov.uk/1454
https://www.npt.gov.uk/1454


Workforce Impacts 

 
1. The progress described in the Quarter 2 report was achieved 

against a backdrop of an unprecedented emergency situation. This 
has involved a step change in workforce flexibility and innovation 
underpinned by enhanced use of data and digital technology. A 
significant number of the Council’s workforce were redeployed 
temporarily to new duties. 

 

Legal Impacts: 
 
This report is prepared under: 

1) The Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009 and discharges the 

Council’s duties to “make arrangements to secure continuous 

improvement in the exercise of its functions”  

2) Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 

3) The Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council Constitution 

requires each cabinet committee to monitor quarterly budgets and 

performance in securing continuous improvement of all the 

functions within its purview.  

Risk Management Impacts: 
 
Failure to produce a compliant report within the timescales can lead 
to non-compliance with our Constitution.  Also, failure to have robust 
performance monitoring arrangements could result in poor 
performance going undetected.  
 
Consultation 

Tudalen31



There is no requirement under the Constitution for external 
consultation on this item. 
 
Appendices: 
 
Appendix 1 – Key Performance Indicators 2021/2022 – Quarter 2 
Performance (1 April 2021 – 30 September 2021) 
 
Appendix 2 – Compliments and Complaints information 2021/2022 – 
Quarter 2 (1 April 2021 – 30 September 2021) 

 
Officer Contact: 

Joy Smith, Road Safety and Business Performance Manager. 
Telephone: 01639 686581. E-Mail: j.smith@npt.gov.uk 

 

Tudalen32

mailto:j.smith@npt.gov.uk


 

 
   

       

 

    

      

Performance Indicators 
 

   

      

Neath Port Talbot Council 
 

   

      

 

Appendix 2 - Regeneration and Sustainable Development - Compliments and Complaints - Quarter 2   
(1st April -  30th September) - 2021/22 
 

  

      

    

 

  

    

 

Print Date: 16-Nov-2021 
 

 

    

 

 

 

 

 
RAG (Red, Amber Green) key:  

 Green: achieved target for the period – Quarter 2 2021/22 

 Amber: Within 5% of target for the period – Quarter 2 2021/22 

 Red: 5% or more below target for the period – Quarter 2 2021/22 

 NA – no comparable data or no target set for the Quarter 2 2021/22 period

T
udalen33



 
 

   

 

How will we know we are making a difference (01/04/2021 to 30/09/2021)? 

PI Title Actual 
19/20 

Actual 
20/21 

Actual 
21/22 

Target 
21/22 

Perf. RAG 

Organisation 

PI/268 - Regeneration and Sustainable Development -  % of complaints at Stage 1 that were upheld/partially upheld 0.00 0.00 25.00   

A total of eight Stage 1 complaints were received for this period. Seven were for E. Health and one for Property Management. The two upheld were for E. Health regarding the late 
delivery of a service due to workload where an apology was sent. This compares with three received for the same period last year. 
 
We still have eight complaints outstanding from 2021, seven of which are for E. Health and one for Regeneration. 

PI/269 - Regeneration and Sustainable Development - % of complaints at Stage 2 that were upheld/partially upheld 50.00  0.00   

Four Stage 2 complaints have been received for this period with three all for Planning and one for E. Health which were not upheld. This compares to three Stage 2 complaints received 
for the same period last year. 

PI/270 - Regeneration and Sustainable Development - % of complaints dealt with by the Public Services Ombudsman 
that were upheld/partially upheld 

0.00     

No complaints have been investigated by the Ombudsman for this period which is the same as last year.  

PI/271 - Regeneration and sustainable development - number of compliments received from the public 6.00 15.00 4.00   

Four compliments were received for this period these being two for E. Health, one for Estates and one for Planning. This compares with fifteen  
 received for the same period last year. 

 

 

   

 

T
udalen34



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNCIL 

 
Regeneration and Sustainable Development Cabinet Board 

3rd December 2021 
 

Report of the Head of Planning and Public Protection 
Ceri Morris 

 
Matter for Decision 
 
Wards Affected:  All Wards 
 
Neath Port Talbot Replacement Local Development Plan (RLDP) 2021-2036 
– Consideration of:  

1. The Delivery Agreement (DA) and the consultation responses 
received; 

2. The Integrated Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report (ISASR) and 
the consultation responses received; and 

3. The establishment of the RLDP Member Working Group (MWG). 
 
Purpose of the Report 
 
To consider the responses to the comments received following consultation on 
the draft Delivery Agreement (DA) and Integrated Sustainability Appraisal (ISA) 
Scoping Report respectively; and to consider proposals to establish a Member 
Working Group (MWG) to inform and oversee the preparation of the RLDP.  
 
Executive Summary 
 
The Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan (LDP) (2011-2026) sets the 
framework for the development and use of land up to 2026. The Council has an 
obligation to undertake a full review of the LDP at intervals not longer than every 
four years from initial adoption. The LDP Review Report which outlined the scope 
of the review was published in July 2020.  
 
The next step is to finalise the Delivery Agreement (DA) for the RLDP setting out 
[in agreement with Welsh Government WG)] the review timetable, the 
Community Involvement Scheme (CIS) (establishing how and when the local 
community and other stakeholders can become engaged in the LDP process) 
and the resources the Council will commit to preparing the RLDP.  

Tudalen35

Eitem yr Agenda10



 

 

The agreement of the DA with WG will mark the formal start of the Plan 
preparation / revision process, committing the Local Planning Authority (LPA) to 
produce its Replacement Plan in accordance with the agreed timescales, 
consultation processes and resources. 
 
The RLDP is also required to be subject to Integrated Sustainability Appraisal 
(ISA) in order to give full consideration to its potential impacts on the people of 
Neath Port Talbot, their well-being, and the environment. The first stage of the 
ISA is the preparation of a Scoping Report which sets out the procedures which 
will be followed and the overall scope of the appraisal.  
 
Both the draft DA and draft ISA Scoping Report were subject to a formal 
consultation period running from 16th August to 27th September 2021. This report 
therefore seeks agreement of the responses to the comments received and 
ultimately will seek a resolution by Council to endorse and submit the DA to the 
WG for approval. 
 
Background 
 
The Neath Port Talbot LDP (2011-2026), formally adopted by the Council on 27th 
January 2016, sets the policy framework for the development and use of land up 
to 2026.  
 
This plan will remain part of the Development Plan for the County Borough until 
either the Replacement LDP is adopted or 31st December 2026 (i.e. the end date 
of the current LDP) is reached, whichever is sooner. 
 
An up-to-date LDP is an essential part of the plan-led planning system in Wales. 
The Council is required to undertake a full review of the adopted Plan at intervals 
not longer than every four years from initial adoption.  
 
Members will recall that the LDP Review Report was approved in July 2020, 
constituting the first stage of the process of preparing the RLDP (2021-2036).  
 
In accordance with section 63 of the 2004 Planning and Compulsory Purchase 
Act, the Council must now publish and agree the RLDP Delivery Agreement with 
the WG. Ultimately and in accordance with LDP Regulation 9, the DA (including 
the CIS and timetable) must be approved by Council resolution before 
submission to the WG. 
 
Public Consultation 
 
A report was presented to the Regeneration and Sustainable Development 
Cabinet Board on 30th July 2021 seeking authorisation to undertake a public 
consultation on the draft DA and ISA Scoping Report respectively. 

Tudalen36



 

 

Subsequently, both documents were the subject of a 6-week public consultation 
coupled with targeted consultations with a range of specific and general 
stakeholder bodies1 and statutory consultees2. The formal consultation period 
ran from 16th August to 27th September 2021. 
 
Representations received were either submitted directly online, by email or in 
writing, with all comments subsequently made available for public inspection on 
the Council’s website. Each document and the responses received is considered 
in turn below. 
 
Replacement LDP Delivery Agreement (DA) 
 
The DA is structured into the following parts: 
 

 PART 1: Introduction and Background – setting out the structure. 

 PART 2: RLDP Timetable and the Community Involvement Scheme 

(CIS) – setting out the stages, timeline and resources required for plan 

preparation and the key principles for engagement and community 

involvement. 

 PART 3: Monitoring and Review – detailing how the DA will be kept under 

review. 

Timetable and Resources  
 
The RLDP timetable commits the Council to preparing its Replacement Plan 
within the identified timescales and has been prepared to align with WG’s 
expectation that plans should be developed and adopted within 3.5 years, with a 
permitted slippage of 3 months.  
 
The timetable (set out in Section 4.1 of the DA) sets out the key dates in the plan 
preparation process, including statutory consultation periods and the parallel 
stages of the Integrated Sustainability Appraisal (ISA). The timetable illustrates 
the main stages of plan preparation and divides the stages into two areas: 
 

 Definitive Stages: those stages up to the statutory Deposit stage, which the 
Council has control of; and 

 Indicative Stages: those stages after the statutory Deposit stage, which are 
influenced by factors outside of the control of the Council. 

 
The DA commits the Council to provide the resources necessary to deliver the 
RLDP within the specified timeframe including staffing levels and budgetary 

                                                 
1 A list of Specific and General Consultation Bodies are set out within Appendix F and G respectively, of the 
Consultation Draft DA.   
2 Natural Resources Wales (NRW) and Cadw for the ISA. 

Tudalen37



 

 

resources. It identifies the officers that will be dedicated to producing the RLDP 
and sets out the potential risks and proposed mitigation measures associated 
with the delivery.  
 
The timetable estimates that the RLDP will be adopted in July 2025, which 
represents a realistic yet challenging timetable. The DA will need to be monitored 
throughout the RLDP process, to ensure that there are sufficient resources 
available to meet the specified timetable.  
 
Community Involvement Scheme (CIS) 
 
The CIS sets out how and at what stages the Council will involve the community 
and stakeholders. 
 
Community involvement is a critical element in producing a robust, sound plan, 
to ensure the local community have ownership and have their views incorporated 
into the plan. The CIS sets out the importance of engagement and identifies 
external organisations, groups and agencies that will be consulted. The CIS list 
is not exhaustive and new consultees and interested parties may be added at 
any time throughout the process. 
 
Delivery Agreement – Consultation Responses 
 
Following consultation, the Council received a total of 27 representations from 
13 different individuals or organisations. Responses and recommendations to 
the comments received, highlighting proposed changes to the document where 
relevant, are set out in Appendix 1. 
 
A revised final version of the DA, highlighting all proposed amendments as 
‘tracked changes’, is presented in full in Appendix 2. 
 
Integrated Sustainability Appraisal (ISA) Scoping Report 
 
The ISA Scoping Report constitutes the first stage of the ISA process to identify, 
assess and address in an integrated manner any likely significant effects on the 
environment (including European Sites), sustainability, health and equalities of 
the emerging RLDP.  
 
The report provides a review of other plans, policies and strategies likely to 
influence the LDP and ISA process and includes relevant baseline information 
that will inform the assessment together with the ISA Assessment Framework to 
be used in the appraisal of proposed RLDP policies and proposals. The ISA is 
all-encompassing and incorporates the following statutory and non-statutory 
assessment processes: 
 

Tudalen38



 

 

 Sustainability Appraisal (SA) as required under the Planning and 

Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (‘the 2004 Act’) and the Development 

Planning (Wales) Regulations 2005 (‘the 2005 Regulations’); 

 Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA) as required by the 

Environmental Assessment of Plans and Programmes (Wales) 

Regulations 2004 (‘the SEA Regulations’); 

 Supporting the implementation of wellbeing goals and wellbeing 

objectives (and the discharge of associated duties) as required under the 

Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. The preparation of 

the RLDP needs to consider social, economic, environmental and cultural 

well-being; 

 Equalities Impact Assessment (EqIA) under the Equality Act 2010 – 

covering the Public Sector Equality Duty and the Socio-economic Duty; 

 Health Impact Assessment (HIA) – non-statutory but needed to support 

robust SEA, EqIA and wellbeing assessment processes; and 

 Welsh Language Impact Assessment (WLIA) as required under the 

2004 Act, the Welsh Language Standards (No.1) Regulations 2015 and 

PPW 11th Edition. 

ISA Scoping Report – Consultation Responses 
 
Following consultation, the Council received a total of 9 representations from 4 
different organisations. Responses and recommendations to the comments 
received, highlighting proposed changes to the document where relevant, are set 
out in Appendix 3. 
 
A revised final version of the ISA Scoping Report, highlighting all proposed 
amendments as ‘tracked changes’, is presented in full in Appendix 4. 
 
Submission and Publication Procedures 
 
Pending formal approval by Council, the DA will be submitted to the WG, who 
then have 4 weeks to either agree the contents or notify the Council that they 
require more time to consider the document. If, before the end of the 4 week 
period, WG fail to respond to the receipt of the DA, it will be deemed to be agreed 
at the end of that period. 
 
Once agreement has been received from the WG, the DA will be published on 
the Council’s website and the RLDP will be prepared in accordance with its 
contents. The finalised ISA Scoping Report will also be published at this time, 
and the RLDP will be assessed in accordance with the procedures contained in 
the report. 

Tudalen39



 

 

In accordance with the Council’s Welsh Language Standards Policy all relevant 
documents and publicity / communication will be bilingual or issued in both Welsh 
and English. 
 
Both documents will also be available for purchase at a reasonable charge. In 
common with previous practice, it is suggested that the price be based on the 
cost of printing together with post and package at the prevailing cost. Electronic 
copies will be made available at no cost. 
 
Member Working Group (MWG) 
 
In preparing the RLDP, it is proposed to set up a Member Working Group (MWG) 
to oversee the work as it progresses. The MWG is intended to be a small 
representative group of councillors derived from the Council’s Planning 
Committee and will meet at regular intervals. 
 
The intention is for the group to be used as a ‘sounding board’ in order to provide 
informal feedback about existing and proposed policies and proposals, the key 
spatial planning issues to be addressed, along with the vision, objectives, 
strategy and proposals of the plan as they emerge. The group will also have the 
opportunity to review the background documents and evidence base.  
 
The ‘Heads of Terms’ for the MWG is set out in Appendix 5 and approval is 
sought for the proposed constitution, membership and associated terms of 
reference. 
 

Financial Impacts 
 
The decisions at this stage will incur expenditure in relation to the publication 
procedures. These costs will be accommodated within existing budgets. 
 
The cost of the LDP Review will be met from the LDP budget and carried out by 
the LDP team with specialist advice and evidence procured from consultants and 
through collaboration with neighbouring authorities as required. The resources 
required to prepare the RLDP are set out in section 6.4 of the DA. 
 
It should also be recognised that the demands on the RLDP budget will be 
influenced by factors outside the control of the Council, including the number and 
nature of objections received, the sites put forward for development 
consideration, the length of the Examination in Public and whether or not issues 
emerge that require expert advice and evidence procured from external sources. 
 

Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) 
 
First stage impact assessments have been undertaken to assist the Council in 
discharging its legislative duties (under the Equality Act 2010, the Welsh 

Tudalen40



 

 

Language Standards (No.1) Regulations 2015, the Well-being of Future 
Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and the Environment (Wales) Act 2016.  
 
The first stage assessments in respect of the DA and the ISASR, attached at 
Appendix 6 have indicated that a more in-depth assessment is not required for 
either document.  A summary is included below. 
 

 Equalities – Both the RLDP DA and the ISA are part of procedures 

intended to ensure that the RLDP embodies consideration of equalities 

issues from the start of its preparation, throughout the processes and 

procedures that govern its preparation and in all its resulting strategies and 

policies, thereby ensuring that local planning policy within NPT fully 

embraces all equalities considerations. 

 Welsh Language – The RLDP DA and ISASR have been prepared in 

accordance with the Welsh Language Standards (No.1) Regulations 2015 

and the consultation on the documents embodied the principles of the 

regulations. Both the DA and the ISA will help to ensure that the RLDP also 

takes into account Welsh Language requirements in its preparation and 

contents. 

 Biodiversity – In themselves, implementation of proposals for the RLDP 

DA and ISASR documents will have a negligible effect on biodiversity, but 

will help to ensure that the RLDP takes full account of all duties and 

requirements to maintain and enhance biodiversity and promote the 

resilience of ecosystems through its planning strategies and policies. The 

ISASR should in addition ensure that the ISA undertakes extensive 

assessments of the likely effects of the emerging RLDP strategies, policies 

and proposals on biodiversity. 

 Well-being of Future Generation (5 ways of Working) – the RLDP DA 

and ISASR embrace all five ways of working. The documents positively 

integrate with the Council’s well-being objectives; involve people and 

include collaboration with partners in their development and 

implementation; and ultimately will help to address any foreseeable 

problems in achieving the adoption of the RLDP itself. 

Socio-Economic Duty 
 
Since proposals for the RLDP DA, ISASR and MWG are concerned only with the 
timetable, procedures for community involvement and plan preparation and 
procedures for the assessment of the sustainability of the RLDP, this report and 
the associated documents do not involve any strategic decision-making. 

Tudalen41



 

 

Consideration of the Socio-Economic Duty is therefore not applicable in this 
case. 
 
Valleys Communities Impacts 
 
The preparation of the RLDP will have significant spatial implications for the 
valley communities. The current LDP sets the framework for the development 
and use of land up to 2026, which seeks to reinvigorate the valley communities 
by identifying Pontardawe and the Upper Neath Valley as strategic growth areas 
and also presents a series of policies to provide a more flexible approach to 
development. 
 
The current strategic approach to the valleys will be reassessed as part of the 
review of the LDP to determine if the approach remains sound and fit for purpose. 
Furthermore, the RLDP will need to take account of a range of contextual 
changes including Future Wales: The National Plan 2040 and the emergence of 
the Welsh Government’s Valleys Task Force: Our Valleys, Our Future and more 
locally, the outputs of the Council’s own Valleys Taskforce initiative. 
 
Workforce Impacts 
 
It is anticipated that the preparation of the RLDP will be accommodated mainly 
by utilising the existing staff structure within the Planning Policy team. This 
however will need to be kept under review, to ensure delivery in accordance with 
the DA.  
 

Legal Impacts 
 

Given that it is now over four years since the LDP was formerly adopted, the 
report addresses the legal requirement for the Council to proceed with a full 
review of the LDP. 
  

Risk Management Impacts 
 

The Council will be in breach of its legal requirement to proceed with a full review 
of the LDP should there be a failure to implement the proposed 
recommendations. 
 

Recommendations 
 

That having considered the report and having due regard to the Integrated 
Impact Assessment, it is resolved to commend the following to Council for 
approval: 
 

1. The RLDP Delivery Agreement as presented in Appendix 2 be agreed and 

formally submitted to Welsh Government for approval. 
 

2. The ISA Scoping Report as set out in Appendix 4 be agreed. 

Tudalen42



 

 

 

3. The establishment and Heads of Terms of the Member Working Group as 

set out in Appendix 5 be agreed. 

Reasons for Proposed Decision 
 
The recommendations are needed to ensure compliance with Section 63 of the 
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004; The Town and Country Planning 
(Local Development Plan) (Wales) (Amendment) Regulations 2015; the Well-
being of Future Generations (Wales) Act (2015); the Equality Act (2010); the 
Welsh Language Standards (No.1) Regulations 2015; Planning Policy Wales 11 
(2021) and the Development Plans Manual Edition 3 (2020). 
 
Implementation of Decision 
 
The decision is proposed for implementation after the three day call in period. 
 
Appendices 
 
Appendix 1 – Responses & Recommendations to the DA Representations 
Appendix 2 – RLDP Delivery Agreement (Tracked Changes). 
Appendix 3 – Responses & Recommendations to the ISASR Representations. 
Appendix 4 – ISA Scoping Report (Tracked Changes). 
Appendix 5 – Heads of Terms for the RLDP Member Working Group 
Appendix 6 – Integrated Impact Assessments (IIA) First Stage. 
 
List of Background Papers 
 
Legislation and Regulations: 
 
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. 
Environment (Wales) Act 2016. 
The Town and Country Planning (Local Development Plan) (Wales) 
(Amendment) Regulations 2015. 
The Environmental Assessment of Plans and Programmes (Wales) Regs 2004. 
The Conservation (Natural Habitats, &c.) Regulations 1994. 
EC Directive 92/43/EEC on Conservation of Natural Habitats and of Wild Fauna 
and Flora (Habitats Directive). 
 

Planning Policy / Guidance: 
 

Future Wales – The National Plan 2040. 
Neath Port Talbot LDP (2011-2026) (January 2016). 
Planning Policy Wales Edition 11 (2021). 
Technical Advice Notes (TANs). 

Tudalen43



 

 

Minerals Technical Advice Notes (MTANs). 
Development Plans Manual – Edition 3 (2020). 
 
Officer Contact 
 

Lana Beynon – Planning Policy Manager  
Tel: 01639 686314 or e-mail: l.beynon@npt.gov.uk   

Tudalen44

mailto:l.beynon@npt.gov.uk


 

 

APPENDIX 1 – Responses & Recommendations to the Delivery Agreement 
Representations 
 

Full Name 
Company / 

Organisation 
Section Representation Officer Response 

Officer 
Recommendation 

Jennifer 
Davies 

Public Health 
Wales 

Whole 
Document 

It may well be implicit within the reference to 
WBFGA, Equalities Act and other legislation 
noted, as well as the intention to adopt 
placemaking principles. I would however 
want to highlight that NPT has some of the 
worst levels of health inequity within Wales 
and as such, I would welcome a stronger 
statement around the intended 
impact/outcomes that the final RLDP will 
look at addressing. This may well be part of 
the process of its development and hence at 
a later stage than this initial consultation 
phase.  

The comment is 
noted. This point will 
be considered during 
the evidence 
gathering stage of the 
RLDP preparation 
process. 

No change to the 
Delivery Agreement 
in respect of this 
representation. 

Mike 
Harvey 

Secure By 
Design 

Whole 
Document 

I have no comments to make at this stage 
but would ask to be consulted as a 
Designing out Crime Officer throughout the 
process. 

The comment is 
noted.  

Secure by Design is 
identified in the Other 
Consultation Bodies 
list in Appendix G. 
The Designing Out 
Crime Officer will 
therefore be 
consulted as the 
representative of 
Secure by Design. 

No change to the 
Delivery Agreement 
in respect of this 
representation. 

  

Sioned 
Williams 
MS 

South Wales 
West Regional 
Member, 
Welsh 
Parliament 

Whole 
Document 

On the whole, this DDA is a comprehensive 
document that provides clarity on the shape 
of the RLDP process. I am pleased to see 
the recognition of planning on well-being, 
and the emphasis placed upon ongoing and 
meaningful community engagement. 

From what I can see, there is little that is 
missing or in need of significant change. I 
have made comments below regarding 
concerns of the Community Involvement 
Scheme, but feel these can be 
accommodated without additional burdens. 

The support is noted. 

No change to the 
Delivery Agreement 
in respect of this 
representation. 

Sioned 
Williams 
MS 

South Wales 
West Regional 
Member, 
Welsh 
Parliament 

Whole 
Document 

The RLDP will contribute to the shaping of 
our communities for years to come, and 
therefore ensuring that all residents are able 
to read, understand, engage and respond 
within this process is vital. Neath Port Talbot 
residents should feel a sense of “ownership” 
of this plan, both through this phase and 
over the years of the plan. 

My office is willing to assist in whatever way 
we can to increase resident engagement. 

The comment is 
noted and the offer of 
assistance welcomed 
and will be taken up 
as appropriate during 
RLDP preparation. 

No change to the 
Delivery Agreement 
in respect of this 
representation. 

Cllr 
Alun 
Llewellyn 

 Whole 
Document 

  

As Covid is still impacting on activities, there 
will need to be continued consideration of 
Accessibility of the review in all forms so that 
the community can genuinely participate. 

The comments are 
noted. 

Following finalisation 
of the Delivery 
Agreement with WG, 
the next stage will be 
to prepare (in 

No change to the 
Delivery Agreement 
in respect of this 
representation. 

Tudalen45



 

 

Full Name 
Company / 

Organisation 
Section Representation Officer Response 

Officer 
Recommendation 

Although it is a review rather than a 
completely new plan it’s important that 
residents can genuinely engage and 
understand and influence the direction of the 
plan. 

For instance, the balance of developments 
between the coastal strip, towns and valleys 
needs to be reconsidered. Where does the 
LDP fit into the valley strategies of the local 
authority and Welsh Government? 

The delivery agreement should have a vision 
at the outset of who “owns” the LDP at the 
end of the process so that there is a genuine 
purpose in the people of Neath Port Talbot 
getting involved. 

consultation with the 
community) a vision 
and strategic 
options.  

The spatial 
distribution and levels 
of growth planned for 
across the County 
Borough will be 
reviewed as part of 
the RLDP preparation 
process. 

The vision for the 
County Borough will 
be set out in the 
RLDP.  

Melanie 
Lindsley 

The Coal 
Authority 

Whole 
Document 

I can confirm that the Coal Authority has no 
specific comments to make in respect of the 
draft Delivery Agreement and the questions 
asked as part of the consultation. 

The comment is 
noted 

No change to the 
Delivery Agreement 
in respect of this 
representation. 

Rhian 
Isaac 

Natural 
Resources 
Wales 

Whole 
Document 

We have assessed the Revised Neath Port 
Talbot Local Development Plan Draft 
Delivery Agreement, 2021 - 2036, and agree 
with the proposed schedule of works. We do 
not have any comments to make on this 
document. 

The comment is 
noted. 

No change to the 
Delivery Agreement 
in respect of this 
representation. 

Mr 
Nick 
Horsley 

Mineral 
Products 
Association 

Whole 
Document 

As recognised in the adopted plan, the 
minerals industry contributes markedly to 
employment and is important both in terms 
of its contribution to the Welsh economy and 
more locally, particularly in the valleys, 
supplying materials to many downstream 
industries. It is important that this 
contribution is reflected in the RLDP. The 
sector recognises the need to balance the 
effects of essential minerals developments 
on the wider landscape and communities 
contained therein and will continue to do so. 
 
The mineral resources within the borough, 
are significant on a UK scale and must 
continue to be safeguarded from other types 
of permanent development which would 
either sterilise them or hinder their future 
potential extraction. Furthermore, there is an 
important policy need to safeguard minerals 
infrastructure, such as processing facilities, 
dockside wharves and rail heads, or facilities 
with future potential. 
 
Policies in the RDLP must ensure that the 
Borough continues to make a proportionate 
 
contribution to the supply of mineral reserves 
to meet local, regional and national demand 
by maintaining a steady and adequate 
supply throughout the plan period in 
accordance with national planning policy 
contained within PPW. The RDLP should 
recognise the requirements of the recently 
updated RTS and the need for collaborative 
working with other authorities through 

The comments are 
noted. Whilst they do 
not relate to the 
Delivery agreement 
per se, they will be 
considered as part of 
the RLDP preparation 
process. 

No change to the 
Delivery Agreement 
in respect of this 
representation. 

Tudalen46



 

 

Full Name 
Company / 

Organisation 
Section Representation Officer Response 

Officer 
Recommendation 

Statements of Sub-Regional Collaboration. 
 
We would also support the retention of 
criteria-based policies to ensure the 
sustainable minerals developments, in 
accordance with national policy. 
 
Finally, it will be necessary for the RLDP 
process to monitor and reflect changes in 
national policy and legislation, through 
Future Wales, SDPs and how the RDLP may 
sit within the Corporate Joint Committee 
structure. 
 
We trust the above comments are helpful 
and are keen to engage further in the on-
going development of the RLDP and its 
policies. 

 Tata Steel 
Whole 
Document 

NEATH PORT TALBOT REPLACEMENT 
LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN – DRAFT 
DELIVERY AGREEMENT 
 
CONSULTATION – REPRESENTATION ON 
BEHALF OF TATA STEEL UK LTD 
 
This response to the consultation on the 
Neath Port Talbot (‘NPT’) Replacement 
Local Development Plan (‘RLDP’) Delivery 
Agreement is submitted by Turley on behalf 
of Tata Steel UK Ltd (‘Tata Steel’). It relates 
to the specific Tata Steel land interests at 
the Port Talbot Steelworks. 

Tata Steel’s Port Talbot Steelworks is an 
integral part of the Neath Port Talbot local 
and regional economy. It comprises a 
significant, existing employment area. The 
strategic importance of the steelworks is 
recognised in the adopted Local Plan. 
 
Figure 1: Bird’s eye capture of Port Talbot 
Steelworks and adjacent land uses 

Ongoing investment in and development of 
this heavy industrial site (including any 
ancillary uses and services) is an important 
part of any future plans for the Neath Port 
Talbot area. 

Tata Steel’s Estates Team and associated 
consultants have a proactive and positive 
working relationship with NPT’s Planning 
and Public Protection Team. We would 
welcome early and on-going dialogue with 
NPT on all elements of the plan preparation, 
including any associated evidence base 
preparation. 
 
Tata Steel is pleased to see its inclusion as 
a Key Stakeholder Group within the Delivery 
Agreement. It welcomes, and strongly 
encourages, engagement from the outset of 
the Plan preparation, up to and including 
deposit stage. It will be critical that Tata 
Steel plays a central role in identifying the 

Comments noted. 

The important 
strategic role that 
Port Talbot 
Steelworks plays in 
the local, regional 
and national 
economy is 
recognised and will 
be reflected 
appropriately in the 
RLDP following 
engagement with 
Tata Steel. 

The Council 
welcomes further 
engagement with 
Tata Steel in the 
RLDP preparation 
process as a Key 
Stakeholder Group 
member and to 
inform any evidence 
base preparation and 
identifying the vision, 
objectives and 
strategic options. 

A meeting with Tata 
Steel to discuss their 
future involvement in 
the RLDP preparation 
process will be held 
as part of plan 
preparation 
engagement. 

No change to the 
Delivery Agreement 
in respect of this 
representation. 

Tudalen47



 

 

Full Name 
Company / 

Organisation 
Section Representation Officer Response 

Officer 
Recommendation 

Plan vision, objectives and strategy options. 
 
It will be important that any future supporting 
assessments, development management 
policies or site specific policies relevant to 
the Port Talbot Steelworks, surrounding Tata 
Steel land or adjoining relevant sites are 
informed by Tata Steel. Tata Steel team 
would like to engage with the Council on the 
evidence base preparation that is already 
underway. 
 
As a key industrial player and one of the 
largest employers in the region, Tata Steel 
will have a prominent role in any strategic 
growth. The future of steelmaking will be an 
important economic, social and 
environmental driver in the region. This 
includes opportunities for investment, 
regeneration and job creation. 
 
Tata Steel agrees that the RLDP must take 
account of Future Wales and particularly 
Neath Port Talbot’s role as part of the 
National Growth Area for strategic economic 
growth (Policy 28). The emerging plan must 
be prepared appropriately and in parallel to 
any forthcoming Strategic Development Plan 
(SDP) for South West Wales. Aligning Tata 
Steel’s economic and sustainability 
ambitions up to 2030, 2040 and 2050 with 
any decision making on the Local Plan will 
be critical in supporting a prosperous and 
sustainable local economy. 
 
Tata must be engaged in both the local and 
regional planning process from the outset. 
Adding the technical and market inputs that 
Tata can provide from the outset of the plan 
making process is essential in preparing 
sound and appropriate planning policies that 
are both flexible and fit-for-purpose. 
 
Tata Steel would be pleased to participate in 
a meeting in the coming weeks/month to 
facilitate early discussion on the RLDP and 
how the team can assist the wider work 
underpinning this. Turley would be pleased 
to coordinate this between relevant 
members of the Planning and Public 
Protection team and Tata Steel. 
 
We trust this response is of use and look 
forward to participating in, and contributing 
to, all stages of the RLDP preparation. 
 
Yours sincerely  

Mark 
Gregory 

 Whole 
Document 

I wish to make observations regarding the 
consultation on the future local development 
plan.  The issue is a lack of any house of 
multiple occupation (HMO) policy.  We live in 
Crymlyn Burrows and since Swansea 
University built Bay Campus we are in 
desperate need of a policy to prevent the 

The comments are 
noted. 

The need for revised 
planning policy 
approaches to the 
issue of HMOs will be 
considered as part of 

No change to the 
Delivery Agreement 
in respect of this 
representation. 

Tudalen48



 

 

Full Name 
Company / 

Organisation 
Section Representation Officer Response 

Officer 
Recommendation 

further growth of HMOs in our area and 
surrounding areas. 

It is widely determined that general 
characteristics of a student housing market 
are a concentration of private rented 
accommodation around a particular 
geographical area, for example in close 
proximity to a university campus often 
provided by HMOs or shared housing.  This 
is Crymlyn Burrows and surrounding areas 
for the purpose of these observations. 

The Houses in Multiple Occupation: Review 
& Evidence Gathering carried out by the 
Welsh Government (April 2015) has 
determined the following: 

The Review showed that the incidence of 
HMO concentrations across the whole of 
Wales is relatively limited. Concentrations 
are mainly found in the four cities and towns 
with long-established universities (Cardiff, 
Swansea, Aberystwyth and Bangor), with 
lesser concentrations in Rhondda Cynon Taf 
(in proximity to the University of South Wales 
campus in Treforest) and in Wrexham (due 
to transient households rather than 
students). 

Where there are high concentrations of 
HMOs, the Review confirmed that common 
problems include: 

 Damage to social cohesion with 
higher levels of transient residents 
and fewer long term households 
and established families, leading in 
the long term to communities which 
are not balanced and self-
sustaining; 

 Access to the area for owner 
occupiers and first time buyers 
becoming much more difficult 
because of increased house prices 
and competition from landlords, 
with a reduction in the number of 
family homes; 

 Increases in anti-social behaviour, 
noise, burglary and other crime; 

 Reduction in the quality of the local 
environment and street scene as a 
consequence of increased litter, 
refuse and fly tipping, increased 
levels of disrepair and prevalent 
letting signs; 

 A change of character in an area 
through a tendency for increased 
numbers of takeaways, discount 
food stores and letting agencies; 

 Increased pressure on parking; 

 Reduction in provision of 
community facilities for families and 

the RLDP preparation 
process. 

Tudalen49



 

 

Full Name 
Company / 

Organisation 
Section Representation Officer Response 

Officer 
Recommendation 

children, in particular pressure on 
schools through falling rolls 

The inflow of students into a particular area 
can result in unintended consequences that 
can create friction with the indigenous 
community. The impact of a large 
concentration of student housing in multiple 
occupation upon a particular neighbourhood 
is well documented and can have both 
positive and negative effects upon a local 
housing market area.  Unfortunately, we 
have seen nothing but a negative impact on 
housing stock in our area. 

A small proportion of HMOs in a locality may 
not have a significant impact on the overall 
neighbourhood, but this can change when 
concentrations increase significantly. 
Problems commonly associated with high 
concentrations of HMOs have been 
highlighted above. 

The ECOTEC report shows that HMO 
concentrations (which had increased 
significantly post 2000) had affected local 
communities (to varying degrees) in the 
manner described above. Competition for 
investment properties had affected local 
housing markets and there had been 
considerable concern among communities 
because of issues such as anti-social 
behaviour, noise, parking, refuse, poorly 
maintained properties and gardens and so 
on. The character of many neighbourhoods 
had changed, reflecting the greater 
transience of households. Equally, however, 
all the focus authorities pointed out the 
importance of the higher education 
institutions to their area; they were a crucial 
factor in the local economy and the income 
from student households in particular was a 
valuable contributory factor to local 
businesses.  However, I would like to argue 
that last point as there are no positives 
regarding local jobs and economic growth as 
there have been no extra businesses nor 
jobs created in our area even though there 
has been the University expansion to the 
district. 

Social impacts on the makeup of a local 
housing market can lead to changes in the 
infrastructure of a neighbourhood. On the 
negative side, an increasing student 
population can lead to the displacement of 
established residents, to be replaced with an 
increasingly younger and transient 
population. This transformation in the 
demographic composition of an area can 
lead to changes in the local infrastructure, as 
facilities respond to population change. For 
example the reduction in children of school 
age can lead to uncertainty in the viability of 
local schools. In addition, a dwindling in 

Tudalen50



 

 

Full Name 
Company / 

Organisation 
Section Representation Officer Response 

Officer 
Recommendation 

youth facilities and other community-based 
activities can, it is argued by some sources, 
lead to diminishing community cohesion and 
identity. Accommodating the demands of a 
student housing market can lead to the 
traditional retailing functions of some local 
neighbourhoods being replaced by a 
concentration of take-aways, pubs and 
restaurants, accommodation letting agencies 
and discount food retailers. The 
concentration of a young transient social 
grouping, such as students, living in 
relatively insecure accommodation can lead 
to increased levels of burglary and crime in 
an area. Added to this, the behaviour of 
some students, particularly drunken 
behaviour, is often considered to be anti-
social by families or elderly residents. All of 
these factors can have the knock-on effect of 
alienating the longer term population and 
contributing to the resentment and hostility 
that develops between students and other 
residents, thus creating a push factor for 
some long-term residents to move out of the 
neighbourhood. 

The use of Estate Agents’ Lettings Board to 
advertise accommodation to let can have a 
detrimental impact upon the streetscape and 
the local environment.  The display of 
outdoor advertisements is controlled by the 
Town and Country Planning (Control of 
Advertisements) Regulations 1992. This 
legislation permits adverts relating to the 
letting of residential property to be displayed 
without requiring the Council’s consent, 
provided they conform to a number of 
conditions and limitations (Class 3A).  Whilst 
under normal circumstances the regulations 
are adequate to keep the impact of outdoor 
signage within acceptable control, where 
there are concentrations of HMOs the 
excessive number of letting signs can have a 
significant adverse impact on the character 
and appearance of the area. As well as 
creating clutter and looking unsightly, they 
give an air of transience to a neighbourhood 
which may also lead to increased risk of 
crime; intervention may well be appropriate 
where the impact on visual amenity is 
substantial. 

Environmental and physical impacts private 
rented stock is often of the poorest quality 
when compared to other tenures.  Therefore, 
concentrations of such stock, especially 
noted in student areas, can lead to a poor 
quality local environment. Many lobby 
groups’ evidence found unkempt property 
frontages and litter strewn over local streets. 
Increased population densities associated 
with houses in multiple and shared 
occupation and the lifestyles that accompany 
such occupants can place a strain on 
existing services such as refuse disposal 

Tudalen51



 

 

Full Name 
Company / 

Organisation 
Section Representation Officer Response 

Officer 
Recommendation 

and street cleansing, as well as car parking 
provision. 

Swansea University is expected to grow 
significantly over the coming years. Whilst I 
appreciate purpose build student 
accommodation is being developed within 
Swansea City, it is widely accepted that this 
will not meet the demand of the future intake 
of students seeking 
accommodation.  Swansea Council have 
adopted HMO policy for areas affected by 
HMO growth which will limit high 
concentrations of HMOs.  It is therefore 
entirely probable that the growth will expand, 
instead to Crymlyn Burrows, Jersey Marine, 
Briton Ferry and further into NPT 
territory.  Crymlyn Burrows has already 
peaked the 10% accepted guide (by the 
Welsh Government) and this number will 
only grow. 

The authority may very well argue that it is 
one small area affected by studentification at 
present, it is wholly reckless for the authority 
to completely ignore it.  I have already 
explained that with the Swansea Council 
area now implementing restrictions, Neath 
Port Talbot Council must consider following 
their example. 

A number of authorities have developed 
planning policies, which attempt to control 
the level of houses in multiple occupation 
and promote HMOs in other parts of the 
towns or cities. The purpose is to create 
more balanced and sustainable 
communities, by restraining the number of 
student housing in some neighbourhoods 
and encouraging the provision of purpose-
built accommodation in alternative locations. 

I would urge you to review and adopt a 
threshold approach.  A cap of 10% would be 
highly beneficial, a 50 metre radius policy 
and a no sandwiching policy would go a long 
way to help protect the further 
studentification of Crymlyn Burrows and our 
neighbours.  

A similar approach to Swansea City Councils 
policy would be fair especially as NPT 
should be considering them as an example 
as both authorities have campuses within 
their boundaries. 
(Houses_in_Multiple_Occupation_and_Purp
ose_Built_Student_Accommodation_SPG.pd
f). 

Ideally we would like to see noise 
clauses.  Unfortunately, the Environment 
Protection Act does not cover ‘day to day’ 
noise.  With having five student neighbours 
in the property next door and fire doors fitted 
without a professional tradesman, we suffer 

Tudalen52



 

 

Full Name 
Company / 

Organisation 
Section Representation Officer Response 

Officer 
Recommendation 

from slamming fire door noise.  The 
Environment department have no powers to 
rectify this noise even though, in our opinion, 
it is worse when the doors are pulled or 
pushed shut.  We are also kept awake by 
noisy chatter and shouting as students will 
have different hours to that of a couple that 
have to get up for work each day. 

Adopting a similar policy to Swansea would 
also mean that the property’s owner, would 
either have to maintain a large, invasive 
plant species that borders our property or 
remove it altogether.  The weed is 15 feet 
high and grows aggressively onto our 
property.  It has destroyed a fence, interferes 
with our satellite dish and smashes onto our 
window during winds.  Again, the authority 
have failed to assist with this despite raising 
it with our local councillor year after 
year.  The landlord would also have to tackle 
the many, dangerous brambles that grow 
fiercely at both the front and back of the 
property.  They too grow onto our property 
and we are now looking at having to replace 
our fence in our back garden because of 
this. I know this appears as insignificant 
however it is very frustrating living next to a 
HMO that is neglected so much.  Under 
Swansea, HMO landlords are responsible for 
refuse.  This does not appear to be the case 
living under NPT.  We’ve raised many issues 
with poor refuse management and rats to 
our local councillor but again, the landlord is 
permitted to ignore this issue.  In making 
these representations, I am hoping that no 
more families have to suffer like we have.  

Carolyn 
Gill 

 Whole 
Document 

I attempted to read the draft LDP and have 
never seen such concentration of negative 
comments in one document. Most of us 
know what is wrong with the current situation 
what we need is to hear what you are 
planning to do to put it right! 

You can cap the number of HMO properties 
in the area closest to the Bay Campus 
immediately & impose 20 mph restrictions on 
residential streets. We then need a plan of 
action to tidy up the area under Baldwins 
bridge, including the parked commercial 
vehicles that block pavements & the 
Sustrans cycle path that leads into the 
university. I have been told that because this 
is in the Swansea Council area it is 
impossible to obtain details. I don't know 
why as I thought we were all part of the 
Swansea Bay region now. Please do what 
you can to sort this out. We all need some 
positivity going forward. Many thanks 

The comment is 
noted.  

The need for revised 
planning policy 
approaches to the 
issue of HMOs and 
the Baldwins Bridge 
junction issues will be 
considered as part of 
the RLDP preparation 
process. 

  

No change to the 
Delivery Agreement 
in respect of this 
representation.  

Sioned 
Williams 
MS 

South Wales 
West Regional 
Member 
Welsh 
Parliament 

Whole 
Document 

While I broadly agree with the proposed 
Community Involvement Scheme and 
welcome the lengths officers have gone to in 
order to outline significant engagement work, 
I have some concerns on the reduction of in-
person engagement opportunities, 

The points raised are 
noted. 

The CIS outlines a 
range of approaches 

No change to the 
Delivery Agreement 
in respect of this 
representation. 

Tudalen53



 

 

Full Name 
Company / 

Organisation 
Section Representation Officer Response 

Officer 
Recommendation 

information dissemination and the reliance 
on digital engagement. 

I understand the reasons provided and the 
additional challenges faced due to the 
pandemic, but I feel that this approach may 
exclude some people from meaningfully 
responding and therefore not fully meet the 
stated engagement principles. I don’t just 
refer to those who are digitally excluded, but 
also those who may have trouble reading 
through and fully understand the often 
complex language of planning policy, those 
with significant personal responsibilities 
(such as parents or unpaid carers) who may 
have difficulty finding the time to read 
thoroughly and respond appropriately. 

A flexible approach, tailored to the needs of 
the different communities of Neath Port 
Talbot, should be the aim. I welcome much 
of what you have stated in the CIS, including 
the role of elected members, other 
stakeholders and opportunities for some 
drop-in sessions, but would also like to see 
assurances of “easy-read” versions of 
documents that utilise accessible language 
(whether in Welsh or English), and allow 
residents to spend more time considering 
their response rather than spending a lot of 
time trying to understand what is being said. 

to engagement 
including face to face 
engagement and 
meetings with 
representatives of 
residents and groups 
within our towns and 
villages. 

The points raised will 
be addressed in the 
implementation of the 
CIS provisions as 
outlined in the DA. 
We will endeavour to 
make documentation 
available as part of 
public consultations 
that explains the 
issues and processes 
clearly and is as 
accessible as 
possible. 

Dr 
Altaf 
Hussain 
MS 

South Wales 
West Regional 
Member,  
Welsh 
Parliament 

Whole 
Document  

The number of estimated homeless 
individuals in Neath Port Talbot in reality is 
above the estimated 12. This figure clearly 
does not take sofa surfers into account. I’m 
sure local charities on the ground who work 
with the homeless would be happy to 
confirm this. 

The comment is 
noted. 

The figure quoted in 
Table 16, page 93 of 
Appendix H: 
Community Profile is 
the estimated number 
of rough sleepers in 
NPT for 2019-20 from 
Stats Wales. 

Latest homelessness 
rates and information 
on rough sleeping will 
inform preparation 
work for the RLDP. 

No change to the 
Delivery Agreement 
in respect of this 
representation. 

Dr 
Altaf 
Hussain 
MS 

South Wales 
West Regional 
Member, 
Welsh 
Parliament 

Whole 
Document 

Could you kindly keep Dr Altaf Hussain MS 
informed of each stage of this plan? Also in 
future ensure that invitations to comment on 
Consultations are sent out at the start of 
Consultation process and not two days 
before it closes as was the case in this 
instance. 

The comment is 
noted. 

Dr. Hussain is on the 
RLDP consultation 
list and will be kept 
informed of all plan 
stages at the 
appropriate times. All 
MSs and MPs 
representing NPT 
constituencies will 
also be invited to 
participate as 
members of the 

No change to the 
Delivery Agreement 
in respect of this 
representation. 

Tudalen54



 

 

Full Name 
Company / 

Organisation 
Section Representation Officer Response 

Officer 
Recommendation 

RLDP Key 
Stakeholder Group. 

Mr 
Daniel 
Lloyd 

Pobl Group 
Whole 
Document  

  

We would like to highlight our support for the 
LDP review process and the proactive 
approach the local authority is taking in 
moving matters forward. We would welcome 
the opportunity to be involved in the future 
phases of the LDP process. 

  

The support for the 
timescales proposed 
and overall delivery 
agreement is noted 
and welcomed. Pobl 
Group is included on 
the Specific 
Consultation Bodies 
list and will be kept 
informed of all plan 
stages at the 
appropriate times. 

No change to the 
Delivery Agreement 
in respect of this 
representation. 

Judith 
Doyle 

Glamorgan-
Gwent 
Archaeologica
l Trust Ltd 

Whole 
Document 

The Draft Delivery Agreement is helpful and 
allows us to plan our contribution to the LDP 
process. It ensures that we will be consulted 
and be able to comment on sections of the 
LDP which may impact upon the historic 
environment, and that the legislation, policy, 
advice and best practice cascade relating to 
the historic environment and archaeology 
will be taken into account in the Authority’s 
decisions. 

The comment is 
noted. 

No change to the 
Delivery Agreement 
in respect of this 
representation. 

Mr 
Daniel 
Lloyd 

Pobl Group 
Whole 
Document 
 

RE: Neath Port Talbot Council Replacement 
Local Development Plan (RLDP) – Delivery 
Agreement (Consultation Draft) – July 2021 
 
With reference to the above and further to 
the recently published Delivery Agreement, 
Pobl Group welcome the opportunity to 
comment on the content of the publication. 
Furthermore, we wish to thank the local 
authority for providing us with an opportunity 
to participate in the consultation process. In 
summary, these representations wish to 
support the Delivery Agreement and the 
proactive steps taken by the local authority 
to review the current adopted Local 
Development Plan (LDP). 
 
Pobl Group is a not-for-profit Registered 
Social Landlord working throughout Wales 
and we are specifically zoned for the delivery 
of affordable homes in Neath Port Talbot. 
Our current ambition is to deliver 10,000 new 
homes by 2030 and Neath Port Talbot is at 
the heart of our plans. We are currently 
actively progressing sites in Neath Port 
Talbot including schemes in Crymlyn Park 
and Leiros Park, and we have a desire to 
continue delivering well designed highly 
sustainable homes throughout the authority, 
meeting the specific housing needs of the 
communities we work within. 
 
Background 
 
The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 
2004 requires local authorities in Wales to 
prepare a Local Development Plan (LDP) for 
their area. The current LDP was adopted in 
January 2016, and as the above Act and the 
LDP Regulations require LDPs to be 
reviewed at intervals of not more than 4 

The support for the 
timescales proposed 
and overall delivery 
agreement is noted 
and welcomed. 

No change to the 
Delivery Agreement 
in respect of this 
representation. 

Tudalen55



 

 

Full Name 
Company / 

Organisation 
Section Representation Officer Response 

Officer 
Recommendation 

years from adoption, the Council is obliged 
to undertake a plan review. 
 
The Council has published its Review Report 
which outlines the broad scope of the LDP 
review, and is informed by the findings of the 
Annual Monitoring Reports (AMRs) and 
evidence. The Review Report concludes that 
a Replacement LDP (RLDP) should be 
prepared. When adopted, the new RLDP will 
supersede the existing NPT LDP and 
become part of the statutory development 
plan for the County Borough alongside 
Future Wales -The National Plan for 2040 
will continue to have development plan 
status. 
 
As the first stage of preparation of the RLDP, 
the Council is required to prepare a Delivery 
Agreement (DA) setting out the timetable, 
Community Involvement Scheme (CIS) and 
procedures for plan delivery. This is intended 
to be both a public statement of commitment 
and a project management tool. Once 
formally agreed, the DA commits the Council 
to producing the RLDP in accordance with 
the timetable and CIS. 
 
This forms part of the LDP tests of 
soundness, which will be examined by the 
Planning Inspector at the Examination in 
Public. 
 
The DA is a statutory requirement of the 
Plan preparation process under Regulation 9 
of the Town and Country Planning (Local 
Development Plan) (Wales) Regulations 
2005 (as revised by the Local Development 
Plan (Wales) Amendment Regulations 2015) 
and must be approved by resolution of the 
Council and the WG. 
 
Its purpose is to set out: 
 
• The Council’s RLDP preparation timetable 
outlining the various stages of plan 
preparation, when these will be undertaken 
and when engagement will take place; 
 
• Details of the CIS, detailing who will be 
involved in the RLDP preparation process 
and how and when participation and 
collaboration will occur; and 
 
• The resources the Authority will invest in 
plan preparation. Replacement Local 
Development Plan Timetable Definitive and 
Indicative Timescales 
 
We support the proposed timescales 
provided below and believe they comply with 
the requirements of the Local Development 
Plan Manual 2. 

Summary 

Tudalen56



 

 

Full Name 
Company / 

Organisation 
Section Representation Officer Response 

Officer 
Recommendation 

In summary, we support the approach set 
out in the Delivery Agreement and believe 
this complies with the requirements of the 
Local Development Plan Manual 2. 
Furthermore, as detailed above, we support 
the proactive approach taken by the Local 
Authority in progressing the LDP Review and 
look forward to working with you as matters 
progress. 
 
I trust all is in order although if you have any 
queries please do not hesitate to let me 
know. 
 
Yours sincerely,  

 Tata Steel 

Replacemen
t Local 
Developmen
t Plan 
Timetable 
Definitive 
and 
Indicative 
Stages 

Tata Steel agrees that the RLDP must take 
account of Future Wales and particularly 
Neath Port Talbot’s role as part of the 
National Growth Area for strategic economic 
growth (Policy 28). The emerging plan must 
be prepared appropriately and in parallel to 
any forthcoming Strategic Development Plan 
(SDP) for South West Wales. Aligning Tata 
Steel’s economic and sustainability 
ambitions up to 2030, 2040 and 2050 with 
any decision making on the Local Plan will 
be critical in supporting a prosperous and 
sustainable local economy. 

The comments are 
noted.  

No change to the 
Delivery Agreement 
in respect of this 
representation. 

Rhian 
Isaac 

Natural 
Resources 
Wales 

Replacemen
t Local 
Developmen
t Plan 
Timetable 
Definitive 
and 
Indicative 
Stages 

We note the expected timescales of the 
Replacement Local Development Plan 
(RLDP) stages and are keen to be involved 
as early as possible. This includes input into 
the preparation of strategic options.  

The comment is 
noted. NRW are 
included on the list of 
Specific Consultation 
Bodies and will be 
involved in the 
preparation of the 
RLDP at an early 
stage and throughout 
the plan preparation 
process. 

No change to the 
Delivery Agreement 
in respect of this 
representation. 

Sioned 
Williams 
MS 

South Wales 
West Regional 
Member, 
Welsh 
Parliament 

Community 
Involvement 
Scheme 

I would also like to see greater in-person 
engagement opportunities, particularly in 
communities where there are known internet 
access issues or where demographics 
suggest higher chances of digital exclusion. I 
am pleased to hear that the intention is for 
libraries to assist with some to access this 
information and respond, however there is a 
need to ensure that residents are aware of 
these opportunities and that work to raise 
awareness of this process is monitored – 
with additional measures being taken where 
gaps have been identified. 

The comment is 
noted. 

The CIS outlines 
various methods and 
instances where the 
engagement methods 
will ensure that those 
without easy access 
to computers are 
made aware of the 
plan's progress and 
given every 
opportunity to 
respond. 

It is considered that 
this will enable 
effective engagement 
and will allow 
additional 
opportunities to be 
taken where possible 

No change to the 
Delivery Agreement 
in respect of this 
representation. 

Tudalen57



 

 

Full Name 
Company / 

Organisation 
Section Representation Officer Response 

Officer 
Recommendation 

to address digital 
exclusion. 

  

Sioned 
Williams 
MS 

South Wales 
West Regional 
Member, 
Welsh 
Parliament 

Community 
Involvement 
Scheme 

While I note that the Neath Port Talbot Youth 
Council will be a stakeholder in this process, 
I would like to urge that as many young 
people as possible are encouraged to 
engage – perhaps through tailored 
messaging and documents. 

The comment is 
noted. It is proposed 
to use social 
media and other 
appropriate methods 
of engagement to 
encourage 
communication by 
young people within 
the County Borough. 

The Well-being of 
Future Generations 
Act requires full 
engagement with all 
groups, 
including those 
whose futures will be 
affected by the 
RLDP.  

No change to the 
Delivery Agreement 
in respect of this 
representation. 

Jennifer 
Davies 

Public Health 
Wales 

Community 
Involvement 
Scheme 

I welcome the key principles and 
approaches detailed throughout the plan in 
terms of integration of different plans & 
policies and the intent to engage with a wide 
range of agencies and the residents / public 
on the development of the plan. It is clear 
that there are a significant number of 
networks / connections that are noted and 
could enable meaningful engagement with 
communities to help inform the plan. 
However, I am less confident that the 
methods detailed will be effective. If we are 
to address inequities in our populations and 
communities, we need to recognise that 
getting communities who are the least likely 
to engage in such a formal process with 
documentation that are by necessity, 
challenging for a lay audience requires a 
different & proactive approach. Also, much 
of the current methods stated for 
engagement indicates that the intention is to 
inform them as opposed to seeing them as 
equal stakeholders in the placemaking 
agenda.   

The comments are 
noted. 

The Community 
Involvement Scheme 
contains 
a comprehensive list 
of key stakeholders 
and consultees and 
every effort will be 
made to engage with 
hard-to-reach groups. 

The CIS includes a 
range of methods of 
communicating and 
engaging with all 
sectors of society and 
is considered to 
embody sufficient 
flexibility to enable 
the use of a full range 
of approaches.  

No change to the 
Delivery Agreement 
in respect of this 
representation. 

Sioned 
Williams 
MS 

South Wales 
West Regional 
Member, 
Welsh 
Parliament 

Community 
Involvement 
Scheme 

It is important that at particular milestones 
for reports to be considered by elected 
members. I would urge improved 
advertisement of when these matters are to 
be considered by members, so that the 
public and other stakeholders can engage 
with their representatives and ensure that 
public opinions are reflected within any 
meeting. As it stands, the public have to 
search upcoming committees on the Council 
website to find business due to be discussed 
and often there is a short time between 
publication of documents and the meeting 
itself. This currently guarantees that the 
public miss out on upcoming business and 
opportunities to speak with their elected 

This point is noted. 

The CIS is 
considered to allow 
for sufficient time to 
raise awareness and 
allow discussions to 
take place with 
elected 
representatives and 
other stakeholders. 

No change to the 
Delivery Agreement 
in respect of this 
representation. 

Tudalen58



 

 

Full Name 
Company / 

Organisation 
Section Representation Officer Response 

Officer 
Recommendation 

member, and is an area the Council as a 
whole could review. 

Sioned 
Williams 
MS 

South Wales 
West Regional 
Member, 
Welsh 
Parliament 

General and 
Other 
Consultation 
Bodies 

Overall I agree with the lists outlined in 
Appendix G. Where there are gaps, I will 
approach those groups or organisations that 
may want to be considered as a general or 
other consultee. 

The comment is 
noted and the 
assistance offered is 
welcomed. 

No change to the 
Delivery Agreement 
in respect of this 
representation. 

Dr 
Altaf 
Hussain 
MS 

South Wales 
West Regional 
Member, 
Welsh 
Parliament 

General and 
Other 
Consultation 
Bodies 

Could you also add to Appendix G, General 
and Other Consultation Bodies, the 
Salvation Army, Baptist Churches and 
Community Churches into the organisations 
whom to consult as well as the traditional 
denominations listed? In Port Talbot, 
Community Churches include Baglan 
Community Church, and Bethel Community 
Church (Bethel Trust) on Sandfields Road, 
Aberavon. 

The comment 
is noted. 

The list of General 
Consultation Bodies 
will be amended as 
appropriate. 

Change required to 
the Delivery 
Agreement. 

Amend the list of 
General 
Consultation 
Bodies as 
appropriate. 

 Tata Steel 
List of Key 
Stakeholder 
Group 

Tata Steel’s Estates Team and associated 
consultants have a proactive and positive 
working relationship with NPT’s Planning 
and Public Protection Team. We would 
welcome early and on-going dialogue with 
NPT on all elements of the plan preparation, 
including any associated evidence base 
preparation. 
 
Tata Steel is pleased to see its inclusion as 
a Key Stakeholder Group within the Delivery 
Agreement. It welcomes, and strongly 
encourages, engagement from the outset of 
the Plan preparation, up to and including 
deposit stage. It will be critical that Tata 
Steel plays a central role in identifying the 
Plan vision, objectives and strategy options. 
 
It will be important that any future supporting 
assessments, development management 
policies or site specific policies relevant to 
the Port Talbot Steelworks, surrounding Tata 
Steel land or adjoining relevant sites are 
informed by Tata Steel. Tata Steel team 
would like to engage with the Council on the 
evidence base preparation that is already 
underway. 
 
As a key industrial player and one of the 
largest employers in the region, Tata Steel 
will have a prominent role in any strategic 
growth. The future of steelmaking will be an 
important economic, social and 
environmental driver in the region. This 
includes opportunities for investment, 
regeneration and job creation. 
 
Tata must be engaged in both the local and 
regional planning process from the outset. 
Adding the technical and market inputs that 
Tata can provide from the outset of the plan 
making process is essential in preparing 
sound and appropriate planning policies that 
are both flexible and fit-for-purpose. 

Tata Steel would be pleased to participate in 
a meeting in the coming weeks/month to 
facilitate early discussion on the RLDP and 

The comments are 
noted. The Council 
welcomes Tata 
Steel's intention to 
engage fully in the 
plan preparation 
process. 

A meeting with Tata 
Steel to discuss their 
future involvement in 
the RLDP preparation 
process will be held 
as part of plan 
preparation 
engagement. 

No change to the 
Delivery Agreement 
in respect of this 
representation. 

Tudalen59



 

 

Full Name 
Company / 

Organisation 
Section Representation Officer Response 

Officer 
Recommendation 

how the team can assist the wider work 
underpinning this. Turley would be pleased 
to coordinate this between relevant 
members of the Planning and Public 
Protection team and Tata Steel. 

Sioned 
Williams 
MS 

South Wales 
West Regional 
Member, 
Welsh 
Parliament 

List of Key 
Stakeholder 
Group 

As public representatives, I feel that MSs 
and MPs should be considered for inclusion 
within the Key Stakeholder Group. 

The comment is 
noted.   

The Key Stakeholder 
Group will be 
amended 
accordingly. 

Change required to 
the Delivery 
Agreement. 

Amend the Key 
Stakeholder Group 
accordingly. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen60



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX 2 
 

RLDP Delivery Agreement (Tracked Changes) 
 
  

Tudalen61



5Note to Reader

PART 1 - Introduction and Background

81 Introduction

92 Background

92.1 Purpose of the Delivery Agreement

92.2 Stages in Delivery Agreement Preparation

102.3 Structure of the Delivery Agreement

113 The Replacement Local Development Plan

113.1 Preparing the Replacement Local Development Plan

123.2 Replacement Local Development Plan Format and Content

133.3 Replacement Local Development Plan Impact Assessments

143.4 Joint Local Development Plans and Regional Collaboration

153.5 Independent Examination

163.6 Supplementary Planning Guidance

PART 2 - RLDP Timetable and Community Involvement Scheme
(CIS)

174 Replacement Local Development Plan Timetable

17
4.1 Replacement Local Development Plan Timetable Definitive and Indicative

Stages

235 Community Involvement Scheme

245.1 Engagement Principles

255.1.1 Consensus Building

255.1.2 Welsh Language

255.1.3 Role of Stakeholders and Interested Parties

265.1.4 Petitions

265.1.5 Duly Made and Late Representations

275.2 Engagement Methods

275.2.1 Document Availability

Contents

N
P
TC

R
ep
la
ce
m
en
tL
oc
al
D
ev
el
op
m
en
tP

la
n
(R
LD

P
)-
D
el
iv
er
y
A
gr
ee
m
en
t(
C
on
su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft)
-J
ul
y
20
21

TR
A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

Tudalen62



5.2.2 Methods of Involvement, Participation and Consultation 27

29
5.3 Replacement Local Development Plan Involvement - who will be involved?

295.3.1 Community Profiling

295.3.2 Specific and General Consultation Bodies

305.3.3 Key Stakeholder Group

305.3.4 Elected Members

315.3.5 Community and Town Councils

315.3.6 Hard to Reach and Protected Characteristics Groups

335.3.7 Local Development Plan Consultee Database

335.3.8 Developers, Agents and Other Site Promoters

345.3.9 General Public

355.4 Collaborative Working

365.5 Feedback Arrangements

365.6 Engagement Programme

376 Decision Making and Delivery

376.1 Decision Making and Delivery

376.2 Internal Reporting

376.3 Corporate Fit

386.4 Staffing and Financial Resources

396.5 Risk Management

PART 3 - Monitoring and Review

427 Monitoring and Review

427.1 Monitoring and Review

427.2 Annual Monitoring Reports

437.3 Review of the RLDP

Appendices

Contents

N
P
TC

R
eplacem

entLocalD
evelopm

entP
lan

(R
LD

P
)-D

elivery
A
greem

ent(C
onsultation

D
raft)-July

2021
TR

A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

Tudalen63



A Detailed Replacement Local Development Plan Timetable 46

47B Key Stages of the LDP, ISA and HRA

49C Stages of Plan Preparation & Engagement Methods

61D Risk Assessment and Mitigation

63E Key Stakeholder Group

67F Specific Consultation Bodies

71G General and Other Consultation Bodies

75H Community Profile

95I Previous Community Involvement Scheme Review

Contents

N
P
TC

R
ep
la
ce
m
en
tL
oc
al
D
ev
el
op
m
en
tP

la
n
(R
LD

P
)-
D
el
iv
er
y
A
gr
ee
m
en
t(
C
on
su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft)
-J
ul
y
20
21

TR
A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

Tudalen64



Contents

N
P
TC

R
eplacem

entLocalD
evelopm

entP
lan

(R
LD

P
)-D

elivery
A
greem

ent(C
onsultation

D
raft)-July

2021
TR

A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

Tudalen65



This note explains the purpose of the Delivery Agreement (DA) and how to comment on
the document. This note will not form part of the final published document.

Purpose of the Document

The Neath Port Talbot (NPT) Local Development Plan (LDP) was adopted by the Council
on 27thJanuary 2016. The LDP sets out the Council's vision and objectives, together with
a series of policies and proposals for the development and use of land in the County
Borough up to 2026.

The Council is required to undertake a review of the LDP at intervals not longer than every
four years from initial adoption. Since the LDP is now the subject of a statutorily required
four year full review, all aspects of the Plan will need to be assessed to consider if they
remain sound and fit for purpose.

Following publication of the LDP Review Report, the publication of a DA is the preliminary
stage in the preparation of the Replacement LDP (RLDP). The primary purpose of the DA
is to set out the timetable for plan preparation, together with the Community Involvement
Scheme (CIS) which sets out the processes and procedures to be undertaken in order to
ensure that the local community is fully involved in the plan preparation process.

This DA therefore sets out the proposed RLDP timetable and CIS in detail, together with
background information and explanation.

Consultation

The Council is seeking views on this RLDP DA, in particular in respect of the CIS contents
and proposals.

The consultation period will run for 6 weeks, starting midday on Monday 16th August
2021 and ending at midday on Monday 27th September 2021.

How to Make Comments

Comments can be submitted:

Directly Online at: www.npt.gov.uk/ldp/consultation

Alternatively:

Note to Reader

N
P
TC

R
ep
la
ce
m
en
tL
oc
al
D
ev
el
op
m
en
tP

la
n
(R
LD

P
)-
D
el
iv
er
y
A
gr
ee
m
en
t(
C
on
su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft)
-J
ul
y
20
21

TR
A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

5

Tudalen66

https://neath-porttalbot-consult.objective.co.uk/kse


By E-mail to: ldp@npt.gov.uk

By Post to:

Mr Ceri Morris

Head of Planning and Public Protection

Neath Port Talbot Council

The Quays

Brunel Way

Baglan Energy Park

Neath

SA11 2GG

Our preference is that you submit your comments directly online via the Consultation Portal
following the instructions on how to submit a comment. Comments via e-mail or post will
need to be submitted using the 'DA Representation Form'. Copies of the form are available
on request from the LDP Team at ldp@npt.gov.uk or 01639 686821.

The deadline for comments is midday on Monday 27th September 2021. Comments
received after the deadline will not be accepted.

The This Draft DA report Deliver Agreement is also available in Welsh, either via the online
Consultation Portal or by request. Should you need this document in another format, then
please contact the LDP team at ldp@npt.gov.uk or 01639 686821.

Please note that all comments received will be available for public inspection and cannot
be treated as confidential. NPT Planning & Public Protection Service Privacy Statement

Note to Reader

N
P
TC

R
eplacem

entLocalD
evelopm

entP
lan

(R
LD

P
)-D

elivery
A
greem

ent(C
onsultation

D
raft)-July

2021
TR

A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

6

Tudalen67

https://neath-porttalbot-consult.objective.co.uk/kse
http://www.npt.gov.uk/16275


PART 1 - Introduction and Background

Tudalen68



1.0.1 The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires local authorities in
Wales to prepare a Local Development Plan (LDP) for their area. The current LDP was
adopted in January 2016, and as the above Act and the LDP Regulations(1) require LDPs
to be reviewed at intervals of not more than 4 years from adoption, the Council(2) is obliged
to undertake a plan review.

1.0.2 The Council has published its Review Report(3) which outlines the broad scope
of the LDP review, and is informed by the findings of the Annual Monitoring Reports (AMRs)
and evidence. The Review Report concludes that a Replacement LDP (RLDP) should be
prepared. When adopted, the new RLDPwill supersede the existing NPT LDP and become
part of the statutory development plan for the County Borough alongside Future Wales -
The National Plan for 2040(4) will continue to have development plan status.

1.0.3 As the first stage of preparation of the RLDP, the Council is required to prepare
a Delivery Agreement (DA) setting out the timetable, Community Involvement Scheme
(CIS) and procedures for plan delivery. This is intended to be both a public statement of
commitment and a project management tool. Once formally agreed, the DA commits the
Council to producing the RLDP in accordance with the timetable and CIS. This forms part
of the LDP tests of soundness, which will be examined by the Planning Inspector at the
Examination in Public. This DA was formally agreed with Welsh Government on the x of
January 2022.

1.0.4 The legislation, regulations and Welsh Government (WG) planning guidance
referred to in this document are available on the WG website(5). Information in respect of
the RLDP can be found on the Neath Port Talbot (NPT) website(6). This Delivery
Agreement is also available in Welsh. Should you need this document in another format,
then please contact the LDP team at ldp@npt.gov.uk or 01639 686821.

1 Regulation 41 Town and Country Planning (Local Development Plan) (Wales) Regulations 2005 (as
revised by the Local Development Plan (Wales) Amendment Regulations 2015)

2 NPT County Borough Council is 'the Council', 'the authority' and 'the local planning authority' responsible
for the preparation of the RLDP

3 https://www.npt.gov.uk/media/13823/ldp-review-report-july-2020.pdf?v=20200709084011
4 https://gov.wales/future-wales-national-plan-2040
5 www.wales.gov.uk
6 www.npt.gov.uk

1 . Introduction

N
P
TC

R
eplacem

entLocalD
evelopm

entP
lan

(R
LD

P
)-D

elivery
A
greem

ent(C
onsultation

D
raft)-July

2021
TR

A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

8

Tudalen69

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/wsi/2015/1598/contents/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/wsi/2015/1598/contents/made
https://www.npt.gov.uk/media/13823/ldp-review-report-july-2020.pdf?v=20200709084011
https://gov.wales/future-wales-national-plan-2040
https://gov.wales/
https://www.npt.gov.uk/


2.1 Purpose of the Delivery Agreement

2.1.1 The DA is a statutory requirement of the Plan preparation process under Regulation
9 of the Town and Country Planning (Local Development Plan) (Wales) Regulations 2005
(as revised by the Local Development Plan (Wales) Amendment Regulations 2015), and
must be approved by resolution of the Council and the WG. Its purpose is to set out:

The Council’s RLDP preparation timetable outlining the various stages of plan
preparation, when these will be undertaken and when engagement will take place;
Details of the CIS, detailing who will be involved in the RLDP preparation process
and how and when participation and collaboration will occur; and
The resources the Authority will invest in plan preparation.

2.1.2 The DA has been prepared in accordance with all appropriate regulations and
guidance(7). It will be subject to regular review and if necessary amended in accordance
with LDP Regulations (see Part 3).

2.1.3 The DA takes into consideration the LDP Regulations requirements for engaging
stakeholders in the preparation of the DA and theWell Being of Future Generations (Wales)
Act (WBFGA) (2015) five ways of working. The level and form of the engagement proposed
is considered to suit the local context.

2.1.4 TheDA has been prepared during the Covid-19 pandemic, which has had significant
and on-going impacts on face-to-face meetings and the ability of public bodies to engage
with consultees and the public.

2.2 Stages in Delivery Agreement Preparation

2.2.1 There are a number of stages in the preparation of a DA:

Table 2.2.1 DA Preparation Stages

ProgressStage

CompletePrepare a draft CIS in discussion with WG1

CompleteConsider any comments and revise as needed2

CompleteSecure Senior Officer and Member approval of the
consultation draft of the DA

3

CompleteEngage in public consultation on the draft DA4

CompleteConsider any comments received and revise as appropriate5

Current StageSecure Council resolution (LDP Regulation 9) to adopt the
revised / final DA

6

7 The Town and Country Planning (Local Development Plan) (Wales) Regulations 2005 (as amended
2015), and the Development Plans Manual, Edition 3

2 . Background

N
P
TC

R
ep
la
ce
m
en
tL
oc
al
D
ev
el
op
m
en
tP

la
n
(R
LD

P
)-
D
el
iv
er
y
A
gr
ee
m
en
t(
C
on
su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft)
-J
ul
y
20
21

TR
A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

9

Tudalen70



Submit to WG for agreement7

Once agreed by WG, publish the agreed DA on the RLDP
website, inform relevant consultation bodies (LDP
Regulation 10) and keep under review, to ensure that the
Plan is prepared in accordance with it.

8

2.3 Structure of the Delivery Agreement

2.3.1 This document is structured as follows:

2.3.2 Part 1 Introduction and Background:Outlines the purpose, structure and stages
in the preparation of the DA and considers the form and content of the RLDP; matters
which will inform the development of the RLDP; opportunities for collaborative working;
Plan Examination; and preparation of Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG).

2.3.3 Part 2 The RLDP Timetable and CIS: The timetable sets out the various stages
of Plan preparation (including definitive and indicative dates), how the Council will manage
the process and provides an assessment of the resources required. It considers the delivery
of the timetable, and matters such as Council procedures and availability of resources
and risk management. It also establishes key dates for the preparation and publication of
the ISA reports and the Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA) documents. In respect
of the CIS it focuses on the key principles for engagement, the aims of the CIS, how
consensus will be built and developed and considers where engagement in the Plan's
preparation will be focused. It sets out who the Council will engage and consult with,
including the public and stakeholders and when and how this will take place.

2.3.4 Part 3 Monitoring and Review This section outlines how the DA will be kept
under review and the role of the Annual Monitoring Report (AMR).

2 . Background

N
P
TC

R
eplacem

entLocalD
evelopm

entP
lan

(R
LD

P
)-D

elivery
A
greem

ent(C
onsultation

D
raft)-July

2021
TR

A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

10

Tudalen71



3.0.1 The RLDP period, otherwise referred to as the 'Plan period', will be for 15 years from
2021 to 2036. Once adopted, the NPT RLDP 2021-2036 will replace the NPT LDP
2011-2026.

3.1 Preparing the Replacement Local Development Plan

3.1.1 The RLDPwill have a major influence on the future shape of NPT and its individual
communities. It will be required to:

Support the National sustainable placemaking outcomes of Planning Policy Wales
(PPW);
Comply with the requirements of the WBFGA (2015), including the seven Well-being
Goals and the five ways of working;
Be in general conformity with the National Development Framework known as Future
Wales - The National Plan 2040;
Ensure that effective regional collaboration informs plan preparation;
Ensure that the RLDP is fully integrated with and reflects other relevant plans and
initiatives including the need to be in general conformity with the emerging South
West Wales (SWW) Strategic Development Plan (SDP);
Ensure that the tests of soundness are met;
Be informed by an ISA which includes Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA),
Equalities Impact Assessment (EIA), Health Impact Assessment (HIA) and Welsh
Language Impact Assessment (WLIA);
Satisfy the Socio-economic Duty under Part 1, Section 1 of the Equality Act 2010;
Satisfy the Duty under Part 1, Section 6 of the Environment (Wales) 2016 Act
to maintain and enhance biodiversity and promote the resilience of ecosystems.
Adopt a strategic view of the spatial implications of development decisions and act
as a basis for rational and consistent decisions regarding the use and development
of land;
Guide the amount and location of new development in the County Borough;
Reflect local aspirations, based on a vision agreed by the community and stakeholders;
Address new Policy areas and approaches (e.g. Placemaking and Green
Infrastructure);
Guide growth and change, while protecting local diversity, character and sensitive
environments;
Be based on evidence and consideration of all feasible alternatives;
Indicate how and where change will occur over the Plan period; and
Guide the location of new public / grant funded projects and co-ordinate the provision
of new infrastructure, such as highways and schools.

3.1.2 There will be a focus on stakeholder and community engagement and collaborative
working throughout the process in order to make the Plan relevant, inclusive and engaging
to local communities. It is essential that the process is transparent and fully explained in
order to maintain community and stakeholder confidence in the RLDP.

3 . The Replacement Local Development Plan

N
P
TC

R
ep
la
ce
m
en
tL
oc
al
D
ev
el
op
m
en
tP

la
n
(R
LD

P
)-
D
el
iv
er
y
A
gr
ee
m
en
t(
C
on
su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft)
-J
ul
y
20
21

TR
A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

11

Tudalen72



3.1.3 The preparation of the RLDP is regulated by detailed requirements and guidance
and will be subject to a tight timetable agreed with WG. The guidance indicates that WG
expects replacement plans to be prepared in 3.5 years from formal agreement of the DA
(with provision for a single slippage period of 3 months only). Chapter 4 provides further
information.

3.2 Replacement Local Development Plan Format and Content

3.2.1 It is anticipated that the RLDP will follow a similar format to the existing LDP
although, as identified in the Review Report, a number of Policy areas will need to be
reassessed and / or revised. The RLDP will need to be in general conformity with Future
Wales - The National Plan for 2040(8), the emerging SWW SDP and ensure compliance
with National Policy requirements.

3.2.2 The draft format is as follows, and largely reflects the current Plan set up:

Introduction (contextual issues and strategies and key issues to be addressed)
Strategy (vision, strategic issues, key aims and objectives, growth and spatial
strategies)

Sustainable Settlement Hierarchy
Key strategic policies (area and site specific embodying Placemaking principles
etc.)
Proposed level of change/growth - spatial distribution and control mechanisms
Key diagram

Development Management Policies

Succinct area-wide policies
Designated areas for protection, safeguarding, conservation and constraint

Site and Area-based policies and allocations

Sites for development with policies for delivery and implementation
Master planning frameworks and principles

Succinct reasoned justification (to explain policies and guide their implementation)
Monitoring Framework
Housing Trajectory Appendix
Implementation and Delivery Appendix
Proposals map on Ordnance Survey base.
Constraints Map

3.2.3 In the Deposit Version of the RLDP, the Strategic, Development Management,
Site and Area based policies will likely be grouped according to the 4 pillars of sustainability
embedded in PPW & FW; Placemaking, Active and Social Places, Productive and

8 https://gov.wales/future-wales-national-plan-2040

3 . The Replacement Local Development Plan

N
P
TC

R
eplacem

entLocalD
evelopm

entP
lan

(R
LD

P
)-D

elivery
A
greem

ent(C
onsultation

D
raft)-July

2021
TR

A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

12

Tudalen73

https://gov.wales/future-wales-national-plan-2040


Enterprising Places and Distinctive and Natural Places. The key stages of RLDP
preparation as required under the provisions of the LDP Regulations are outlined in
Appendix B.

3.3 Replacement Local Development Plan Impact Assessments

3.3.1 The Council is required by the Planning and Compulsory Act 2004 to undertake
a SA of the RLDP and to report its findings as an integral part of the Plan preparation
process. In addition, separate legislation(9) requires plans to be subject to SEA. In
accordance with WG guidance, it is intended to integrate the SEA with the SA to inform
the plan preparation process in an iterative way.

3.3.2 In addition to SA and SEA requirements, a number of other statutory and key
elements will need assessment including theWBFGA (2015), Equalities Act (2010), Welsh
Language and Health Impacts Assessments. It is intended to combine these assessments
into a single Integrated Sustainability Appraisal (ISA) in order to avoid duplication and to
ensure that all relevant aspects are considered in one document. The Socio-economic
Duty under Part 1, Section 1 of the Equality Act 2010 must also be assessed and complied
with. However, Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA)(10) will be undertaken separately
in accordance with guidance, since this uses a different precautionary testing mechanism
(see below).

3.3.3 The ISA will have the following main stages and reports:

ISA Scoping Report: Setting out the ISA methodology and consultation proposals.
The document will provide a review of other plans, policies and strategies likely to
influence the LDP and ISA process and will include relevant baseline information that
will inform the assessment together with the ISA Assessment Framework to be used
in the appraisal of proposed RLDP policies and proposals.
ISA Reports: ISA Reports will be issued to accompany the main RLDP stages and
document the iterative assessment and plan preparation process that has been
undertaken up to that point. The ISA will also form an integral part of the Candidate
Site Assessment Methodology. ISA Reports will be issued at the Preferred Strategy
stage (including assessment of RLDP Options, reasonable alternatives, strategies
and strategic policies), the Deposit plan stage (including assessment of all proposed
site allocations and policies), and at submission stage to incorporate changes made
as a result of the deposit consultation.
Non-technical summary reports will also be produced at each main stage.
Post RLDP adoption statement: Published after the RLDP is adopted, explaining
how the ISA findings have influenced the plan.

3.3.4 The HRA will be undertaken and reported on separately. Any plan or programme
that could affect a designated Natura 2000 site (a Special Area of Conservation (SAC),
Special Protection Area (SPA), or a Ramsar site) needs to be subject to the Conservation

9 The Environmental Assessment of Plans and Programmes (Wales) (The SEA Regulations) 2004
10 Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010

3 . The Replacement Local Development Plan

N
P
TC

R
ep
la
ce
m
en
tL
oc
al
D
ev
el
op
m
en
tP

la
n
(R
LD

P
)-
D
el
iv
er
y
A
gr
ee
m
en
t(
C
on
su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft)
-J
ul
y
20
21

TR
A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

13

Tudalen74

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2010/490/contents/made


of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended). A HRA will therefore be required,
together with an Appropriate Assessment (AA) if necessary. The HRA process has the
following main stages:

Stage 1 - HRA Screening: To identify Natura 2000 sites that could be affected by
provisions in the RLDP, their primary reasons for designation and any possible impacts
from RLDP policies, proposals and allocations, in combination with other relevant
proposals.
Stage 2 - Appropriate Assessment: If any element of the RLDP is found to be likely
to have any significant effects on any Natura 2000 site, a more detailed assessment
will be required to determine whether the integrity of any site could be adversely
affected (either alone or in combination with any other plans or projects). If such effects
cannot be avoided or adequately mitigated, consideration will need to be given to
changing the plan proposals.
Stage 3 - Consideration of alternatives: This stage will only be required under the
circumstances outlined above and when alternatives are feasible
Stage 4 Imperative Reasons of Overriding Public Interest: It is unlikely that any
proposals within the RLDP would be considered necessary for Imperative Reasons
of Overriding Public Interest. This implies that if adverse effects are unavoidable, the
RLDP will need to be changed to avoid such impacts.

3.3.5 Both ISA and HRA are iterative processes that will be undertaken throughout the
Plan preparation process and will inform and direct the development of the Plan. It is a
requirement of the Regulations that the LPA takes into account the SEA Environmental
Report (i.e. the conclusions of the SEA) in decision making, showing how the results of
the assessment have been taken into account, and giving the reasons for choosing the
Plan as adopted in light of other reasonable alternatives. The ISA will be prepared with
the participation of the Environmental Consultation Bodies (as identified in the Regulations)
and public and stakeholder consultations will be undertaken in parallel with RLDP
consultations.

3.3.6 The key stages involved in the preparation of the ISA and the HRA of the RLDP,
together with the proposed timetable are provided in Appendices A and B.

3.4 Joint Local Development Plans and Regional Collaboration

3.4.1 Collaboration is a requirement of the WBFGA (2015) and part of the first of the
three Tests of Soundness set out in the Development Plans Manual (i.e. Does the Plan
Fit? - see section 3.5 below). LPAs are also required to demonstrate that all opportunities
for joint working and collaboration on both plan preparation and the evidence base have
been exhausted. This is particularly relevant where the LDPs of neighbouring authorities
are on similar preparation timescales and where there are strong cross-boundary linkages.

3.4.2 A close working relationship has been forged with the adjoining Authorities
(Swansea, Carmarthenshire, Powys, Bridgend and Rhondda Cynon Taff Councils and the
Brecon Beacons National Park Authority) through regular programmes of meetings both
at a local and regional level.

3 . The Replacement Local Development Plan

N
P
TC

R
eplacem

entLocalD
evelopm

entP
lan

(R
LD

P
)-D

elivery
A
greem

ent(C
onsultation

D
raft)-July

2021
TR

A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

14

Tudalen75



3.4.3 Additional collaborative work that will inform RLDP preparation has also been
undertaken with specific neighbouring authorities, with an example being the preparation
with colleagues in Swansea on the FabianWay Innovation Corridor SPG. Future preparation
of joint and shared evidence such as this, including potential Statements of Common
Ground (SoCG) where shared interests exist, will be pursued wherever the opportunities
arise.

3.4.4 At the present time, as detailed in the Review Report(11) there is presently no
prospect of undertaking a Joint LDP with an adjoining Authority due to the timelines which
each Authority is following.

3.4.5 Regionally, the Former Mid and South West Wales (M&SWW) Strategic Planning
Group(12) has already undertaken a significant amount of collaborative working. To date,
discussions and progress have centred on two key studies: a Joint Local Housing Market
Assessment and a Regional Viability Study. These studies will not only inform reviews of
individual LDPs but will also contribute positively as a potential baseline for future work
on SDPs.

3.4.6 Over the course of preparing the RLDP there will be a need for the Council to
closely consider the implications of the emerging SDP for the SWW Region. SDP related
discussions are taking place on a regular basis across the SWW region to consider the
resources and the scope of the work required. The SDP will be formally progressed
following the establishment of a Corporate Joint Committee (CJC) for the region by February
2022. The SDP will be prepared in tandem with the NPT RLDP 2021-2036 by a team
appointed by the CJC once established. The NPT RLDP will need to be in general
conformity with the emerging SWW SDP.

3.4.7 The RLDP will also need to align with and reflect the policies of Future Wales(13),
including those specific to the SWWRegion such as the Swansea Bay and Llanelli National
Growth Area.

3.5 Independent Examination

3.5.1 The Council is required to submit its Deposit RLDP, associated documents and
representations toWG for consideration of its “soundness” by aWG appointed independent
Inspector at an “Examination in Public”. The Inspector will have regard to the evidence
submitted with the Plan and the representations received at the Deposit stage in order to
determine whether the Plan meets the following tests of soundness:(14)

11 https://www.npt.gov.uk/media/13823/ldp-review-report-july-2020.pdf?v=20200709084011
12 FutureWales has divided the M&SWWRegion into the MidWales (MS) Region and SouthWest Wales

(SWW) Region
13 https://gov.wales/future-wales-national-plan-2040-0
14 Development Plans Manual Edition 3 (2020).

3 . The Replacement Local Development Plan

N
P
TC

R
ep
la
ce
m
en
tL
oc
al
D
ev
el
op
m
en
tP

la
n
(R
LD

P
)-
D
el
iv
er
y
A
gr
ee
m
en
t(
C
on
su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft)
-J
ul
y
20
21

TR
A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

15

Tudalen76

https://www.npt.gov.uk/media/13823/ldp-review-report-july-2020.pdf?v=20200709084011
https://gov.wales/future-wales-national-plan-2040-0
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2020-03/development-plans-manual-edition-3-march-2020.pdf


The Tests of Soundness

Preparation Requirements:

Has preparation complied with legal and regulatory procedural requirements?
(LDP Regulations, CIS, SEA Regulations, SA, HRA etc.)

Is the plan in general conformity with the NDF(15) and/or SDP? (when published
or adopted respectively)

Test 1: Does the plan fit? (i.e. is it clear that the RLDP is consistent with other plans?)

Test 2: Is the plan appropriate? (i.e. is the plan appropriate for the area in the light
of the evidence?)

Test 3: Will the plan deliver (i.e. is it likely to be effective?)

3.5.2 In view of the tests set out above, it is crucial that the RLDP is founded on a strong
evidence base with its form and content as prescribed by the Regulations and consultation
procedures.

3.5.3 Following the examination, the Inspector will produce a report recommending
changes to the RLDP together with reasons for the changes. The Inspector’s
recommendations are binding on the Authority and if the Plan is found sound, the LPA
must adopt the RLDP by resolution within 8 weeks of its receipt unless theWG intervenes.

3.6 Supplementary Planning Guidance

3.6.1 SPG are non-statutory documents and may be prepared to expand upon policies
or proposals contained in the RLDP. They can relate to specific topics or policies contained
within the plan or they could also take the form of local level 'Place Plans'(16). The need
to review existing SPG and prepare new SPG will be considered as part of the RLDP
preparation process. The Pre-Deposit/ Preferred Strategy stage will be a key time at which
any new SPG needed will be identified. Relevant stakeholders will be consulted during
the production of SPG.

3.6.2 Where SPG will assist the understanding of the RLDP it will be prepared and
consulted on as an intrinsic part of the process of engagement as set out in this DA.

15 Now called Future Wales
16 http://www.placeplans.org.uk/en/?page_id=315

3 . The Replacement Local Development Plan

N
P
TC

R
eplacem

entLocalD
evelopm

entP
lan

(R
LD

P
)-D

elivery
A
greem

ent(C
onsultation

D
raft)-July

2021
TR

A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

16

Tudalen77

http://www.placeplans.org.uk/en/?page_id=315


4.1 Replacement Local Development Plan Timetable Definitive and Indicative Stages

4.1.1 The timetable detailing the various stages of the RLDP process and how it will be
project managed, together with the resources required for its preparation is a key part of
the DA.

4.1.2 The following table outlines the proposed key stages and timetable in the RLDP
preparation process required by the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and
the LDP Regulations. A more detailed timetable is set out in Appendices A-C, including
dates for the publication of the SA and AMR.

Table 4.1.1 Table detailing the stages of RLDP preparation

TimescaleStage of RLDP PreparationKey
Stage

Definitive Stages

January 2022Delivery Agreement1

January 2022 - November 2023Pre-Deposit Participation / Preparation (Regulation 14)
2

March 2022 - May 2022Call for Candidate Sites

March 2023 - April 2023Pre-Deposit (Preferred Strategy) Consultation –
(Regulation 15)3

August 2023 - February 2024Deposit Participation/ Preparation
4

March 2024 - April 2024Deposit RLDP Consultation (Regulation 17)

Indicative Timetable

October 2024Submission of RLDP toWG for examination (Regulation
22)5

December 2024 - February 2025Independent Examination (Regulation 23)6

May 2025Receipt & Publication of the Inspector’s Report
(Regulation 24)7

July 2025Adoption of the RLDP (Regulation 25)8

April 2026Monitoring and Review9

Definitive and Indicative Stages

4.1.3 The LDP Regulations provide for a two-stage timetable – definitive stage and
indicative stage.

4.1.4 Definitive stages (stages 1-4) are those up to and including the Deposit Plan stage.
As these stages are under the direct control of the Council, the timescales outlined above
are considered to be realistic and achievable. Every effort will be made to adhere to and
avoid deviations from the (agreed) timetable.

4 . Replacement Local Development Plan Timetable

N
P
TC

R
ep
la
ce
m
en
tL
oc
al
D
ev
el
op
m
en
tP

la
n
(R
LD

P
)-
D
el
iv
er
y
A
gr
ee
m
en
t(
C
on
su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft)
-J
ul
y
20
21

TR
A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

17

Tudalen78



4.1.5 Indicative stages (stages 5-9) relate to those stages of the RLDP process post
Deposit and up to and including Adoption. As this stage of the process is dependant on
various external factors and influences, such as the number of deposit representations
received, the dates are indicative. Following the closure of the statutory consultation period
on the Deposit Plan and prior to submission of the plan, the Council will update the timetable
with definitive timings for the remaining plan stages.

Plan Preparation Stages

4.1.6 Draft Delivery Agreement (Regulation 9)

4.1.7 The Local Planning Authority must produce a DA which is essentially the timetable
for delivering the RLDP as well as a management tool to ensure progress is made to adopt
the RLDP in good time. It also includes the CIS which sets out how, who and when
stakeholders will be involved in the RLDP's development. Stakeholders and General
Consultees will be made aware of the decision to produce a RLDP and it requires their
involvement in the development of the Plan. The Draft DA will be subject to 6 week
consultation to seek views on its contents.

4.1.8 Delivery Agreement (Regulations 5 - 10)

4.1.9 The first formal stage of the RLDP is the production of the DA. The new DA must
be approved by resolution of the Local Planning Authority (Regulation 9) and agreed by
WG (Regulation 9). Any slippage to the Plan's timetable must be agreed with WG.

4.1.10 Call for Candidate Sites (Regulation 14(2))

4.1.11 Following publication of the DA, the first formal stage of preparing the RLDP is
the request for nominations for sites (Regulation 14(2)). These are known as "Candidate
Sites" and all consultees and members of the general public who have expressed an
interest in participating in the Plan's development will be contacted. Where the Council
has up-to-date contact details, landowners, site promoters and developers of undeveloped
site allocations in the existing LDP will also be contacted. A comprehensive publicity
campaign will take place in the lead up and during this "Call for Candidate Sites" which
will take place over a twelve week period. This will maximise awareness of the request as
well as the requirements for ensuring all submitted Candidate Sites have the appropriate
supporting evidence. The publicity will stress that this is the appropriate time to
submit sites for potential inclusion in the plan. (This is not a commitment that all sites
will be taken forward into the RLDP).

4.1.12 The ISA Scoping Report will be published alongside the Candidate Sites
Assessment Methodology to ensure transparency in assessing candidate sites.

4.1.13 A Candidate Site Register (CSR) of all the sites received during the "Call for
Candidate Sites" will be prepared and published on the Council's website and available
at Deposit Venues.

4 . Replacement Local Development Plan Timetable

N
P
TC

R
eplacem

entLocalD
evelopm

entP
lan

(R
LD

P
)-D

elivery
A
greem

ent(C
onsultation

D
raft)-July

2021
TR

A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

18

Tudalen79



4.1.14 Following the publication of the Candidate Sites Register (CSR) a period of
informal Community feedback will commence for approximately 9 weeks. During this
period, the general public, Council members and stakeholders will be able to provide
informal comments about the sites on the CSR. Whilst the Council will not be responding
to any informal comments received during this period, the comments will nevertheless be
used to inform the wider candidate site assessmenr process. This process will enable the
LDP team to gather initial feedback on the sites and any issues raised in comments can
subsequently be raised with the relevant stakeholders during the candidate site assessment
process (e.g. concerns about sewerage treatment works capacity can be raised with Dwr
Cymru Welsh Water or concerns about flooding can be raised with Natural Resources
Wales). It will also give the community and stakeholders the opportunity to register their
interest in any candidate site(s) and have their contact details added to our consultee
database so that they can be kept up to date with the LDP preparation process in the
future.

4.1.15 Pre-deposit Participation (Regulation 14 - 16)

4.1.16 In the earliest stage of plan preparation, the ‘pre-deposit participation’ phase, the
Council will undertake the following:

A Call for Candidate Sites;
Press and other media publicity to alert the general public to the RLDP process carried
out with the co-operation of the Council’s Communication team;
Correspondence directly to database registrants including Specific and General
Consultation Bodies and members of the general public who have already expressed
an interest in the process;
Meetings of the Planning Committee RLDPMemberWorking Group, Cabinet Member,
Key Stakeholder Group (KSG) (see Appendix E) and other Stakeholder Groups
including representatives of the relevant consultation bodies (Specific and General
as appropriate) to ascertain their expectations and aspirations for the plan and
help identify issues, gather evidence and generate alternative strategies.
More general consultation may take place to identify potential development sites to
meet the aims of potential strategy options.

4.1.17 Pre-deposit Public Consultation (Regulation 15 & 16)

4.1.18 A statutory consultation phase of six weeks will be undertaken on the
‘pre-deposit’ document containing the Council’s preferred strategy (including SA/SEA
Participation). Stakeholders will be advised that this is the appropriate time to make
representations on the sites identified in the Preferred Strategy Document and the CSR.

4.1.19 A comprehensive publicity campaign both in the lead up and during the statutory
consultation period will be undertaken to both raise awareness and encourage involvement
making representations on the RLDP.

4 . Replacement Local Development Plan Timetable

N
P
TC

R
ep
la
ce
m
en
tL
oc
al
D
ev
el
op
m
en
tP

la
n
(R
LD

P
)-
D
el
iv
er
y
A
gr
ee
m
en
t(
C
on
su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft)
-J
ul
y
20
21

TR
A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

19

Tudalen80



4.1.20 The Key Stakeholder Group (KSG) (see Appendix E), Cabinet Member and
Members of the Planning Committee DMT, CDG & CMB will subsequently look at
the consultation responses received and suggest changes. Regeneration and Sustainable
Development Cabinet Board and Full Council will consider and agree any further changes.

4.1.21 Statutory Deposit of Proposals (Regulation 17 - 21)

4.1.22 A statutory consultation phase of six weeks will be undertaken for representations
to be made subsequently on the Statutory Deposit of Proposals in respect of both policies
and sites (including SA/SEA).

4.1.23 A comprehensive publicity campaign both in the lead up and during the statutory
consultation period will be undertaken to both raise awareness and encourage involvement
in making representations on the RLDP.

4.1.24 The KSG, Cabinet Member and Members of the Planning Committee DMT, CDG
and CMBwill recommend a Council position on each consultation response– Regeneration
and Sustainable Development Cabinet Board consideration and Full Council resolution to
agree submission Document, Council position in response to each Deposit Plan consultation
response and any recommended (limited) focussed changes.

4.1.25 Submission of RLDP for Examination (Regulation 22)

4.1.26 After the Deposit and subsequent consultation, the RLDP will be submitted
for Examination by an independent Planning Inspector appointed by the WG.

4.1.27 Independent Examination (Regulation 23)

4.1.28 All documentation associated with the RLDP Examination will be made available
as information to interested parties and the general public in addition to those directly
involved in the formal proceedings. There will be an opportunity for those who made ‘duly
made’ representations at Deposit to be heard by the Inspector. The Inspector’s role is to
examine the RLDP in its entirety and test its ‘soundness’, to consider all relevant evidence
and prepare recommendations and the reasons for those recommendations in the form
of the Inspector’s Report.

4.1.29 Receipt of the Inspector’s Report (Regulation 24)

4.1.30 Following receipt, formal notification of the Inspector’s Report will be given to those
persons who asked to be notified, and the Report will be published as a matter for
information to participants, consultees, database registrants and to the general public, as
well as to those who formally took part in the Examination In Public.

4.1.31 Adoption (Regulation 25)

4.1.32 Within 8 weeks of receipt of the Inspector’s Report, which is binding on the Local
Planning Authority, if the Plan is found sound, the Plan will be reported to the Council for
adoption. Following adoption the Council will publish an Adoption Notice in accordance with
the regulations, and will publicise as matters of information to participants, consultees,

4 . Replacement Local Development Plan Timetable

N
P
TC

R
eplacem

entLocalD
evelopm

entP
lan

(R
LD

P
)-D

elivery
A
greem

ent(C
onsultation

D
raft)-July

2021
TR

A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

20

Tudalen81



database registrants and to the general public all relevant documents including the Council’s
Adoption Statement and details of the ISA (incl. SEA) and its influence on the adopted
RLDP.

4.1.33 Annual Monitoring and Review (Regulation 41)

4.1.34 The Council will identify the successful implementation of policies and areas
where change is necessary. It will also monitor significant effects of the RLDP against
sustainability objectives and it will publish these reports annually.

4.1.35 Further detail on engagement methods through the RLDP preparation process is
provided in Appendix C.

4 . Replacement Local Development Plan Timetable

N
P
TC

R
ep
la
ce
m
en
tL
oc
al
D
ev
el
op
m
en
tP

la
n
(R
LD

P
)-
D
el
iv
er
y
A
gr
ee
m
en
t(
C
on
su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft)
-J
ul
y
20
21

TR
A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

21

Tudalen82



4 . Replacement Local Development Plan Timetable

N
P
TC

R
eplacem

entLocalD
evelopm

entP
lan

(R
LD

P
)-D

elivery
A
greem

ent(C
onsultation

D
raft)-July

2021
TR

A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

22

Tudalen83



Community Involvement Scheme

5.0.1 The CIS sets out who will be formally involved in the RLDP process and how
and when the participation and consultation will occur.

5.0.2 The Council is fully committed to engaging with stakeholders and the local
community throughout the Plan’s preparation and intends to engage widely and as early
as possible in order to take into consideration stakeholders views and build as much
consensus as possible.

5.0.3 In preparing the CIS, the Council has given regard to:

Covid-19 Pandemic: This DA has been prepared during the worldwide Covid-19
pandemic. During the preparation of the RLDP, the Council will adhere to all relevant
Government Regulations regarding Covid-19 that are in force at any particular time.
Including where necessary social distancing and restrictions on face to face meetings,
and will seek alternative and innovative methods of consultation where possible during
this time. This may involve using digital virtual meeting arrangements or
other innovative methods to ensure that full engagement takes place. Should additional
opportunities arise during the plan preparation process, especially where restrictions
continue to be lifted, the Council will endeavour to respond to these.
Previous CIS: Appendix I provides a review of the previous CIS and recommends a
number of approaches for the RLDP.
WBFGA (2015): The WBFGA (2015) requires public bodies to carry out sustainable
development, which it defines as incorporating delivery of social, economic,
environmental and cultural well-being. In order to demonstrate that the well-being
goals and sustainable development principle have been fully incorporated into the
decision making process, it has to be demonstrated that the five ways of
working (involvement; collaboration; integration; prevention; and long term factors)
have been adhered to. In respect of the CIS, the most significant of these
are involvement and collaboration. Involvement means "involving other persons with
an interest in achieving the well-being goals...", and collaboration means to consider
how "collaboration could assist in meeting well-being objectives...". The authority is
therefore required to ensure that stakeholders are fully involved in the RLDP
preparation and decision making process and that there is full collaborationwith other
departments and sections within the Council and with other bodies (including
neighbouring authorities, statutory undertakers and others) who could assist. Proposals
for how these requirements will be met are set out below.
The NPT Well-Being Plan: Following the WBFGA (2015), the NPT Well-being
Plan(17) adopts a sustainable development principal to ensure that the needs of the
present residents of the County Borough are met without compromising the ability of
future generations to meet their own needs. The Authority is committed to collaborate
with any person or organisation that could help the Authority to meet its well-being
objectives. The Authority also recognises the importance of involving people with an
interest in achieving the well-being goals, and ensuring that those people reflect the
diversity of the area.

17 https://democracy.npt.gov.uk/documents/s36073/Local%20Well-being%20Plan%20Draft%20V10.pdf

5 . Community Involvement Scheme

N
P
TC

R
ep
la
ce
m
en
tL
oc
al
D
ev
el
op
m
en
tP

la
n
(R
LD

P
)-
D
el
iv
er
y
A
gr
ee
m
en
t(
C
on
su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft)
-J
ul
y
20
21

TR
A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

23

Tudalen84

https://democracy.npt.gov.uk/documents/s36073/Local%20Well-being%20Plan%20Draft%20V10.pdf


5.1 Engagement Principles

5.1.1 The NPT Public Services Board (PSB) has established a five part NPT PSBCitizen
Engagement Scheme which provides a reference for good practice in public consultation.
The scheme includes a toolkit to provide a common template for procedures and
documents. When engaging with the public in the preparation of the RLDP, the Authority
intends to follow the principles and procedures set out in the Citizen Engagement Scheme
as far as practicable and involve the Engagement and Participation Officer in order to gain
the views of young people in the Authority.

5.1.2 The Council is also committed to utilising the ten National Principles for Public
Engagement in Wales.(18)These are:

Engagement is effectively designed to make a difference;
Encourage and enable everyone affected to be involved, if they so choose;
Engagement is planned and delivered in a timely and appropriate way;
Work with relevant partner organisations;
The information provided will be jargon free, appropriate and understandable;
Make it easier for people to take part;
Enable people to take part effectively;
Engagement is given the right resources and support to be effective;
People are told of the impact of their contribution;
Learn and share lessons to improve the process of engagement.

5.1.3 The following RLDP specific consultation principles will also be used to guide the
Council's approach to involving the local community and other stakeholders in preparation
of the RLDP:

Frontloaded: The community will be encouraged to be involved at an early stage in
the preparation of the RLDP;
Continued Involvement: The community will be encouraged to be involved throughout
the process of preparing the RLDP;
Commitment: Opportunities will be sought for the whole community to engage at
appropriate stages in the process;

Inclusive: The Council will encourage the active participation of everyone who has
an interest in, or who may be affected by, the RLDP;

Transparent: Engagement will be undertaken in a transparent and open manner;
Fit for Purpose: Engagement will be fit for purpose and capable of being resourced;
and
Realistic: The Council will seek to ensure that all parties involved in the process
understand and remain realistic about what can be achieved within the context of
relevant legislation, WG guidance, and resources available.

18 Guidance notes for National Principles for Public Engagement.

5 . Community Involvement Scheme

N
P
TC

R
eplacem

entLocalD
evelopm

entP
lan

(R
LD

P
)-D

elivery
A
greem

ent(C
onsultation

D
raft)-July

2021
TR

A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

24

Tudalen85

http://www.wales.nhs.uk/sitesplus/documents/972/Guidance_notes_for_National_Principles_for_Public_Engagement.pdf


5.1.1 Consensus Building

5.1.1.1 A key objective of the LDP system is to build consensus from the outset. A variety
of consultation methods (see below) will enable structured discussions and involvement
with the aim of building as much consensus as possible. NPT Council is committed to
early and effective stakeholder and community engagement in plan making as this is
something that the Authority believes is essential to ensuring that the RLDP is relevant
and inclusive to local communities, and critical to achieve local ownership and legitimacy
for policies that will shape the future development of the County Borough.

5.1.1.2 This approach should reduce the time taken to reach adoption by reducing the
number of deposit objections to policies and therefore reducing the time spent at later
stages of the Plan preparation process. Consensus building will be assisted through the
establishment and sharing of a common information base for the key issues from the start
of the process.

5.1.1.3 Where consensus cannot be achieved, it is important that the sources of
information leading to a decision are explicit and respected by all parties. In such instances,
other appropriate matters such as national policy will be considered to determine any
outcome. Progression may also be made on a majority basis.

5.1.2 Welsh Language

5.1.2.1 The preparation of the RLDP and all engagement with stakeholders and the
public will be undertaken in accordance with the Council’s Welsh language standards and
the Welsh Language Standards Regulations 2015(19).

The Authority welcomes correspondence inWelsh or English and will deal withWelsh
and English correspondence to the same standards and timescales;
Correspondents will receive a reply in the language of the original correspondence;
All forms, consultation documents (excluding technical documents), publicity materials
and correspondence will be bilingual;
All meetings, whether formal or informal, will be conducted bilingually where requested
beforehand; and
All consultation draft and adopted RLDP policy and supplementary guidance
publications will be bilingual.

5.1.3 Role of Stakeholders and Interested Parties

5.1.3.1 In accordance with the LDP Regulations, engagement in the RLDP's preparation
will focus on stakeholders and the public.

5.1.3.2 In order to ensure that specific and general consultees, agencies and other
participants are able to play a full role and represent their local communities throughout
the RLDP process it will be important that all stakeholders and participants have regard
to the following expectations:

19 Welsh Language Standards (No.1) Regulations 2015

5 . Community Involvement Scheme

N
P
TC

R
ep
la
ce
m
en
tL
oc
al
D
ev
el
op
m
en
tP

la
n
(R
LD

P
)-
D
el
iv
er
y
A
gr
ee
m
en
t(
C
on
su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft)
-J
ul
y
20
21

TR
A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

25

Tudalen86

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/


Provide full contact details (including full name, postal address and email address)
to enable full engagement and feedback (phone numbers and email addresses will
be redacted from published material);
Respond to correspondence within the prescribed timescale;
Raise legitimate issues that can be addressed by the RLDP;
Commit to the process by attending, contributing and helping to achieve consensus;
Identify any gaps in information supplied and/or the RLDP evidence base;
Where appropriate, put forward Candidate Sites early in the process as part of the
Call for Candidate Sites;
Follow all relevant guidelines and procedures;
Provide and share information if required; and
Understand that the RLDP Inspector’s Report is binding and there can be no appeal
in respect of the recommendations of the Inspector.

5.1.3.3 The General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) requires that data protection
principles, rights and obligations are applied to any personal data processing (data that
we collect, hold, analyse) as part of the RLDP preparation process.

5.1.4 Petitions

5.1.4.1 Petitions are sometimes used by groups to offer their opinions on an issue. Any
submitted petition should clearly state on each page the purpose of the petition, and should
have a contact name and address/ e-mail.

5.1.4.2 All correspondence will be directed to the contact details given of the person
organising the petition; individual acknowledgement will not be sent to individual signatories
of the petition.

5.1.5 Duly Made and Late Representations

5.1.5.1 In order for a representation to be duly made, it must include all necessary
information and specify the matters to which it relates. Where a representation is made
at Deposit Stage it must be clear what changes are sought, the grounds upon which the
representation is made and the relevant test(s) of soundness that have not been met.

5.1.5.2 The Council will only accept representations received during the prescribed
consultation periods. Deadlines will be strictly adhered to and any representations received
outside of these consultation periods will be deemed to be not duly made. To avoid
disappointment it is advisable to submit any information with a couple of days to spare
and check that it has been received.

5.1.5.3 Whilst there will be an increase in the use of social media for awareness raising
to help to ensure that significant strategy considerations and development proposals can
spark debate and understanding on some of the more controversial aspects of the plan.
The Council cannot accept representations made directly via social media. Information
will be provided as to how to make valid representations.

5 . Community Involvement Scheme

N
P
TC

R
eplacem

entLocalD
evelopm

entP
lan

(R
LD

P
)-D

elivery
A
greem

ent(C
onsultation

D
raft)-July

2021
TR

A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

26

Tudalen87



5.2 Engagement Methods

5.2.1 Document Availability

5.2.1.1 All relevant documents produced as part of the RLDP preparation process will
be made available to stakeholders at appropriate times to inform the plan preparation
stages. These documents will be published on the RLDP website (www.npt.gov.uk/ldp).
In addition, subject to current Covid restrictions, by appointment only printed copies will
be available at the following offices (Deposit Venues):

Neath Civic Centre, Neath, SA11 3QZ
Port Talbot Civic Centre, Port Talbot, SA13 1PJ
The Quays, Brunel Way, Baglan Energy Park, Neath SA11 2GG

5.2.1.2 Paper copies of documents will be available for purchase on request at a price
to cover the costs of printing, postage and packaging.

5.2.2 Methods of Involvement, Participation and Consultation

5.2.2.1 Stakeholder Involvement

5.2.2.1.1 It is proposed to use a diverse range of methods to ensure effective community
involvement throughout the Plan process while complying with the requirements of the
Regulations. Engagement with stakeholders will be the principal on-going method of
involvement during the preparation of the plan.

5.2.2.1.2 Stakeholders will be provided with information via the RLDP website (and other
methods where required) and comments, observations and input will be invited at all
relevant plan preparation stages. The opportunity to discuss issues with staff will be made
available via electronic communication or phone, and in person if appropriate or on request,
subject to any currently prevailing Covid-19 restrictions.

5.2.2.1.3 Identified key stakeholders will be involved more closely in discussions about
the plan vision, objectives and strategy in Key Stakeholder Group (KSG) consultation
events to be held live, on-line or in person as appropriate on at least two occasions prior
to the Pre-Deposit consultation, enabling involvement of interested parties in the setting
and definition of the plan's overall approach, desired objectives and outcomes and preferred
strategy.

5.2.2.1.4 In addition, it is proposed to set up Technical Working Groups (TWGs) for
specific subject or topic areas, which will comprise of Council officers and targeted key
stakeholders with expertise or interest in the topic area concerned. This will enable
stakeholders to be fully involved in more detailed identification of the key issues in respect
of specific policy matters that face the County Borough, and development of strategies
and approaches to address these as appropriate.

5 . Community Involvement Scheme

N
P
TC

R
ep
la
ce
m
en
tL
oc
al
D
ev
el
op
m
en
tP

la
n
(R
LD

P
)-
D
el
iv
er
y
A
gr
ee
m
en
t(
C
on
su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft)
-J
ul
y
20
21

TR
A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

27

Tudalen88



5.2.2.2 Public Participation

5.2.2.2.1 In order to ensure that the plan preparation process is as open as possible
and that the public is able to participate as fully as practicable, the following methods will
be used:

Relevant documents and updates will be published on the LDP/
RLDP website (www.npt.gov.uk/ldp) on a regular basis;
A FAQ section on the website to anticipate the issues that stakeholders may find
difficulty in understanding and hopefully address that confusion and encourage
participation;
Hard copies of relevant documents will be in the 3 deposit venues at key stages;
Libraries will be provided with guidance notes on how to access documents on-line;
Engagement activities and formal consultation stages will be advertised through
various local Radio campaigns and "sound-bite" indicating what stage we are at and
urging listeners to go to our website and take part;
On-line video conferencingwith a facilitator and producer to encourage participants
to take part and the points raised are captured;
Updates to the Public Service Board will be provided on a regular basis;
Regular updates will also be given via the Council's social media accounts including
"In the Loop" which is a Digital Magazine which goes out to approximately 4,500
employees monthly (69% of which live in NPT), a weekly SWAY (to NPT employees)
which highlights important information readers may wish to be made aware of,
Facebook, Linkedin, Instagram, NPT News which is a monthly e-newsletter going out
to approximately 2,000 people, and Twitter.
SocialMedia NetworkingPlatformsYAMMERand FacebookWorkplace are currently
being piloted for NPT Council Employees. The chosen platform will also be utilised.
In the absence of a Town or Community Council in Port Talbot, contact will be made
with #VIVA Port Talbot - the Business Improvement District (BID) in Port Talbot which
is working to strengthen the voice of businesses on matters that affect the Town
Centre.
In addition the Youth Council and YoungMayorwill be contacted and kept informed;
Colleagues in Social Services will distribute information and collect responses with
young people through NPT Young which is also known as YOVO (11 plus years old)
and Junior YOVO (7 to 11 years old);
Press releaseswill be issued at appropriate times. Local, regional as well as national
journalists are contacted with a hope that they will carry the story at the appropriate
times;
NPT News Room - is a live blog that refreshes regularly on the Council's webpage;
QR Codes will be created along with pop-up banners at locations with heavy footfall
to encourage people to go to the Council's website.
Digital Screens at Civic Centres, Social Housing Offices, Health Authority Sites,
transport hubs and certain digital bus stops with the message to go to the Council's
website being the key message;
Posters and leaflets (including QR codes) will be distributed to key local community
facilities such as Libraries, GP surgeries, Leisure Centres and Community Notice
Boards at key stages (Preferred Strategy and Deposit Consultations);

5 . Community Involvement Scheme

N
P
TC

R
eplacem

entLocalD
evelopm

entP
lan

(R
LD

P
)-D

elivery
A
greem

ent(C
onsultation

D
raft)-July

2021
TR

A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

28

Tudalen89

https://www.npt.gov.uk/ldp


Targeted Public Exhibitions (Drop in or Un-staffed) as necessary;
Virtual stakeholder meetings in each of the 8 Spatial Planning Areas at Preferred
Strategy & Deposit Plan Stage. Subject to the continued relaxation of Covid restrictions
and while ensuring compliance with prevailing regulations, face to face meetings will
be arranged where necessary and appropriate;
Elected Members of NPT Council will have a key role to play in ensuring that local
communities are kept informed and engaged with the plan preparation process, this
could include distributing information or posters;
Full liaison between the LDP and the NPT Public Service Board will be maintained;
Full use will be made of Local Area Co-ordinators to distribute and communicate
information. They will know their constituencies and importantly, those who have
difficulty in accessing information;
Communication will be distributed using Gov.Notify.
LGBTQ+ Forums, Black Asian Minority Ethnic Groups, all other relevant seldom
heard stakeholder groupswill be engaged through targeted social media campaigns
and awareness raising via other appropriately tailoredmethods such as posters/leaflets
where necessary. Documentation or consultation materials will be translated into other
languages and formats when required in order to ensure maximum engagement with
seldom heard groups;
Welsh Language stakeholders will be engaged through the medium of Welsh. All
published non-technical material will be made available in Welsh (see Welsh
Language Section above).

5.3 Replacement Local Development Plan Involvement - who will be involved?

5.3.1 Community Profiling

5.3.1.1 The Development Plans Manual indicates that the Council should profile the
community in order to identify the most appropriate range of interests to be involved the
LDP preparation process. Full details and findings of this process are set out in Appendix
H.

5.3.1.2 Taking the existing LDP stakeholder / consultation bodies lists as a starting point,
in order to encourage representation from all sectors of society within NPT (as characterised
in Appendix H) in an equitable way, potential stakeholders from some under-represented
sectors need to be encouraged to become involved. Additional stakeholder groups have
been contacted where gaps are identified in this respect, and these have been included
on the General Consultation Bodies list where appropriate.

5.3.2 Specific and General Consultation Bodies

5.3.2.1 In accordance with the LDP Regulations, the Council has compiled lists of
consultation bodies, that is organisations or groups that are likely to have an interest in or
be affected by the RLDP. These comprise Specific Consultation Bodies (including WG,
Natural Resources Wales (NRW), statutory undertakers and adjoining local authorities)
and General Consultation Bodies (including voluntary groups and representatives of
business interests). A list of Other Consultation Bodies has also been compiled, including

5 . Community Involvement Scheme

N
P
TC

R
ep
la
ce
m
en
tL
oc
al
D
ev
el
op
m
en
tP

la
n
(R
LD

P
)-
D
el
iv
er
y
A
gr
ee
m
en
t(
C
on
su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft)
-J
ul
y
20
21

TR
A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

29

Tudalen90



organisations or bodies that do not fit into the categories set out in the Regulations, but
that may have an interest or be affected. These consultation bodies lists are set out in
Appendix F and G.

5.3.2.2 In order to avoid consultation fatigue for stakeholders and to encourage structured
discussion, engagement will be focussed on organisations and groups identified as Key
Stakeholders. Key Stakeholders are those the specific consultation bodies identified in
Appendix E.

5.3.2.3 In addition, specific relevant stakeholder representation will be sought for each
of the TWGs. Stakeholders who have an interest in specific topic areas will be encouraged
to become involved in TWG discussions and Key Stakeholder events. These will consist
of both internal officers and external stakeholders.

5.3.3 Key Stakeholder Group

5.3.3.1 During the early stages of Plan preparation, a KSG will be formed. The KSG will
be involved throughout the Plan preparation period up to and including the Deposit stage. It
will play a central role in identifying the Plan vision, objectives and strategy options and
consider the RLDP strategy, distribution of growth, emerging site allocations and policies.
Appendix E identifies the proposed KSG members.

5.3.4 Elected Members

5.3.4.1 Elected Members will be expected to act as champions for the RLDP preparation
process by keeping their constituents up to date with progress. All-Member seminars will
be held at appropriate times during the plan preparation process, in particular in advance
of periods of public consultation. This will help to inform Council Members of the
development and progress of the plan and to encourage engagement with their constituents
to widen public awareness, with the intention of maximising benefits from Members' roles
and the participation of the public. Members may be asked to distribute information directly
to digitally excluded residents and share information via their own community social media
pages.

5.3.4.2 In addition, members' of the Planning Committee the RLDP Member Working
Group will regularly receive Pre-committee Briefings to enable a direct role in the evolution
of RLDP strategies and policies and to influence the plan's direction and priorities.

5.3.4.3 Council Members will also be invited to take part in pre-booked 'drop-in' sessions
with officers of the LDP Team (either on-line or in person as appropriate) to facilitate
communications between the public, Members, and Officers to help to spread awareness
of the RLDP preparation process and emerging strategies and proposals and to enable
the views of the community and wider public to be made known. These are likely to be
held during the stages of informal Community feedback on the Candidate Sites Register,
to give members the opportunity to share information about sites within their wards.

5.3.4.4 Liaison and briefings with the Cabinet Member for Regeneration & Sustainable
Development will be held regularly throughout the RLDP preparation process.

5 . Community Involvement Scheme

N
P
TC

R
eplacem

entLocalD
evelopm

entP
lan

(R
LD

P
)-D

elivery
A
greem

ent(C
onsultation

D
raft)-July

2021
TR

A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

30

Tudalen91



5.3.4.5 The number of wards in the County will reduce from 42 to 34 following the
implementation of the Local Democracy and Boundary Commission for Wales Review of
Community Arrangements in the County Borough of Neath Port Talbot and will result in
4 less County Councillors.

5.3.5 Community and Town Councils

5.3.5.1 In preparing the RLDP, the Council recognises the important role of Town and
Community Councils within their respective communities acknowledging their capability to
communicate information and encourage engagement. As a reflection of this role and status
as Specific Consultees (Appendix F), the Council will consult with them at
appropriate stages (including representation at the Key Stakeholder Group). Town and
Community Councils both within the County Borough and in areas directly adjacent to its
boundaries will play a significant role in communicating information and encouraging
engagement in the RLDP process and conveying communities views.

5.3.5.2 There are 19 Town and Community Councils (236 seats) of varying sizes
and budgets within the County. It is considered that attending the meetings of each of
these Councils on an individual basis is impracticable due to resource issues. However,
where practicable, the Council will however identify other appropriate methods of
engagement for the Sector. Such methods could include area-based meetings. There are
also opportunities to utilise the Council’s established Town and Community Council Liaison
Forum. In the absence of Town and Community Councils within the Port Talbot area, VIVA
Port Talbot Business support and organisations based in those areas will be targeted and
engaged in order that the views of those areas are captured.

5.3.5.3 There are also a number of external organisations that could play an important
role in supporting engagement with the Sector – including One Voice Wales and Planning
Aid Wales. In relation to the former, reference is made to the well-established Area
Committee structure, whilst Planning Aid Wales are established training providers for the
sector.

5.3.5.4 The Council is also mindful of proposed future changes due to the Parliamentary
Boundary Review and the introduction of the SouthWestWales Corporate Joint Committee.
As the make-up of Local Government changes then so will the consultation strategy adapt
to ensure that all key voices are given the opportunity to engage and in return are listened
to.

5.3.6 Hard to Reach and Protected Characteristics Groups

Hard to Reach or Seldom Heard Groups

5.3.6.1 The community profiling exercise has identified a number of Hard to Reach or
Seldom Heard Groups within NPT. Measures will be taken to contact these groups and
individuals and where possible to encourage them to participate through the processes
outlined above, including forums and discussions.

5.3.6.2 In particular representatives from the following groups will be encouraged to
become involved in the RLDP preparation process:

5 . Community Involvement Scheme

N
P
TC

R
ep
la
ce
m
en
tL
oc
al
D
ev
el
op
m
en
tP

la
n
(R
LD

P
)-
D
el
iv
er
y
A
gr
ee
m
en
t(
C
on
su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft)
-J
ul
y
20
21

TR
A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

31

Tudalen92



Young people;
Older persons;
People with Disabilities;
Gypsies and Travellers;
Unpaid carers;
Students;
Black Asian Minority Ethnic (BAME) Groups;
LGBTQ+ Forums

5.3.6.3 In addition there are other groups identified as significant in the community
profiling who are considered to have been under represented previously in LDP preparation.
This includes (but is not limited to) those seeking affordable housing in the County Borough,
people on low incomes, small house builders and small and medium sized
enterprises. Every effort will be made to contact and engage with these groups by utilising
existing mutual points of contact wherever possible.

5.3.6.4 Appropriate representatives of the identified groups will be invited to participate
at the relevant stages of the plan preparation process, in order to maximise the inputs and
benefits from the participation. Examples and information will be sought from other services
within the Council and associated organisations in order to identify groups and lines of
communication to ensure participation.

Protected Characteristics Groups

5.3.6.5 Under the Equality Act 2010, the following characteristics are defined as protected
characteristics:

age;
disability;
gender reassignment;
marriage and civil partnership;
pregnancy and maternity;
race;
religion or belief;
sex;
sexual orientation.

5.3.6.6 Under the Equality Act 2010, it is against the law to discriminate against someone
because of the above protected characteristics. All public bodies, including the Council
are required under the Act to eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and
victimisation, advance equality of opportunity and foster good relations amongst and
between different protected groups (known as the Public Sector Duty).

5.3.6.7 The Protected Characteristic Groups have been considered in the compilation
of the consultation bodies lists and additional groups contacted and included where
appropriate within the RLDP stakeholder groups.

5 . Community Involvement Scheme

N
P
TC

R
eplacem

entLocalD
evelopm

entP
lan

(R
LD

P
)-D

elivery
A
greem

ent(C
onsultation

D
raft)-July

2021
TR

A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

32

Tudalen93



5.3.6.8 The Council has developed a Strategic Equality Plan (SEP)(20) in line with the
requirements of the Equality Act 2010 which demonstrates the Council's commitment to
progressing the equality agenda in Neath Port Talbot, through providing high quality public
services to all citizens. The SEP aims to:

Remove or minimise disadvantages experienced by people due to their protected
characteristics; and
To take steps to meet the needs of people from protected groups where these are
different from the needs of other people.

5.3.6.9 The Council's SEP and the 8 associated equality objectives will be fully considered
and adhered to throughout the process to ensure that those with protected characteristics
and other hard to reach groups have the same opportunities to engage with the active
travel process, with their participation and inclusion in the process given the same weight
and opportunity.

5.3.6.10 An Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) will be carried out to ensure that the
impact of policies, consultations and procedures on all residents and visitors are assessed.

5.3.6.11 Council departments, existing networks and delivery partners will assist in
ensuring access to all and will target specific groups. For example, the Council's Community
Cohesion Officer will facilitate contact with the Black andMinority Ethnic (BAME) Community
and help to share information to the community and help the community to engage in the
consultation process in order to express their views.

5.3.7 Local Development Plan Consultee Database

5.3.7.1 A comprehensive LDP consultee database has been maintained by the Council
since the commencement of the preparation process for the original LDP. This has included
all persons and organisations that have expressed an interest in the RLDP process or
made comments on any aspect, together with anyone who has asked to be kept informed
at any stage of the LDP or RLDP process.

5.3.7.2 TheGeneral Data Protection Regulations (GDPR) came into force in 2018 placing
new restrictions on how organisations can hold and use personal data and defining rights
and procedures in respect of the data. Given that this applies to the LDP database, in
2018 the Council wrote to all of those on the database and removed those who no longer
wished for their details to be stored. Any person who wishes to be added to the consultation
database should email the LDP team (ldp@npt.gov.uk) and give written consent to the
Council storing their personal details.

5.3.8 Developers, Agents and Other Site Promoters

5.3.8.1 Developers, agents, landowners and any other interested persons are encouraged
to submit suggestions for sites that they wish to be considered for development during the
Call for Candidate Sites. Details of the Candidate Sites process, including guidance notes,
will be made available on the Council's website for a significant period prior to the Call for

20 https://www.npt.gov.uk/2331

5 . Community Involvement Scheme

N
P
TC

R
ep
la
ce
m
en
tL
oc
al
D
ev
el
op
m
en
tP

la
n
(R
LD

P
)-
D
el
iv
er
y
A
gr
ee
m
en
t(
C
on
su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft)
-J
ul
y
20
21

TR
A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

33

Tudalen94

https://www.npt.gov.uk/2331


Candidate Sites in order for developers, agents and landowners to fully understand the
process, understand the potential costs of submitting a site (including the costs of obtaining
supporting evidence such as the Development Viability Model) and understand
where consultants and specialists may be required.

5.3.8.2 Prior to the Call for Candidate Sites, the LDP Teamwill invite developers, agents,
landowners, other site promoters and interested community members to a workshop
to inform them of the process for submitting sites. In addition, given that site allocations
will not automatically be rolled forward to the RLDP, prior to the Call for Candidate Sites,
the LDP Team will write to all landowners, agents and/or developers of undeveloped site
allocations to inform them of the Call for Candidate Sites where we have up-to-date contact
information.

5.3.8.3 Developers, agents, landowners and other interested persons will also be involved
in the Housing TWG. Following the revocation of TAN1, the LDP Team will use the TAN1
steering group as the basis for the Housing TWG and invite estate agents/ lenders/ valuers
etc. to extend the membership to discuss viability input assumptions for example with
regards to house prices/ build costs/ developer profit etc.

5.3.9 General Public

5.3.9.1 Members of the public will be informed of RLDP progress through a range of
methods. All relevant documents and information will be on the LDP website(21), with
details of current consultations and activity. Information will also be circulated through the
Council's social media accounts including Facebook, FacebookWorkplace and or Yammer
(currently being piloted, the chosen platform will be used by Council staff), Instagram,
Linkedin, NPT News (Monthly e-news letter), NPT Young, Twitter, press releases, posters,
QRCodes, pop-up banners, leaflets in certain circumstances, information on digital screens,
"Find your Nearest" (a GIS based format will aid issues most relevant to stakeholders
areas). Radio will also be used where appropriate to promote engagement & consultation
events with the aim of targeting those who are digitally excluded.

5.3.9.2 County Borough Councillors and Town / Community Councils will play important
roles as elected members and bodies in engaging with local communities and conveying
issues and information. Members will be briefed on a regular basis and prior to all
consultation exercises together with briefing documents being sent to Town/Community
Councils and further support provided if requested.

5.3.9.3 Paper copies of key documents will be made available at the principal council
offices listed above at key stages, (subject to Covid restrictions). In addition, members of
the public will have the right to make formal representations and thereby influence the
Plan at the formal plan preparation stages:

The suggestion of Candidate Sites for development;
Preferred Strategy/Pre-Deposit Plan stage;
Deposit Plan stage.

21 www.npt.gov.uk/ldp

5 . Community Involvement Scheme

N
P
TC

R
eplacem

entLocalD
evelopm

entP
lan

(R
LD

P
)-D

elivery
A
greem

ent(C
onsultation

D
raft)-July

2021
TR

A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

34

Tudalen95



The Citizens' Panel

5.3.9.4 The Council has established a Citizens' Panel in order to enable residents of
the County Borough to contribute to policy and service development. Membership of the
Citizens' Panel is open to residents of NPT County Borough aged over 16 years.

5.3.9.5 The Citizens' Panel is intended to provide a method to gauge the opinions of a
cross-section of the County Borough’s population. The Panel will be consulted at significant
stages in the preparation of the RLDP as part of up to 12 surveys undertaken per year
and through a number of focus groups. This will be predominantly in the early pre-deposit
stages of plan preparation, including the identification of strategic issues, vision and options.

5.4 Collaborative Working

Collaboration within the Council

5.4.1 To ensure that all sections of the Council are fully aware of the RLDP preparation
process and its progress, presentations and meetings will be held with relevant senior
council officers in all affected departments. This is intended to enable discussion of all
aspects and in particular to allow issues to be raised and acknowledged, fully considered
and addressed.

5.4.2 For more detailed involvement, TWGs will be established to address specific policy
areas such as housing (and affordable housing), employment or environmental issues,
and where necessary area-based community issues. The TWGswill include Council Officers
with responsibility for areas including Planning, Highways, Engineering, Drainage and
Flood Management, Biodiversity, Economic Development, Housing, Education and Public
Health, although this list is not exhaustive. As indicated above, specific relevant or interested
Key stakeholders will be invited where appropriate to participate in these groups.

Collaboration with outside bodies

5.4.3 Collaboration at a sub-regional and regional level through meetings will take place
to ensure there is consistency between adjoining areas. Most external bodies, authorities
and infrastructure providers with an interest or input into the development of the RLDP
will be included on the lists of stakeholders and are likely to be involved in stakeholder
meetings and relevant TWG discussions. However, in many cases more
specific collaboration will be required or will be beneficial.

5.4.4 This may include collaborating to ensure that appropriate infrastructure will be
available at the right time for new development, collaboration with neighbouring authorities
in preparing evidence base studies or ensuring that policies and designations are aligned,
or working with statutory consultees on candidate site assessments, among other things.

5 . Community Involvement Scheme

N
P
TC

R
ep
la
ce
m
en
tL
oc
al
D
ev
el
op
m
en
tP

la
n
(R
LD

P
)-
D
el
iv
er
y
A
gr
ee
m
en
t(
C
on
su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft)
-J
ul
y
20
21

TR
A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

35

Tudalen96



5.5 Feedback Arrangements

5.5.1 The Council's website is intended to be the primary focus for engagement purposes
including up-to-date information and news on the progress of the RLDP. Regular updates
will be provided on the RLDP website and via other Council media sources and social
media where appropriate.

5.5.2 All representations received as part of the statutory consultation stages will be
acknowledged and registered on the RLDP database and will be used in the next step of
the preparation of the RLDP. Consultees and correspondents will be informed of the next
steps in the process where they have been asked to be kept in formed of the next steps
in the process.

5.5.3 The majority of correspondence will be by e-mail. This will ensure a fast and
economic method of engagement. Wherever this is not possible, then more conventional
use of the mail will be called upon.

5.5.4 At all significant stages (Preferred Strategy and Deposit stages), consultation
representations and the LPA's response will be reported to the Council's R&SD Cabinet
Board and / or the Full Council.

5.5.5 Details of all consultation and engagement activity undertaken will be included in
the Initial Consultation Report and Consultation Report which is required by the LDPWales
Regulations at the Preferred Strategy and Deposit Plan and Submission stages of the
plan preparation process respectively.

5.6 Engagement Programme

5.6.1 The engagement programme at Key Stages of plan preparation is set out in detail
in Appendix C. For each stage of the plan preparation process, the table sets
out engagement methods to be used, who will be involved, the timescale for the
engagement and the ways by which the outcomes of the engagement will be reported and
decisions will be taken.

5.6.2 The table gives an overview of all the engagement events that are currently
proposed. From the start of plan preparation up to submission stage, timings and time
periods are set out as specific dates to be adhered to as far as possible. After submission,
the subsequent stages of the process are not directly in the control of the Council and
consequently, timings post submission are indicative only and subject to change.

5 . Community Involvement Scheme

N
P
TC

R
eplacem

entLocalD
evelopm

entP
lan

(R
LD

P
)-D

elivery
A
greem

ent(C
onsultation

D
raft)-July

2021
TR

A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

36

Tudalen97



6.1 Decision Making and Delivery

6.1.1 Important strategy and policy decisions will need to be made at key stages of the
development of the emerging RLDP. The ways in which the council will take these decisions
are outlined below, together with measures to ensure that the Plan is delivered within the
timescales envisaged.

6.2 Internal Reporting

6.2.1 At key stages of the RLDP preparation process, Directorate Management Team
(DMT), Corporate Directors Group (CDG), Regeneration and Sustainable Development
Cabinet Board (R&SDCB) and Full Council approval will be required. Generally, internal
stakeholder engagement (Officers & Members) will involve discussion at the following
groups:

TWG (Including Officers);
Members of the Planning Committee *RLDP Member Working Group (MWG) / All
Member Seminar / Members Briefing;
DMT;
CDG;
R&SDCB and
Full Council.

6.2.2 *In preparing the RLDP, it is proposed to set up a Member Working Group (MWG)
to oversee the work as it progresses. The MWG is intended to be a small representative
group of councillors derived from the Council’s Planning Committee and will meet at regular
intervals.

6.2.3 The intention is for the group to be used as a ‘sounding board’ in order to provide
informal feedback about existing and proposed policies and proposals, the key spatial
planning issues to be addressed, along with the vision, objectives, strategy and proposals
of the Plan as they emerge. The group will also have the opportunity to review the
background documents and evidence base.

6.2.4 Decision making on the RLDPwill be by R&SDCBwith key formal stages approved
by R&SDCB and Full Council.

6.2.5 Agreement from R&SDCB / Council will be sought for all documents which are
part of the statutory consultation stages of the RLDP (e.g. the DA, Preferred Strategy and
Deposit Plan), together with the stages of RLDP preparation where consideration needs
to be given to representations made as a result of the statutory consultation at the
Preferred and Deposit stages.

6.3 Corporate Fit

6.3.1 The Council is committed to the delivery of its corporate aims and objectives
through its strategic and policy documents. The development of a corporate relationship
between such documents is central to their effective delivery, with the RLDP being
fundamental in conveying land use aspirations.

6 . Decision Making and Delivery

N
P
TC

R
ep
la
ce
m
en
tL
oc
al
D
ev
el
op
m
en
tP

la
n
(R
LD

P
)-
D
el
iv
er
y
A
gr
ee
m
en
t(
C
on
su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft)
-J
ul
y
20
21

TR
A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

37

Tudalen98



6.3.2 The Council's Well-being Plan will form a key part of the evidence of the RLDP,
shaping and influencing the vision, strategy and objectives of the RLDP.

6.4 Staffing and Financial Resources

6.4.1 The Council is required to identify the resources – staff and financial – required
at various stages in the RLDP process in preparing the DA. The Council’s Planning Policy
Team will lead in the production and management of the RLDP process, including the
preparation of any consultative documents, and will be charged with the management of
the definitive stages (1-4, see Table 4.1.1) of the preparation process and progression to
Submission of the RLDP to theWG for Examination (Indicative Timetable, Stage 5) . Whilst
the following officer time is currently scheduled to be dedicated to the RLDP preparation
process, the position will be monitored throughout the process and additional resources
requested as necessary:

6.4.2 RLDP Team:

Planning Policy Manager x 1 (40%)
Planning Policy Team Leader x 0.8 (80%)
Senior Planning Policy Officers x 3.8 (85%)
Policy Implementation and Research Officer x 0.6 (50%)
Senior Business and Technical Support Officer x 1 (65%)
Land Charges & GIS Statistical Analyst x 1 (20%)

6.4.3 The Head of Planning & Public Protection and the Planning Policy Manager will
be responsible for overall delivery of the RLDP, with the Planning Policy Manager and
Team Leader responsible for the day-to-day project management. The Planning Policy
Team will lead in the preparation and delivery of the RLDP with Member engagement and
political reporting at appropriate stages.

6.4.4 Officers in other Council service areas will also be involved in various aspects of
the Plan preparation process as required. Where necessary, external consultants will be
engaged to undertake specific pieces of work such as the preparation of technical
assessments and studies, advise on particular issues and prepare documents such as
the ISA and HRA. An initial assessment has been carried out of the elements of plan
preparation that are likely to require external consultant input and financial resources have
been secured accordingly.

6.4.5 Regional collaboration with neighbouring authorities will be fundamental to the
preparation of the RLDP, where appropriate, opportunities will be sought to develop a joint
evidence base with neighbouring authorities and authorities in the SWW Region.

Budget Position

6.4.6 The Council is providing a Budget of £530,830 to fund the preparation of the RLDP
to adoption to 2025/26. This includes a base budget of £81,205 per annumwith the balance
funded from an earmarked reserve. Projected costs relating to all elements of the RLDP
(including the Examination in public but excluding staff costs) is £490,830, resulting in a
contingency provision of £30,000 over the 5 year period.

6 . Decision Making and Delivery

N
P
TC

R
eplacem

entLocalD
evelopm

entP
lan

(R
LD

P
)-D

elivery
A
greem

ent(C
onsultation

D
raft)-July

2021
TR

A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

38

Tudalen99



2025/262024/252023/242022/232021/22

81,205103,697122,720112,945100,263Total Available Budget

81,20581,20581,20581,20581,205Base BudgetFunds
available

022,49241,51531,74019,058LDPReserve

51,205103,697122,720112,945100,263Total Estimated Spend

6.5 Risk Management

6.5.1 The definitive stage of the timetable is considered to be realistic and achievable,
having regard to resource input in to the RLDP process. While the Council will seek to
avoid departure from the proposed timetable, a number of risks have been identified which
could result in programme slippage. The potential risks and proposed mitigation measures
to address / minimise these risks are set out in Appendix D. The Council will report and
justify any substantial deviation (of more than 3 months) from the proposed timetable.
Section 4 identifies the procedures to be followed should the Council identify the need to
amend the DA.

6 . Decision Making and Delivery

N
P
TC

R
ep
la
ce
m
en
tL
oc
al
D
ev
el
op
m
en
tP

la
n
(R
LD

P
)-
D
el
iv
er
y
A
gr
ee
m
en
t(
C
on
su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft)
-J
ul
y
20
21

TR
A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

39

Tudalen100



6 . Decision Making and Delivery

N
P
TC

R
eplacem

entLocalD
evelopm

entP
lan

(R
LD

P
)-D

elivery
A
greem

ent(C
onsultation

D
raft)-July

2021
TR

A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

40

Tudalen101



PART 3 - Monitoring and Review

Tudalen102



7.1 Monitoring and Review

7.1.1 In accordance with the LDP Regulations, the Council will monitor and review
progress against the DA throughout the preparation of the RLDP, in order to ensure that
the aims of the CIS are being met in accordance with the proposed timetable.

7.1.2 Instances in which the DA may need to be reviewed and amended include:

If the process fall significantly behind schedule (more than 3 months);
If any significant changes are required to the CIS;
If there are significant changes in the resources available to the Council;
If new legislation, regulations or guidance should require new procedures or tasks to
be undertaken;
If there are any major changes of circumstance that materially affect the assumptions,
evidence, policies or proposals contained within the emerging RLDP;
If there are further unforeseen restrictions such as additional controls associated with
Covid-19

7.1.3 If the Council identifies the need to review the DA there will be a need to re-consult
with the specific consultation bodies and seek agreement with the WG in accordance with
the LDP Regulations.

7.2 Annual Monitoring Reports

7.2.1 Following adoption of the RLDP, the Council will produce an Annual Monitoring
Report (AMR) in accordance with guidance contained in the Development Plans Manual.
The report will cover the period 1st April to 31st March each year, will be submitted to the
WG by 31st October of the same year and will be made available for public inspection via
the Council's website.

7.2.2 The AMR will assess how effectively the policies and proposals of the Plan are
performing. If a policy is not being implemented the Council will give the reasons for this
and set out the steps it intends to take to secure implementation and any intention to revise
the RLDP, to replace or amend the policy.

7.2.3 The AMR will also report and monitor housing delivery. Including following the
amendments made in March 2020 (including the revocation of TAN1 and the publication
of the Development Plans Manual (Edition 3)), the annual level of housing completions
monitored against the Anticipated Annual Build Rate (AABR) as specified in the adopted
RLDP housing trajectory; the total cumulative completionsmonitored against the anticipated
cumulative completion rate specified in the adopted RLDP housing trajectory; the level of
affordable housing completions monitored against the RLDP's overarching target; and the
tenure of affordable housing completions.

7 . Monitoring and Review

N
P
TC

R
eplacem

entLocalD
evelopm

entP
lan

(R
LD

P
)-D

elivery
A
greem

ent(C
onsultation

D
raft)-July

2021
TR

A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

42

Tudalen103



7.3 Review of the RLDP

7.3.1 Following adoption of the RLDP, the Council intends to undertake a full review of
the RLDP at least once every four years, although the frequency and timing will depend
on findings in the AMR / local circumstances. The review will be undertaken in accordance
with the relevant legislation and guidance.

7 . Monitoring and Review

N
P
TC

R
ep
la
ce
m
en
tL
oc
al
D
ev
el
op
m
en
tP

la
n
(R
LD

P
)-
D
el
iv
er
y
A
gr
ee
m
en
t(
C
on
su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft)
-J
ul
y
20
21

TR
A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

43

Tudalen104



7 . Monitoring and Review

N
P
TC

R
eplacem

entLocalD
evelopm

entP
lan

(R
LD

P
)-D

elivery
A
greem

ent(C
onsultation

D
raft)-July

2021
TR

A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

44

Tudalen105



Appendices

Tudalen106



Appendix A: Neath Port Talbot Replacement Local Development Plan - Timetable

2025202420232022
2021

DNOSAJJMAMFJDNOSAJJMAMFJDNOSAJJMAMFJDNOSAJJMAMFJDNOSAJJMAMFJ
Publish Final LDP Review Report (July 2020)
Key Stage 1: Delivery Agreement (Regs 5-10)
Prepare and Report draft DA to Board
Publication of Draft DA for consultation
Consideration and reporting of representations received
Submission to WG for approval
Publication of approved DA following WG approval
Key Stage 2: Pre-Deposit Preparation and Participation (Reg
14)
Review and develop baseline information and evidence
SA Stage A: Prepare ISA (SEA) Scoping Report
Consultation on the ISA (SEA) Scoping Report
Assessment, consideration and reporting of representations
received on the ISA (SEA) Scoping Report
Publication of ISA (SEA) Scoping Report including SEA
Screening determination
Review and develop Strategic Options, Issues & Objectives
Invitation for submission of Candidate Sites
Publication of Candidate Site Register
Community Feedback on Candidate Sites
Assessment of Candidate Sites
Key Stage 3: Pre-Deposit Consultation (Regs 15, 16, 16A)
Prepare the Preferred Strategy, HRA Screening and ISA (SEA
interim report)
Reporting of the Preferred Strategy, HRA Screening and ISA
(SEA Interim Report)
Consultation on the Preferred Strategy (inc. Strategic Sites),
Interim ISA (SEA) Report and HRA Screening Report
Assessment, consideration and reporting of responses received
on the Preferred Strategy, Interim ISA (SEA) and HRA
Screening Report
Publication of Preferred Strategy, Interim ISA (SEA) and HRA
Screening Report and Initial Consultation Report
Key Stage 4: Deposit Participation /Consultation (Reg 17-21)
Preparation of draft Deposit Plan, ISA (SEA) and HRAReports
Reporting of draft Deposit LDP, ISA (SEA) and HRA Reports
Consultation of draft Deposit LDP, ISA (SEA) and HRA
Assessment and Consideration of the representations received
in respect of the draft Deposit LDP, ISA (SEA) and HRA
Reports
Prepare and Report on the Final Consultation Report
Reporting of representations to the Deposit LDP, ISA (SEA)
and HRA Reports. Approval to Submit to WG
Key Stage 5 : Submission to WG (Reg 22)
Key Stage 6 : Examination including Pre-Hearing Meeting
(Reg 23)
Key Stage 7 : Publication of Inspector's Report (Reg 24)
Key Stage 8 : Adoption (Reg 25, 25A)
Key Stage 9 : Monitoring and Review (Reg 37) (April 2026)

DNOSAJJMAMFJDNOSAJJMAMFJDNOSAJJMAMFJDNOSAJJMAMFJDNOSAJJMAMFJ
20252024202320222021

Appendix A .

N
P
TC

R
eplacem

entLocalD
evelopm

entP
lan

(R
LD

P
)-D

elivery
A
greem

ent(C
onsultation

D
raft)-July

2021
TR

A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

46

T
udalen107



Table B.0.1 Key Stages of the RLDP, Integrated Sustainability Appraisal (ISA) andHabitats Regulations
Assessment (HRA)

HRA StageISA StageLDP StageStage

1 Initial screening Initial screeningReview and Develop
Evidence Base Develop the ISA

Scoping Report
Consultation on the ISA
Scoping Report

2 Assessing Likely
Significant Effects

ISA of Candidate SitesCall for and Assessment
of Candidate Sites

3 ISA assessment of
strategic options and
sites

Preferred
Strategy Preparation of
Vision, Objectives, Strategic
Options & Preferred Strategy

HRA Screening

Preparation of the ISA
Interim ReportPreferred Strategy

Stakeholder Engagement

4 Assessing Likely
Significant Effects

Consultation on ISA
Interim Report

Pre-Deposit (Preferred
Strategy) Consultation

5 Assessing Likely
Significant Effects

Assessment of
emerging RLDP

Deposit RLDP Drafting
and Stakeholder
Engagement

6 Appropriate
Assessment (AA)
Scoping (if required)

Consultation on ISA
Report

Deposit RLDP and
Associated Documents

Appropriate
Assessment (AA) (if
required)

Formal consultation
on AA (if required)

Record AA

7 Submission of HRA
Report with RLDP

Submission of ISA
Report with RLDP

Submission of RLDP to WG

8 Independent Examination in
Public (EIP)

9 Publication of the binding
Inspector’s Report

10 Adoption of the RLDP Preparation of HRA
Statement

Preparation of ISA
StatementPrepare Adoption Statement

Appendix B . Key Stages of the LDP, ISA and HRA

N
P
TC

R
ep
la
ce
m
en
tL
oc
al
D
ev
el
op
m
en
tP

la
n
(R
LD

P
)-
D
el
iv
er
y
A
gr
ee
m
en
t(
C
on
su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft)
-J
ul
y
20
21

TR
A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

47

Tudalen108



HRA StageISA StageLDP StageStage

11 Monitoring the
implementation of the
RLDP against the ISA
Indicators

Monitoring and Review

Appendix B . Key Stages of the LDP, ISA and HRA

N
P
TC

R
eplacem

entLocalD
evelopm

entP
lan

(R
LD

P
)-D

elivery
A
greem

ent(C
onsultation

D
raft)-July

2021
TR

A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

48

Tudalen109



Table C.0.1 Preparation and Submission of DA (Regulation 9)

Feedback /
Reporting
Mechanism

How? Consultation
Mechanism

Who?
Community
Involvement

Timescale
(When?)

PurposeStage in the
Document
Preparation
Process

Any comments
will be
considered

Consult on Draft document
on Website & place in
Deposit Venues

Specific,
General &Other
consultation
Bodies

August -
September
2021

To inform
stakeholders that the
Council is preparing
a RLDP and will seek
community
involvement

Draft DA

and the DA
amended if
necessary

Inform all it is a 6 week
opportunity to consider the
draft DA timetable and CIS
and submit a
representation

Council
Members

Potential Key
Stakeholder
Group (KSG)
Members

To set out the
timetable for LDP
production

To seek the views of
stakeholders and
consultees on the
content of the Draft
DA

Summary of
comments
received will
be presented
to Members

Promotion through Social
Media, Press Release

Correspondence
with Potential Key
Stakeholder Group
Members (22)

Public Service
Board (PSB)

Citizens Panel
To then report
responses and
proposed

LDP Team liaison with PSBGeneral Public

amendments to Engage with adjoining
authorities through e-mail
or officer working parties/
regional forums to establish
collaborative working.

Regeneration &
Sustainable
Development Cabinet
Board/Council for
agreement

Notify Citizen's Panel of
consultationTo then submit DA &

CIS to WG for formal
agreement

Consultation
Report made
available on
the Council’s
website

Correspondencewith these
groups

Virtual
conferences/meetings

Environmental
& Specific
consultation
bodies

August -
September
2021

To enable
environmental
consultation bodies
and relevant
stakeholders to
comment on the
ISA Scoping Report

Consultation
on
ISA Scoping
Report

Face to face meetings
subject to the current
Government Guidelines

Other interested
parties

Copies of
agreed DA
made

Confirm the agreement of
the DA on the Council's
website and make final
document available

Specific
consultation
Bodies

January
2022

To inform
stakeholders of the
content and
availability of the
agreed DA

Publication
of the
agreed DA

available at
DepositGeneral

consultation
bodies as
appropriate

venues and on
the Council’s
website

Inform all of the agreement
with WG through Social
Media, Press Release

22 To be confirmed following consultation

Appendix C . Stages of Plan Preparation & Engagement Methods

N
P
TC

R
ep
la
ce
m
en
tL
oc
al
D
ev
el
op
m
en
tP

la
n
(R
LD

P
)-
D
el
iv
er
y
A
gr
ee
m
en
t(
C
on
su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft)
-J
ul
y
20
21

TR
A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

49

Tudalen110



Feedback /
Reporting
Mechanism

How? Consultation
Mechanism

Who?
Community
Involvement

Timescale
(When?)

PurposeStage in the
Document
Preparation
Process

KSG Correspondence with KSG
Members

General Public
Inform adjoining Authorities
by e-mail/regional forums

Appendix C . Stages of Plan Preparation & Engagement Methods

N
P
TC

R
eplacem

entLocalD
evelopm

entP
lan

(R
LD

P
)-D

elivery
A
greem

ent(C
onsultation

D
raft)-July

2021
TR

A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

50

Tudalen111



Table C.0.2 Pre-deposit Preparation and Participation (Regulation 14)

Feedback /
Reporting
Mechanism

How? Consultation
Mechanism

Who? Community
Involvement

Timescale
(When?)

PurposeStage in the
Document

Preparation
Process

N/APlace a notice on
Council website

Specific, General & Other
Consultation Bodies

January 2022To inform
stakeholders that
formal preparation
of the RLDP has
commenced

Start of Plan
preparation

General Public

Report on
screening
consultation

Correspondence to
seek an opinion on
whether the Plan will

Environmental consultation
bodies(23)

January 2021
- January
2022

To engage with
environmental
consultation
bodies and

Initial screening
for ISA.

Developing ISA
Scoping Report

made
available at
Deposit
venues and

have significant effects
as defined under
schedule 1 of the SEA
Regulations

Other environmental
consulteesrelevant

stakeholders to
develop SA
objectives on the

Council’s
website

Virtual
conferences/meetingsTo inform SEA

screening
determination acknowledge

all comments
Face to face meetings
subject to the current
Government
Guidelines

Tomake public the
SEA screening
determination

send copy of
determination to WG

publish on website and
press of determination
within 14 days

Candidate
Site Register
made

Inform all stakeholders
and members of the
public that have

Members

Specific, General & Other
Consultation Bodies

March 2022 -
May 2022
June 2022

Invite stakeholders
to submit
candidate sites
and produce a
Candidate Sites
Register

Call for
Candidate Sites

Create a
Candidate Site
Register

available on
the Council’s
website

expressed an interest
in participating in the
"call" via e-mailGeneral Public

to inform all
interested parties
and consultation

Publish on website all
relevant material
including the

Citizens Panel

PSBbodies of the
plan's progress to
this stage

Candidate Site
Submission Form and
Candidate Site
Assessment
Methodology

FAQ to answer the
common queries and
areas of confusion

23 NRW & CADW

Appendix C . Stages of Plan Preparation & Engagement Methods

N
P
TC

R
ep
la
ce
m
en
tL
oc
al
D
ev
el
op
m
en
tP

la
n
(R
LD

P
)-
D
el
iv
er
y
A
gr
ee
m
en
t(
C
on
su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft)
-J
ul
y
20
21

TR
A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

51

Tudalen112



Feedback /
Reporting
Mechanism

How? Consultation
Mechanism

Who? Community
Involvement

Timescale
(When?)

PurposeStage in the
Document

Preparation
Process

Inform of the Call for
Candidate Sites
through all social
media outlets

Distribute posters,
leaflets with QR codes
where necessary

Advertise the Call for
Sites using digital
screens.

Advertise the Call for
Sites through a radio
campaign, radio sound
bites

Planning Committee
Pre-briefing RLDP
Member Working
Group

Briefing material sent
to all libraries to
enable library staff to
assist

Brief Local Area
Co-ordinators

Update PSB

Considered
as part of the
Candidate
Sites
Assessment

Operate a virtual
Candidate Sites
Register which allows
comments to be
submitted on-line

General Public

Members

June - August
2022

To invite
comments and
views on submitted
sites.

Community
Feedback on
Candidate Sites

To seek
community buy-in
to the candidate
sites

Run drop surgeries for
members to provide
feedback on
Candidate Sites

Appendix C . Stages of Plan Preparation & Engagement Methods

N
P
TC

R
eplacem

entLocalD
evelopm

entP
lan

(R
LD

P
)-D

elivery
A
greem

ent(C
onsultation

D
raft)-July

2021
TR

A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

52

Tudalen113



Feedback /
Reporting
Mechanism

How? Consultation
Mechanism

Who? Community
Involvement

Timescale
(When?)

PurposeStage in the
Document

Preparation
Process

Prepare
evidence
base topic
papers

Report to
Regeneration
& Sustainable

Consult with all
relevant stakeholders
and consultation
bodies via e-mail

Update Council's
website regularly

Specific consultation Bodies

General consultation bodies
as appropriate

KSG

Spatial Planning Area
based groups

February -
October 2022

To understand the
context, review
and supplement
data

To identify the key
issues the RLDP
should address

To develop a clear
vision for the Plan
area and
objectives for the
RLDP

Identify issues;

Review and
develop
evidence base;

Develop vision
and establish
RLDP
objectives;

Consider
alternative
strategies and
options.

Development
Cabinet
Board –made
available on
the Council’s
website

Notify all who
contributed

Hold virtual
meetings/conferences
in all 8 Spatial
Planning Areas

Engage with PSB

All Member seminars

Planning Committee
Member Briefings
RLDP Member
Working Group

Technical Working Groups

Members

Citizens PanelTo generate viable
options and
assess each one

To develop key
policies

Engage the Citizen's
Panel

Maintain collaborative
working by hold
Technical Working
Group meetings &
attending regional
forums

Report to
Regeneration
& Sustainable

Correspondence with
these groups

KSG

Spatial Planning Area
based groups

June -
November
2022

To agree a
preferred strategy
for the RLDP

Consider the
Draft
Pre-deposit
Plan – i.e. The
draft Vision,

Development
Cabinet

Virtual meetings
To identify areas /
topics for SPG
production

Strategy,
alternatives and
Key
Site Allocations

Board –made
available on
the Council’s
website

Face to face meetings
subject to the
current Government
Guidelines

General consultation bodies

Members
To build
consensus

Planning Committee
Member Briefings
RLDP Member
Working Group

Citizens Panel

Engage Citizen's
Panel

Report on the
assessment
and

Correspondence with
these groups

Environmental consultation
bodies

June -
November
2022

To ensure the
vision, strategic
options and sites
are assessed

ISA and HRA
Screening
assessment of

Appendix C . Stages of Plan Preparation & Engagement Methods

N
P
TC

R
ep
la
ce
m
en
tL
oc
al
D
ev
el
op
m
en
tP

la
n
(R
LD

P
)-
D
el
iv
er
y
A
gr
ee
m
en
t(
C
on
su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft)
-J
ul
y
20
21

TR
A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

53

Tudalen114



Feedback /
Reporting
Mechanism

How? Consultation
Mechanism

Who? Community
Involvement

Timescale
(When?)

PurposeStage in the
Document

Preparation
Process

strategic
options and
sites

Implications
made
available at

Virtual meetings

Face to face meetings
subject to the current
Government
Guidelines

Specific consultation bodies

Other interested Parties

against the
proposed ISA and
HRA Screening
frameworks Deposit

locations and
on the
Council’s
website

Appendix C . Stages of Plan Preparation & Engagement Methods

N
P
TC

R
eplacem

entLocalD
evelopm

entP
lan

(R
LD

P
)-D

elivery
A
greem

ent(C
onsultation

D
raft)-July

2021
TR

A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

54

Tudalen115



Table C.0.3 Pre-deposit Consultation (Regulation 15)

Feedback /
Reporting
Mechanism

How? Consultation
Mechanism

Who?Community
Involvement

Timescale
(When?)

PurposeStage in the
Document

Preparation
Process

Acknowledge duly
made
representations by
letter / email

Inform all stakeholders and
members of the public that
have expressed an interest
in participating via e-mail

General public and
other interested
parties

March -
April 2023

To enable
stakeholders
to respond to
the preferred
strategy and
suggest
modifications

Consultation
on the
Pre-Deposit
Plan
(Preferred
Strategy) Summary of

representations
received together

All information will be placed
on Council's website

Specific & General
Consultation
Bodies

To provide an
opportunity to
identify

with the Council’s
response reported
to Regeneration &

FAQ to answer the common
queries and areas of
confusion

KSG

Members
potential Sustainable
alternative DevelopmentInform all through social

media outlets
Local Area
Co-ordinatorssites that

correspond
Cabinet Board and
made available at

with the
preferred
strategy

Deposit locations
and on the
Council’s website

Use of Pop-up banners with
QR codes to remind people
to go to the website

Citizens Panel

PSB

To build
consensus

Preferred strategy
made available at
Deposit locations
and on the
Council's website.

Distribute posters, leaflets
with QR codes where
necessary

Advertise consultation
utilising digital screens

Spatial Planning
Area Groups

Advertise through a radio
campaign, radio sound bites
to raise awareness

Planning Committee
Pre-briefings RLDPMember
Working Group

All Member Seminar

Hard copies of all comment
forms and relevant
information in Deposit
Venues

Briefing material sent to all
libraries to enable library
staff to assist

Drop-in events where
necessary observing current
Government Guidelines

Brief Local Area
Co-ordinators

Appendix C . Stages of Plan Preparation & Engagement Methods

N
P
TC

R
ep
la
ce
m
en
tL
oc
al
D
ev
el
op
m
en
tP

la
n
(R
LD

P
)-
D
el
iv
er
y
A
gr
ee
m
en
t(
C
on
su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft)
-J
ul
y
20
21

TR
A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

55

Tudalen116



Feedback /
Reporting
Mechanism

How? Consultation
Mechanism

Who?Community
Involvement

Timescale
(When?)

PurposeStage in the
Document

Preparation
Process

Update PSB

Carry out an on-line
stakeholder meeting in each
of the 8 spatial planning
areas

Acknowledge duly
made
representations by
letter / email

Inform all stakeholders and
that have expressed an
interest in participating via
e-mail

Environmental
Consultation
Bodies

Relevant Other
Stakeholders and
Interested parties

March -
April 2023

To
demonstrate
how the
RLDP
complies with
the ISA /
HRA
framework
and SEA
Regulations

Consultation
on ISA
Interim
Report

Summary of
representations
received together
with the Council’s
response reported

All information will be placed
on Council's website

Hard copies of all comment
forms and relevant
information in Deposit
Venues

to Regeneration &
Sustainable
Development
Cabinet Board andCorrespondence to seek an

opinion on whether the Plan
will have significant effects
as defined under schedule
1 of the SEA Regulations

made available at
Deposit locations
and on the
Council’s website

Virtual conferences/meetings

Face to face meetings
subject to the current
Government Guidelines

Appendix C . Stages of Plan Preparation & Engagement Methods

N
P
TC

R
eplacem

entLocalD
evelopm

entP
lan

(R
LD

P
)-D

elivery
A
greem

ent(C
onsultation

D
raft)-July

2021
TR

A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

56

Tudalen117



Table C.0.4 Deposit RLDP and Associated Documents (Regulation 17)

Feedback /
Reporting
Mechanism

How?
Consultation
Mechanism

Who?
Community
Involvement

Timescale
(When?)

PurposeStage in the
Document

Preparation
Process

N/AInvite comment via
e-mail

Technical
Working
Groups

August
2023 -
February
2024

Develop the Deposit
RLDP out of the
preceding stages of
the Plan process

Prepare
Deposit Plan,
ISAReport and
HRA Report Technical Working

Group Virtual
Meetings

Attending Regional
Forums

Specific,
General &
Environmental
Consultation
Bodies

Prepare ISA Report

Prepare HRA Report

RLDP Member
Working Group

Reports
to Regeneration &
Sustainable

Report the Plan to
Cabinet/Council

KSG

Specific,
General &
Environmental

January -
February
2024

To achieve a
consensus on the
content of the Plan

Consider the
Deposit
Plan (including
ISA & HRA
Reports)

Development Cabinet
Board to obtain
Council approval for
Deposit RLDP.

Hold meetings where
necessary to discuss
representations and
any amendments that
they may trigger.

KSG Virtual
Meeting

consultation
bodies as
appropriate

Members

Acknowledge duly
made representations
by letter / email

Inform all
stakeholders and
members of the

General public
and other
interested
parties

March -
April 2024

To enable
stakeholders to make
representations to
the Deposit RLDP

Place RLDP
and associated
documents on
Deposit public that have

expressed anand associated
supporting
documents

(including ISA
& HRA
Reports)

Summary of
representations
received together with

interest in
participating via
e-mail

Specific,
General &
Environmental
Consultation
Bodies

the Council’s
response reported to
Regeneration &All information will

be placed on
Council's website

FAQ to answer the
common queries
and areas of
confusion

Inform all through
social media
outlets

Appendix C . Stages of Plan Preparation & Engagement Methods

N
P
TC

R
ep
la
ce
m
en
tL
oc
al
D
ev
el
op
m
en
tP

la
n
(R
LD

P
)-
D
el
iv
er
y
A
gr
ee
m
en
t(
C
on
su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft)
-J
ul
y
20
21

TR
A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

57

Tudalen118



Feedback /
Reporting
Mechanism

How?
Consultation
Mechanism

Who?
Community
Involvement

Timescale
(When?)

PurposeStage in the
Document

Preparation
Process

Use pop-up
banners with QR
codes to remind
people to go to the
website

Distribute posters,
leaflets with QR
codes where
necessary

Utilise digital
screens

Members

Local Area
Co-ordinators

Citizens Panel

Spatial
Planning Area
Groups

PSB

Sustainable
Development Cabinet
Board and made
available at Deposit
locations and on the
Council’s website

Consider
representations and
make amendments
accordingly

Advertise through
radio campaign &
radio sound bites
to raise awareness

Planning
Committee
Member
Pre -briefings

All Members
Seminar

Hard copies of all
comment forms
and information in
Deposit Venues

Briefing material
sent to all libraries
to enable library
staff to assist

Drop-in events
where necessary
observing current
Government
Guidelines

Brief Local Area
Co-ordinators

Update PSB

Carry out 8 on-line
stakeholder
meetings in each
Spatial
Planning Area

Appendix C . Stages of Plan Preparation & Engagement Methods

N
P
TC

R
eplacem

entLocalD
evelopm

entP
lan

(R
LD

P
)-D

elivery
A
greem

ent(C
onsultation

D
raft)-July

2021
TR

A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

58

Tudalen119



Table C.0.5 Submission of RLDP to the WG and Planning Inspectorate for Examination (Regulation
22)

Feedback /
Reporting
Mechanism

How?
Consultation
Mechanism

Who?
Community
Involvement

Timescale
(When?)

PurposeStage in the Document

Preparation Process

N/AE-mail each
representor

All representors
and any
stakeholders that

October
2024

To inform
stakeholders that
the Council has
submitted its
RLDP to the WG

Submission of RLDP and
Associated documents
including ISA, HRA &
Final Consultation
Reports) to the WG and
Planning Inspectorate for
examination

Publish on
Council's website

Make brief
announcement on
social media
outlets

have requested to
be informed of
RLDP progress

To ensure that
the Plan is sound

Review DA

Table C.0.6 Independent Examination (Regulation 23)

Feedback /
Reporting
Mechanism

How?
Consultation
Mechanism

Who?Community
Involvement

Timescale
(When?)

PurposeStage in the
Document

Preparation

Process

N/AThis will be the
remit of the

All representors /
any stakeholders
that have

November 2024To ensure that
stakeholders are
advised that an

Publication of
Notice of
Independent
Examination

Programme
Officerrequested to be

informed of RLDP
progress

Independent
Examination into the
RLDP will be taking
place.

N/AThis will be the
remit of the

All representors /
any stakeholders
that have

December 2024To allow the
Independent
Planning Inspector to

Pre-examination
meeting

Programme
Officerrequested to be

informed of RLDP
progress

advise on
Examination
procedures and
format

N/AThis will be the
remit of the

All representors
and others at the
invitation of the
Inspector

December 2024
- February 2025

To provide an
impartial planning
view on the
soundness of the

Examination of the
Plan (consideration
of the soundness
of the RLDP and

Programme
Officer

Plan and theall Representations
representations
received in relation to
it

made to the Plan
by Independent
Planning
Inspector)

Appendix C . Stages of Plan Preparation & Engagement Methods

N
P
TC

R
ep
la
ce
m
en
tL
oc
al
D
ev
el
op
m
en
tP

la
n
(R
LD

P
)-
D
el
iv
er
y
A
gr
ee
m
en
t(
C
on
su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft)
-J
ul
y
20
21

TR
A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

59

Tudalen120



Table C.0.7 Publication of the Inspector’s Report (Regulation 24)

Feedback /
Reporting
Mechanism

How? Consultation
Mechanism

Who?
Community
Involvement

Timescale
(When?)

PurposeStage in the
Document

PreparationProcess

N/APlace on Council's
website

All stakeholders /
interested parties

May 2025To inform
stakeholders of
the Inspector’s
decisions

Receipt/ publication
of the binding
Inspector’s Report

E-mail all those
interested parties

Announce on social
media and radio

Table C.0.8 Adoption of the RLDP (Regulation 25)

Feedback /
Reporting
Mechanism

How? Consultation
Mechanism

Who?
Community
Involvement

Timescale
(When?)

PurposeStage in the
Document

Preparation
Process

This will trigger the
need for the first

Publicise on Council's
website

All
stakeholders
/ interested
parties

July 2025To advise
stakeholders
and interested
parties of the
adoption of the
RLDP

Formal adoption
of the RLDP as
The Development
Plan for NPT

AMR some twelve/
possibly 18 months
from adoption

Inform stakeholders and
Examination participants

Announce on social
media and radio

Place a hard copy of
Adopted Plan in Deposit
Venues

Appendix C . Stages of Plan Preparation & Engagement Methods

N
P
TC

R
eplacem

entLocalD
evelopm

entP
lan

(R
LD

P
)-D

elivery
A
greem

ent(C
onsultation

D
raft)-July

2021
TR

A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

60

Tudalen121



Table D.0.1 Risk Management

Mitigation MeasuresProbabilityPotential ImpactsRisk

Monitor emerging legislation /
guidance / data and assess need
for additional resources

MediumAdditional work
required causing
programme slippage

Additional requirements as
a result of new legislation,
regulations, guidance or
data / projections

Consider replacement of staff
resources

Monitor / advertise vacancies

MediumProgramme slippageLoss / change of staff
resources

Ensure sufficient resources are
available with corporate support
of the SDP process and timetable
from the outset.

Medium /
High

Programme slippage.
Resource implications
and extent of input to
the SDP is currently
unknown.

Involvement in preparation
of Strategic Development
Plan (SDP)

Ensure involvement in progress
of regional work

LowProgramme slippageReview of RLDP resulting
from a requirement to align
with a Strategic
Development Plan (SDP) Continued liaison with Welsh

Government

Identify / commission additional
work needed as early as possible

Low /
medium

Programme slippageNeed for additional research
/ consultation

Consider additional resourcesLowProgramme slippagePrinting / translation delays

Realistic timetable prepared with
some flexibility

MediumProgramme slippageTimetable proves too
ambitious due to greater
than anticipated workload

Consider additional resources

Ensure views of Statutory Bodies
are sought / considered as early
as possible

Low /
Medium

RLDP cannot be
submitted for
examination without
significant work

Significant objections from
Statutory Consultation
Bodies

Ensure close liaison and
involvement with stakeholders
early in the process

Low /
Medium

Programme slippageLarge volume and / or highly
significant levels of objection
to proposals e.g. site
allocations

Sufficient funds are allocated in
the RLDP reserve.

Low /
Medium

Programme slippageReduction and lack of
financial resources

Liaise closely with Planning
Inspectorate to ensure early
warning of any potential problems

LowExamination / report
delayed

Planning Inspectorate
unable to meet required
timetable for examination /
reporting

Appendix D . Risk Assessment and Mitigation

N
P
TC

R
ep
la
ce
m
en
tL
oc
al
D
ev
el
op
m
en
tP

la
n
(R
LD

P
)-
D
el
iv
er
y
A
gr
ee
m
en
t(
C
on
su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft)
-J
ul
y
20
21

TR
A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

61

Tudalen122



Mitigation MeasuresProbabilityPotential ImpactsRisk

Ensure RLDP is sound, based on
robust evidence with ISA and well
audited stakeholder / community
involvement

Low /
Medium

RLDP cannot progress
to adoption

LDP fails test of soundness

Ensure documents and website
in accordance with Council
guidance.

Low/
Medium

Council found to be in
breach of Equality Act
2010.

Challenge with regards to
accessibility of documents,
website and apps.

Ensure RLDP complies with
regulations, legislation etc

LowAdopted RLDP is
quashed / additional
work needed

Legal challenge

Ensure that legal team are
consulted at an early stage to
ensure compliance with
regulations and guidance

MediumProgramme slippage/
additional work needed

Delay due to need for legal
opinion from Barrister or QC

Ensure close liaison with WGLowWork on individual
RLDP to-date would be
abortive

Direction from WG Cabinet
Secretary to prepare a Joint
Plan

Monitor progress against DAMediumProgramme slippageDelays caused by Council
decision making structure

Continue to monitor lockdown
and social distancing restrictions
and the potential impact on
engagement and conformity with
LDP Regulations

MediumLimit engagement and
availability of hard
copies of key
documents

Covid-19 Pandemic

Appendix D . Risk Assessment and Mitigation

N
P
TC

R
eplacem

entLocalD
evelopm

entP
lan

(R
LD

P
)-D

elivery
A
greem

ent(C
onsultation

D
raft)-July

2021
TR

A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

62

Tudalen123



Key Stakeholder Group (KSG)

E.1 Membership of the KSG may be subject to change over time as organisations are
continually changing through mergers, re-branding, or disbanding. The KSG will consist
of representatives from each of the following:

Table E.0.1 List of Key Stakeholder Group

Neath Port Talbot Group of CollegesAdjoining Authorities*

Neath Port Talbot HospitalAge Connects (Concern) Neath Port
Talbot

Neath Port Talbot Youth Council
YOVO and Junior YOVO

All Social Housing Providers (operating
in Authority Area) [Tai Tarian, Coastal
Housing, Pobl, Aelwyd, Newydd
Housing Association, Linc Cymru,
Family Housing Association and Tai
Gwalia].

Neighbouring Community Councils*BT Group Plc

Network Rail LtdBT Openreach

Older Persons AllianceBusiness Connect Neath Port Talbot

Royal Commission on the Ancient &
Historical Monuments of Wales

CADW

South Wales PoliceCeltic Leisure

Sport WalesDwr Cymru Welsh Water (DCWW)

Swansea Bay City DealFederation of Small Businesses (FSB)

Swansea Bay University Health BoardGlamorgan/ Gwent Archaeological
Trust

Tata SteelHome Builders Federation (HBF)
Wales

Tonna HospitalJobcentre Plus

Town and Community Councils within
NPT*

Menter Iaith Castell-Nedd Port Talbot

Transport for Wales (TfW)Mid & West Wales Fire Service

Viva Port Talbot (Business
Improvement District for Port Talbot)

Natural Resources Wales (NRW)

Appendix E . Key Stakeholder Group

N
P
TC

R
ep
la
ce
m
en
tL
oc
al
D
ev
el
op
m
en
tP

la
n
(R
LD

P
)-
D
el
iv
er
y
A
gr
ee
m
en
t(
C
on
su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft)
-J
ul
y
20
21

TR
A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

63

Tudalen124



Western PowerNeath Port Talbot Biodiversity Forum

Welsh GovernmentNeath Port Talbot Black Asian and
Minority Ethnic Community Association

Members of Parliament (MPs) and
Members of the Senedd (MSs) for
Neath Port Talbot Constituencies

Neath Port Talbot Council for Voluntary
Services (NPT CVS)

E.2 ADJOINING AUTHORITIES

Brecon Beacons National Park
Bridgend County Borough Council
Carmarthenshire County Council
Powys County Council
Rhondda Cynon Taff County Council
City and County of Swansea Council

E.3 TOWN AND COMMUNITY COUNCILS IN NPT

Blaengwrach Community Council
Blaenhonddan Community Council
Briton Ferry Town Council
Cilybebyll Community Council
Clyne and Melincourt Community Council
Coedffranc Town Council
Crynant Community Council
Cwmllynfell Community Council
Dyffryn Clydach Community Council
Glyneath Town Council
Gwaun Cae Gurwen Community Council
Neath Town Council
Onllwyn Community Council
Pelenna Community Council
Pontardawe Town Council
Resolven Community Council
Seven Sisters Community Council
Tonna Community Council
Ystalyfera Community Council

E.4 NEIGHBOURING COMMUNITY COUNCILS

Betws Community Council
Cefn Cribwr Community Council
Clydach Community Council
Cornelly Town Council

Appendix E . Key Stakeholder Group

N
P
TC

R
eplacem

entLocalD
evelopm

entP
lan

(R
LD

P
)-D

elivery
A
greem

ent(C
onsultation

D
raft)-July

2021
TR

A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

64

Tudalen125



Cwmamman Town Council
Garw Valley Community Council
Llangynwyd Middle Community Council
Maesteg Town Council
Mawr Community Council
Ogmore Valley Community Council
Pyle Community Council
Quarter Bach Community Council
Rhigos Community Council
Ystradfelte Community Council
Ystradgynlais Town Council

Appendix E . Key Stakeholder Group

N
P
TC

R
ep
la
ce
m
en
tL
oc
al
D
ev
el
op
m
en
tP

la
n
(R
LD

P
)-
D
el
iv
er
y
A
gr
ee
m
en
t(
C
on
su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft)
-J
ul
y
20
21

TR
A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

65

Tudalen126



Appendix E . Key Stakeholder Group

N
P
TC

R
eplacem

entLocalD
evelopm

entP
lan

(R
LD

P
)-D

elivery
A
greem

ent(C
onsultation

D
raft)-July

2021
TR

A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

66

Tudalen127



Specific Consultation Bodies (defined in LDP Regulation 2)

F.1 LPAs must consult the following bodies in accordance with the 2004 Act and the
LDP Regulations:

i. TheWelsh Government -In addition to planning, theWelsh Government has responsibility
for a wide range of policy matters including agriculture, economic development, education,
environment, health and social services, historic environment, housing, industry, tourism,
transport andWelsh language. TheWelsh Government’s Planning Division will co-ordinate
consultations within the Welsh Government.

ii. Natural Resources Wales

iii. Network Rail Infrastructure Limited (Western & Wales - Property)

iv. Secretary of State – insofar as the Secretary of State exercises functions previously
exercisable by the Strategic Rail Authority (Railways Act 2005)

v. A relevant authority (i.e. a local planning authority or a community or town council), any
part of whose area is in or adjoins the area of the authority

vi. Any person to whom the electronic communications code applies by virtue of a direction
given under section 106(3) of the Communications Act 2003

vii. Any person who owns or controls electronic apparatus situated in any part of the
authority’s area (where known)

viii. Any of the bodies from the following list which are exercising functions in any part of
the authority’s area:

a. a Local Health Board

b. a person to whom a license has been granted under section 6(1)(b) or (c) of the Electricity
Act 1989

c. a person to whom a license has been granted under section 7(2) of the Gas Act 1986

d. a sewerage undertaker

e. a water undertaker

F.2 UK GOVERNMENT DEPARTMENTS

F.3 An authority should consult UK Government departments where aspects of a plan,
or proposals for its revision or replacement, appear to affect their interests. In particular,
the following should be consulted on the policy areas outlined below:

i. Department for Transport Rail, airport and maritime / port policy

ii. Department of Energy and Climate Change UK energy policy

Appendix F . Specific Consultation Bodies

N
P
TC

R
ep
la
ce
m
en
tL
oc
al
D
ev
el
op
m
en
tP

la
n
(R
LD

P
)-
D
el
iv
er
y
A
gr
ee
m
en
t(
C
on
su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft)
-J
ul
y
20
21

TR
A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

67

Tudalen128



iii. Home Office Civil defence matters; policies for prisons etc

iv. Ministry of Defence Matters likely to affect its land holdings and installations or where
large scale disposals of MOD land may be being considered

F.4 SPECIFIC CONSULTATION BODIES

F.5 This list of consultees will be consulted at all key stages of the plan, by letter or e
mail (depending on the preference) and will be given copies of all relevant documents for
consideration by e mail or post.

Neath Port Talbot Youth Council
YOVO and Junior YOVO

Aelwyd
Betws Community Council
Blaengwrach Community Council

Neath Port Talbot Public Service
Board (NPTPSB)

Blaenhonddan Community Council
Brecon Beacons National Park Authority

Neath Town CouncilBridgend County Borough Council
Network Rail LtdBriton Ferry Town Council
Network Rail Infrastructure Ltd
(Western and Wales) Property

BT Openreach HQ
BT Group Plc

Newydd Housing AssociationCadw
O2Carmarthenshire County Council
Ogmore Valley Community CouncilCefn Cribwr Community Council
Onllwyn Community CouncilCeltic Leisure
Pelenna Community CouncilCentrica Energy
Pobl GroupCilybebyll Community Council
Pontardawe Town CouncilClydach Community Council
Powys County CouncilClyne & Melincourt Community Council
Public Health WalesCoastal Housing
Pyle Community CouncilCoedffranc Community Council
Quarter Bach Community CouncilCornelly Town Council
Resolven Community CouncilCrynant Community Council
Rhigos Community CouncilCwmamman Town Council
Rhondda Cynon Taff County Borough
Council

Cwmllynfell Community Council
Department For Business Energy &
Industrial Strategy (BEIS) Senedd Cymru / Welsh Parliament

Seven Sisters Community CouncilDepartment for Transport
SSE/SWALECDwr Cymru Welsh Water
Swansea Bay University Health BoardDyffryn Clydach Community Council
Swansea CouncilE E
Tai GwaliaEcotricity
Tai TarianEDF Energy
Tawe Uchaf Community CouncilFamily Housing Association
Tesco Mobile LMTGarw Valley Community Council
Tonna Community CouncilGlynneath Town Council
Transport for Wales (TfW)

Appendix F . Specific Consultation Bodies

N
P
TC

R
eplacem

entLocalD
evelopm

entP
lan

(R
LD

P
)-D

elivery
A
greem

ent(C
onsultation

D
raft)-July

2021
TR

A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

68

Tudalen129



Good Energy United Utilities
Utilita EnergyGwaun Cae Gurwen Community

Council Virgin Media
Health and Safety Executive (HSE) Visit Wales
Home Office Vodafone Group plc
Hutchison 3 G UK Ltd Wales & West Utilities Ltd
Linc Cymru Welsh Government
Llangynwyd Lower Community Council Welsh Health Estates
LlangynwydMiddle Community Council Western Power
Maesteg Town Council Ystalyfera Community Council
Mawr Community Council Ystradfellte Community Council
Ministry of Defence (MOD) Ystradgynlais Town Council
National Grid

Natural Resources Wales (NRW)

Appendix F . Specific Consultation Bodies

N
P
TC

R
ep
la
ce
m
en
tL
oc
al
D
ev
el
op
m
en
tP

la
n
(R
LD

P
)-
D
el
iv
er
y
A
gr
ee
m
en
t(
C
on
su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft)
-J
ul
y
20
21

TR
A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

69

Tudalen130



Appendix F . Specific Consultation Bodies

N
P
TC

R
eplacem

entLocalD
evelopm

entP
lan

(R
LD

P
)-D

elivery
A
greem

ent(C
onsultation

D
raft)-July

2021
TR

A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

70

Tudalen131



General Consultation Bodies (defined in LDP Regulation 2)

G.1 The following are the ‘general consultation bodies’ that should be consulted in
accordance with an authority’s DA:

i. Voluntary bodies, some or all of whose activities benefit any part of the authority’s area

ii. Bodies which represent the interests of different racial, ethnic or national groups in the
authority’s area

iii. Bodies which represent the interests of different religious groups in the authority's area

iv. Bodies which represent the interests of disabled persons in the authority’s area

v. Bodies which represent the interests of persons carrying on business in the authority’s
area

vi. Bodies which represent the interests of Welsh culture in the authority’s area

Below is Neath Port Talbot Council's list of General Consultation Bodies:

Neath YMCAAction for Children
Adult Learning Wales New Sandfields, Aberafan and

Afan-Community RegenerationAfan Tawe Nedd Crime Prevention
Panel Neath Port Talbot Biodiversity Forum
Age Connect (Concern) Neath Port
Talbot

Neath Port Talbot Black Asian and
Minority Ethnic Community Association
Older Persons' AllianceAggregates Industries UK Ltd

Business Connect Older Persons' Commissioner for
WalesBusiness in Focus
Planning Aid WalesBusiness Wales
Presbyterian Church of WalesCalan D V S
Princes TrustCanal and Rivers Trust
Private Landlords ForumCanolfan Maerdy
Ramblers AssociationChamber Wales
Royal National Institute of Blind People
(RNIB) Cymru

Children's Commissioner For Wales
Church in Wales

Royal National Institute for Deaf People
(RNID) (Action for Hearing Loss)

Citizens Advice Bureau (NPT)
Coal Authority

Race Council CymruCoalfields Regeneration Trust
Rail Freight GroupCoed Cymru
Renewable UK AssociationCommunity Lives Consortium
Road Haulage AssociationConfederation of British Industry
Royal Commission on the Ancient
& Historical Monuments of Wales

Country Land & Business Association
Ltd (CLACymru)

Royal Voluntary ServiceCampaign for the Protection of Rural
Wales (CPRW)

Appendix G . General and Other Consultation Bodies

N
P
TC

R
ep
la
ce
m
en
tL
oc
al
D
ev
el
op
m
en
tP

la
n
(R
LD

P
)-
D
el
iv
er
y
A
gr
ee
m
en
t(
C
on
su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft)
-J
ul
y
20
21

TR
A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

71

Tudalen132



Residents and Service Users
Volunteering Programme
(RSVP) Wales

Dansa Ltd
Dewis Ltd
Diocese of Menevia

RSPB CymruDisability Wales
Salvation ArmyDOVE Workshops
Senedd Members (MS/AS) for NPT
and the South West Region

Ethnic Youth Support Team Wales
(EYST)

ScopeElim Pentecostal Church
Shelter CymruEthnic Minority Foundation
Showmen's Guild of Great Britain
(Wales)

Farmers' Union of Wales (FUW)
Federation of Master Builders Cymru

South Wales PoliceFederation of Small Business (FSB)
South Wales Police and Crime
Commissioner

Fields in Trust Cymru
Freight Transport Association

South Wales Chamber of TradeFriends, Families and Travellers
South West Wales Economic ForumFuture Generations Commissioner for

Wales Sport Wales
Stonewall CymruGlamorgan/Gwent Archaeological

Trust Swansea Bay City Deal
Swansea Canal SocietyGuide Dogs
Swansea Hebrew CongregationGypsies and Travellers Wales
Swansea UniversityHome Builders Federation (HBF)

Wales Tata Steel
The Gypsy CouncilJobcentre Plus
The British Ports AssociationKeep Wales Tidy
The Baptist Church and Community
Churches

Local Access Forum (LAF)
Members of Parliament (MPs) for
Neath Port Talbot The Catholic Church in England and

WalesMenter Iaith Castell-Nedd Port Talbot
The Pontardawe Senior Citizen's
Welfare Association

Mid & West Wales Fire & Rescue
Service

Thrive Women's AidMineral Products Association
Travellers Law Reform ProjectMuslim Council of Wales
University of Wales Trinity St David
(Swansea Metropolitan University)

National Farmers' Union (NFU) Cymru
National Federation of Gypsy Liaison
Groups Viva Port Talbot (The Business

Improvement District in Port Talbot)National Youth Agency
Wales Council For Deaf PeopleNeath and District Trades Council
Wales Council of the BlindNeath & District Young Farmers Clubs

(YFC) Welsh Language Commissioner
Welsh Local Government Association
(WLGA)

Neath Port Talbot Community
Transport

Welsh Women's AidNeath Port Talbot Council for Voluntary
Service (NPTCVS) West Wales Exporters' Association

Appendix G . General and Other Consultation Bodies

N
P
TC

R
eplacem

entLocalD
evelopm

entP
lan

(R
LD

P
)-D

elivery
A
greem

ent(C
onsultation

D
raft)-July

2021
TR

A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

72

Tudalen133



WorkwaysNeath Port Talbot Group of Colleges
Neath Port Talbot Methodist Circuit Young Enterprise (South & MidWales)

Young WalesNeath Port Talbot Mind Association
Neath Port Talbot Youth Council -
YOVO and YOVO Junior

Youth Access
Youth Cymru

Neath and Tennant Canals Trust Ystalyfera Development Trust

OTHER CONSULTATION BODIES

G.2 Other Consultation Bodies (defined in LDP Regulation 2)

G.3 An authority should also consider the need to consult, where appropriate, with the
following agencies and organisations, in accordance with its DA:

Airport Operators
British Geological Survey
Centre for Ecology and Hydrology
Civil Aviation Authority
Commission for Racial Equality
Country Land and Business Association
Crown Estate Office
Design Commission for Wales
Disability Rights Commission
Equality and Human Rights Commission
One Voice Wales
Police Architectural Liaison Officers
Professional Bodies not specifically listed
Quarry Products Association Wales
Wales Environment Link
Welsh Environmental Services Association (representing waste industry)
Bus Service Operators

G.4 Below is Neath Port Talbot Council's list of Other Consultation Bodies:

British Geological Survey
Cardiff International Airport Ltd
Centre for Ecology and Hydrology
Civil Aviation Authority
Design Commission for Wales
Disability Rights Commission
DJ Thomas Coaches
Equality and Human Rights Commission Wales
First Buses Ltd
First Group
General Aviation Awareness Council

Appendix G . General and Other Consultation Bodies

N
P
TC

R
ep
la
ce
m
en
tL
oc
al
D
ev
el
op
m
en
tP

la
n
(R
LD

P
)-
D
el
iv
er
y
A
gr
ee
m
en
t(
C
on
su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft)
-J
ul
y
20
21

TR
A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

73

Tudalen134



National Express
One Voice Wales
Quarry Products Association Wales
Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors Wales (RICS)
Royal Town Planning Institute Wales (RTPI)
Secure by Design, South Wales Police
South Wales Transport
Stagecoach Wales
The Crown Estate
Wales Environment Link
Welsh Environmental Services Association Ltd

Appendix G . General and Other Consultation Bodies

N
P
TC

R
eplacem

entLocalD
evelopm

entP
lan

(R
LD

P
)-D

elivery
A
greem

ent(C
onsultation

D
raft)-July

2021
TR

A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

74

Tudalen135



Community Profile

H.1 The Development Plans Manual indicates that the Council should profile the
community in order to identify the most appropriate range of interests to be involved in the
RLDP preparation process. The bullet points below provide a summary of the main relevant
characteristics of the County Borough's population. Full details and findings are summarised
below.

The most recent County Borough has aworking age population of 86,300, of whom
6,600 are students. This is the third highest rate of all authorities in Wales (Cardiff
9.8%, Ceredigion 9.5%, NPT 7.6%). (ONS Population Estimates (2019))
The age profile of NPT is in line with the average for Wales:

Aged 0-15: 17.5% compared to an average of 17.9% in Wales;
Aged 16-64: 61.5% compared to an average of 61.1% in Wales; and
Aged 65 and over: 20.9% compared to an average of 21.0% in Wales. (ONS
Population Estimates (2019))

Lower proportions than theWelsh average in NPT able to speakWelsh, readWelsh,
write Welsh and understand spoken Welsh:

Speak Welsh: 22.5% compared to an average of 29.1% in Wales;
Read Welsh: 20.8% compared to an average of 26.0% in Wales;
Write Welsh: 18.3% compared to an average of 23.8% in Wales; and
Understand spoken Welsh: 27.2% compared to an average of 33.4% in Wales.
(ONS Population Estimates (2019))

With regards to sexual orientation, a greater proportion of residents than the average
for Wales, in NPT identify as heterosexual (98.0% compared to 97.4%); gay or lesbian
(1.0% compared to 0.7%); other (0.5% compared to 0.2%); and the same proportion
identifying as bisexual (0.5%). (ONS Annual Population Survey (2017))
NPT is less ethnically diverse than the average for Wales. NPT has:

A greater proportion of white residents (98.1% compared to 95.6%);
Fewer residents with mixed/ multiple ethnic groups (0.7% compared to 1.0%);
Fewer Asian/ Asian British residents (1.0% compared to 2.3%);
Fewer Black/ African/ Caribbean/ Black British residents (0.2% compared to
0.6%); and
Fewer residents with other ethnicity (0.1% compared to 0.5%). (ONS Census
(2011))

NPT has a greater proportion of residents with poorer health and
greater disability than the Welsh average:

Fewer residents report 'very good or good health' (73.7% compared to 78.1%);
A greater proportion report 'bad or very bad health' (10.3% compared to 7.5%);
and
A greater proportion have their day-to-day activities 'limited a lot' (15.7% compared
to 11.5%) and 'limited a little' (11.8% compared to 10.8%). (ONS Census (2011))

Appendix H . Community Profile

N
P
TC

R
ep
la
ce
m
en
tL
oc
al
D
ev
el
op
m
en
tP

la
n
(R
LD

P
)-
D
el
iv
er
y
A
gr
ee
m
en
t(
C
on
su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft)
-J
ul
y
20
21

TR
A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

75

Tudalen136



A greater proportion of residents in NPT are providing unpaid care than the average
for Wales (14.6% compared to 12.1%) and a significantly greater proportion (41.2%)
are providing more than 50 hours unpaid care a week. (ONS Census (2011))
In terms of economic activity, compared to the working age resident average for
Wales:

NPT has a lower proportion who are economically active (71.2% compared to
75.7%);
Similar proportions are unemployed (3.8% compared to 3.7%);
A lower proportion are long-term sick economically inactive (23.5% compared to
28.3%);
A similar proportion of economically inactive working age residents are students
(26.5%); and
A greater proportion are economically inactive and looking after family/ home
(18.0% compared to 15.2%). (ONS Annual Population Survey (2020))

NPT has a greater proportion of small and medium sized enterprises than the
Welsh average (10.3% compared to 8.9% and 2.0% compared to 1.4% respectively).
(ONS Inter Departmental Business Register (2020))
In terms of income and poverty:

NPT full-time equivalent gross weekly earnings is less than the average for Wales
(£534 compared to £542).

The Welsh Index of Multiple Deprivation (WIMD) identifies a deep rooted area
of deprivation around the village of Croserw in the Afan Valley (LSOA 'Cymmer
2') and more generally shows high proportions of Lower Super Output Areas
(LSOAs) within deprivation. (ONS Annual Population Survey (2020)

NPT has lower rates per 10,000 households of homeless households. (Welsh
Government (2020))

The most recent Census data identifies 47 Gypsy and Traveller households within
NPT, out of a total of 1,004 in Wales (ONS Census (2011)).

Population

Table 1: Population

WalesNeath Port Talbot

3,152,900143,300Total Population

50.7%50.7%Female

49.3%49.3%Male

2,073,51144,200Area (ha)

Appendix H . Community Profile

N
P
TC

R
eplacem

entLocalD
evelopm

entP
lan

(R
LD

P
)-D

elivery
A
greem

ent(C
onsultation

D
raft)-July

2021
TR

A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

76

Tudalen137



1.53.2Density (persons per ha)

Source: ONS Population Estimates (2019)

Age Structure

Table 2: Age

WalesNeath Port TalbotAge

17.9%17.5%0 - 15

61.1%61.5%16-64

21.0%20.9%65 and over

Appendix H . Community Profile

N
P
TC

R
ep
la
ce
m
en
tL
oc
al
D
ev
el
op
m
en
tP

la
n
(R
LD

P
)-
D
el
iv
er
y
A
gr
ee
m
en
t(
C
on
su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft)
-J
ul
y
20
21

TR
A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

77

Tudalen138



Welsh Language

Table 3: Welsh Language

WalesNeath Port Talbot

26.0%20.8%Percentage of population able to
read Welsh

23.8%18.3%Percentage of population able to
write Welsh

33.4%27.2%Percentage of population able to
understand spoken Welsh

29.1%22.5%Percentage of population who
speak Welsh

16.3%11.1%Of whom:
Speak Welsh daily

5.0%4.1%Speak Welsh Weekly
Speak Welsh less often

6.2%6.0%Speak Welsh never

1.6%1.3%

Source: ONS Annual Population Survey (2020)

Appendix H . Community Profile

N
P
TC

R
eplacem

entLocalD
evelopm

entP
lan

(R
LD

P
)-D

elivery
A
greem

ent(C
onsultation

D
raft)-July

2021
TR

A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

78

Tudalen139



Ethnicity

Table 4: Ethnicity

WalesNeath Port TalbotEthnicity

95.6%98.1%White

1.0%0.7%Mixed / Multiple Ethnic
Groups

2.3%1.0%Asian / Asian British

0.6%0.2%Black / African / Caribbean /
Black British

0.5%0.1%Other Ethnic Group

Appendix H . Community Profile

N
P
TC

R
ep
la
ce
m
en
tL
oc
al
D
ev
el
op
m
en
tP

la
n
(R
LD

P
)-
D
el
iv
er
y
A
gr
ee
m
en
t(
C
on
su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft)
-J
ul
y
20
21

TR
A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

79

Tudalen140



Sexual Identity

Table 5: Sexual Identity

WalesNeath Port TalbotSexual Identity

97.4%98.0%Heterosexual

0.7%1.0%Gay or Lesbian

0.5%0.5%Bisexual

0.2%0.5%Other

1.2%3.1%Don't know / refuse

Appendix H . Community Profile

N
P
TC

R
eplacem

entLocalD
evelopm

entP
lan

(R
LD

P
)-D

elivery
A
greem

ent(C
onsultation

D
raft)-July

2021
TR

A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

80

Tudalen141



Health

Table 6: Health

WalesNeath Port TalbotHealth

78.1%73.7%Very good or good health

14.5%16.0%Fair health

7.5%10.3%Bad or very bad health

Appendix H . Community Profile

N
P
TC

R
ep
la
ce
m
en
tL
oc
al
D
ev
el
op
m
en
tP

la
n
(R
LD

P
)-
D
el
iv
er
y
A
gr
ee
m
en
t(
C
on
su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft)
-J
ul
y
20
21

TR
A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

81

Tudalen142



Disability

Table 7: Disability

WalesNeath Port TalbotDisability

11.5%15.7%Day-to-day activities limited
a lot

10.8%11.8%Day-to-day activities limited
a little

77.7%72.6%Day-to-day activities not
limited

Appendix H . Community Profile

N
P
TC

R
eplacem

entLocalD
evelopm

entP
lan

(R
LD

P
)-D

elivery
A
greem

ent(C
onsultation

D
raft)-July

2021
TR

A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

82

Tudalen143



Unpaid Care

Table 8: Unpaid Care

WalesNeath Port TalbotUnpaid Care

87.9%85.4%Provides no unpaid care

6.9%7.4%Provides 1 to 19 hours of
unpaid care a week

1.8%2.3%Provides 20 to 49 hours of
unpaid care a week

3.4%4.8%Provides 50 or more hours of
unpaid care a week

Appendix H . Community Profile

N
P
TC

R
ep
la
ce
m
en
tL
oc
al
D
ev
el
op
m
en
tP

la
n
(R
LD

P
)-
D
el
iv
er
y
A
gr
ee
m
en
t(
C
on
su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft)
-J
ul
y
20
21

TR
A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

83

Tudalen144



Household Characteristics

Table 9: Household Characteristics

WalesNeath Port TalbotHousehold Characteristics

46.1%46.8%Married or in a registered
same-sex civil partnership

11.6%11.2%Cohabiting

42.3%42.0%Single Person

Appendix H . Community Profile

N
P
TC

R
eplacem

entLocalD
evelopm

entP
lan

(R
LD

P
)-D

elivery
A
greem

ent(C
onsultation

D
raft)-July

2021
TR

A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

84

Tudalen145



Lone Parent Households

Table 10: Lone Parent Households

WalesNeath Port TalbotLone Parent Household

11.4%12.2%Percentage of lone parent
households

66.3%62.5%
Percentage of lone parent
households with dependent
children

33.7%37.5%
Percentage of lone parent
households with
non-dependent children

Appendix H . Community Profile

N
P
TC

R
ep
la
ce
m
en
tL
oc
al
D
ev
el
op
m
en
tP

la
n
(R
LD

P
)-
D
el
iv
er
y
A
gr
ee
m
en
t(
C
on
su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft)
-J
ul
y
20
21

TR
A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

85

Tudalen146



Economic Activity

Table 11: Economic Activity (Working Age Population)

WalesNeath Port Talbot

All People

75.7%71.2%Economically Active

72.8%69.7%In Employment

63.0%63.8%Employees

9.9%5.0%Self-Employed

3.7%3.8%Unemployed

Males

78.1%71.7%Economically Active

75.0%69.6%In Employment

62.1%62.3%Employees

12.4%6.6%Self-Employed

3.8%No dataUnemployed

Females

73.4%70.8%Economically Active

70.7%69.8%In Employment

63.9%65.3%Employees

6.2%3.5%Self-Employed

3.6%No dataUnemployed

Appendix H . Community Profile

N
P
TC

R
eplacem

entLocalD
evelopm

entP
lan

(R
LD

P
)-D

elivery
A
greem

ent(C
onsultation

D
raft)-July

2021
TR

A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

86

Tudalen147



Appendix H . Community Profile

N
P
TC

R
ep
la
ce
m
en
tL
oc
al
D
ev
el
op
m
en
tP

la
n
(R
LD

P
)-
D
el
iv
er
y
A
gr
ee
m
en
t(
C
on
su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft)
-J
ul
y
20
21

TR
A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

87

Tudalen148



Economic Inactivity

Table 12: Economic Inactivity (Working Age Population)

WalesNeath Port Talbot

24.3%28.8%All

26.5%26.5%Student

15.2%18.0%Looking after family / home

2.2%No dataTemporary sick

28.3%23.5%Long-term sick

0.7%No dataDiscouraged

14.0%14.6%Retired

13.1%14.9%Other

21.6%21.2%Wants a job

78.4%78.8%Does not want a job

Appendix H . Community Profile

N
P
TC

R
eplacem

entLocalD
evelopm

entP
lan

(R
LD

P
)-D

elivery
A
greem

ent(C
onsultation

D
raft)-July

2021
TR

A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

88

Tudalen149



Earnings by Place of Residence

Table 13: Earnings by Place of Residence

WalesNeath Port TalbotGross Weekly Pay

£541.7£534.4Full-Time Workers

£562.4£563.3Male Full-Time Workers

£515.4£481.5Female Full-Time Workers

Appendix H . Community Profile

N
P
TC

R
ep
la
ce
m
en
tL
oc
al
D
ev
el
op
m
en
tP

la
n
(R
LD

P
)-
D
el
iv
er
y
A
gr
ee
m
en
t(
C
on
su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft)
-J
ul
y
20
21

TR
A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

89

Tudalen150



Poverty Levels and Distribution

The Welsh Index of Multiple Deprivation (WIMD) (2019) shows that NPT has:

The fifth highest proportion of Lower Super Output Areas (LSOAs) within the 10%
most deprived in Wales (15.0%);
The third highest within the most deprived 20% (33.0%);
The third highest within the most deprived 30% (45.0%); and
The fourth highest within the most deprived 50% (69.0%).

The WIMD in particular, identifies a deep-rooted area of deprivation around the village of
Croeserw in the Afan Valley (LSOA 'Cymmer 2').

Appendix H . Community Profile

N
P
TC

R
eplacem

entLocalD
evelopm

entP
lan

(R
LD

P
)-D

elivery
A
greem

ent(C
onsultation

D
raft)-July

2021
TR

A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

90

Tudalen151



Figure 12: Areas of Deep-Rooted Deprivation in South Wales

Source: Welsh Government WIMD Results Report (2019)

Table 14: Fuel Poverty

WalesNeath Port TalbotFuel Poverty

12.0%11.0%Percentage of households
living in fuel poverty

Appendix H . Community Profile

N
P
TC

R
ep
la
ce
m
en
tL
oc
al
D
ev
el
op
m
en
tP

la
n
(R
LD

P
)-
D
el
iv
er
y
A
gr
ee
m
en
t(
C
on
su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft)
-J
ul
y
20
21

TR
A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

91

Tudalen152



Table 15: Homelessness

WalesNeath Port TalbotHomelessness

91.288.0

Households assessed as
homeless and owed duty to
secure (Section 73)

Rate per 10,000 households

37.431.9

Households successfully
relieved from homelessness
(Section 73)

Rates per 10,000 households

22.516.6

Households unintentionally
homeless and in priority need
(Section 75)

Rates per 10,000 households

17.615.6

Households positively
discharged from
homelessness (Section 75)

Rates per 10,000 households

Appendix H . Community Profile

N
P
TC

R
eplacem

entLocalD
evelopm

entP
lan

(R
LD

P
)-D

elivery
A
greem

ent(C
onsultation

D
raft)-July

2021
TR

A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

92

Tudalen153



Estimated Number of Rough Sleepers

Table 16: Rough Sleepers

WalesNeath Port TalbotRough Sleepers

40512Estimated number of rough
sleepers

Appendix H . Community Profile

N
P
TC

R
ep
la
ce
m
en
tL
oc
al
D
ev
el
op
m
en
tP

la
n
(R
LD

P
)-
D
el
iv
er
y
A
gr
ee
m
en
t(
C
on
su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft)
-J
ul
y
20
21

TR
A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

93

Tudalen154



H.2 Gypsy and Traveller Population and Accommodation

Table 17: Gypsy and Traveller Population and Accommodation

WalesNeath Port TalbotGypsy and Traveller Population
and Accommodation

1,00447

Number of Gypsy and Traveller
Households

(Source: ONS Census (2011))

40565

Total number of pitches

(Source: Welsh Government
(2020))

1,092101

Total number of caravans

(Source: Welsh Government
(2020))

1023

Number of authorised sites

(Source: Welsh Government
(2020))

340

Number of unauthorised sites

(Source: Welsh Government
(2020))

Appendix H . Community Profile

N
P
TC

R
eplacem

entLocalD
evelopm

entP
lan

(R
LD

P
)-D

elivery
A
greem

ent(C
onsultation

D
raft)-July

2021
TR

A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

94

Tudalen155



I.1 The Development Plans Manual (Paragraph 3.21) suggests that when preparing a
CIS for a RLDP, consideration should be given to lessons learnt from the previous CIS.

I.2 The CIS for the first (current) NPT LDP was agreed as part of the DA for that plan
in September 2008 and amended in May 2011 and July 2013.

I.3 A wide range of methods were used to engage with stakeholders and the public,
many of which were successful, as shown by the amount of correspondence and number
of representations received during the plan preparation process. However, there were
some specific approaches that did not have the anticipated results, or that were not
considered to be time or resource efficient. These are indicated below:

In the early stages of the plan preparation process, the Authority's community magazine
was used for publicity purposes. However, the magazine ceased publication as a
result of financial pressures and this method of engagement is no longer available.
The RLDP process will instead be promoted through:

'In the Loop' which is an online magazine produced by the Council which is sent
to all Council employees (approximately 4,500 staff) monthly informing them
amongst other things, current consultations and how to get involved. Many Council
employees reside in NPT and all others have a stake in what happens.
NPT News which is an on-line monthly newsletter with approximately 2,000
subscribers.
The Sway which is a weekly news bulletin (approximately 4,500 readers).
A Social media Campaign (see below for further details)
Posters and LCD Screen notices (see below for further details)

As an alternative, the Authority sought to get information to every residence and
business by posting out leaflets on three occasions at significant stages of the plan
preparation process. However, feedback suggests that since the leaflets were delivered
with other bulk mail deliveries, they tended to be discarded without being read. It is
therefore not proposed to repeat this approach. Instead, promotion will be focussed
around a targeted social media campaign and posters/LCD Screen Notices in key
local community services and facilities such as Libraries, GP surgeries, Hospitals,
Council Offices, Leisure Centres, Bus Stops, Transport Hubs and Community Notice
Boards. Local Elected Members, Town and Community Council's and Local Area
Co-ordinators will also be used to help distribute posters and communicate their
message.
Previously, printed copies of all documents were made available at all the public
libraries across the county borough. However, this appeared to generate little interest
or response and took significant resources to implement. There are also concerns
that following the Covid-19 Pandemic, the public may be more reluctant to handle
communal / publicly accessible hard copy documents. It is now proposed to place
printed copies in the deposit venues only, in accordance with the LDP Regulations(24).

24 Town and Country Planning (Local Development Plan)(Wales) Regulations 2005 (as amended)

Appendix I . Previous Community Involvement Scheme Review

N
P
TC

R
ep
la
ce
m
en
tL
oc
al
D
ev
el
op
m
en
tP

la
n
(R
LD

P
)-
D
el
iv
er
y
A
gr
ee
m
en
t(
C
on
su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft)
-J
ul
y
20
21

TR
A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

95

Tudalen156



However, in absence of hard copy documents, guidance notes explaining how to view
the RLDP documentation online will be provided to the Libraries.
As part of the Candidate Sites consultation process, site notices were posted to
publicise submitted sites. While this often generated significant local interest and
awareness, it proved to be a source of confusion and conflict, as the notices were
often taken to be publicising planning applications or approved developments, rather
than plan suggestions. Again, this process was expensive in terms of resources, was
not considered to be beneficial overall and it is not proposed to continue this approach.
Information regarding candidate sites submitted will be made available on the Council's
website (find your nearest and RLDP pages) and at deposit venues once the CSR has
been published. Local Members will be the champion for their electoral ward/
constituents. Feedback can be provided on the Candidate Sites as part of the Preferred
Strategy consultation.

I.4 In addition to the above considerations, the Covid-19 pandemic has impacted upon
engagement and consultation processes resulting in a greater focus on virtual engagement,
particularly where social distancing can not be facilitated in consultation exercises. As a
result, engagement and consultation during the preparation of this plan will increasingly
be facilitated through the use of social media, on-line surveys and forms, and virtual
meeting platforms. Those that are digitally excluded will be engaged through documentation
viewing opportunities by appointment at the 3 deposit venues, posters at key local
community services and facilities, and Libraries will be supplied with guidance notes on
how to assist people to view documents on-line using the computer facilities they contain.
Current Government Covid guidelines will be adhered to for all consultation and
engagement activities undertaken. Further guidance is available
here: https://gov.wales/protect-yourself-others-coronavirus.

I.5 There have also been a number of changes in the legislation and guidance relating
to the preparation of LDPs, including the issuing of amended LDPRegulations in 2015(25),
the Planning (Wales) Act 2015(26) and the revised Development Plans Manual in 2020 (27).
The consultation and engagement processes will need to be in accordance with the
requirements of the changes in legislation and guidance. The Planning (Wales) Act 2015
introduced two new tiers of national and regional planning (National Development
Framework and Strategic Development Plan. Future Wales (the National Development
Framework) was published in 2021. Section 7(1) of the Planning (Wales) Act 2015
requires an LDP to be in general conformity with the National Development Framework
and Strategic Development Plan.

I.6 In respect of other new legislation, the WBFGA (2015) and the subsequent NPT
Well-being Plan are of significant importance. The Act in particular requires local authorities
to undertake their functions in collaboration with others including other public bodies and
to involve the community and interested parties in decision making. The CIS will need to
embody these ways of working in order to ensure that the sustainable development principle
is fully implemented.

25 The Town and Country Planning (Local Development Plan)(Wales)(Amendment) Regulations 2015
26 Planning (Wales) Act 2015
27 Development Plans Manual

Appendix I . Previous Community Involvement Scheme Review

N
P
TC

R
eplacem

entLocalD
evelopm

entP
lan

(R
LD

P
)-D

elivery
A
greem

ent(C
onsultation

D
raft)-July

2021
TR

A
C
K
C
H
A
N
G
E
S

96

Tudalen157

https://gov.wales/protect-yourself-others-coronavirus
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/anaw/2015/4/contents/enacted
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2020-03/development-plans-manual-edition-3-march-2020.pdf


 

 

APPENDIX 3 – Responses & Recommendations to the ISA Scoping Report 
Representations 
 

SEA 
Consultation 
Body 

Representations Officer Response & Recommendation 

 
Natural 
Resources 
Wales 

Request for more detailed reference to the South 
West Wales Area Statement. 

Requests for other baseline and policy updates in 
later ISA reporting including Wales, Environmental 
Information Portal, State of Natural Resources 
(SoNaRR 2020), Covid Reconstruction: Challenges 
and Priorities and other emerging plans and 
programmes.  

Noted and welcomed. The South West Wales Area 
Statement (SWWAS) sets out the work done to date 
in the region to create a shared vision for the 
management of natural resources. It identifies key 
risks, opportunities and priorities for natural 
resources in the region and identifies four themes of 
relevance to the ISA, particularly that of reducing 
health inequalities (as noted by NRW). The SWWAS 
identifies key environmental designations and wider 
environmental considerations (alongside the other 
resources named by NRW) which will be taken 
account of in subsequent ISA assessment and 
related reporting.  The ISA Scoping report has been 
amended to more clearly reference the South West 
Wales Area Statement. 

With regard to considering both Climate and Nature 
Emergencies and how these will impact NPT and 
across Wales; NRW welcomes references to climate 
emergency in ISA Scoping Report but notes Welsh 
Governments declaration of nature emergency in 
June 2021.  

States that the nature emergency and climate 
emergency should be given equal prominence in the 
ISA.  

Nature emergency added to key sustainability issues 
outlined in ISA Scoping Report. This will ensure 
coverage of nature emergency in future ISA 
reporting.  

Key Sustainability Issues: 

Biodiversity, Flora & Fauna: Welcomes the 

coverage of key sustainability issues for biodiversity, 
flora and fauna in the ISA Scoping Report and 
requests reference here to the importance of 
safeguarding ‘resilient ecological networks’ (RENs). 
Both WG’s Natural Resources Policy and the Nature 
Recovery Action Plan (Welsh Government, 2020) 
state the need to proactively develop Resilient 
Ecological Networks to maintain and enhance the 
wider resilience of Wales’ ecosystems. 

Human Health: Encourage cross reference of SW 
Area Statement in relation to human health and its 
theme ‘Reducing Health Inequalities’. 

Soils: Welcome the reference to the need for the 

protection, enhancement and restoration of 
important soil resources and would encourage 
cross-referencing with the SW Area Statement in 
relation to the ‘Ensuring Sustainable Land 
Management theme’. 

Key sustainability issue suggestions noted and 
added to key sustainability issues in ISA Scoping 
Report. The emerging RLDP should consider all 
opportunities to maximise the sustainability 
outcomes of Neath Port Talbot within and beyond the 
plan period.  

The ISA Framework has been updated in the ISA 
Scoping Report with the recommended wording 
changes. In addition to these changes, future ISA 
reporting will take account of the key sustainability 
issues identified by NRW.  

  

Tudalen158



 

 

Water: Encourage the RLDP to consider 

opportunities for integrated water catchment 
management  and ensure protection and 
improvement of the water environment, as set out in 
the Swansea Bay ‘Opportunity Catchment Areas’ as 
described within the third cycle River Basin 
Management Plans (RBMP) (2021-27).  

Air: Recognition of the current air quality issues in 

Wales, declared by Public Health Wales as an 
urgent public health crisis, particularly ammonia.  

Climatic Factors: Welcomes the reference to the 

need for climate mitigation and adaptation and would 
encourage cross referencing with the SW Area 
Statement in relation to the ‘Mitigating and Adapting 
to a Changing Climate’ theme. Repeats declaration 
of nature emergency to be given equal prominence 
in this section. Coastal erosion should also be 
considered in the context of Shoreline Management 
Plans (SMPs) 

Material Assets: Suggestion of use of DISRUPT 

framework to identify opportunities for action as set 
out in SoNaRR (2020). 

Landscape:  Welcome and agree with the following 

concern relating to landscape, townscape and 
historic character: 

‘a small number of developments have been 
permitted contrary to LDP policy on landscape and 
green wedges, giving concern regarding meeting the 
Sustainability Appraisal objective to protect and 
enhance the area’s landscape and townscape’. 

Requests the extension of the written need to 
‘protect and enhance landscape character, 
townscape character, key views and visual amenity’ 
to specify that this includes the part of NPTC within 
Brecon Beacons National Park.  

Biodiversity & Geodiversity refers to Green 
Infrastructure and human-environmental relations 
and to soils. No reference is made to landscape, 
which combines the natural and the cultural aspects 
of the countryside. We advise that these links should 
be made. 

Re Landscape, Townscape & Historic Character by 
contrast does refer to SMNR and implications for 
inter-linked aspects, including opportunities species 
and habitat connectivity, which should be considered 
at a landscape scale. Registered Historic 
Landscapes should also be included. We suggest 
substituting ‘built’ for ‘architectural’ resources as this 
includes built structures such as bridges, stone wall 
boundaries as well as buildings. 

NRW agree that Placemaking should be referred to 
in this context, with new criteria focused on 
protection and maintaining distinctiveness. This 
applies strongly to landscape. 

Tudalen159



 

 

Pollution (Air Quality, Noise & Light) links to 
landscape through tranquillity and light pollution 
issues. Tranquillity is referred to in the new Draft 
Noise TAN 11 which was published for consultation 
in February 2020. Health and Wellbeing similarly 
promotes a holistic approach and links to landscape 
and green infrastructure. The NPTC Wellbeing Plan 
Objective 5 focuses on Green Infrastructure. 

Scope of ISA: Risk of considering ISA topics in 
isolation. Consideration of multiple impact 
assessments in one place should allow the exercise 
to identify common negative effects and where the 
RLDP could help lead to common positive measures 
with multiple benefits. 

Request for the links between ISA topics to be made 
more clearly to help the ISA meet its objectives and 
set the scene for next steps in the RLDP. 

The ISA Scoping Report defined a clear two-stage 
methodology which will be adopted to undertake 
SA/SEA, health and equalities assessments in 
tandem. The Framework will be applied as the main, 
base-level, assessment considering all likely effects 
on a thematic basis to provide a holistic assessment 
of the sustainability implications of the emerging 
RLDP. This will avoid individual topics being 
considered in isolation. The second level of 
assessment will then comprise reporting against the 
specific requirements of applicable duties and 
requirements, drawing upon the findings of the ISA 
Framework assessment.  

Recommendation that ISA (specifically the SA/SEA 
element) should be a live document to account for 
both changing baseline information and other 
emerging plans and programmes throughout the 
lifetime of the RLDP.  

Baseline and policy information used to inform the 
ISA will be kept under review throughout the entirety 
of LDP review.  

A series of supplementary guide question 
recommendations were provided under the following 
headings: 

Health & Wellbeing 

Supplementary sustainability indicators could 
include: 

• Urban communities that feature a network of high 
quality, well-connected green infrastructure. 

• Communities that are well connected by green 
active travel routes with easily accessible 
recreational green space. 

• Communities have access to clean air and high-
quality bathing beaches and rivers 

• Communities are protected from environmental risk 
such as flooding with a focus on nature based 
solutions 

Equality and Social Inclusion 

Supplementary sustainability indicators could 
include: 

• Equitable access to, and benefit from, natural 
resources including good quality public green and 
blue spaces. 

• Equitable protection from environmental hazards 
(e.g. air quality, flooding) 

Noted and welcomed. The ISA Framework as set out 
in the ISA Scoping Report has been updated to 
include the suggested guide questions as below.  

Tudalen160



 

 

Transport & Communications 

Supplementary RDLP questions may include 

• Provide integrated active travel routes that provide 
multiple benefits for people and nature. 

Inclusive Economic Growth 

The “Proposed SA Guide Questions” consider the 
economic system but not its connection to the social 
and natural systems. A sustainable prosperous 
economy depends upon both of those systems and 
supplementary RLDP questions may include:- 

• Promote the sustainable use and consumption of 
natural resources e.g. DISRUPT framework is 
utilised 

• Support social and environmental wellbeing in the 
county and beyond 

• Promote the principles of Green Recovery*. 

*These have been defined and are as follows:- 

• reduce carbon emissions and increase resilience to 
the impacts of climate change 

• reverse the decline in biodiversity 

• connect people and nature 

• tackle unsustainable levels of production and 
consumption by keeping resources in use for as long 
as possible, avoiding all waste and moving to more 
sustainable alternatives. 

Housing 

Supplementary RLDP questions may include: 

• Provide multiple benefits derived from appropriate 
housing location and good design. 

• Promote housing stock that is energy efficient and 
operates at close to zero emissions. 

Air Quality 

Additional indicators might include: 

• Proximity to sites designated for international, 
national and local level for reasons of biodiversity, 
conservation, ecological or geological importance 

Climate Change 

Supplementary RLDP questions may include: 

• Restore or create a network of natural carbon 
capture environments including peatlands, 
grasslands, woodlands and within ‘blue carbon’ 
sinks. 

Tudalen161



 

 

Biodiversity, Geodiversity & Soils 

Additional guide questions could include: 

• Safeguard resilient ecological networks 

• Maintain and enhance urban green infrastructure 

Additional sustainability indicators could include: 

• More direct consideration/ reference to the 
condition of designated sites 

• A clearer definition of ‘valued’ habitats and species 

• Reference to resilient ecological networks 

• Reference to green infrastructure assessment 

Water and Flood Risk 

Additional guide questions could include: 

• Maintain and restore natural river processes to 
safeguard river habitats and help to mitigate the 
effects of climate change including flooding and 
droughts 

• Conserve water resources and promote water 
efficiency 

• Promote sustainable urban drainage systems and 
promote nature-based solutions for better 
management of surface water 

• Substituting the word ‘minimise’ to ‘avoid’ in the 
following guide question: ‘Seek to minimise new 
development in areas prone to flood risk or mitigate 
the potential for such risk?’. 

Additional sustainability indicators could include: 

• Condition of waterbodies and degree of physical 
modification (WFD) 

• Number of properties at risk of flooding – with 
reference to new Flood Map Wales (climate change 
scenarios) 

• Average water use per household 

Material Assets 

No Comments 

Sustainable Placemaking 

Additional questions to include might be:- 

• Make space for and integrate nature/green 
infrastructure as an intrinsic part of its design and 
function 

• Consider the role of nature-based solutions in 
sustainable placemaking 

Tudalen162



 

 

• Facilitate well connected spaces for people and 
nature 

Cultural Heritage 

No comments 

Landscape 

Table 5.2 & 5.3 Proposed ISA Objective,- does not 
reflect the comments in Table 5.1, particularly those 
on Placemaking. We suggest revised wording: 
‘Protect and enhance the landscape character, 
visual amenity, distinctive sense of place and 
legibility of settlements in the NPTC area’. 

Additional guide questions could include: 

• Protect & enhance local distinctiveness and sense 
of place? 

This links to Placemaking and public realm aspects 
of Placemaking. Indicators of landscape 
character/local distinctiveness changes could be 
addressed through SLA/LANDMAP monitoring 
updates. 

Also notes importance of considering woodlands, 
trees & hedgerows within indicators of landscape 
character and local distinctiveness in addition to 
being referred to under Biodiversity & Geodiversity. 

Appendix A (Table A1) omits reference to Brecon 
Beacons National Park, which is adjacent to the LPA 
to the north and part of the LPA area lies within its 
setting. The duty relating to the purposes of the 
National Park also applies outside the park and in its 
setting. 

 
Cadw In agreement with how cultural heritage is 

considered. One issue however, is that on a number 
of occasions the English term "Heritage Assets" is 
used, in Wales the reference should be to "Historic 
Assets" as set out in “Conservation Principles for the 
Sustainable Management of the Historic 
Environment in Wales". 

References have been updated from “heritage 
assets” to “historic assets” as per Cadw’s request. 
This wording change has no material bearing on the 
scope of the ISA including how effects on cultural 
heritage will be considered.  

 
Glamorgan 
Gwent 
Archaeological 
Trust 

Welcomes approach regarding the historic 
environment and archaeology. It is important to 
recognise that Planning Policy Wales refers to the 
historic environment and archaeological sites being 
preserved in situ as a priority and preserved by 
record if their preservation in situ cannot be 
achieved. 

Noted.  

 
Minerals 
Products 
Association Comments on the content of the RLDP: 

MPA response highlights key issues for RLDP 
development and did not raise any ISA matters. No 
changes to the ISA Scoping Report are therefore 
required in response to these comments.   

Tudalen163



 

 

Policies in the RLDP must ensure that the Borough 
continues to make a proportionate contribution to the 
supply of mineral reserves to meet local, regional 
and national demand by maintaining a steady and 
adequate supply throughout the plan period in 
accordance with national planning policy contained 
within PPW. The RDLP should recognise the 
requirements of the recently updated RTS and the 
need for collaborative working with other authorities 
through Statements of Sub-Regional Collaboration. 

Supports the retention of criteria-based policies to 
ensure the sustainable minerals developments, in 
accordance with national policy. 

It will be necessary for the RLDP process to monitor 
and reflect changes in national policy and legislation, 
through Future Wales, SDPs and how the RDLP 
may sit within the Corporate Joint Committee 
structure. 

 
 

 
  

Tudalen164



Appendix 4 – ISA Scoping Report (Tracked Changes) 
 

 

On behalf of Neath Port Talbot Council 

 
 
Project Ref: 43894 | Rev: FE | Date: June October 2021 

 
Registered Office: Buckingham Court Kingsmead Business Park, London Road, High Wycombe, Buckinghamshire, HP11 1JU  
Office Address: 5th Floor, Lomond House, 9 George Square, Glasgow G2 1DY 
T: +44 (0)141 352 2360   E: info.Glasgow@stantec.com 

Neath Port Talbot Replacement Local 

Development Plan Review 
Integrated Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report 

Updated Post Consultation – October 2021 

Tudalen165



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

ii 

Document Control Sheet 

Project Name: Neath Port Talbot LDP Review  

Project Ref: 43894 

Report Title: ISA Scoping Report 

Doc Ref: 43894/4501/R001i76 

Date: June October 2021 

 

  Name Position Signature Date 

Prepared by: 
Helen Skimming 
Michael O’Sullivan 

Planner 
Senior Planner 

HS 
MO 

27.03.2020 
30.03.2020 

 

Reviewed by: Duncan Smart Associate Planner DS 31.03.2020 

Approved by: Nick Skelton  Director: Planning & Economics NS  29.05.2020  

For and on behalf of Stantec UK Limited 

 

Revision Date Description Prepared Reviewed Approved 

A  01.06.2020  
Minor amendments in response to 
client comments  

MO  DS  DS 

B  01.07.2020  
Minor amendments in response to 
client comments  

MO  DS  DS 

C 21.08.2020 
Minor amendment to amend 
consultation/contact details 

MO DS DS 

D 11.05.2021 
Updates to reflect policy 
developments including PPW11 
and Brexit 

HT DS DS 

E 25.06.2021 
Minor amendments in response to 
final client comments 

HT DS NS 

F 11.10.21 
Minor amendments in response to 
scoping comments 

HT DS NS 

 

This report has been prepared by Stantec UK Limited (‘Stantec’) on behalf of its client to whom this 
report is addressed (‘Client’) in connection with the project described in this report and takes into 
account the Client's particular instructions and requirements. This report was prepared in accordance 
with the professional services appointment under which Stantec was appointed by its Client. This 
report is not intended for and should not be relied on by any third party (i.e. parties other than the 
Client). Stantec accepts no duty or responsibility (including in negligence) to any party other than the 
Client and disclaims all liability of any nature whatsoever to any such party in respect of this report. 

 

Tudalen166



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

iii 

Contents 

1 Introduction ............................................................................................................................... 1 

1.1 Background ................................................................................................................... 1 

1.2 Purpose and Objectives ................................................................................................ 1 

1.3 Overview of the Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ........................................................... 2 

1.4 Statutory Requirements ................................................................................................. 3 

1.5 ISA Process ................................................................................................................... 7 

1.6 Report Structure ............................................................................................................ 8 

2 Neath Port Talbot LDP Review Context ............................................................................... 10 

2.1 Introduction .................................................................................................................. 10 

2.2 Neath Port Talbot Review Key Facts .......................................................................... 10 

2.3 Proposed Form and Content of the Replacement Neath Port Talbot LDP ................. 10 

3 Draft SEA Screening Determination ..................................................................................... 12 

3.1 Introduction .................................................................................................................. 12 

3.2 The Need for SEA Screening ...................................................................................... 12 

3.3 Draft SEA Screening Determination ............................................................................ 12 

4 Key Sustainability Issues ...................................................................................................... 15 

4.1 Introduction .................................................................................................................. 15 

4.2 Key Sustainability Issues ............................................................................................. 15 

4.3 Relationship between the LDP Review and Other Relevant Plans and Programmes 24 

5 Proposed Neath Port Talbot RLDP ISA Framework ............................................................ 27 

5.1 Introduction .................................................................................................................. 27 

5.2 Summary of Existing SA Framework LDP Review ...................................................... 27 

5.3 Review of the Existing Neath Port Talbot LDP SA Framework ................................... 27 

5.4 Proposed ISA Scope and Objectives for the LDP Review .......................................... 37 

5.5 Proposed Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA Objectives .......................................... 41 

5.6 Proposed ISA Framework for the Neath Port Talbot LDP Review .............................. 47 

6 Proposed ISA Methodology and Consultations Arrangements ........................................ 60 

6.1 Introduction .................................................................................................................. 60 

6.2 Proposed ISA Reporting .............................................................................................. 60 

6.3 Proposed ISA Methodology ......................................................................................... 61 

6.4 ISA of Proposed Spatial Strategies and Policies ........................................................ 64 

6.5 ISA of Candidate Site Allocations ................................................................................ 67 

6.6 Assessment of Cumulative Effects and Synergistic Effects ........................................ 68 

6.7 ISA of Reasonable Alternatives ................................................................................... 68 

6.8 Presentation of ISA Key Findings ................................................................................ 69 

6.9 Proposed ISA Consultation Arrangements ................................................................. 69 

7 Summary and Next Steps ...................................................................................................... 70 

7.1 Overview ...................................................................................................................... 70 

7.2 Specific Request for Comments from the SEA Consultation Authorities .................... 70 

Tudalen167



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

iv 

Figures 

Figure 1.1 Neath Port Talbot Council Boundary ..................................................................................... 2 
 

Tables 

Table 4.1: Key Sustainability Issues relating to the Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ............................ 18 
Table 5.1: Review of the Existing NPTC LDP SA Framework .............................................................. 29 
Table 5.2: Proposed ISA Objectives for the LDP Review ..................................................................... 42 
Table 5.3: Relationship between the Proposed ISA Objectives and the SEA Regulations .................. 45 
Table 5.4: Proposed ISA Framework for the LDP Review .................................................................... 48 
Table 6.1: Proposed Compatibility Matrix to Assess RLDP Vision and Objectives .............................. 62 
Table 6.2: Proposed Scoring System - Spatial Strategies and Policies ................................................ 64 
Table 6.3: Assessment Matrix for Proposed LDP Spatial Strategies and Policies ............................... 66 
Table A.1: Designated Sites of Relevance to the Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ............................... 72 
Table A.2: Review of Relevant Environmental Aspects, Issues and Problems .................................... 77 
Table B.1: Review of Other Relevant Plans, Programmes and Strategies ......................................... 106 
Table B.2: Implications of Welsh National Planning Policies for NPT LDP Review ............................ 122 
 

Appendices 

Appendix A Baseline Review 

Appendix B Review of Plans and Programmes 

 

 

Tudalen168



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

1 

1 Introduction 

1.1 Background 

1.1.1 Stantec UK has been commissioned by Neath Port Talbot Council (NPTC) to undertake an 

Integrated Sustainability Appraisal (ISA) of the NPT Local Development Plan (LDP) Review 

and the emerging NPT Replacement LDP (RLDP) (‘the emerging RLDP’). 

1.1.2 This report is the first stage of an ISA process to identify, assess and address in an integrated 

manner any likely significant effects on the environment (including European Sites), 

sustainability, health and equalities of undertaking the NPT LDP Review (resulting in the 

preparation of the RLDP). The report outlines the proposed approach to undertaking the ISA 

process, incorporating a suite of statutory and non-statutory assessment processes: 

 Sustainability Appraisal (SA) as required under the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004 (‘the 2004 Act’) and the Development Planning (Wales) Regulations 
2005 (‘the 2005 Regulations’); 

 Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA) as required by the Environmental 
Assessment of Plans and Programmes (Wales) Regulations 2004 (‘the SEA 
Regulations’); 

 Supporting the implementation of wellbeing goals and wellbeing objectives (and the 
discharge of associated duties) as required under the Wellbeing of Future Generations 
(Wales) Act 2015. The preparation of the RLDP needs to consider social, economic, 
environmental and cultural well-being; 

 Equalities Impact Assessment (EqIA) under the Equality Act 2010 – covering the Public 
Sector Equality Duty and the Socio-economic Duty; 

 Health Impact Aassessment (HIA) – non-statutory but needed to support robust SEA, 
EqIA and wellbeing assessment processes; and, 

 Welsh Language Impact Assessment as required under the 2004 Act, the Welsh 
Language Standards (No.1) Regulations 2015 and PPW 11th Edition.  

1.2 Purpose and Objectives 

1.2.1 The purpose of this ISA process is to identify, assess and, where appropriate, address the 

likely significant effects from the NPT LDP Review (‘the LDP Review) on the environment 

(including European Sites), health, equalities issues, wellbeing and the use of the Welsh 

language. The ISA should be viewed as a key planmaking tool and it will be used throughout 

the LDP Review to inform the preparation of the RLDP in order to maximise its effectiveness, 

rather than simply providing retrospective reporting of likely impacts. 

1.2.2 The dual purpose of this report is to: 

 Seek the views of the SEA Consultation Bodies1 and other relevant consultees on the 
proposed methodology and assessment framework for undertaking a robust and legally 
compliant ISA of the Neath Port Talbot LDP Review in accordance with relevant statutory 
requirements; and in doing so; and, 

                                                      
1 The SEA Consultation Bodies are defined by the SEA Regulations as Cadw and Natural Resources Wales. The 

Welsh Assembly Government will also be treated as a SEA Consultation Body for the purposes of this ISA. 

Tudalen169



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

2 

 Seek the views of the SEA Consultation Authorities on a draft SEA screening 
determination to satisfy procedural requirements and to confirm that a SEA needs to be 
incorporated within the SA.  

1.2.3 This version of the ISA Scoping Report has been updated post consultation to address 
pertinent matters raised by consultees, as summarised within the Review of ISA Scoping 
Technical Note which has been prepared in tandem.  

1.3 Overview of the Neath Port Talbot LDP Review 

1.3.1 NPTC is the unitary authority responsible for local government across a 442km2 area of South 
Wales, as shown in Figure 1.1 NPTC is located within the South West  Wales Region (as 
identified within the National Development Framework (NDF) - Future Wales 2040) and 
Strategic Development Plan area. This includes the LA areas of Carmarthenshire, 
Pembrokeshire, Swansea and Neath Port Talbot. The neighbouring authorities are Swansea, 
Bridgend, Rhondda Cynon Taff, Powys and Carmarthenshire.  

1.3.2 NPTC is also part of the Swansea Bay City Deal, a £1.3bn investment secured by the 
Swansea Bay City Region for 11 major projects across Pembrokeshire, Carmarthenshire, 
Swansea and Neath Port Talbot. Since the end of May 2019, NPTC is also the host authority 
for the Joint Scrutiny Committee to promote and facilitate projects between authorities 
involved in the City Deal.  

Figure 1.1 Neath Port Talbot Council Boundary 

  

Tudalen170



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

3 

1.3.3 NPTC have undertaken regular monitoring since the first LDP was adopted in 2016. Between 

January – March 2020 NPTC consulted on a Draft LDP Review Report in accordance with 

statutory requirements. This Draft LDP Review Report identified that the current NPT LDP 

should be subject to a ‘Full Review’, to be carried out in accordance with the 2005 

Regulations. The LDP Review Report was subsequently approved and published by NPTC in 

July 2020. 

1.3.4 The review (‘the LDP Review’) is needed to allow NPTC to prepare and adopt a RLDP to 

ensure that the statutory Development Plan for the NPTC area remains up to date, taking 

account of Future Wales 2040 which also now forms part of the Development Plan. In 

particular, a RLDP is needed to take account of a range of new Acts, policy frameworks, 

initiatives, evidence and spatial issues at national, regional and local levels since the adoption 

of the current LDP.  

1.4 Statutory Requirements 

1.4.1 This section provides a succinct review of the range of statutory requirements which will be 

addressed through undertaking an ISA of the LDP Review. 

LDP Preparation and Review 

1.4.2 The publication of the Draft LDP Review Report (NPTC, 2020) has triggered a process 

through which a RLDP will be prepared and then adopted for the NPTC area. Statutory 

requirements relating to the preparation of LDPs are therefore now applicable to the LDP 

Review, including in respect of SA and SEA. The proposed approach, timescales and 

consultation arrangements for the LDP Review are set out within the Draft Neath Port Talbot 

LDP Delivery Agreement accompanying this ISA Scoping Report in accordance with the 2005 

LDP Regulations (as amended). 

1.4.3 This ISA Scoping Report has been prepared in the context of the consultation on the Draft 

LDP Review Report, including taking account of relevant consultation responses. Whilst each 

report fulfils separate statutory requirements, read together they provide a comprehensive and 

up to date evidence base of the key issues (spatial planning, sustainability, equalities, health, 

social, economic, cultural, etc) which all need to be addressed in the LDP Review and 

associated impact assessment processes. 

Sustainability Appraisal  

1.4.4 Under Section 62(6) of the 2004 Act, emerging LDPs need to be subject to Sustainability 

Appraisal, which is statutorily required to guide the selection and development of policies and 

proposals for inclusion in LDPs in terms of their potential social, environmental and economic 

effects. The SA presently required for the LDP Review will need to build upon the SA, 

incorporating SEA, prepared for the  Neath Port Talbot LDP 2011-2026 (adopted January 

2016). As the ‘Full Review’ procedure is being used, the LDP Review will effectively mirror the 

original LDP preparation process and will result in the preparation and adoption of a RLDP 

(rather than the existing LDP only being subject to individual changes). 

1.4.5 When undertaking a SA, the Welsh Government asks Local Planning Authorities to consider 

the value and opportunities for an integrated assessment approach to preparing an LDP.  

Paragraph 4.5 of the Development Plans Manual Edition 3 (2020) considers that “The 

integration of statutory and key elements such as WBFGA 2015 requirements, Equalities Act, 

Welsh language, and Health Impact Assessment (HIA) (when relevant) into a single Integrated 

Sustainability Appraisal (ISA) will enable a more transparent, holistic and rounded assessment 

of the sustainability implications of growth options, objectives, policies and proposals”. 

Accordingly, to achieve these benefits whilst meeting applicable statutory requirements, an 

Tudalen171



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

4 

ISA is to be carried out for the NPT LDP Review. This ISA Scoping Report represents the first 

stage of this process.  

Strategic Environmental Assessment  

1.4.6 The Environmental Assessment of Plans and Programmes (Wales) Regulations 2004 as 

amended (‘the SEA Regulations’) require Responsible Authorities, including local authorities 

such as NPTC, to assess the likely significant environmental effects of implementing relevant 

plans and programmes, as defined within the regulations. The SEA Regulations also require 

Responsible Authorities to examine the likely significant environmental effects of reasonable 

alternatives to the plan or programme under consideration. Where required, the assessment is 

to be prepared following a staged reporting process known as Strategic Environmental 

Assessment (SEA). 

1.4.7 In line with the requirements of the SEA Regulations, the following terms are used throughout 

this report: 

 ‘Environmental effects’ refers to effects on all environmental factors prescribed in 
Schedule 2 of the SEA Regulations, including “population”, “health” and “material assets” 
in the broadest sense, which therefore includes coverage of social, economic and 
infrastructure related issues. Cultural, including Welsh Language, issues are also covered 
under the cultural heritage SEA topic. This approach helps to ensure assessment 
proportionality and integration between SEA and other statutory assessment processes 
undertaken as part of this ISA; and, 

 The term ‘likely significant effects’ refers to all likely effects which, when assessed on an 
objective basis, are considered significant (as opposed to not significant) and therefore 
need to be reported within the context of the SEA Regulations. Such effects may also 
need to be reported in accordance with other relevant statutory requirements (see below). 

Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 

1.4.8 The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 (WBFG Act) seeks to directly place 

Wales on a sustainable path to improving well-being. The WBFG Act requires that public 

bodies carry out sustainable development which is defined2 as: 

“Sustainable development” means the process of improving the economic, social, 

environmental and cultural well-being of Wales by taking action, in accordance with the 

sustainable development principle, aimed at achieving the well-being goals.” 

1.4.9 The WBFG Act prescribes seven national Wellbeing Goals to be achieved through Five Ways 

of Working which public bodies need to demonstrate they have carried out in undertaking their 

sustainable development duty (see section 5 of this report). Furthermore, it requires Public 

Service Boards (comprising local authorities and partner agencies) to define local wellbeing 

objectives. 

1.4.10 In response to this duty, the Neath Port Talbot We Want (Well-being Plan 2018-2023) sets out 

the NPT Public Services Board’s long-term vision for the area as well as priorities for action 

over the plan period. It identifies six wellbeing objectives which are to be used to guide and 

bring about wellbeing improvements for local people in the area. These are detailed in section 

5 of this report. 

                                                      
2 The Planning (Wales) Act 2015 Section 2 sets out the definition of sustainable development for the planning 
system and directly refers to the definition in the WBFG Act 

Tudalen172



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

5 

1.4.11 Therefore, whilst there is not a specific statutory requirement to publish a WFG Assessment in 

respect of the LDP Review, there is a need for NPTC to demonstrate throughout the LDP 

Review how their emerging RLDP complies with the Section 3 duty (Well-being duty on public 

bodies to carry out sustainable development). In practice this means that the ISA should 

include specific reporting of likely effects from the emerging RLDP on wellbeing, the national 

wellbeing goals and local wellbeing objectives.  

1.4.12 The Development Plans Manual 2020 (3rd Edition) requires LDPs to demonstrate how it 

contributes towards the achievement of the well-being goals, objectives and five ways of 

working, noting that these goals should be integral to the preparation of the Scoping Report 

and subsequent development of the final SA framework to assess the Plans growth options, 

objectives, policies and proposals (Para 4.10 & 4.12). Each decision-making body must 

demonstrate compliance with the requirements of WBFGA 2015. 

Equalities Impact Assessment 

1.4.13 Statutory requirements to avoid discrimination and to assess the likely equalities impacts of 

emerging policies, programmes and projects are set out in the Equality Act 2010. This 

legislation was enacted by the UK Parliament to consolidate previous anti-discrimination 

legislation and to implement the four major European Union (EU) Equal Treatment Directives3. 

1.4.14 Insofar as LDP policies and proposals affect access to services, amenities, economic 

opportunities and social activities, the implementation of the LDP Review (resulting in the 

adoption of a RLDP) is likely to result in different impacts upon different demographic groups, 

persons with protected characteristics and those facing socio-economic disadvantage. It may 

also help to tackle intersectional inequalities and impact the delivery of other policies and 

organisations working to address societal inequalities. The Public Sector Equality Duty and 

Socio-economic Duty under the Equality Act 2010 are applicable to the LDP Review, meaning 

that the ISA will incorporate a proportionate equalities impact assessment (EqIA) to address 

the requirements of both duties.   

Public Sector Equality Duty 

1.4.15 Section 149 of the Act sets out a ‘public sector equality duty’ which requires public authorities, 

in exercising their functions, to “have due regard to the need to: 

a. eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that is 

prohibited by or under this Act; 

b. advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected 

characteristic and persons who do not share it;  

c. foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and 

persons who do not share it.” 

1.4.16 The protected characteristics referenced within this duty are specified within Section 4 of the 

Act, namely: Age; Disability; Gender reassignment; Marriage and Civil partnership; Pregnancy 

and maternity; Race; Religion or belief; Sex; and Sexual orientation. 

                                                      
3 EU Directives 2000/78/EC, 2000/43/EC, 2006/54/EC (all enacted) and proposed Directive COM/2008/0426 final 

- CNS 2008/0140   

Tudalen173



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

6 

Socio-economic Duty 

1.4.17 In March 2021 the Welsh Government commenced the Socio-economic Duty under Sections 

1 – 3 of the Equality Act 2010. The Socio-economic Duty places a legal responsibility on 

public bodies in Wales to actively consider how through their strategic decision making they 

can reduce inequalities of outcome caused by socioeconomic disadvantage. This differs from 

the Public Sector Equality Duty which considers only reducing inequalities of opportunity. 

However, the Socio-economic Duty identifies a need to consider both ‘communities of place’ 

and ‘communities of interest’ in terms of people who share an experience and are particularly 

impacted by socio-economic disadvantage.  

1.4.18 Demographic groups who share one or more of the protected characteristics listed in Section 
4 of the Equality Act 2010 can be considered ‘communities of interest’, meaning there is a 
direct link between the Socio-economic and Public Sector Equality Duties. 

1.4.19 The Socio-economic Duty applies to the LDP Review as local authorities are prescribed 
bodies for implementing the duty under the Equality Act 2010 and the preparation of a RLDP 
clearly constitutes the making of decisions of a strategic nature by NPTC regarding their 
statutory functions.  

Health Impact Assessment 

1.4.20 Whilst there are no statutory requirements to undertake a health impact assessment of 

emerging plans or programmes, the SEA Regulations do require any likely significant effects 

on human health to be assessed as part of a wider environmental assessment. Any identified 

likely significant adverse effects on the environment, including in respect off human health, 

should also be addressed through the implementation of suitable mitigation where 

appropriate. The assessment of likely health effects is also of direct relevance to the Public 

Sector Equality Duty set out within the Equality Act 2010, as socio-economic inequalities are 

recognised to be a key determinant of health. 

1.4.21 Paragraph 4.16-4.17 in The Development Plans Manual 2020 (3rd Edition) highlights the 

requirement in The Public Health (Wales) Act 2017 for a Health Impact Assessment (HIA) to 

be carried out by public bodies. Although there is no statutory requirement stating when a HIA 

should be carried out, it outlines the role of the HIA in Wales to assist policy makers to 

maximise potential benefits and identify/mitigate against potential negative effects on health 

and wellbeing . In future plan-making, LPAs must have regard to the requirement and content 

of a HIA as stated in further legislation and guidance once published.  

1.4.22 This ISA will therefore incorporate a proportionate health impact assessment (HIA) in order to 

demonstrate compliance with SEA and EqIA requirements relating to the assessment of likely 

health effects from the emerging LDP Review.  

Welsh Language Impact Assessment  

1.4.23 The Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011 and Standards require the following effects to be 

considered:  

 What effect, if any, the LDP would have on the opportunities for other persons to use the 
Welsh language, or treating the Welsh language no less favourably than the English 
language; 

 How the LDP could have positive effects or increased positive effects on opportunities for 
other persons to use the Welsh language, or treating the Welsh language no less 
favourably than the English language; and, 

Tudalen174



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

7 

 How the LDP could be developed so that it doesn’t have or reduces any adverse effects 
which the policy decision would have on opportunities for other persons to use the Welsh 
language, or treating the Welsh language no less favourably than the English language.  

1.4.24 In line with statutory requirements, PPW – 11th Edition and Welsh Government expectations, 

the ISA incorporates a proportionate assessment of likely effects on the use of the Welsh 

language.  

Habitats Regulations Assessment 

1.4.25 Regulation 63 of the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (‘the HRA 

Regulations’) requires that a HRA must be undertaken to demonstrate compliance with 

applicable statutory duties where a plan or project is considered likely to have significant 

effects on European Sites and is not directly connected with or necessary for the management 

of the site. Caselaw has established that HRA requirements apply to the preparation of ‘local 

plans’ prepared for town and country planning purposes including LDPs, meaning that an HRA 

process must be undertaken for the LDP Review. 

1.4.26 Whilst there are linkages between SEA and HRA, in view of the specific assessment 

requirements prescribed by the HRA Regulations and associated European legislation and 

caselaw, the HRA for the NPT LDP Review will be reported separately from the ISA. However, 

at this initial stage, and in the absence of any formal HRA Scoping requirements, it is 

considered appropriate for this ISA Scoping Report to identify relevant European Sites for 

consideration in subsequent ISA and HRA processes. 

1.4.27 To differentiate between effects assessed in the context of the SEA and HRA Regulations, the 

term “Likely Significant Effects” (capitalised) is used throughout this report to refer to only 

those effects which are considered significant in the context of Regulation 63 of the HRA 

Regulations.     

1.5 ISA Process 

1.5.1 By according with the above statutory requirements through a holistic approach, Integrated 
Sustainability Appraisal is one of the key methods by which plan-making can deliver 
sustainable development. When used in this way from the outset of the LDP process, ISA 
Scoping is a plan-making tool rather than simply a reporting mechanism and can be 
considered as 3 main steps; 

 Screening and Scoping:  

o Whereas Regulation 5(3) has the effect that a SEA will always be required in relation 
to the preparation of an LDP, Regulations 5(6) and 9(1) require “minor modifications” 
to an existing plan or programme to first be screened to determine whether the 
modifications are likely to have significant effects on the environment and therefore 
whether a full SEA needs to be undertaken. The Welsh LDP Manual 3nd Edition 
(2020) continues to make it clear that SEA screening is required for all LDP Reviews 
as in legal terms the existing LDP is simply being reviewed and this could result in 
“minor modifications”, although the SEA Regulations do not define the scope of that 
term. This ISA Scoping Report sets out a draft SEA Screening Determination for the 
consideration of the SEA Consultation Bodies (Section 3). 

o In terms of Scoping, Responsible Authorities must provide the SEA Consultation 
Bodies with sufficient information to enable them to consider the proposed scope, 
level of detail and consultation period for an ‘Environmental Report’ (ER) to 
accompany the emerging plan or programme. Where SEA is incorporated within a 
wider SA the term ER is interchangeable with SA Report as the latter necessarily 

Tudalen175



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

8 

includes all of the information that would be required within a standalone ER. Whilst 
there is no specific statutory requirement to undertake Scoping in relation to EqIA, 
HIA, WFG Act Assessment and Welsh Language Impact Assessment, the SA 
Scoping process raises a similar need for ‘assessment framing’ to undertake 
proportionate assessment of these. Thus, there is a need to confirm the scope of the 
ISA in all respects, ensuring robustness and proportionality throughout the process. 
The approach taken with the ISA Scoping Report responds to all statutory 
requirements, with the proposed ISA Framework, ISA methodology and ISA 
consultation arrangements detailed in Sections 5 and 6. 

 Assessment: As noted above, in terms of SA, Section 62(6) of the 2004 Act requires 
Responsible Authorities preparing LDPs in Wales to “to carry out a sustainability 
appraisal of the proposals” within it and to “prepare a report of the findings of the 
appraisal”. Given that the LDP Review will be an iterative process and in legal terms is a 
review of the existing LDP, an ISA Report will need to accompany each substantive 
element of the RLDP as it emerges, in particular the preparation of LDP Pre-Deposit and 
subsequently LDP Deposit Documents. Each ISA Report must be consulted on in tandem 
with the emerging RLDP, with the ISA Report for the final LDP Deposit Document then 
submitted to the Welsh Assembly Government to support an independent examination of 
the RLDP. Similarly, Regulation 12 of the SEA Regulations requires Responsible 
Authorities to prepare and consult on an ER to “identify, describe and evaluate the likely 
significant effects on the environment of implementing” each iteration of a relevant and 
qualifying plan, as well as the effects of its reasonable alternatives. As above, the scope, 
level of detail and consultation period of the ISA, fully incorporating all SEA requirements, 
should first be defined through screening and scoping.  In line with best practice 
established in Development Plans Manual 3rd Edition 2020, the ISA brings together the 
statutory requirements under one joined-up process. This offers the opportunity to 
iteratively assess each stage of the emerging LDP in terms of EqIA, HIA, WFG Act 
Assessment (as well as Welsh Language Assessment which legally must be incorporated 
into SA); and, 

 Post Adoption: By the end of the LDP Review process, a RLDP will have been adopted 
for the extent of the NPTC area. As detailed in Appendix A.4, this is required by January 
2026 to avoid a planning policy vacuum. In terms of SA, once a RLDP is adopted, NPTC 
must prepare a statement setting out, amongst other matters, how the SEA’s 
environmental considerations have been taken into account in the adopted LDP, and how 
the likely significant effects of the LDP on the environment (as predicted through the 
SA/SEA) will be monitored. Whilst there is no statutory requirement to prepare a SA (as 
opposed to SEA) Post Adoption Statement, in practice the incorporation of SEA within SA 
means this is necessary to ensure that all of the SEA findings and consultation responses 
from previous stages of the process are addressed. Following best SA practice, the Post 
Adoption process will be extended incorporating the SEA post adoption requirements 
alongside a demonstration of how the ISA (covering all assessment undertaken) has, as 
a plan-making tool, informed the preparation of the NPT RLDP. 

1.6 Report Structure  

1.6.1 The remainder of this report is structured as follows: 

 Section 2 – LDP Review Context and Proposed Content describes the context in which 
the LDP Review is being undertaken and outlines the proposed form of the RLDP that will 
result, all of which requires to be assessed through this ISA;  

 Section 3 – In the context of SA/SEA only, this section consider the need for SEA 
(undertaken within the ISA) and provides a draft determination to explain why NPCBC 
considers it necessary to undertake a SEA as part of the ISA for the LDP Review. The 
section also provides relevant information to enable the SEA Consultation Authorities to 
advise on whether, at this stage, the RLDP is likely to generate significant effects. Section 

Tudalen176



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

9 

3 is not a requirement for the other constituent assessments which are to be carried out 
through the ISA process; 

 Section 4 – Environmental Information and Key Sustainability Issues summarises 
pertinent environmental, equalities and health issues and conditions which must be taken 
account of within the emerging LDP Review and therefore within this ISA. It considers the 
evolution of the baseline in the absence of the LDP Review and notes the relationship 
between the Neath Port Talbot LDP and other relevant plans and programmes. Further 
relevant details are provided in Appendices A and B; 

 Section 5 – Proposed ISA Framework describes the assessment framework which will be 
used to identify and assess the likely significant environmental (incorporating socio-
economic and cultural effects), health, wellbeing, Welsh language impact, and equalities 
effects from the LDP Review (i.e. the preparation of a RLDP). This section sets out a 
proposed ISA Framework to assess these as they emerge, including proposed ISA 
Objectives and guide questions; 

 Section 6 – Proposed ISA Methodology and Consultation Arrangements builds upon 
Section 5 by detailing the proposed method of assessing the likely significant 
environmental (incorporating economic, social and cultural), health, wellbeing, Welsh 
language impact, and equalities effects, health, wellbeing, and equalities effects (and 
through this the broader sustainability effects) of each emerging substantive component 
of a RLDP. The section also outlines the proposed consultation arrangements for the SA 
reports which will be published in tandem with each substantive proposal for the 
emerging RLDP, namely the LDP Pre-Deposit and LDP Deposit Documents; and, 

 Section 7 – Next Steps outlines next steps to be followed in the ISA process and confirms 
how comments in respect of this ISA Scoping Report should be submitted. 

1.6.2 The Scoping Report is supported by two appendices: 

 Appendix A – Baseline Analysis supports Section 4 by providing a review of relevant 
environmental (including social, economic and cultural) baseline characteristics. With 
reference to all environmental topics prescribed in Schedule 2 of the SEA Regulations 
(including population, health and material assets), Appendix A describes aspects of the 
environment likely to be significantly affected by the LDP Review and identifies relevant 
environmental, economic, social, and cultural issues, problems and environmental 
protection objectives which should be taken account of in the LDP Review and this SA 
process; and, 

 Appendix B – Review of Plans and Programmes supports Section 4 by providing a 
review of all other plans and programmes of relevance to the LDP Review. Appendix B 
identifies the relationship between these other documents, the existing Neath Port Talbot 
LDP and the LDP Review to identify key policy issues which should be considered in both 
the LDP Review itself and this SA process.  

Tudalen177



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

10 

2 Neath Port Talbot LDP Review Context 

2.1 Introduction 

2.1.1 This section provides a brief outline of the LDP Review, including its key facts, proposed form 

and expected content of the RLDP. This is to allow the SEA Consultation Bodies to 

understand the scope and purpose of the RLDP which is being subject to ISA. 

2.2 Neath Port Talbot Review Key Facts 

2.2.1 Planning legislation requires all local planning authorities to commence a review of a LDP not 
later than 4 years from the date of adoption and to consider the need for a review following the 
publication of the National Development Framework (Future Wales 2040 – February 2021).  

2.2.2 This LDP Review is being undertaken to replace the NPTC LDP (2011-2026), adopted in 
January 2016. To undertake the LDP Review, Stantec UK is acting as the SEA Assessor on 
behalf of the Responsible Authority. The purpose of the Review is to inform the development 
of the new LDP for Neath Port Talbot and to update the SEA Consultation Bodies on the 
scope and progress of the new Plan as it progresses. 

2.2.3 The Neath Port Talbot LDP Review will result in the preparation and adoption of a RLDP for 

the NPTC area. This will set out new detailed planning policies and proposals for the future 

development and the use of all land. The  RLDP will set a long-term strategic planning 

framework, helping to tackle the key sustainability and regeneration issues and realise the 

main development opportunities across the NPTC area. It will cover a wide range of topics, 

including but not limited to housing land, economic development, regeneration, sustainable 

design, renewable energy, town centres, tourism, infrastructure provision and transport. 

2.2.4 The expected date of adoption for the Replacement Plan is July 2025.April 2024. The Plan will 

cover a time period of 15-years (2021 – 20362036).  

2.3 Proposed Form and Content of the Replacement Neath Port Talbot LDP 

2.3.1 The 2004 Act stipulates the process which must be undertaken for the LDP Review, in 
particular the preparation of LDP Pre-Deposit and Deposit Documents by the Local Planning 
Authority (LPA), followed by an independent examination.  

2.3.2 The 2004 Act and the 2005 Regulations prescribe the minimum content which must be 
included within any LDP, namely: 

 The name of the area of the LPA for which the LDP is prepared; 

 The date of adoption and period of the LDP; 

 The LPA’s objectives in relation to the development and use of land in their area; 

 The LPA’s general policies for the implementation of those objectives; 

 A proposals map of the LPA’s area showing the proposals for the development and use 
of land; and, 

 A reasoned justification of the policies contained within the LDP. 

2.3.3 In addition, LDPs typically include an overarching vision, suite of objectives and a spatial 
strategy, although none are specifically required under the 2004 Act or the 2005 Regulations. 

Tudalen178



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

11 

2.3.4 In line with statutory requirements, two iterations of the emerging RLDP will be consulted on 
by NPTC, namely a Preferred Strategy – LDP Pre-Deposit Document and then a full LDP 
Deposit Plan (Deposit Document). This LDP Deposit Plan will subsequently be subject to an 
independent examination, following which it will be considered for formal adoption as the 
|RLDP for the NPTC area. The ISA methodology will be applied and the findings reported 
within iterative ISA Reports which will accompany the Preferred Strategy (LDP Pre-Deposit) 
and Deposit Documents, with the ISA Report updated between these stages to reflect 
changes to the emerging LDP: 

 The ISA Report for the Preferred Strategy will focus on assessing likely significant effect 
(LSE ) from the proposed LDP options, spatial strategy and strategic policies; and, 

 The ISA Report for the LDP Deposit Document will identify and assess all LSE from each 
substantive component of the LDP Deposit Document, including all proposed site 
allocations and policies.  

2.3.5 Following the completion of an independent examination of the LDP Deposit Document, all 
binding recommendations made by the appointed Inspector will be subject to ISA 
(incorporating SEA) screening to determine whether they would give rise to any new or 
different LSE not previously reported within the ISA Report for the LDP Deposit Document. 
This SEA Screening will be documented specifically within a ISA Addendum. At this stage it is 
envisaged that the RLDP for the NPTC area will comprise the following substantive 
components: 

 Proposed LDP vision and LDP objectives; 

 A spatial strategy (and potential sub-area strategies) to implement the LDP vision and 
objectives; 

 Strategic policies to implement the spatial strategy and LDP objectives and to respond to 
key sustainability issues (Section 4.2 and Appendix A) and legislative requirements 
(Section 4.3 and Appendix B). In particular, strategic policies will need to implement 
specific requirements from the 2004 Act, the 2005 LDP Regulations, Planning Policy 
Wales Edition 11 (2021), The Neath Port Talbot We Want (Well-being Plan 2018 – 2023) 
and the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015; 

 Non-strategic policies to implement the spatial strategy and strategic policies though the 
development management process. This is likely to include areas based and thematic 
policies; and, 

 Site allocations. 

2.3.6 The above list of intended LDP components is not exhaustive and may change through the 
LDP Review. Each emerging substantive component of a replacement Neath Port Talbot LDP 
will need to be subject to ISA, incorporating SEA, in line with the approach set out within this 
Scoping Report.  

2.3.7 To comply with statutory and case law requirements, the RLDP will need to include a 
reasoned justification for the inclusion of each substantive component and be supported by a 
suite of evidence base documents. These will inform the ISA process as well as being 
required for plan preparation purposes.  

Tudalen179



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

12 

3 Draft SEA Screening Determination 

3.1 Introduction 

3.1.1 As described in Section 1, this section provides relevant information which is specific to SEA 

only. Section 3 is required to enable the SEA Consultation Authorities to advise NPTC on 

whether, at this stage, significant effects on the environment are considered likely to arise 

from the RLDP that will result from the LDP Review, in which case a formal SEA will be 

required.   

3.2 The Need for SEA Screening  

3.2.1 The adopted NPTC LDP (January 2016) was subject to a full SEA as part of the SA since it 

met the mandatory SEA criteria within Regulation 5(2) of the SEA Regulations in terms of 

being prepared for town and country planning and land use purposes and being likely to set 

the framework for future consent of developments listed in Annex I or II to Council Directive 

85/337/EEC as amended. However, under the SEA Regulations, all proposed “minor 

modifications” to existing plans require the Responsible Authority to first determine, in 

consultation with the SEA Consultation Authorities, whether a SEA is required as a result of 

the modification being likely to have significant effects on the environment. The Welsh LDP 

Manual 3rd Edition (2020) advises that as the term “minor modification” is not statutorily 

defined, any review of an existing LDP (and thus any revisions to or replacement of it) should 

be subject to SEA screening to determine the need for a full SEA. 

3.2.2 Even at this early stage owing to the intended comprehensive nature of the LDP Review, the 

RLDP is likely to comprise a suite of policies and site allocations that are substantially different 

from those in the existing LDP and which have the potential to result in LSE on the 

environment. Notwithstanding any advice forthcoming from the SEA Consultation Bodies, 

NPTC is therefore of the view that a formal SEA should be undertaken as part of the SA for 

the LDP Review. 

3.2.3 Of note, even if it is determined that a formal SEA is not required this would make little 

difference, as likely effects in relation to the environmental topics prescribed within Schedule 2 

of the SEA Regulations (including population and human health) will still need to be assessed 

to present a robust assessment of the sustainability of the emerging RLDP, as required 

separately under the 2004 Act. The question of whether a formal SEA is required as part of 

the SA is therefore effectively a legal formality.    

3.3 Draft SEA Screening Determination 

3.3.1 Having regard to the Screening criteria specified in Schedule 1 of the SEA Regulations, NPTC 

are of the view that, at this stage, the LDP Review (which will result in the adoption of a RLDP) 

has the potential to generate likely significant effects on the environment which have not 

previously been identified through the SEA of the existing LDP or of other plans and 

programmes. This is on account of: 

 Geographical Coverage: As the ‘Full Review’ procedure is being adopted for the LDP 
Review, it will apply to the entire NPTC area rather than only to discrete sites or sub-
areas. In consequence, the LDP Review will need to consider proposals for the 
management of environmentally sensitive areas, including sites designated at local, 
national and international levels for reasons of biodiversity conservation, geological 
importance or architectural significance. As such, the development of the RLDP is likely 
to result in a range of effects in relation to these sensitive areas; 

Tudalen180



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

13 

 Statutory Requirements: As section 38(6) of the 2004 Act requires all planning 
applications to be determined in accordance with the relevant adopted Development Plan 
unless material considerations indicate otherwise, the RLDP resulting from the LDP 
Review will have a high degree of influence in setting a consenting framework for all 
development activities within the NPTC area. This will include any projects of a type listed 
in Annex I or II to Council Directive 85/337/EEC (the original EIA Directive) as amended. 
In addition, the RLDP will be of particular importance in determining the acceptability, 
including in environmental terms, of the proposed location, nature, size and operating 
conditions of all development proposals. It is likely that the approach taken within a RLDP 
to plan for these factors in relation to at least some development types will differ 
substantially from the approach set out within the existing LDP to reflect changes in 
baseline conditions and in relevant higher level legislative and policy frameworks. Any 
such changes in policy within a RLDP could affect the distribution or key characteristics 
(design, physical, construction, operational characteristics, etc.) of development 
proposals and could give rise to new or different likely significant effects from those 
previously predicted to arise from existing LDP policies; 

 New Spatial Issues and Site Allocations: The preparation of a RLDP should directly 
address existing socio-economic and environmental issues affecting Neath Port Talbot, 
as identified in Appendix A, through the development of new policy approaches and site 
allocations. Through addressing pertinent issues and problems, the LDP Review is likely 
to result in LSE. For example, the Neath Port Talbot LDP Review Report (NPTC, 2020) 
identifies that new allocations within the Valleys and Coastal Corridor may need to be 
made to help enable its growth, which will include residential development, safeguard 
employment, cultural heritage and regeneration opportunities, while policy revisions may 
be required to reconsider the LDPs spatial growth strategy. Other land allocations and 
physical interventions may also need to be allocated within the RLDP to ensure it can 
appropriately respond to all identified population needs. Whilst some candidate site 
allocations may have previously been subject to SA in relation to the first Neath Port 
Talbot LDP, due to the time that has elapsed it is highly likely that a range of new 
candidate sites will be proposed, each of which could generate a range of significant 
environmental effects which have not previously been assessed; 

 Plan Hierarchy: As with the existing LDP, the RLDP should seek to direct particular types 
of development proposals to particular locations, and this may require lower level plans, 
for example Development Briefs, Masterplans, Regeneration Strategies or 
Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) to be prepared to provide more locally specific 
guidance in conformity with the LDP. The LDP Review is therefore likely to have a high 
degree of influence on other plans within the Welsh planning policy hierarchy and this 
could itself result in a range of new or different likely significant environmental effects 
from those arising under the existing LDP; and, 

 Potential for LSE on European Sites: As detailed in Appendix A, the NPTC area hosts 
three European Sites (Kenfig/Cynffig (SAC), Coedydd Nedd a Mellte (SAC) and Crymlyn 
Bog (also a Ramsar Site, SAC, SSSI and NNR). with an additional three European Sites 
identified either within 15km of or with potential connectivity to the NPTC area. This does 
not mean that LSE in HRA terms would necessarily occur from the LDP Review on these 
European Sites; indeed, in the absence of any substantive proposals or policies having 
been developed no evidence is yet available to indicate this. However, the possibility of 
the identified European Sites experiencing LSE from the LDP Review (i.e. from an 
emerging RLDP) cannot be ruled out at this stage and therefore requires further 
examination through undertaking a separate HRA process. In line with the Development 
Plans Manual Edition 3 (2020) an HRA Appropriate Assessment is likely to be required in 
respect of the RLDP Deposit Plan in due course. Under Regulation 5(3) of the SEA 
Regulations, this alone triggers the need for a full statutory SEA to be undertaken. 

3.3.2 Subject to views obtained from the SEA Consultation Bodies, NPTC therefore intends to make 

a determination under Regulation 9(1) of the SEA Regulations that a formal SEA will be 

Tudalen181



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

14 

carried out as part of the ISA for the LDP Review. This aligns with the approach advocated 

within the Development Plans Manual Edition 3 (2020) . 

3.3.3 In accordance with Regulation 9(2), the SEA Consultation Bodies are invited to provide their 

view and associated reasons regarding the potential for LSE to arise and the need (or 

otherwise) to undertake a SEA. Any advice to the effect that a formal SEA is not required 

would need to be supported by detailed evidence, as any decision not to undertake a formal 

SEA could be subject to legal challenge, which in turn could affect the validity of the LDP 

Review. 

Tudalen182



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

15 

4 Key Sustainability Issues 

4.1 Introduction 

4.1.1 Section 4.2 below provides a summary of baseline environmental and socio-economic 

conditions in order to identify a suite of key sustainability issues relevant to the LDP Review. 

Section 4.3 then summarises the relationship between the Neath Port Talbot LDP and other 

relevant plans and programmes. Each section is supported by detailed baseline and policy 

reviews provided in Appendices A and B respectively.  

4.2 Key Sustainability Issues 

4.2.1 With reference to the topics prescribed within Schedule 2 of the SEA Regulations, a summary 

of the key sustainability issues identified in Appendix A which need to be addressed within 

the LDP Review (including objectives associated with the Wellbeing of Future Generations Act 

2015 and Equality Act 2010) is provided in Table 4.1 below and taken account of in the 

associated ISA framework. This summary has also been informed by consideration of the 

likely evolution of baseline conditions in the absence of the LDP Review, as detailed in 

Appendix A. In short, this concludes that the absence of the LDP Review is likely to result in 

a planning policy vacuum within the NPTC area which could lead to development coming 

forward in unsustainable locations and contrary to NPTC’s preferred spatial strategy simply in 

order to meet identified needs, principally for new housing.  

4.2.2 In most cases, it is recommended that the identified sustainability issues should be addressed 

within the ISA through the inclusion of relevant objectives within a framework (‘the ISA 

Framework’) which will be used to assess the likely sustainability and environmental effects of 

the RLDP. Full details regarding the proposed ISA Framework and constituent SA Objectives 

are set out in Section 5. 

4.2.3 The RLDP will need to take account of a range of new Acts, policy frameworks, initiatives, 

evidence and spatial issues at national, regional and local levels since the adoption of the 

current LDP. These can be summarised as follows: 

 Contextual Changes: Changes deriving from economic and social fallout from the 
Covid-19 pandemic, the impacts of Brexit and renewed efforts to reduce societal 
inequalities. Evidence base changes associated with Welsh Government Population and 
Household projections; policy shifts through the Future Wales 2040 the regional work 
associated with the Swansea Bay City Deal (SBCD); and the designation of the Port 
Talbot Waterfront Enterprise Zone and the work of the Valleys Taskforce. Broadly, but the 
implementation of these economic development strategies should drive higher rates of 
growth; 

 Level and Spatial Distribution of Growth: In a context of recent difficulty in achieving 
housing and employment development targets, the level and spatial distribution of growth 
needs to be reconsidered to establish the most appropriate strategic approach to land 
use. This will entail developing a refreshed or new spatial strategy to underpin the RLDP; 

 Housing Land Supply. A housing land supply shortfall has emerged, albeit in the 
context of lower than anticipated developer demand for housebuilding. In addition, the RR 
has identified a shortfall in housing delivery as one of the primary issues to be addressed 
in the RLDP; and,  

 Strategic Regeneration Areas: Linked to issues around demand for land for housing 
and economic development, and a greater policy focus on viability within PPW – 11th 
Edition, there will be a need to reconsider existing sites and allocate new effective sites. 

Tudalen183



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

16 

Future Wales 2040 identifies Neath Port Talbot, Swansea and Llanelli to be the main 
existing centre of population, employment and services within the Swansea Bay and 
Llanelli National Growth Area, acknowledging the region’s potential in decarbonisation 
and tourism-based diversification  

4.2.4 New Policy Areas: PPW – 11th Edition continues a number of changes set in motion by PPW 
- 10th Edition including principles that will be needed to put placemaking and driving place 
prosperity at the heart of development. Other statutory and national policy shifts which need to 
be implemented via the RLDP including responding to the wellbeing objectives set out by ‘The 
Neath Port Talbot We Want (Well-being Plan 2018-2023) for the NPTC area in accordance 
with the requirements of the Wellbeing of Future Generations Act 2015, namely: 

I. Improve the well-being of children and young people; 

II. Improve the well-being of all adults; and, 

III. Develop the local economy and environment.  

4.2.5 In addition, the Welsh Government has commenced the Socio-economic Duty (March 2021) 
under the Equality Act 2010 whilst NPTC has published their second Strategic Equality Plan 
(2020-2024) which focuses on enhancing health, well-being, community safety and quality of 
life for all. The plan also seeks to also improve staff training and implement the monitoring of 
data and information to identify and address disadvantages experienced by NPT residents.  
Overall, it seeks to improve access to services and information for all. 

Sustainability Performance of the Adopted NPT LDP (2016)  

4.2.6 The LDP Review Report (NPTC, 2020) identifies a number of main issues which fall within the 

SA topics.  

 Population: The latest 2019 ‘Joint Housing Land Supply Availability Study’ has identified 
a housing land supply of 4.5 years, below the required 5 years for the first time since the 
plan was adopted. In addition, falling residual values and increases in build costs over the 
Plan has impacted housing viability and associated delivery of affordable housing and 
other planning obligations. In the 2020 AMR, the delivery of homes has fallen short of 
annual targets since 2014/15, with the latest estimations (2020) showing a shortfall of 
30% from the projected 8760 homes by the end of the plan period in 2026.  With regard 
to employment, there has been no new development on allocated employment sites in 
the last two years, impacting the ability of NPT to meet employment targets of 3,850 jobs 
in the area over the Plan period.  Limited progress with regard to Strategic Regeneration 
Areas has also contributed to the shortfall. Indicators have also shown that there is a 
shortfall in the delivery of new small local retail development; 

 Climate Change: The indicators in respect of the SA climate change objectives suggest 
that the LDP is not fully meeting aspirations in respect of climate change adaptation or 
mitigation. In particular, since Plan adoption, there have been instances where proposals 
have been approved within flood risk and protected areas contrary to policy; the LDP 
density requirements are often not being met; and the number of renewable / low carbon 
energy schemes has been lower than expected; 

 Natural Resources: In respect of the SA natural resources objectives, NPT have 
expressed concerns that low density development has an unnecessarily large impact per 
unit on natural resources generally; 

 Biodiversity and Geodiversity: Targets of preventing net loss of biodiversity are not 
being met, partly due to developments having adverse effects on locally designated and 
protected areas and partly due to a lack of biodiversity enhancement within development 
sites or funded through developer contributions; 

Tudalen184



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

17 

 Landscape, Townscape and Historic Character: A small number of developments 
have been permitted contrary to LDP policy on landscape and green wedges, giving rise 
to concerns about meeting the SA objective to protect and enhance the area's landscape 
and townscape; 

 Community Cohesion: Indicators showing the loss of community facilities, approvals for 
new 'town centre uses' in out of-centre locations and shortfalls in delivery of new housing 
and affordable housing, open space, employment floorspace and small scale local retail 
suggest some mixed impacts in respect of the SA social cohesion objective; 

 Health and Well-being: Indicators showing loss of community facilities, shortfalls in open 
space provision and decreasing levels of workplace employment and economic activity 
suggest some mixed or negative impacts in respect of the SA objectives concerning 
health and poverty; and, 

 Material Assets: Indicators showing difficulty in regenerating major brownfield sites with 
market conditions favouring, easier to develop, smaller scale land opportunities. 

4.2.7 In summary, these issues give rise to a number of key Sustainability Issues which have been 

assessed alongside a review of the baseline environmental information identified in Appendix 

A. These are set out in accordance with the Environmental Assessment of Plans and 

Programmes (Wales) Regulations 2004 (‘the SEA Regulations’) criteria.  

Tudalen185



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

18 

Table 4.1: Key Sustainability Issues relating to the Neath Port Talbot LDP Review 

SEA Topic Key Sustainability Issues 

Biodiversity, Flora & Fauna The need to conserve, protect and enhance biodiversity including important species and sites designated for 
reasons of biodiversity conservation or ecological importance. This relates to the protection of designated sites 
located within the NPTC as well as designated sites in neighbouring authorities, all of which have the potential to 
be affected by the LDP Review and development activity within the NPTC area.  

The need to identify areas and/or opportunities to secure the maintenance and enhancement of biodiversity and 
deliver a net benefit while ensuring the avoidance of adverse effects on locally designated and protected areas.  

The need to safeguard and enhance the green infrastructure network and to maintain and enhance landscape & 
biodiversity connections between designated sites and habitats, both locally and at a landscape scale (i.e. within 
the NPTC area and to those in neighbouring authorities). 

The need to protect and enhance ecosystem resilience and safeguard resilient ecological networks (RENs). 

The need to fully consider the implications of the nature emergency.  

In addressing the above key issues, there is also a specific need to satisfy the biodiversity and resilience of 
ecosystems duty as prescribed within section 6 of the Environment (Wales) Act 2016. 

Population (including relevant 
socio-economic issues) 

The need to maximise socio-economic benefits from the opportunities identified in the Swansea Bay and Llanelli 
National Growth Area and in the implementation of the Swansea Bay City Region Deal, particularly for the 
advancement of energy and manufacturing technologies and related employment opportunities in the NPTC 
area.  

The need to align with the preparation of a potential Strategic Development Plan (SDP) for South West Wales in 
accordance with the Welsh Government’s expectations. 

The need to encourage co-operation between neighbouring authorities in Plan making to facilitate cross 
boundary growth and partnership working.  

The need to plan for meeting the needs of an ageing population.  

T
udalen186



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

19 

SEA Topic Key Sustainability Issues 

The need to support the achievement of the NPT Local Wellbeing Objectives as part of meeting the sustainable 
development requirements (as set out in Section 3 of the Wellbeing of Future Generations Act 2015).  

The need to deliver a sufficient quantum of good quality and well-located new housing to meet a range of 
identified needs.  

The need to deliver economic growth and increase employment opportunities, including for local residents. 

The need to tackle inequality of access to educational, training and employment opportunities.  

The need to tackle deprivation, including areas with existing deprivation linked to poor accessibility to key 
services, facilities and economic opportunities. 

The need to ensure that community facilities and services are appropriate and accessible to users to meet the 
diverse needs of residents and workers. 

The need to improve the accessibility of key destinations within the NPTC area and to other key locations 
through enhancing the transport network. 

Human Health The need to enhance all aspects of the health and wellbeing of the population, including physical health, mental 
health, social wellbeing, safety and security. 

The need to protect and enhance access to community facilities, healthcare facilities, high quality open space 
provision and active travel routes for all residents. 

The need to create safe, healthy and liveable urban environments.  

The need to support the achievement of the NPT Local Wellbeing Objectives to improve the health of all NPTC 
residents.  

The need to support the aims of the South West Wales Area Statement in relation to the ‘Reducing Health 
Inequalities’ theme.  

T
udalen187



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

20 

SEA Topic Key Sustainability Issues 

The need to address harassment and discrimination experienced by some residents with additional 
requirements.  

The need to monitor data and information with regard to the improvement in health for all residents.  

Soil The need to encourage and/or facilitate development on previously developed brownfield land. 

The need to safeguard the best and most versatile agricultural land from development.   

The need to maximise the efficient use of available land and prioritise the redevelopment of brownfield land. 

The need to safeguard geodiversity, important soil resources and to remediate areas of known contamination, 
particularly at post-industrial sites. 

The need to reduce emissions and nitrate pollution from agriculture. 

The need to minimise soil erosion and the loss of soils to non-permeable surfaces. 

The need to protect, enhance and restore important soil resources, including peatlands. 

The need to support the aims of the South West Wales Area Statement in protecting, enhancing and restoring 
important soil resources in relation to the ‘ Ensuring Sustainable Land Management theme’.  

Water The need to protect and enhance the quality of water resources and the water environment. This extends to the 
protection of cross-boundary watercourses which flow through the NPTC area and to the River Neath and River 
Afan which flow into Swansea Bay. It also requires the protection, maintenance and enhancement of drainage 
infrastructure. This includes the consideration of opportunities for integrated water catchment management as 
set out in the Swansea Bay ‘Opportunity Catchment Areas’ described in the third cycle River Basin Management 
Plans (RBMP) (2021-2027) 

The need to address impacts on water quality across the borough caused by point source pollution as a result of 
NPTC’s industrial profile.  

T
udalen188



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

21 

SEA Topic Key Sustainability Issues 

The need to locate new development away from areas of flood risk, to fully mitigate potential flood risks from all 
sources, and to future-proof flood defences. 

Air The need to minimise the emissions of air pollutants. 

The need to safeguard and improve air quality, including through addressing areas with poor air quality. 

The need to address the poor air quality that resulted in the announcement of a public health crisis declared by 
Public Health Wales, particularly with regard to ammonia.  

Climatic Factors The need to ensure that the built environment and infrastructure is resilient and adaptable to the effects of 
climate change, taking account of the coastal location of the NPTC area. 

The need to ensure that ecosystems and the natural environment are resilient and able to adapt to climate 
change. 

The need to mitigate climate change including through the decarbonisation of key economic sectors. 

The need to ensure that the RLDP meets aspiration in respect of climate change adaptation or mitigation. In 
particular, proposals contrary to policy within flood risk and protected areas and those failing to meet density 
requirements should not be approved.  

The need to encourage the development of renewable/low carbon energy schemes in the NPTC area.  

The need to mitigate air and water quality impacts caused by industrial uses in the borough.  

The need to mitigate and address the climate emergency declared by the Welsh Government in April 2019.  

The need to support the aims of the South West Wales Area Statement in mitigating and adapting to climate 
change in relation to the aims of the ‘Mitigating and Adapting to a Changing Climate’ theme. 

The need to mitigate and address the nature emergency declared by the Welsh Government in June 2021. 

T
udalen189



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

22 

SEA Topic Key Sustainability Issues 

The need to support the aims of Shoreline Management Plans (SMPs) in addressing coastal erosion.  

Material Assets  The need to maximise the efficient use of land, natural resources and existing infrastructure. This includes the 
need to prioritise the redevelopment of brownfield land, the re-use and recycling of materials, and the 
minimization of waste sent to landfill. 

The need to address socio-economic impacts in areas experiencing post-industrial decline through new 
development.  

The need to understand the impacts on natural resources due to footprint of development.  

The need to identify opportunities for action to create healthy places for people as set out in the DISRUPT 
framework in the Second State of Natural Resources Report (SoNaRR 2020). 

 

Cultural Heritage The need to preserve, protect and enhance cultural heritagehistoric assets and their settings within the NPTC 
area. 

The need to safeguard and support growth in the use of the Welsh language.   

Landscape The need to protect and enhance landscape character, townscape character, key views and visual amenity. This 
extends to the protection of landscapes in the parts of NPTC within the Brecon Beacons National Park and in 
other neighbouring authorities.  

The need to protect tranquillity and address light pollution issues as set out in the draft TAN 11: Noise  

Inter-related effects The need to deliver holistic improvements to wellbeing and to contribute to the delivery of sustainable 
development across the NPTC area, particularly with regard to the promotion of social cohesion.  

T
udalen190



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

23 

SEA Topic Key Sustainability Issues 

The need to promote access to services and information for all to ensure equality of access for residents with 
additional needs.  

T
udalen191



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

24 

4.3 Relationship between the LDP Review and Other Relevant Plans and 

Programmes 

4.3.1 The following types of plans and programmes were examined for their relevance to the LDP 

Review and this ISA: 

 International conventions and treaties; 

 European Directives and associated legislation; 

 Legislation enacted by the UK Parliament and the Welsh Assembly; and, 

 Policy documents and strategies published at the national, regional and local levels, 
including by the UK Government, the Welsh Assembly Government (and its agencies), 
NPTC and the NPT Public Service Board (NPTPSB). 

Implications of Recent Changes to Welsh National Planning Policy 

4.3.2 On 24th February 2021, both Planning Policy Wales 11th Edition and Future Wales 2040 were 
published by the Welsh Government. The publication of Future Wales 2040, along with the 
LDP forms part of the statutory development plan for Wales. PPW 10th Edition, TAN1,,TAN8 
and the Wales Spatial Plan are now revoked. The main implications of the publication of these 
documents are outlined below: 

 Future Wales 2040 

o The implementation of a four region approach, containing three National Growth 
Areas and 11 Regional Growth Areas; 

o The introduction of specific climate change targets, namely that 70% of electricity 
consumption is to be generated from renewable energy by 2030, one gigawatt of 
renewable energy capacity is to be locally owned by 2030 and that new renewable 
energy projects to have at least an element of local ownership from 2020; 

o The removal of TAN8 and Strategic Search Areas, replaced by Pre-Assessed Areas 
for Wind Energy, covering c. 281,0000 hectares (from a previous 77,000 ha for SSAs) 
and the introduction of Priority Areas for District Heat Networks; 

o The need for preparation of Strategic Development Plans in conformity with Future 
Wales 2040 (of which NPT will form part of the South West Wales SDP). The SDPs 
should consider strategic regional issues including future growth areas, housing 
demand, economic development, transport and green infrastructure, responding to the 
Future Wales Outcomes in Chapter 3 of the NDF; and, 

o NPT is identified as part of the Swansea Bay and Llanelli National Growth Area 
(Policy 28) Strategic and Local Development Plans should recognise the National 
Growth Area as the focus for strategic economic and housing growth; essential 
services and facilities; advanced manufacturing; transport and digital infrastructure. 

 Planning Policy Wales 11th Edition 

o The ability to deliver housing requirements must now be demonstrated through a 
housing trajectory, prepared as part of the development plan process and forming part 
of the plan. The housing trajectory will form part of the evidence base for the 
development plan Annual Monitoring Reports (AMRs) replacing Housing Land Supply 
and resulting in the revocation of TAN1: Joint Housing Land Availability Studies. 

Tudalen192



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

25 

4.3.3 Strengthened commitment to renewable energies to address the Climate Emergency in 

support of the targets announced by Future Wales 2040A detailed review of the other plans 

and programmes identified as relevant to the LDP Review is provided in Appendix B. From 

this review, it is clear that the RLDP should:  

 Seek to capitalise on the socio-economic opportunities presented by the Swansea Bay 
City Deal Project and the Swansea Bay and Llanelli National Growth Area; 

 Align with the National Development Framework (NDF) for Wales and the requirement for 
the preparation of a SDP for South West Wales; 

 Seek to enhance all aspects of health and wellbeing for the population of the NPTC area, 
including through providing high quality health infrastructure, improving physical and 
mental health and providing opportunities to enhance social wellbeing. In accordance 
with Section 3 of the WFG Act, the LDP Review (resulting in the adoption of a RLDP) 
should contribute to sustainable development and support the achievement of  locally 
defined wellbeing objectives as set out within the Neath Port Talbot We Want (Well-being 
Plan 2018 – 2023); 

 Secure sustainable economic growth and inward investment across the NPTC area 
through allocating suitable sites for development and by delivering the infrastructure 
required to increase connectivity, improve community and social infrastructure and 
increase access to high quality employment and economic opportunities. It will also be 
important for the RLDP to set out a spatial strategy which maximises the economic 
competitiveness of the NPTC area and improves social wellbeing, taking account of its 
position on the hinterland of the Swansea City Region and its current socio-economic 
conditions; 

 Identify and plan to meet the needs of all residents and workers within the NPTC area, in 
particular with respect to the provision of adequate community infrastructure; 

 Deliver well-designed and affordable homes to meet identified housing needs, including 
providing a range of sizes and tenures; 

 Reduce car dependencies and improve active travel infrastructure; 

 Deliver improved and expanded transport links, public transport and enhanced 
communications infrastructure, both to communities within the NPTC area and to key 
destinations in neighbouring authorities; 

 Protect and enhance access to high quality outdoor sports facilities, parks and open 
spaces; 

 Conserve, preserve, protect and enhance sites designated at international, national and 
local levels for reasons of biodiversity conservation, ecological importance, geological 
importance or heritage significance, in ways appropriate to their status; 

 Develop effective community engagement techniques to respond to the views of wider 
communities and facilitate effective community cohesion; 

 Promote the efficient use of resources, including moving towards a low carbon economy, 
use of waste as a resource, energy efficient buildings, and appropriate renewable and 
low carbon energy; 

 Take measures to protect air quality levels and aim to mitigate any activity which could 
affect air quality levels across the NPTC area; 

Tudalen193



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

26 

 Ensure there are no significant negative impacts on internationally and nationally 
designated nature sites (refer to separate Habitats Regulations Assessment Initial 
Screening Report for further details); 

 Give full consideration to the potential impacts on water, including water quality, 
ecosystems, sustainable use of water, capacity of sewerage, flood risk and the 
opportunities to improve flood risk management; 

 Seek ways to maximise multi-functional green infrastructure coverage and ensure they 
provide a network of linked wildlife corridors (across a wide range of scales and increase 
ecosystems services including biodiversity; 

 Seek ways to maximise the health benefits of green infrastructure; 

 Use land efficiently by prioritising the use of previously developed land; 

 Consider soil quality and agricultural land classification when assessing potential 
development sites; 

 Recognise the different landscapes in the NPTC area and their capacity to accommodate 
change; and, 

 Promote development that minimises landscape impacts and protects landscapes 
appropriate to their significance. 

4.3.4 To ensure that the LDP Review addresses the key policy issues listed above, it will be 
necessary for them to be considered throughout the ISA. As with the identified key 
sustainability issues (Section 4.2 above), this will be done through the application of a holistic 
ISA Framework, including constituent ISA Objectives, as a core element of the ISA process. 
The proposed ISA Framework to support the NPT LDP Review is detailed in Section 5. 

Tudalen194



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

27 

5 Proposed Neath Port Talbot RLDP ISA Framework 

5.1 Introduction 

5.1.1 This section identifies and seeks the views of the SEA Consultation Bodies and other relevant 

consultees regarding a proposed assessment framework (‘the ISA Framework’) to underpin an 

ISA of the LDP Review. Once finalised, this ISA Framework will be applied in accordance with 

the assessment methodology outlined in Section 6 to assess likely significant environmental, 

health, equalities, Welsh language, and wider sustainability effects from all emerging 

substantive components of a RLDP (and any identified reasonable alternatives) throughout 

the LDP Review. 

5.1.2 Establishing an appropriate ISA Framework is central to identifying LSE as this allows the ISA 

to focus on key sustainability issues and to proportionately assess each substantive 

component as it emerges. Broadly, the ISA Framework should comprise a suite of related 

objectives which, when applied together, should define in objective terms the direction of 

travel and spatial outcomes required for the plan or programme to contribute positively to the 

delivery of sustainable development while meeting statutory requirements, and guidance, in 

relation to well-being, equalities, the protection of the Welsh Language, and health. These ISA 

Objectives are therefore distinct from, but should relate to, policy objectives defined at multiple 

spatial levels including within the emerging plan which is being subject to ISA. 

5.1.3 To be effective tools for assessment, ISA Objectives and the overall ISA Framework must be 

grounded within a detailed understanding of the socio-economic, environmental and policy 

contexts within which a RLDP will operate. The ISA Objectives also need to be targeted 

towards addressing key sustainability issues of relevance to both the spatial context of the 

NPTC area and the proposed content of the emerging RLDP. 

5.2 Summary of Existing SA Framework LDP Review 

5.2.1 Table 5.1 below lists the Sustainability Appraisal Objectives (SA Objectives) within the 

existing NPTC LDP SA Framework (2016) and considers their continuing validity. This has 

been carried out with a view to incorporating the SA framework within a broader ISA 

framework to inform the LDP Review.  

5.2.2 The review of the existing NPT LDP SA Framework provided in Table 5.1 indicates that whilst 

all components remain valid, a new ISA Framework is required to: 

 Ensure the ISA and more widely the preparation of a RLDP responds to the identified key 
sustainability issues (Table 4.1); 

 Account for policy changes at all spatial scales; 

 Reflect the inclusion of wider assessment topics by changing from a ‘SA’ to a ‘ISA’; 

 Respond to points which could improve the application of the framework; and, 

 Respond to issues which the framework has not covered.  

5.3 Review of the Existing Neath Port Talbot LDP SA Framework 

5.3.1 The starting point of this ISA process is to consider whether the SA Framework devised for the 

SA (incorporating SEA) of the first NPTC LDP remains valid or if a revised framework is 

needed to allow the LDP Review ISA to proportionately and effectively respond to key 

Tudalen195



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

28 

sustainability issues identified in Section 4. Temporarily leaving aside the change in scope 

between the SA previously reported and the ISA now being undertaken, Table 5.1 provides a 

review of the existing SA Framework for the adopted NPT LDP (2016). This considers the 

continuing validity of the current SA Objectives, including in the context of the LDP Review 

now being subject to a broader ISA process. 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen196



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

29 

Table 5.1: Review of the Existing NPTC LDP SA Framework  

Neath Port Talbot LDP SA Objective 
Title and Goal 

Neath Port Talbot LDP SA 
Objective 

Assessment of Continuing 
Validity 

Overall Assessment of Continuing 
Validity 

1. Climate Change 

Goal: A community that is resilient to the 
likely impacts of climate change and 
minimises greenhouse gas production. 

1A: Ensure that all development 
takes into account likely future 
changes resulting from climate 
change (Adaptation). 

The SA objective directly 
addresses climate change 
adaptation priorities. This remains 
valid. 

The overall Climate Change SA Objective 
clearly remains valid. Climate change effects 
and implications have become more evident 
over the course of the LDP and Government 
targets have been increased accordingly.  

The preceding sections have demonstrated 
that the LDP has not fully met aspirations in 
respect of climate change adaptation of 
mitigation. But this is an issue with the 
application of LDP policy rather than the SA 
Objective itself. 

The Welsh Government set a new target of 
reduction of 95% from 1990 levels by 2050 
in 2019 and declared a climate emergency in 
2019. 

However, in their current form the three 
objectives 1a-1c risk isolating specific 
aspects of climate change and, in the 
context of now undertaking a broader ISA, 
undermining assessment proportionality. A 
more holistic approach to achieving climate 
change adaptation and mitigation should 
therefore be adopted in a new ISA 
Framework. This should incorporate 
Objectives 1a-1c which already act as 
criteria or questions which prompt the 
identification of impacts. They should be 
joined with other criteria/questions to provide 

1B: Achieve government targets 
for reducing greenhouse gas 
emissions (Mitigation). 

Directly addressed the need to 
achieve government targets. This 
remains valid. Targets are now 
more ambitious than previously. 

 

1C: Make the area's 
appropriate contribution to 
national energy production 
(Mitigation). 

This SA Objective usefully focuses 
on renewable energy generation 
and is appropriately supportive 
policy framework for the 
development of renewable energy 
schemes. This remains valid. 

T
udalen197



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

30 

Neath Port Talbot LDP SA Objective 
Title and Goal 

Neath Port Talbot LDP SA 
Objective 

Assessment of Continuing 
Validity 

Overall Assessment of Continuing 
Validity 

a more holistic Climate Change SA 
objective.  

It is recommended that one Climate Change 
ISA Objective is developed with a specific 
purpose, and this should be supported by a 
series of criteria or questions to guide LDP 
development incorporating and adding to 1a-
1c. 

2. Natural Resources and Waste 

 
Goal: A community that protects and 
enhances natural resources and 
minimises the generation of waste. 

2A: Minimise loss or 
degradation of natural 
resources while ensuring that 
they are used only in a 
sustainable way. 

This remains a valid element of an 
overall approach to the quantity of 
natural resources.  

The overall SA objective on Natural 
Resources and Waste remains valid and 
there remains a strong rationale to 
incorporate these within one objective.  

In its current form the three objectives 2a-2c 
risk isolating specific aspects of the issue of 
natural resources and waste.  

The Environment (Wales) Act 2016 and 
National Natural Resources Policy (NNRP) 
(2017) contain policy implications – such as 
the principles of Sustainable Management of 
Natural Resources - which could be reflected 
in the SA Objective criteria. TAN 21 and 
PPW have been updated, two important 
outcomes are a focus on circular economy 
and prevention via the waste hierarchy. 

It is recommended that one natural 
resources and waste ISA Objective is 
developed with a specific purpose, and this 
should be supported by a series of criteria or 

2B: Maintain and improve the 
chemical and 
biological/ecological quality of 
natural resources. 

This remains a valid element of an 
overall approach to the quality of 
natural resources.  

2C: Minimise waste and reduce 
amounts of waste disposed of 
to landfill. 

This remains a valid element of an 
overall approach to reducing 
waste and landfill. 

T
udalen198



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

31 

Neath Port Talbot LDP SA Objective 
Title and Goal 

Neath Port Talbot LDP SA 
Objective 

Assessment of Continuing 
Validity 

Overall Assessment of Continuing 
Validity 

questions to guide LDP development 
incorporating and adding to 2a-2c. 

3. Biodiversity and Geodiversity 

Goal: A community where biodiversity 
and geodiversity are valued and a 
healthy and diverse natural ecosystem is 
nurtured, supported and enhanced. 

3A: Prevent any further net loss 
of biodiversity. 

This remains a valid element of an 
overall approach to protecting 
biodiversity, particularly in terms of 
providing an explicit commitment. 

The overall SA objective on Biodiversity and 
Geodiversity remains valid and there 
remains a strong rationale to incorporate 
these within one objective.  

Changes in the Environment (Wales) Act 
2016 and PPW have added further weight to 
the SA Objective, this now requires 
biodiversity enhancement and this should be 
recognised. The role of Green Infrastructure 
has also been heightened The Section 6 
duty introduced by the Environment Act and 
the well-being goals set out in the Wellbeing 
of Future Generations Act – the importance 
of biodiversity in ‘resilience’ - must 
be key considerations cutting across SEA 
objectives. 
 

In its current form the three objectives 3a-3c 
risk isolating specific aspects of biodiversity 
and geodiversity. A more holistic approach to 
biodiversity and geodiversity should be 
taken. This should incorporate Objectives 
3a-3c which already act as criteria or 
questions which prompt the identification of 
impacts. They should be joined with other 
criteria/questions to provide a more holistic 
biodiversity and geodiversity objective. Other 
factors including green infrastructure and 

3B: Exploit all reasonable 
opportunities to secure 
biodiversity enhancements. 

This remains a valid element of an 
overall approach to enhancing 
biodiversity. 

3C: Minimise adverse effects on 
designated geodiversity sites. 

This remains a valid element of an 
overall approach to protecting 
geodiversity and biodiversity sites 
could also be explicitly addressed. 

T
udalen199



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

32 

Neath Port Talbot LDP SA Objective 
Title and Goal 

Neath Port Talbot LDP SA 
Objective 

Assessment of Continuing 
Validity 

Overall Assessment of Continuing 
Validity 

human-environmental relations, e.g. the 
provision of access to nature for all 
communities should also be addressed. 

The issue of soil quality protection is not 
included within the framework and should be 
included within a new Objective. 

It is recommended that one Biodiversity and 
Geodiversity and Soil ISA Objective is 
developed with a specific purpose, and this 
should be supported by a series of criteria or 
questions to guide LDP development 
incorporating and adding to 3a-3c. 

4. Landscape, Townscape and 

Historic Character 

Goal: A community where the County 
Borough’s distinctive and varied 
landscapes, townscapes and historic 
character are valued, conserved and 
enhanced. 

4A: Protect and/or enhance the 
area's landscape and 
townscape. 

This remains a valid element of an 
overall approach to both 
landscape and townscape. 
However, it does not specifically 
mention historic landscapes or 
assets.  

This SA Objective succinctly identifies some 
key elements of landscape protection of 
relevance to the area but does not include 
historic landscapes. It therefore misses an 
opportunity to demonstrate compliance with 
Schedule 2 of the SEA Regulations with 
regards to the assessment of likely 
significant effects on “cultural heritage”. This 
is important as cultural heritage is not 
explicitly addressed elsewhere in the current 
SA Framework. 

Changes in the Environment (Wales) Act 
2016 and PPW have added further support 
to the validity of each element (landscape, 
townscape, historic character) of the SA 
Objective. The principles 
of Sustainable Management of Natural 

4B: Protect and/or enhance the 
area's historic environment 
including architectural and 
archaeological resources. 

This remains a valid element of an 
overall approach to protecting and 
enhancing the historic 
environment. 

T
udalen200



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

33 

Neath Port Talbot LDP SA Objective 
Title and Goal 

Neath Port Talbot LDP SA 
Objective 

Assessment of Continuing 
Validity 

Overall Assessment of Continuing 
Validity 

Resources has implications. Interlinked with 
biodiversity and geodiversity, opportunities 
for species and habitat connectivity should 
be considered on a landscape scale. The 
placemaking theme introduced by PPW10 
and continued in PPW11, together with 
TAN12 (Design) amended in 2016 means a 
closer link between heritage and 
placemaking could be made via new criteria 
– criteria could be focused on protection and 
maintaining distinctiveness. 
 

The preceding section has demonstrated 
that the LDP has not fully met aspirations in 
respect of landscape designation protection. 
Whilst this is an issue with the application of 
LDP policy rather than the ISA Objective 
itself, the ISA Objective’s criteria or 
questions could include specific reference to 
landscape designations. 

5. Pollution (Air Quality, Noise and 

Light) 

Goal: A community free from significant 
air, noise and light pollution.  
 

5A: Achieve acceptable levels 
(meet national/European 
standards) of air quality 
throughout the County Borough. 

This remains a valid. Air Quality 
was identified as a Key Issue for 
the LDP Review to address. 

Given the specific land use implications of 
reducing and mitigating air pollution, and its 
specific identification within Schedule 2 of 
the SEA Regulations, it is recommended that 
a separate Air Pollution ISA Objectives is 
created. Light and Noise pollution are more 
appropriately addressed under a holistic 
Health and Wellbeing objective. The relevant 
ISA Objectives should be supported by a 

5B: Achieve acceptable noise 
levels and protect quiet areas 
throughout the County Borough. 

This remains valid.  

T
udalen201



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

34 

Neath Port Talbot LDP SA Objective 
Title and Goal 

Neath Port Talbot LDP SA 
Objective 

Assessment of Continuing 
Validity 

Overall Assessment of Continuing 
Validity 

5C: Reduce light pollution. This remains valid. series of criteria or questions to guide LDP 
development incorporating and adding to 5a-
5c. 

Changes to PPW will need to be accounted 
for. PPW now refers to the need to promote 
appropriate soundscapes depending on 
context. 

6. Community Cohesion 

Goal: A community whose culture and 
character are enhanced, and individuals 
are not limited by social exclusion. 

6A: Improve social cohesion 
and minimise the incidence of 
social exclusion by addressing 
the causes of social exclusion. 

This remains a valid element of an 
overall approach to reducing 
social exclusion and promoting 
socio-economic equality of 
opportunity and outcome. 

Both criteria remain valid, but it is 
recommended that these are separated into 
an objective on socio-economic aspect of 
social inclusion opportunity and another on 
cultural heritage and protection including the 
protection of the Welsh Language. PPW 11 
considers protection of the Welsh language 
within ‘cultural considerations’, alongside the 
historic and cultural environment and 
promoting cultural value and experience. 

6B: Protect and enhance the 
culture and character of 
communities including cultural 
resources and Welsh language. 

This remains valid. The 
importance of assessing for 
impacts on Welsh language have 
been confirmed within PPW 11th 
edition, TAN20), Planning Wales 
Act 2015 and Development Plans 
Manual 3rd edition 2020. 

7. Health and Wellbeing (including 

poverty/deprivation) 

Goal: A community where individuals 
have the opportunity to realise their 
potential unhindered by ill health or 
poverty 

7A: Improve physical and 
mental health outcomes for all. 

This remains a valid element of an 
overall approach to improving 
health and wellbeing by 
recognising links with poverty and 
deprivation. 

The overall SA objective on Health and 
Wellbeing remains valid and there remains a 
strong rationale to incorporate these within 
one SA objective.  

The preceding section has demonstrated 
that the LDP has not fully met aspirations for 
improved economic outcomes – strongly 

7B: Reduce/minimise the 
incidence and impacts of ill 

This remains a valid element of an 
overall approach to improving 

T
udalen202



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

35 

Neath Port Talbot LDP SA Objective 
Title and Goal 

Neath Port Talbot LDP SA 
Objective 

Assessment of Continuing 
Validity 

Overall Assessment of Continuing 
Validity 

health by addressing the 
causes and consequences of ill 
health, health inequalities and 
poor wellbeing. 

health and wellbeing by 
recognising links with poverty and 
deprivation. 

linked to health. This is not an issue with SA 
framework and the validity of the overall SA 
Objective, which takes a holistic approach to 
health and wellbeing remains sound overall.  

To ensure that the ISA complies with 
Schedule 2 of the SEA Regulations, takes 
account of the Well-being of Future 
Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and fully 
incorporates the requirements of  Wellbeing 
Assessment with the ISA, a new ISA 
Objective should incorporate 7a) to 7c) and 
be extended to include other criteria in order 
to promote a holistic interpretation of health 
and wellbeing, including physical health, 
mental health, social wellbeing, safety and 
security. As such, criteria should explicitly 
capture issues including mental health, 
educational attainment, crime prevention, 
residential amenity and multiple deprivation. 

7C: Reduce/minimise the 
incidence and impacts of 
poverty by addressing the 
causes and consequences of 
poverty. 

This remains a valid element of an 
overall approach to improving 
health and wellbeing by 
recognising links with poverty and 
deprivation. 

8. Economy 

Goal: A community where the local 
economy is resilient to global economic, 
social and climatic change and creates/ 
sustains a good quality of life for all 
residents within the community. 

8A: Develop and support a local 
economic infrastructure that is 
attractive to business and that 
meets the changing needs of 
the local and national 
community. 

This remains a valid element of an 
overall approach to improving the 
local economy.  

The overall SA objective on Economy 
remains valid and there remains a strong 
rationale to incorporate these within one 
objective.  

The preceding section has demonstrated 
that the LDP has not fully met aspirations in 
respect of economic growth particularly in 

T
udalen203



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

36 

Neath Port Talbot LDP SA Objective 
Title and Goal 

Neath Port Talbot LDP SA 
Objective 

Assessment of Continuing 
Validity 

Overall Assessment of Continuing 
Validity 

 

8B: Develop and support an 
economy that safeguards while 
complementing, promoting and 
enhancing investment in, and 
the use of, local resources and 
environmental assets. 

This remains a valid element of an 
overall approach to improving the 
local economy. 

terms of its spatial focus. While this is an 
issue with the application of LDP policy 
rather than the SA Objective itself, the SA 
Objective’s criteria or questions could 
include specific reference to ensuring 
economic growth achieves regeneration 
aims.  

In its current form the three objectives 8a-8c 
risk isolating specific aspects of Economy. A 
more holistic approach to economic growth 
and resilience should be taken. This should 
incorporate ISA Objectives 8a-8c as criteria 
rather than separately. 

Regeneration strategic priorities could also 
be addressed through other SA Objectives 
regarding land use, reducing inequalities, 
placemaking and social wellbeing.  
To be more effective, a new suite of more 
integrated ISA Objectives focused on 
economic growth, regeneration, investment 
and employment should take account of the 
updated context including,  the implications 
for NPT of the Swansea Bay City Deal , 
Enterprise Zone at Port Talbot, potential for 
the Swansea Bay Metro and the NDF. There 
is also the opportunity to consider the link 
between The Well-being of Future 
Generations Act which could provide an 
additional focus on skills and inclusion as 
key to sustainable economic growth. 

 

8C: Develop and support an 
economy that complements, 
uses and enhances the skills 
and knowledge of the local 
community. 

This remains a valid element of an 
overall approach to improving the 
local economy 

 

T
udalen204



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

37 

5.4 Proposed ISA Scope and Objectives for the LDP Review 

5.4.1 This subsection provides an overview of the topics which need to be considered through this 
ISA and therefore within the ISA Framework. The scope of the ISA Framework must be 
sufficiently wide to enable the likely significant environmental effects and the likely equalities 
and health effects of the emerging LDP Review to be identified and addressed in accordance 
with statutory requirements (Section 1 and above at paragraph 5.3.3). From Section 4.3 it is 
also clear that the ISA Framework should be broader than that previously used for the NPTC 
LDP. Explicitly, ISA Objectives which respond to the following legal requirements need to be 
incorporated within the framework:  

 Sustainability Appraisal (SA) as required under the Planning and Compulsory Purchase 
Act 2004 and the Development Planning (Wales) Regulations 2005 (‘the 2005 
Regulations’); 

 Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA) as required by the Environmental 
Assessment of Plans and Programmes (Wales) Regulations 2004 (‘the SEA 
Regulations’); 

 Supporting the implementation of wellbeing goals and wellbeing objectives (and the 
discharge of associated duties) as required under the Wellbeing of Future Generations 
(Wales) Act 2015. The preparation of the RLDP needs to consider social, economic, 
environmental and cultural well-being; 

 Equalities impact assessment (EqIA) under the Equality Act 2010; 

 Health impact assessment (HIA) – non-statutory but needed to support robust SEA, EqIA 
and wellbeing assessment processes; and, 

 Welsh Language Impact Assessment (WLIA) as required under the Welsh Language 
Standards (No.1) Regulations 2015 and PPW -11th Edition. 

SEA/SA 

5.4.2 The ISA Framework will need to address all environmental topics prescribed within Schedule 

2 of the SEA Regulations (refer to Section 1.5), as there is potential for significant effect on all 

that cannot be scoped out at this stage and will therefore require further examination through 

the ISA process. The inclusion of ‘population’, ‘human health’ and ‘material assets’ as SEA 

topics provides a basis upon which to assess likely equalities and health effects using the 

same ISA Framework, as detailed below. In accordance with the SEA Regulations, the ISA 

will also assess inter-relationships between effects arising in relation to these environmental 

issues. 

Wellbeing of Future Generations 

5.4.3 The Planning (Wales) Act 2015 sets out the definition of sustainable development for the 

planning system in Wales, mirroring the definition in the WBFGA 2015.  

Sustainable development means the process of improving the economic, social, 

environmental and cultural well-being of Wales by taking action, in accordance with the 

sustainable development principle, aimed at achieving the well-being goals. 

5.4.4 The Wellbeing of Future Generations is at the heart of the planning system. Planning Policy 
Wales (2021) is now driven by the need for a placemaking approach at the heart of planning 
and is tasked with delivering the vision of the Wales as set out in the Well-being of Future 
Generations Act. 

Tudalen205



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

38 

5.4.5 To achieve this, the ISA Scope and the ISA Framework must therefore demonstrate how the 
RLDP will maximise its contribution to the achievement of the WBFGA seven well-being goals. 
In the first instance, the definition of sustainable development provides a clear sustainability 
principle at the heart of the ISA which will have to be approached consistently within the ISA 
framework. The ISA framework must incorporate the seven well-being goals which public 
bodies are required to achieve; these are: 

 A prosperous Wales; 

 A resilient Wales; 

 A healthier Wales; 

 A more equal Wales; 

 A Wales of cohesive communities; 

 A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language; and, 

 A globally responsible Wales. 

5.4.6 These well-being goals will be incorporated within the ISA Framework and will cut across ISA 
Objectives. They reinforce many aspects of the SEA Schedule 2 topics with a particular focus 
on assessing the long-term effects of the RLDP on human and population health. The ISA 
scope and ISA Framework will need to consider economic prosperity rather than short-term 
growth, this is likely to mean a focus on low carbon transition and achieving a more productive 
and more inclusive economy. It will need to consider how resilience can be achieved by 
addressing climate change, for example, and the role for and mutual benefits of biodiversity in 
improving human health outcomes. Health will need to be considered in terms of physical and 
mental wellbeing and the land use implications of this understood. The link between good 
health and socio-economic opportunity will need to be assessed to ensure opportunities for 
good growth are spread as equally as possible. The achievement of social cohesion through 
land use decision making, such as through investment in physical infrastructure, will therefore 
need to be assessed and understood. The importance of maintaining distinctiveness within 
NPTC area and the multiple ways in which land use decisions, in terms of their cultural, 
physical, linguistic, and social impacts, can impact these must be identifiable and considered. 
Finally, when these factors are considered together, the ISA Framework must help NPTC to 
identify how it will contribute to its global sustainability responsibilities.  

5.4.7 The WBFGA 2015 identifies five ways of working which public bodies must demonstrate they 
have carried out when undertaking their duty to achieve sustainable development: 

 Looking to the long term so that we do not compromise the ability of future generations to 
meet their own needs; 

 Understanding the root causes of issues to prevent them from occurring or getting worse; 

 Taking an integrated approach so that public bodies look at all the well-being goals in 
deciding on their well-being objectives; 

 Involving a diversity of the population in the decisions that affect them; and, 

 Working with others in a collaborative way to find shared sustainable solutions. 

5.4.8 The ISA framework through its holistic approach to the RLDP appraisal, and with the Well-
being Goals integrated within, will help ingrain the five-ways of working within the plan-making 
process. 

Tudalen206



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

39 

5.4.9 To implement the WBFG Act at a local level, NPTC has produced a statutorily required Well-
being Plan which shapes the approach taken to relevant Council policies, programmes, and 
strategies. The NPTC RLDP falls within this remit and there are clear implications for the ISA 
Scope and the content of the ISA Framework. The Neath Port Talbot We Want (Well-being 
Plan 2018-2025) identifies six local well-being objectives which the Public Services Board 
intend to pursue to improve the well-being of the people who live in the Neath Port Talbot 
area: 

 Objective 1: To support children in their early years, especially children at risk of adverse 
childhood experiences; 

 Objective 2: Create safe, confident and resilient communities, focussing on vulnerable 
people; 

 Objective 3: Put more life into our later years - Ageing Well; 

 Objective 4: Promote well-being through work and in the workplace; 

 Objective 5: We value our green infrastructure and the contribution it makes to our Well-
being; and, 

 Objective 6: Tackling digital exclusion. 

5.4.10 These well-being objectives will be incorporated within the ISA Framework and will cut across 
ISA Objectives. They reinforce and provide a locally specific implementation mechanism of the 
WBFG Act within the NPTC area. Currently 30% of children in the NPTC area live in poverty.  
The ISA Framework will need to target the RLDP towards improving long term opportunities 
and outcomes for children. Housing, particularly ensuring safe housing for people with 
particular needs, will be a key focus for the RLDP. One key issue identified which has not 
been covered under the existing SA framework is that of Housing. Given the key issues 
identified in Section 4 and issues raised in the NPT Well-being Plan (2018-2025), it is 
recommended that a standalone housing objective is also identified in the ISA framework.   

5.4.11 Housing is a cross cutting issue and a driver of wellbeing. It is integral to meeting the needs of 
an ageing population which has many implications, particularly in terms of housing and access 
to services to improve not just life expectancy but healthy years expectancy. Across 
generations, the ISA Framework will need to be geared towards ensuring better employment 
prospects within NPTC addressing not just employment rates but the quality of employment 
and access to opportunities. The ISA Framework will contain biodiversity criteria, but it is 
important to ensure that these reinforce the human benefits of green infrastructure. The ISA 
Framework will need to recognise the link between sustainable economic growth and digital 
connectivity. The Swansea Bay City Deal is predicated on internet-based opportunities to 
grow quality employment opportunities across the region and so the ISA Framework will need 
to demonstrate how this is supported. 

Equalities Impact Assessment 

5.4.12 The EqIA will be undertaken by assessing the performance of the emerging LDP Review 
against objectives from the ISA Framework relating to tackling inequalities and promoting 
equality and social inclusion. The EqIA will implement the Public Sector Equality and Socio-
economic Duties under the Equality Act 2010. 

5.4.13 The objectives of the EqIA process are to integrate the consideration of relevant equalities 
issues and impacts into the development of the RTS from the outset and, in doing so, to 
demonstrate compliance with the Public Sector Equality Duty and the Socio-economic Duty. 
These duties will be used as tools to inform and embed key equalities issues within the LDP 
Review from the outset. Acting together with all other statutory assessments included within 
the ISA, this integrated approach allows the environmental, social, and economic implications 

Tudalen207



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

40 

of all strategy components to be tested at the earliest opportunity and for any uncertainties or 
issues identified during impact assessment processes to be addressed during the preparation 
of the RLDP. 

5.4.14 Insofar as the development plan affects access to services, amenities, economic opportunities 
and social activities, the LDP Review (resulting in the adoption of a RLDP) is likely to result in 
different impacts upon different demographic groups, persons with protected characteristics 
and those facing socio-economic disadvantage. The EqIA component of the ISA will 
holistically assess the likely effects on characteristics of equality, social inclusion and 
population and are therefore reflected within ISA Objectives in the ISA Framework (Table 5.2 
below). At this point, due to the nature of the LDP Review, the identification of specific impacts 
on marriage, civil partnership and gender reassignment have been scoped out from the 
application of the Public Sector Equality Duty as the LDP Review cannot realistically secure 
objectives in relation to these protected characteristics. 

5.4.15 To avoid duplication or assessment gaps (including in combination with the WBFG Act), the 
integrated approach outlined in the ‘A More Equal Wales – Mapping the Duties’ non-statutory 
guidance (2021) will be adopted in this ISA. Relevant evidence generated through applying 
the ISA Framework to all emerging substantive plan components will therefore be used to 
support specific reporting against the distinct requirements of each duty.    

Health Impact Assessment 

5.4.16 The purpose of HIA is to consider how a plan, programme or proposal will affect the key 
factors which can influence people’s health and wellbeing. The HIA approach is particularly 
concerned with the distribution of effects within a population, as different groups are likely to 
be affected in different ways, and therefore how health and social inequalities might be 
reduced or widened by particular proposals. More widely it should be recognised that an 
individual’s inherited traits interact with lifestyle, community, environmental, social and 
economic factors as well as a much wider range of issues to determine their health.   

5.4.17 The WBFGA aims to achieve ‘a healthier Wales’, and the planning system is key to ensuring 
places support the health and wellbeing of people and communities. The NPT Well-being Plan 
(2018-2025) has identified health improvement as a key priority. Clearly, within national and 
local policy, there is an increasing awareness of the links between the character and quality of 
the places where people live and work and their health and wellbeing. Social and economic 
factors are typically the main determinants of health, although the provision of health services 
and environmental factors such as pollution control and better design can play an important 
role. The legal and policy context should direct the RLDP towards better health outcomes. The 
Environment (Wales) Act has set stronger carbon reduction targets and the HIA and ISA 
should help to ensure that greener, healthier places and ways of living are achieved.  

5.4.18 The HIA process provides a systematic, yet flexible and practical, framework that can be used 

to consider the wider effects of local and national policies or initiatives and how they, in turn, 

may affect people’s health. The SEA Regulations require human health to be considered as 

part of the assessment of environmental effects. The health component of an SEA can be 

broadened to include both physical and mental health objectives of an HIA.  

5.4.19 Public Health Wales has published ‘Creating healthier places and spaces for our present and 

future generations’ (2018) which focuses on six priority areas: 

 The walking and cycling infrastructure;  

 Open green /blue spaces and green infrastructure ; 

 The food growing and retail environment community; 

 Health and social care services provided from local facilities;  

Tudalen208



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

41 

 Low levels of air pollution; and, 

 Building design. 

5.4.20 The HIA element of this ISA will be undertaken firstly by assessing the performance of the 
emerging RLDP against objectives from the ISA Framework relating to health and wellbeing. 
Building on this, a second level of assessment will consider the likely impacts of the emerging 
RLDP as a whole specifically on identified key determinants of health within the NPTC area, 
taking account of the identified six priority areas.  

Welsh Language 

5.4.21 Supporting Welsh Language is intrinsically part of promoting national and local culture and 

distinctiveness. A thriving Welsh Language is a well-being goal (WBFGA) and the role for 

placemaking in promoting Welsh Language is set out in PPW11. As such there is a clear role 

for the RLDP, and within this the ISA, to ensure this is achieved. It is now a legislative 

requirement that the ISA must include an assessment of the likely effects of the plan on the 

use of Welsh Language (section 62(6A) PCPA 2004 as inserted by section 11, PWA 2015). 

This will be undertaken firstly by including Welsh language Guide Questions and site 

assessment criteria within the ISA Framework, thereby enabling a base level of assessment. 

Building on this, a second level of assessment will examine the likely impacts of implementing 

the RLDP plan as a whole on the use of the Welsh language across the NPTC area.  

Habitats Regulations Appraisal (HRA) 

5.4.22 As noted in Section 1, a separate HRA will be undertaken to assess the likely effects of the 

emerging RLDP on Natura 2000 sites (‘European Sites’). There are three European Sites 

within the NPTC area, with a further three European Sites within 15km of the NPTC area 

which have the potential to be affected by the emerging RLDP proposals. Full details of all 

international, national or local designations are provided in Appendix A. The European sites 

which will be considered in the assessment are: 

 Within the NPTC area: Kenfig / Cynffig (SAC), Crymlyn Bog / Cors Crymlyn (SAC & 
Ramsar Site) and Coedydd Nedd a Mellte (SAC); and, 

 Outside the NPTC area:  Cefn Cribwr Grasslands (SAC), Blaen Cynon (SAC) and Cwn 
Calan (SAC). 

5.5 Proposed Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA Objectives 

5.5.1 Having regard to the proposed spatial scale, form and content of the  RLDP (Section 2), 

relevant baseline characteristics and key sustainability issues (Section 4.2 and Appendix A), 

the objectives and requirements of other relevant plans and programmes (Section 4.3 and 

Appendix B) and the need for assessment proportionality, the proposed suite of ISA 

Objectives to be included within a new ISA Framework for the LDP Review are detailed in 

Table 5.2 below. The emphasis on implementing a holistic approach to improved wellbeing 

across many of the SA Objectives is intended to demonstrate compliance with the Well-being 

of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and to align with both the PPW – 11th Edition (2021) 

and the Future Wales 2040 NDF. 

5.5.2 The emphasis on implementing an integrated approach to improved wellbeing across many of 

the ISA Objectives is intended to reflect the cross-cutting nature of relevant environmental, 

social, economic, cultural, equalities and health issues and to provide a single focus to 

underpin this ISA, rather than environmental, social, economic, cultural, equalities and health 

issues being assessed separately.   

Tudalen209



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

42 

Table 5.2: Proposed ISA Objectives for the LDP Review  

No. Proposed ISA 
Objective Topic 

Proposed ISA Objective 

1 Health and Wellbeing Improve the health and wellbeing of the population, including with respect to physical and mental health, social 
wellbeing and community safety. 

2 Equality and Social 
Inclusion  

Reduce poverty and inequalities, advance equality of opportunity, reduce socio-economic disadvantage, tackle 
social exclusion and promote community cohesion. 

3 Transport and 
Communications 

Enhance the accessibility of public services, economic opportunities and markets through improving infrastructure 
and creating a sustainable transport network, whilst also ensuring access to high quality communications and 
utilities.    

4 Inclusive Economic 
Growth 

Increase the number and quality of employment opportunities and improve educational and skill levels while 
maximising the economic contribution of the NPTC area to the Swansea Bay City Region, including through 
diversifying and strengthening the local economic base 

5 Housing Provide a sufficient quantum and range of good quality and affordable housing in sustainable locations to meet 
identified local needs. 

6 Air Quality  Prevent and reduce emissions and concentrations of harmful atmospheric pollutants and minimise exposure to 
poor air quality.  

7 Climate Change Adopt appropriate mitigation and adaption measures to reduce and respond to the impacts of climate change. 

8 Biodiversity, Geodiversity 
and Soil 

Conserve, protect and enhance biodiversity and geodiversity interests, including through safeguarding important 
sites and species, improving green infrastructure provision and safeguarding important soil resources. 

T
udalen210



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

43 

No. Proposed ISA 
Objective Topic 

Proposed ISA Objective 

9 Water and Flood Risk Conserve, protect and enhance water and coastal environments, water quality and water resources, whilst 
reducing the risk of flooding. 

10 Materials and Waste Contribute to the implementation of the circular economy, manage waste with minimal environmental impacts and 
ensure the sustainable use of natural resources, including for energy generation and the provision of an adequate 
supply of minerals and materials for construction. 

11 Sustainable Placemaking Maximise the efficient use of land and enhance design quality to create great places for people. 

12 Cultural Heritage (inc. 
Welsh Language)  

Conserve, protect and enhance the historic environment and cultural assets, including the use of the Welsh 
language.  

13 Landscape Protect and enhance the landscape character, visual amenity, distinctive sense of place and legibility of 
settlements in the NPTC area. 

 
 

T
udalen211



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

44 

5.5.3 These proposed ISA Objectives are designed to complement each other, avoid assessment 
duplication and relate to the specific content of the LDP Review, to underpin a proportionate 
and effective ISA. Table 5.3 below demonstrates the coverage of all statutory assessment 
requirements through the proposed ISA Objectives.   

 

Tudalen212



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

45 

Table 5.3: Relationship between the Proposed ISA Objectives and the SEA Regulations 

Proposed ISA Objective SA / SEA 
Topic(s) as per 
SEA 
Regulations – 
Schedule 2 

Relates to 
Equality Act 2010 
- Public Sector 
Equality and 
Socio-economic 
Duties 

Relates to 
Wellbeing of 
Future 
Generations Act 
Wales 2015 

Relates to 
Health Impact 
Assessment 

Relates to 
Welsh 
Language 
(Planning 
Wales Act 
2015) 

1. Health and Wellbeing: Improve the health and wellbeing 
of the population, including with respect to physical and 
mental health, social wellbeing and community safety. 

B, C Yes Yes Yes  

2. Equality and Social Inclusion: Reduce poverty and 
inequalities, advance equality of opportunity, reduce 
socio-economic disadvantage, tackle social exclusion 
and promote community cohesion. 

B, J Yes - directly Yes Yes Yes 

3. Transport and Communications: Enhance the 
accessibility of public services, economic opportunities 
and markets through improving infrastructure and 
creating a sustainable transport network, whilst also 
ensuring access to high quality communications and 
utilities.    

B, I, J Yes Yes   

4. Inclusive Economic Growth: Increase the number and 
quality of employment opportunities and improve 
educational and skill levels while maximising the 
economic contribution of the NPTC area to the Swansea 
Bay City Region, including through diversifying and 
strengthening the local economic base 

B, J Yes Yes  Yes? 

5. Housing: Provide a sufficient quantum and range of 
good quality and affordable housing in sustainable 
locations to meet identified local needs. 

B, J, C Yes Yes Yes Yes? 

6. Air Quality: Prevent and reduce emissions and 
concentrations of harmful atmospheric pollutants and 
minimise exposure to poor air quality. 

H, C Yes Yes Yes  

T
udalen213



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

46 

Proposed ISA Objective SA / SEA 
Topic(s) as per 
SEA 
Regulations – 
Schedule 2 

Relates to 
Equality Act 2010 
- Public Sector 
Equality and 
Socio-economic 
Duties 

Relates to 
Wellbeing of 
Future 
Generations Act 
Wales 2015 

Relates to 
Health Impact 
Assessment 

Relates to 
Welsh 
Language 
(Planning 
Wales Act 
2015) 

7. Climate Change: Adopt appropriate mitigation and 
adaption measures to reduce and respond to the 
impacts of climate change. 

I  Yes   

8. Biodiversity, Geodiversity and Soil: Conserve, protect 
and enhance biodiversity and geodiversity interests, 
including through safeguarding important sites and 
species, improving green infrastructure provision and 
safeguarding important soil resources. 

A, D, E, F  Yes   

9. Water and Flood Risk: Conserve, protect and enhance 
water and coastal environments, water quality and water 
resources, whilst reducing the risk of flooding. 

G  Yes Yes  

10. Material assets and Waste: Contribute to the 
implementation of the circular economy, manage waste 
with minimal environmental impacts and ensure the 
sustainable use of natural resources, including for 
energy generation and providing an adequate supply of 
minerals and materials for construction. 

F, J  Yes   

11. Sustainable Placemaking: Maximise the efficient use of 
land and enhance design quality to create great places 
for people. 

B, J, L Yes Yes Yes  

12. Cultural Heritage and Welsh Language: Conserve, 
protect and enhance the historic environment and 
cultural assets, including the use of the Welsh language.  

B, K  Yes  Yes 

13. Protect and enhance the landscape character, visual 
amenity, distinctive sense of place and legibility of 
settlements in the NPTC area. 

B, L     

T
udalen214



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

47 

5.5.4 Table 5.3 demonstrates that there is good coverage of all applicable statutory requirements 
within the proposed suite of ISA Objectives and that they will allow related issues to be 
addressed in tandem. This should ensure that any conflicts between either the ISA Objectives 
or the components of the emerging RLDP can be identified and resolved through the ISA 
process.   

5.6 Proposed ISA Framework for the Neath Port Talbot LDP Review 

5.6.1 To enable this ISA to be undertaken in a proportionate and targeted manner an ISA 
Framework will be used, comprising: 

 The proposed ISA Objectives (see Table 5.2); 

 A suite of relevant Guide Questions relating to each ISA Objective. Subject to views 
expressed by the relevant Consultation Bodies, this will be used in a qualitative 
assessment of each emerging substantive component of the RLDP, and any identified 
reasonable alternatives, to proportionately identify their LSE; and, 

 A suite of sustainability indicators which are proposed to be considered in the 
assessment of candidate sites being carried out by NPTC. These indicators are designed 
to guide NPTC in the site assessment process. The indicators will support a legally 
compliant ISA that identifies statutory impacts assessment requirements. An integrated 
site selection and ISA site assessment process will be possible through the framework to 
avoid assessment duplication. Based on the proposed suite of sustainability indicators 
and responses to this ISA Scoping consultation, the criteria which will be applied to 
assess candidate sites will be confirmed within a Call for Sites Consultation Document at 
the outset of the RLDP Call for Sites period.   

5.6.2 The proposed ISA Framework is detailed in Table 5.4 below. During the assessment stage of 
the ISA, in accordance with the SEA Regulations a further suite of indicators will be developed 
to provide a framework for monitoring the likely significant effects on the environment 
(including social, economic, cultural factors), Welsh language, health, wellbeing, of 
implementing a RLDP once adopted. This monitoring framework will also be used by NPTC to 
monitor the effectiveness of the RLDP and to assess whether key targets of the RDLP are 
being met. 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen215



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

48 

Table 5.4: Proposed ISA Framework for the LDP Review 

Proposed SA Objectives Proposed SA Guide Questions – Will the RLDP… Proposed Sustainability Indicators for Candidate Site 
Assessments 

1.  Health and Wellbeing: 
Improve the health and 
wellbeing of the 
population, including 
with respect to physical 
and mental health, 
social wellbeing and 
community safety. 

 Protect and improve access to healthcare services 
and facilities? 

 Reduce health inequalities and improve the physical 
and mental health and wellbeing of communities? 

 Improve accessibility to green active travel routes,high 
quality accessible recreational open spaces and 
sports facilities for physical recreation, in particular for 
those facing structural inequalities and/or socio-
economic disadvantage? 

 Facilitate or encourage active travel for all 
communities? 

 Increase access to nature? 

 Provide clean air and high- quality bathing beaches 
and rivers? 

 Protect against noise pollution, delivering context 
appropriate soundscapes?   

 Protect communities from environmental risks such as 
flooding using nature-based solutions? 

 Protect against light pollution? 

 Create urban communities that feature a network of 
high quality, well connected green infrastructure? 

 Proximity to and the capacity of healthcare 
facilities; 

 Proximity to existing active travel networks; 

 Proximity to existing open space provision; 

 Proximity to natural environment; 

 Proposed provision of new or upgraded 
healthcare facilities, active travel networks or 
open space within candidate sites; 

 Proximity to significant noise emitting land 
uses, such as industrial and transport 
infrastructure uses; and, 

 Proximity to significant light emitting land uses 
such as industrial uses. 

T
udalen216



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

49 

Proposed SA Objectives Proposed SA Guide Questions – Will the RLDP… Proposed Sustainability Indicators for Candidate Site 
Assessments 

2.  Equality and Social 
Inclusion: Reduce 
poverty and 
inequalities, advance 
equality of opportunity, 
reduce socio-economic 
disadvantage, tackle 
social exclusion and 
promote community 
cohesion. 

 

 

 Reduce poverty and social exclusion? 

 Result in differential impacts (beneficial or adverse) on 
different demographic groups or persons with 
protected characteristics? 

 Result in differential impacts (beneficial or adverse) on 
communities (of place or interest) facing inequality of 
outcome due to socio-economic disadvantage?  

 Result in differential impacts (beneficial or adverse) on 
individuals vulnerable to social exclusion or poverty? 

 Provide fair and impartial protection from 
environmental hazards (such as air quality, flooding)? 

 Protect and enhance access to high quality community 
facilities, public services and key amenities to meet 
the diverse needs of different demographic groups, 
vulnerable members of the community and those 
facing socio-economic disadvantage? 

 Protect and enhance access to natural resources, 
including goof quality public green and blue spaces? 

 Help to reduce levels of absolute and relative income 
poverty, inequality in the distribution of household 
wealth, and levels of multiple deprivation affecting 
communities? 

 Promote social cohesion and integration? 

 Impacts on different demographic groups, 
persons with protected characteristics, 
demographic groups vulnerable to social 
exclusion and/or poverty, and those facing 
socio-economic disadvantage; 

 Proximity to existing community facilities, 
public services and key amenities; and, 

 Proposed provision of new or upgraded 
community facilities, public services or key 
amenities within candidate sites. 

 

T
udalen217



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

50 

Proposed SA Objectives Proposed SA Guide Questions – Will the RLDP… Proposed Sustainability Indicators for Candidate Site 
Assessments 

 Reduce fuel poverty?   

3.  Transport and 
Communications: 
Enhance the 
accessibility of public 
services, economic 
opportunities and 
markets through 
improving infrastructure 
and creating a 
sustainable transport 
network, whilst also 
ensuring access to high 
quality communications 
and utilities.    

 Increase the accessibility of public services, economic 
opportunities and markets? 

 Improve connectivity within the NPTC area and to 
other areas? 

 Reduce car dependencies and encourage a shift to 
more sustainable forms of travel, including for people 
and freight? 

 Support the increased uptake of active travel by 
providing integrated active travel routes? 

 Improve the accessibility, capacity and safety of the 
transport network? 

 Reduce traffic flows and congestion? 

 Enhance the quality and integration of public 
transport? 

 Enhance the provision of high-quality communications 
infrastructure? 

 Improve utilities infrastructure to support economic 
growth and meet population needs? 

 Proximity to the public transport network (bus 
stops and train stations); 

 Proximity to the strategic road network 
(motorways and trunk roads); 

 Proximity to existing active travel networks; 

 Proximity to congestion pinch points; 

 Availability and the capacity of utilities 
infrastructure to serve the site; 

 Proposed provision of new or upgraded 
transport or communications infrastructure 
within or connecting to candidate sites; and, 

 Connectivity between relatively deprived 
communities (including those facing individual 
or intersectional inequalities) and socio-
economic opportunities resulting from 
development. 

4.  Inclusive Economic 
Growth: Increase the 
number and quality of 

 Enhance access to and diversify employment 
opportunities for local residents? 

 Proximity to and the capacity of education 
infrastructure; 

T
udalen218



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

51 

Proposed SA Objectives Proposed SA Guide Questions – Will the RLDP… Proposed Sustainability Indicators for Candidate Site 
Assessments 

employment 
opportunities and 
improve educational 
and skill levels while 
maximising the 
economic contribution 
of the NPTC area to 
the Swansea Bay City 
Region, including 
through diversifying 
and strengthening the 
local economic base. 

 Provide equal access to high equality employment 
opportunities, social and cultural activities, and public 
services and amenities for all? 

 Improve access to employment for all demographic 
groups and communities, in particular for those facing 
structural inequalities and/or socio-economic 
disadvantage? 

 Enhance opportunities for education, lifelong learning 
and the retention of skills within the local economy? 

 Support the growth of further and higher education 
institutions? 

 Deliver the right type of development and economic 
activities in the accessible locations to maximise 
economic competitiveness? 

 Help to diversify and regenerate the local economy? 

 Encourage inward investment and innovation? 

 Promote the co-location of synergistic economic 
activities, industries and land uses? 

 Support social and environmental wellbeing in NPTC 
and beyond. 

 Provide the infrastructure and workspace required for 
new and existing businesses? 

 Proposed provision of new or upgraded 
education and skills infrastructure within 
candidate sites; 

 Employment capacity of the site; 

 Site suitability for mixed use development; 

 Proximity to existing and planned key 
employment locations (e.g. business parks, 
industrial estates and urban employment 
clusters); 

 Site capability for industrial and economic 
uses; 

 Adjacent land uses, including potential 
agglomeration benefits; and, 

 Proximity to key public transport nodes and 
the strategic road network, supporting 
inclusive labour markets.  

T
udalen219



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

52 

Proposed SA Objectives Proposed SA Guide Questions – Will the RLDP… Proposed Sustainability Indicators for Candidate Site 
Assessments 

 Promote the principles of green recovery? 

 Support the aims of the Swansea Bay City Region City 
Deal, including enhanced digital connectivity? 

 Promote the sustainable use and consumption of 
natural resources (eg utilising the DISRUPT 
Framework)? 

5.  Housing: Provide a 
sufficient quantum and 
range of good quality 
and affordable housing 
in sustainable locations 
to meet identified local 
needs. 

 Help to facilitate the increased delivery of housing to 
meet a range of identified needs? 

 Improve the quality of the housing stock? 

 Provide energy efficient housing stock which operates 
at close to zero emissions? 

 Reduce homelessness and overcrowding? 

 Increase the mix, range and affordability of housing? 

 Provide housing that encourages a sense of 
community? 

 Delivery adequate pitches and plots required for 
Gypsies, Travellers and Travelling Show people? 

 Maximise benefits of new development using 
appropriate housing locations and good design? 

 Housing capacity of the site; 

 Deliverability of affordable housing as a 
component of any residential development; 

 Site suitability for mixed use development; 

 Adjacent land uses; 

 Proximity to COMAH (control of major 
accident hazards) sites; and, 

 Proximity to European Sites vulnerable to 
recreational pressures. 

T
udalen220



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

53 

Proposed SA Objectives Proposed SA Guide Questions – Will the RLDP… Proposed Sustainability Indicators for Candidate Site 
Assessments 

6.  Air Quality: Prevent 
and reduce emissions 
and concentrations of 
harmful atmospheric 
pollutants and minimise 
exposure to poor air 
quality. 

 Maintain or improve air quality? 

 Reduce exposure to poor air quality? 

 Prevent and reduce emissions of harmful pollutants? 

 Prevent and reduce poor air quality which is in 
proximity to international, national and local level for 
reasons of biodiversity, conservation, ecological or 
geological importance? 

 Proximity to Air Quality Management Areas 
(AQMA); 

 Proximity to congestion pinch points; and, 

 Potential operational emissions. 

7.  Climate Change: Adopt 
appropriate mitigation 
and adaption measures 
to reduce and respond 
to the impacts of 
climate change. 

 Help to reduce greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions from 
key economic sectors?   

 Support the minimisation of energy use? 

 Support the delivery of renewable and low carbon 
energy and reduce dependency on non-renewable 
sources? 

 Facilitate investment in and promote the use of low 
carbon and sustainable infrastructure? 

 Implement adaptation measures to address the likely 
effects of climate change, including increased flood 
risks? 

 Promote sustainable design that minimises GHG 
emissions and is adaptable to the effects of climate 
change? 

 On-site provision or renewable or low carbon 
energy generation; 

 Proximity to the public transport network; and, 

 Capacity of the site to include climate change 
adaptation measures. 

T
udalen221



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

54 

Proposed SA Objectives Proposed SA Guide Questions – Will the RLDP… Proposed Sustainability Indicators for Candidate Site 
Assessments 

 Restore or create a network of natural carbon capture 
environments including peatlands, grasslands, 
woodlands and within ‘blue carbon’ sinks? 

8.  Biodiversity, 
Geodiversity and Soil: 
Conserve, protect and 
enhance biodiversity 
and geodiversity 
interests, including 
through safeguarding 
important sites and 
species, improving 
green infrastructure 
provision and 
safeguarding important 
soil resources. 

 Ensure appropriate safeguards for the integrity and 
conservation objectives of sites designated at 
international, national or local levels for reasons of 
biodiversity or geodiversity value or species 
protection? 

 Protect and enhance valued species and habitats? 

 Safeguard Resilient Ecological Networks (RENs)? 

 Safeguard against habitat loss or fragmentation? 

 Maintain and enhance urban green infrastructure? 

 Protect or enhance protected trees or important 
woodland areas? 

 Improve access to nature? 

 Remediate known contamination of land and 
groundwater? 

 Safeguard the best quality and locally important 
agricultural land? 

 Protect and enhance important soil resources? 

 Proximity to and potential effects on sites 
designated at international, national and local 
levels for reasons of biodiversity conservation, 
ecological importance or geological 
importance; 

 Proximity to designated woodlands and 
important trees or hedgerows; 

 Evidence of valued habitats or species on or 
adjacent to the site; 

 Potential impacts on habitat fragmentation 
and connectivity; 

 Agricultural land classification; and, 

 Soil type and quality. 

T
udalen222



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

55 

Proposed SA Objectives Proposed SA Guide Questions – Will the RLDP… Proposed Sustainability Indicators for Candidate Site 
Assessments 

 Outline more direct consideration/reference to the 
condition of designated sites? 

 Provide a clearer definition of ‘valued’ habitats and 
species. 

 Provide a means for assessment of green 
infrastructure? 

9.  Water and Flood Risk: 
Conserve, protect and 
enhance water and 
coastal environments, 
water quality and water 
resources, whilst 
reducing the risk of 
flooding. 

 Improve the quality of waterbodies helping to meet the 
objectives of the Water Framework Directive? 

 Maintain or enhance the ecological and chemical 
status of the water environment? 

 Affect the volume of surface water runoff into or 
abstraction from water bodies? 

 Provide a means to assess the condition of 
waterbodies and degree of physical modification 
(WFD)? 

 Protect and assess the number of properties at risk 
from flooding (taking account of the climate change 
scenarios outlined in the new Flood Map Wales)? 

 Support improvements to water infrastructure (water 
supply and sewerage)? 

 Minimise the risk of flooding from all sources of 
flooding to all people, property, infrastructure and 
environmental assets? 

 Proximity to Flood Risk Zones; and, 

 Proximity to waterbodies and aquifers. T
udalen223



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

56 

Proposed SA Objectives Proposed SA Guide Questions – Will the RLDP… Proposed Sustainability Indicators for Candidate Site 
Assessments 

 Manage residual flood risks appropriately and avoid 
new flood risks? 

 Review average water usage per household? 

 Seek to minimiseAvoid new development in areas 
prone to flood risk or mitigate the potential for such 
risk? 

 Promote the deployment of sustainable urban 
drainage systems and promote nature-based solutions 
for better management of surface water? 

 Maintain and restore natural river processes to 
safeguard river habitats and help to mitigate the 
effects of climate change including flooding and 
droughts? 

 Conserve water resources and promote water 
efficiency? 

10.  Material assets and 
Waste: Contribute to 
the implementation of 
the circular economy, 
manage waste with 
minimal 
environmental 
impacts and ensure 
the sustainable use of 
natural resources, 
including for energy 
generation and 

 Minimise the production of waste? 

 Promote the principles of circular economy? 

 Treat and process waste with minimal environmental 
impact? 

 Minimise the demand for raw materials and the need 
for minerals extraction? 

 Proximity of waste collection facilities; and, 

 Establishment of locational need for minerals 
extraction. 

T
udalen224



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

57 

Proposed SA Objectives Proposed SA Guide Questions – Will the RLDP… Proposed Sustainability Indicators for Candidate Site 
Assessments 

providing an 
adequate supply of 
minerals and 
materials for 
construction. 

 Promote the use of local resources and minimise the 
importation of minerals? 

11.  Sustainable 
Placemaking: 
Maximise the efficient 
use of land and 
enhance design 
quality to create great 
places for people. 

 Promote high quality architecture and design which 
strengthens local distinctiveness, linked to historic and 
cultural protections, and fosters a sense of place? 

 Create and maintain a safe and attractive public realm 
which encourages people to walk and cycle? 

 Ensure appropriate siting, scale, massing and density 
of development? 

 Make the best use of land, including through 
prioritising the redevelopment of brownfield sites and 
locating high footfall uses close to the public transport 
network? 

 Reduce opportunities for crime and antisocial 
behaviour through the siting and design of new 
development? 

 Provide public realm which feels safe to all users at all 
times? 

 Consider nature-based solutions in sustainable 
placemaking? 

 Previously developed brownfield land or 
greenfield land; and, 

 Proximity to active travel networks.  

T
udalen225



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

58 

Proposed SA Objectives Proposed SA Guide Questions – Will the RLDP… Proposed Sustainability Indicators for Candidate Site 
Assessments 

 Make space for and integrate green infrastructure as 
intrinsic part of design and function of new places? 

 Facilitate well connected spaces for people and 
nature? 

12.  Cultural Heritage and 
Welsh Language: 
Conserve, protect 
and enhance the 
historic environment 
and cultural assets, 
including the use of 
the Welsh language.  

 Increase availability and accessibility of culture, leisure 
and recreation activities/venues? 

 Conserve, protect and enhance the integrity, character 
and setting of heritage assetshistoric assets? 

 Protect and enhance the qualities of areas of historical 
or cultural significance? 

 Promote the sensitive re-use of historic or culturally 
important buildings? 

 Preserve and, where appropriate, enhance important 
archaeological resources? 

 Safeguard and increase the use of the Welsh 
language?   

 Proximity to and potential effects on 
designated heritage historic assets and areas; 

 Proposed re-use of historic or culturally 
important buildings; 

 Scale and type of housing within catchment of 
Welsh primary schools and Welsh language 
sensitive areas; and, 

 Scale and type of non-residential 
development in Welsh language sensitive 
areas. 

 

13. Landscape: Protect 
and enhance the 
landscape character, 
visual amenity and 
legibility of 
settlements in the 
NPTC area. 

 Protect and enhance landscape character, local 
distinctiveness and sense of place? 

 Safeguard important landscape and townscape 
features? 

 Protect visual amenity and valued views? 

 Proximity to and potential effects on nationally 
and locally designated landscapes; 

 Evidence of potential impacts on visual 
amenity or key views; and, 

T
udalen226



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

59 

Proposed SA Objectives Proposed SA Guide Questions – Will the RLDP… Proposed Sustainability Indicators for Candidate Site 
Assessments 

 Prevent urban sprawl?  Evidence of integration or coalescence with, 
or separation from, existing settlements. 

T
udalen227



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

60 

6 Proposed ISA Methodology and Consultations 

Arrangements 

6.1 Introduction  

6.1.1 Building upon the proposed ISA Framework detailed in Section 5, this section outlines and 
seeks the views of the relevant Consultation Bodies (for all assessments within the ISA) 
regarding the proposed methodology and consultation arrangements to be adopted for the 
ISA of the LDP Review. 

6.1.2 The ISA will identify potential beneficial as well as adverse effects on the full range of 
objectives (covering the environmental, social, economic, cultural, health and equalities 
issues).  The ISA will help identify ways of mitigating or avoiding adverse effects of the 
proposed policies and schemes of the LDP. There is the potential for residual adverse effects 
to remain against some ISA objectives, and this must be weighed against the need to deliver 
much needed development in Neath Port Talbot.  

6.2 Proposed ISA Reporting 

Overview 

6.2.1 Based on the intended form of the LDP Review (Section 2) it is envisaged that the ISA 
Framework set out in Table 5.4 will be used to assess all proposed substantive components 
of the RLDP as it emerges, as well as any identified reasonable alternatives to these 
proposals. In general terms, the ISA will therefore need to include appraisals of a proposed 
RLDP vision, RLDP objectives, a spatial strategy (and potential sub-area strategies), strategic 
policies, development management policies and site allocations. The proposed approach to 
undertaking a proportionate ISA of each of these components is set out in this section. 

6.2.2 As described in Section 5.4, the assessment methodology comprises a two-stage approach at 
both LDP Pre-Deposit and Deposit stages. The Framework will be applied as the main, base-
level, assessment considering all likely effects on a thematic basis to provide a holistic 
assessment of the sustainability implications of the emerging RLDP. The second level of 
assessment will be reporting against the specific requirements of applicable duties and 
requirements (e.g. Public Sector Equality and Socio-economic Duties for EqIA). This will draw 
upon the findings of the ISA Framework assessment. The secondary level of assessment will 
take the form of a series of commentaries to report conclusions against WBFGA 2015, 
Equality Act 2010, Welsh language, and HIA requirements in turn. 

6.2.3 The ISA methodology will be applied, and the findings reported within iterative ISA Reports 
which will be prepared in accordance with applicable statutory requirements to accompany the 
Preferred Strategy (RLDP Pre-Deposit Document) and RLDP Deposit Plan (Deposit 
Document). The ISA Report will be updated and expanded between these stages to reflect 
changes to the emerging LDP: 

1 The ISA Report for the Preferred Strategy will focus on assessing effects from proposed 

RLDP options (including growth levels), spatial strategy (including key sites which 

underpin the strategy) and strategic policies; and, 

2 The ISA Report for the RLDP Deposit Plan will identify and assess effects from all 

substantive components of the RLDP Deposit Plan, including all proposed site 

allocations and policies.  

6.2.4 All matrix-based detailed assessments of individual components of the emerging RLDP will be 
contained within appendices to the ISA report, with key findings set out within the main body 

Tudalen228



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

61 

of the report. In accordance with the SEA Regulations, and other relevant best practice, a 
separate Non-Technical Summary (NTS) document will be prepared to provide the information 
prescribed within Schedule 2 of the SEA Regulations and present the key findings of the ISA, 
incorporating SEA, in non-technical language.  

6.2.5 Following the completion of an independent examination of RLDP Deposit Plan, all binding 
recommendations made by the appointed Inspector will be subject to ISA screening to 
determine whether they would give rise to any new or different likely significant effects 
(including on the environment) not previously reported within the ISA Report for the RLDP 
Deposit Plan. This ISA Screening will be documented within an ISA Report Addendum. 

6.3 Proposed ISA Methodology 

ISA of Vision and Objectives 

6.3.1 It is important that the vision and objectives of the RLDP are aligned with the ISA Framework 
and reflect the identified key sustainability issues, as all other LDP components will flow from 
them. The key attributes of the vision and objectives for the RLDP will therefore be assessed 
for their compatibility with each ISA Objective within the ISA Framework.  

6.3.2 Owing to the high-level nature of the LDP vision and strategic objectives it is not likely to be 

possible to identify the significance (in the context of the SEA Regulations) of predicted effects 

from their implementation, nor to assess potential differential on different demographic groups 

or persons with protected characteristic (in the context of the Equality Act 2010). However, the 

assessment will seek to provide an indication of any likely significant environmental effects 

and effects on different demographic groups, with any uncertainties also noted. Should the 

proposed vision or objectives for the RLDP be judged to be incompatible with the ISA 

Objectives, suitable mitigation measures in the form of revised wording will be recommended.  

6.3.3 A compatibility matrix similar to the example presented in Table 6.1 will be used to record the 
first level assessment of the LDP vision and objectives within the ISA reports for the RLDP 
Pre-Deposit and Deposit Documents. For brevity and formatting reasons it is not proposed to 
reproduce the ISA Guide Questions associated with each ISA Objective (see Table 5.4) within 
the final version of the appraisal matrices in each ISA report, but they will be used where 
relevant to undertake the ISA. Building on the matrix, a second level assessment will comprise 
short commentaries to demonstrate the coverage of key issues (to provide a strategic 
framework for action) relevant to WBFGA 2015, Equality Act 2010, Welsh language, and HIA 
requirements in turn.    

Tudalen229



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

62 

Table 6.1: Proposed Compatibility Matrix to Assess RLDP Vision and Objectives 

ISA Objective LDP Vision  LDP Objective 1 LDP Objective 2 Etc. 

1. Health and Wellbeing: Improve the health and wellbeing 

of the population, including with respect to physical and 

mental health, social wellbeing and community safety, 

including through context appropriate soundscapes and 

reductions in addressing light pollution. 

 

   

2. Equality and Social Inclusion: Reduce poverty and 

inequalities, advance equality of opportunity, reduce 

socio-economic disadvantage, tackle social exclusion 

and promote community cohesion. 

 

   

3. Transport and Communications: Enhance the 

accessibility of public services, economic opportunities 

and markets through improving infrastructure and 

creating a sustainable transport network, whilst also 

ensuring access to high quality communications and 

utilities.  

 

   

4. Inclusive Economic Growth: Increase the number and 

quality of employment opportunities and improve 

educational and skill levels while maximising the 

economic contribution of the NPTC area to the Swansea 

Bay City Region, including through diversifying and 

strengthening the local economic base. 

 

   

5. Housing: Provide a sufficient quantum and range of 

good quality and affordable housing in sustainable 

locations to meet identified needs. 

 

   

T
udalen230



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

63 

ISA Objective LDP Vision  LDP Objective 1 LDP Objective 2 Etc. 

KEY 

+ Compatible   

0 Neutral   

? Uncertain   

- Incompatible   

~ 
No Clear Relationship   

T
udalen231



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

64 

6.4 ISA of Proposed Spatial Strategies and Policies 

6.4.1 At the RLDP Pre-Deposit Stage it is likely that NPTC will identify a suite of preferred high level 
spatial and policy options to meet identified needs (e.g. housing delivery) and challenges (e.g. the 
achievement of locally defined wellbeing objectives), together with potential reasonable alternatives 
to these options. The spatial options are likely to include potential ‘growth options’ and may extend 
to the identification of preferred strategic site allocations (see below regarding the ISA of candidate 
site allocations), whilst the policy options are likely to include a range of thematic policy 
approaches to address key issues.  

6.4.2 Owing to the high level nature of the spatial, growth and policy options that are likely to be included 
within the RLDP Pre-Deposit Document, it may in some cases be necessary to adopt the same 
approach as for the RLDP vision and objectives (Table 6.1) in terms of focusing on their 
compatibility with the ISA Framework. However, the ISA will also seek to identify relevant 
sustainability issues, disproportionate effects on groups with protected characteristics or those 
vulnerable to social exclusion or poverty, and mitigation or enhancement measures which should 
be incorporated within the spatial and policy options as they are developed further for the RLDP 
Deposit Document. Where possible, the ISA of the proposed spatial and policy options will 
determine whether they are likely to result in any significant effects.     

6.4.3 The preferred spatial and policy options will be refined to take account of representations received 
regarding the RLDP Pre-Deposit Document, resulting in the inclusion of a fully developed spatial 
strategy (potentially supported by sub-area strategies) and suite of strategic and development 
management policies within the RLDP Deposit Document. At this stage, these components will be 
subject to a first level of detailed assessment against the ISA Framework using a standard matrix 
and scoring system similar to that shown in Table 6.2 and 6.3 below. For reasons of proportionality 
each policy grouping within the RLDP Deposit Document will be assessed together in a suite of 
thematic matrices. 

Table 6.2: Proposed Scoring System - Spatial Strategies and Policies 

Score Description Symbol 

Significant (Major) 
Positive Effect 

The proposed policy contributes significantly to the achievement 
of the ISA Objective. 

++ 

Minor Positive 
Effect 

The proposed policy contributes to the achievement of the ISA 
Objective but not significantly. 

+ 

Neutral Effect 
The proposed policy is related to but does not have any effect on 
the achievement of the ISA Objective. 

0 

Minor Negative 
Effect 

The proposed policy detracts from the achievement of the ISA 
Objective but not significantly. 

- 

Significant (Major) 
Negative Effect 

The proposed policy detracts significantly from the achievement 
of the ISA Objective. Mitigation is therefore required. 

-- 

Uncertain Effect 

The proposed policy has an uncertain relationship to the ISA 
Objective, or the relationship is dependent on the way in which 
the aspect is managed.  Additionally, insufficient information may 
be available to enable an assessment to be made. 

? 

No Clear 
Relationship 

There is no clear relationship between the proposed policy and 
the achievement of the ISA Objective, or the relationship is 
negligible. 

~ 

6.4.4 The findings of the assessment will be presented within the ISA Report using matrices similar to 
that shown in Table 6.3 (the example policy grouping and titles are indicative and may be subject 
to change). In accordance with statutory requirements, each matrix will include a commentary to: 

Tudalen232



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

65 

 Justify the assessment scoring for each assessed policy; 

 Identify any likely significant environmental or other effects within the context of the SEA 
Regulations and other applicable statutory requirements; 

 Identify any likely different or disproportionate effects on demographic groups with protected 
characteristics or those vulnerable to social exclusion or poverty; and, 

 Identify any mitigation or enhancement measures considered necessary to either avoid 
significant adverse environmental and other effects (which would otherwise be expected to 
occur) or to enhance the performance of the proposed policies.  

6.4.5 For brevity and formatting reasons it is not proposed to reproduce the Guide Questions associated 
with each ISA Objective (see Table 5.4) within the final version of these matrices in the ISA Report. 
However, the questions will be used to undertake this assessment and the ISA Framework will be 
appended to the RLDP ISA Report in full.  

6.4.6 Building on the ISA Framework (level 1 assessment) matrices, a second level assessment will 
comprise short commentaries to demonstrate the relevance and appropriateness of the proposed 
spatial strategy and policy framework to address WBFGA 2015, Equality Act 2010, Welsh 
language, and HIA requirements in turn.    

 

Tudalen233



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

66 

Table 6.3: Assessment Matrix for Proposed LDP Spatial Strategies and Policies 

Example Policy Grouping: Placemaking 

ISA Objective Policy 1 Score Policy 2 Score Policy 3 Score Commentary 

1. Health and Wellbeing: Improve the health and wellbeing of the 

population, including with respect to physical and mental health, 

social wellbeing and community safety, including through context 

appropriate soundscapes and reductions in addressing light 

pollution. ++ + ++ 

Assessment of Predicted 
Effects 
 
Mitigation and Enhancement 
 
Assumptions 
 
Uncertainties 
 

2. Equality and Social Inclusion: Reduce poverty and inequalities, 

advance equality of opportunity, reduce socio-economic 

disadvantage, tackle social exclusion and promote community 

cohesion. 
+ - -- 

Assessment of Predicted 
Effects 
 
Mitigation and Enhancement 
 
Assumptions 
 
Uncertainties 
 

3. Transport and Communications: Enhance the accessibility of public 

services, economic opportunities and markets through improving 

infrastructure and creating a sustainable transport network, whilst 

also ensuring access to high quality communications and utilities.  
- ~ ? 

Assessment of Predicted 
Effects 
 
Mitigation and Enhancement 
 
Assumptions 
 
Uncertainties 
 

Etc.      

T
udalen234



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

67 

6.5 ISA of Candidate Site Allocations 

6.5.1 As noted in Section 5, an integrated site assessment process will be carried out by NPTC to satisfy 
ISA requirements (including SEA) and to select site allocations for inclusion in the RLDP. This will 
identify the strategic sites needed to deliver the RLDP Preferred Strategy.  

6.5.2 Owing to the strategic level and nature of the candidate site allocations that are likely to be 
included within the LDP Pre-Deposit Document, it may in some cases be necessary to adopt the 
same approach as for the LDP proposed spatial strategies and policies (Table 6.3) in terms of 
focusing on their compatibility with the ISA Framework. However, the ISA will seek to identify site-
specific and relevant sustainability issues, disproportionate effects on groups with protected 
characteristics, those vulnerable to social exclusion or poverty and those facing socio-economic 
disadvantage, and appropriate mitigation or enhancement measures which should be incorporated 
within candidate strategic site allocations as they are developed further for the RLDP Deposit 
Document. Where possible, the ISA of the candidate strategic site allocations will determine 
whether they are likely to result in any significant effects.     

6.5.3 The assessment criteria used by NPTC will relate to the sustainability indicators listed in the third 
column on Table 5.4 and thus will relate to each of the ISA Objectives within the ISA Framework. 
The ISA Reports accompanying the LDP Pre-Deposit and LDP Deposit Documents will 
demonstrate that the site assessment criteria and process adopted by NPTC satisfy statutory ISA 
requirements and sufficiently relate to the ISA Objectives identified within the ISA Framework for 
the LDP Review. 

6.5.4 An iterative desktop-based appraisal utilising Geographical Information Systems software (GIS) 
and relevant assessment criteria will be undertaken of all candidate sites4 to determine whether 
their allocation would have any likely significant effects. Subject to any views expressed by the 
SEA Consultation Bodies, the proposed criteria listed within the third column of Table 5.4 will be 
refined before being confirmed within the NPT RLDP Call for Sites Consultation Document. At this 
point, a transparent scoring system will be published to allow all prospective site promoters to 
consider the likely performance of their candidate site against the assessment criteria. All 
candidate sites submitted to NPT within the defined LDP Call for Sites period and not discounted 
due to site size will then be subject to a proportionate level of ISA using the pre-determined 
appraisal criteria and scoring system, with the findings detailed within the ISA Reports for the LDP 
Pre-Deposit and Deposit Documents.   

6.5.5 All sites submitted to NPTC during the RLDP  Call for Sites and not rejected on grounds of 

deliverability during the intended RLDP period will need to be treated as ‘reasonable alternatives’ 

and thus subject to an equal level of assessment up to RLDP Pre-Deposit stage. At this point the 

preferred RLDP Vision and Objectives will be published for consultation, meaning that any further 

site assessment carried out for the RLDP Deposit Document would only need to consider 

candidate sites which align with the RLDP Vision and Objectives (as all other sites would then be 

‘not reasonable’).    

6.5.6 At both LDP Pre-Deposit and Deposit stages a second level qualitative assessment will also be 
undertaken to test the ability of all identified reasonable alternative sites at each stage, and at 
Deposit stage of the combined suite of proposed site allocations, to address WBFGA 2015, 
Equality Act 2010, Welsh language and HIA requirements.    

                                                      
4 Excluding those discounted from further consideration owing to being below minimum site sizes, which will be 
confirmed within the LDP Review  Candidate Sites Assessment Methodology. 

Tudalen235



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

68 

6.6 Assessment of Cumulative Effects and Synergistic Effects 

Cumulative and Synergistic Effects 

6.6.1 Following from the appraisal of all individual substantive components within the LDP Pre-Deposit 
and Deposit Documents, a further round of ISA will be conducted to identify any likely cumulative 
or synergistic effects as a result of interactions between the emerging RLDP components. This will 
seek to demonstrate compliance with cumulative assessment requirements within the SEA 
Regulations, in a proportionate manner.  

6.7 ISA of Reasonable Alternatives 

Identification of Reasonable Alternatives 

6.7.1 The SEA Regulations require the LSE of implementing both a plan or programme (i.e. the 
emerging RLDP) and reasonable alternatives to it to be examined, as well as the rationale for 
identifying reasonable alternatives to be described. The SEA Regulations further state that to be 
considered as reasonable alternatives, options (e.g. alternative policy criteria or site allocations) 
must relate to the plan or programmes’ corresponding objectives and geographical scope. To be 
eligible for consideration in this ISA process, reasonable alternatives must therefore be:    

 Realistic, in that they are plausible alternatives which could be implemented instead of 
proposals within the emerging RLDP and are consistent with relevant national and other policy 
frameworks;  

 Related to the objectives of the emerging RLDP; and, 

 Within the geographical scope of the emerging RLDP, i.e. any reasonable alternatives would 
need to relate to the distribution or characteristics of future development within the NPTC 
area. 

6.7.2 Given that reasonable alternatives must relate to the objectives of the plan under consideration, it 
is not likely to be possible to identify any clear reasonable alternatives to the LDP vision and 
objective, as any alternatives would change the strategic direction of the emerging RLDP. 
However, the following types of reasonable alternatives will be identified where possible and 
subject to assessment in the same way as the corresponding preferred option or proposed 
component of the emerging RLDP: 

 Alternative policy options, criteria and tests considered during the preparation of the LDP Pre-
Deposit and LDP Deposit Documents, e.g. setting higher or lower housing land requirements 
(to inform site allocations) or the application of a higher or lower affordable housing provision 
requirements (to assess planning applications);  

 Alternative spatial options considered during the preparation of the LDP Pre-Deposit and LDP 
Deposit Documents, e.g. directing housing or employment growth to particular locations 
instead of others; and, 

 Alternative site allocations – as noted above, all candidate sites submitted to NPTC during the 
RLDP Call for Sites period and not discounted due to either deliverability or non-compatibility 
with the RLDP Preferred Strategy will need to be subject to the same level of ISA, regardless 
of whether NPTC subsequently decides to allocate the site within the emerging RLDP. To 
demonstrate compliance with SEA case law, the ISA Reports for the RLDP Pre-Deposit and 
Deposit Documents will also provide a summary justification to explain the status of each 
candidate site (e.g. preferred, reasonable alternative, rejected, etc.) at each stage of the LDP 
Review.  

Tudalen236



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

69 

Approach to Identifying Uncertainties, Assumptions and Mitigation 

6.7.3 The identification of any assumptions and uncertainties is an important element of the ISA process, 
as the emerging RLDP will need to be unambiguous to ensure the plan can be implemented as 
intended.  

6.7.4 The proposed ISA reporting matrices (Table 6.1 and 6.3 above) have been designed to allow 
uncertainties, inconsistencies and other issues which could undermine the implementation of the 
emerging RLDP to be identified in relation to the proposed LDP vision, objectives, spatial strategy 
and policies. The iterative nature of the ISA process will enable corresponding recommendations to 
be devised and incorporated into the emerging RLDP to address any identified issues, in particular 
to avoid likely significant adverse effects from occurring. 

6.7.5 The identification of mitigation measures to avoid likely significant adverse effects from the 
allocation of proposed sites is also of critical importance. Such mitigation measures usually take 
the form of policy requirements to undertake technical assessments regarding potential 
environmental effects from development proposals and, depending on the outcome of these 
assessments, to implement mitigation, compensatory and/or offsetting measures through the 
implementation of any planning permission granted for the proposal. The proposed site 
assessment criteria listed in the third column of Table 5.4 will enable any likely significant adverse 
effects from the potential allocation of each candidate site to be identified. Should the relevant 
candidate site be proposed for allocation, appropriate site-specific mitigation would then need to be 
included within the emerging RLDP such that the ISA report for the LDP Deposit Plan is able to 
conclude that the proposed site allocations would not result in any unmitigated likely significant 
adverse effects.  

6.8 Presentation of ISA Key Findings 

6.8.1 All matrix-based detailed assessments of individual components of the emerging RLDP will be 
contained within appendices to the ISA report, with key findings set out within the main body of the 
report. In accordance with the SEA Regulations, a separate Non-Technical Summary (NTS) 
document will be prepared to provide the information prescribed within Schedule 2 of the SEA 
Regulations and present the key findings of the ISA in non-technical language.  

6.9 Proposed ISA Consultation Arrangements 

6.9.1 Iterative versions of the ISA report will be published to accompany the NPT RLDP Preferred 
Strategy (Pre-Deposit Document) and NPT Deposit Plan (Deposit Document). Whilst the timetable 
for consultation on the emerging RLDP will be confirmed in the final Delivery Agreement (DA) to be 
published in December 2021, the draft DA outlines that consultation on the Preferred Strategy will 
be undertaken from January 2023-February 2023 and from February 2024-March 2024 for the 
Deposit Plan. each for a period not less than (and likely exceeding) 6 weeks duration. Reflecting 
the broad scope of this ISA, the ISA Reports will be issued to relevant stakeholders over and 
above the SEA Consultation Authorities and will be publicly available on the NPT LDP Review 
website.  Representations and comments on both the emerging RLDP and associated ISA Reports 
can be made via the Council's website, email, or postal addresses which will be confirmed prior to 
the RLDP Preferred Strategy consultation period commencing. 

Tudalen237



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

70 

7 Summary and Next Steps 

7.1 Overview 

7.1.1 NPTC has recognised the value and opportunities for an integrated assessment approach to 
preparing the Neath Port Talbot LDP Review. The integration of SA(SEA) along with statutory and 
key non-statutory plan-making elements including the WBFGA 2015 requirements, Equalities Act, 
Welsh language, and Health Impact Assessment (HIA) into a single Integrated Sustainability 
Appraisal (ISA) will enable a more transparent, holistic and rounded assessment of the 
sustainability implications of growth options, objectives, policies and proposals. 

7.1.2 The ISA will be used as a plan-making tool used iteratively at each stage of the LDP Review 
process. This approach will be key to ensuring that the sustainability issues identified in this ISA 
Scoping Report are addressed. These issues include: contextual changes which are intended to 
drive additional growth in NPT and wider South Wales; reconsidering the appropriate strategic 
approach to land use to deliver housing and economic growth; refocusing regeneration towards 
new opportunities and addressing problems with the existing LDP; and, responding to policy 
changes including PPW11 which sets out strong placemaking principles and focuses on place 
prosperity.  

7.1.3 To achieve this, this ISA Scoping Report has defined a proposed ISA Framework (Section 5) and 
assessment methodology (Section 6) for use in undertaking the ISA in respect of the RLDP.  

7.1.4 Subject to any comments received from the SEA Consultation Bodies and other relevant 
consultees, this ISA Framework and methodology will be used to assess the likely significant 
environmental, health, equalities and wider sustainability effects arising from the LDP Review (i.e. 
from the preparation of a RLDP). The assessment will be an iterative process that will include the 
development and refinement of policy and site options by testing the strengths, weaknesses and 
likely effects of all emerging substantive LDP components.   

7.2 Specific Request for Comments from the SEA Consultation Authorities 

7.2.1 In accordance with the SEA Regulations, the SEA Consultation Bodies are specifically requested 
to provide: 

 Their view and associated reasons regarding the potential for LSE to arise from the LDP 
Review and the need (or otherwise) to undertake a SEA; 

 Comments regarding the proposed scope of and approach to undertaking an ISA, 
incorporating SEA, in respect of the LDP Review; 

 Comments regarding the proposed ISA Framework detailed in Table 5.4. In particular, the 
SEA Consultation Bodies are asked to confirm that this ISA Framework sufficiently covers all 
key environmental and other sustainability issues and applicable policy requirements; and,   

 Comments regarding the proposed scope of, level of detail and consultation arrangements for 
iterative ISA Reports to accompany each emerging component of a replacement Neath Port 
Talbot LDP (i.e. ISA Reports for the RLDP Preferred Strategy and RLDP Deposit Plan). 

7.2.2 Any comments should be provided within the statutory timescales prescribed within the SEA 
Regulations (i.e. within 5 weeks of receiving this report) and directed to: 

Duncan Smart, Associate Planner 
Stantec UK Ltd 
0141 343 3319 

duncan.smart@stantec.com 
 

Tudalen238

mailto:duncan.smart@stantec.com


Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

Appendix A  Baseline Review 

A.1 Introduction  

A.1.1 This Appendix supports Section 4 of the Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA Scoping Report. It 

provides a review of current environmental and socio-economic conditions within the area likely to 

be affected by the LDP Review, in particular (but not exclusively) the NPTC administrative area.  

A.1.2 In doing so this review: 

 Identifies relevant baseline characteristics, including those likely to be significantly affected by 
the outcome of the LDP Review (i.e. the replacement Neath Port Talbot LDP). This includes 
the identification of sites designated at international or national levels for reasons of 
ecological/geological importance or heritage/landscape value which have the potential to be 
affected by the LDP Review;  

 Identifies relevant socio-economic trends and baseline conditions, again focusing on matters 
likely to be significantly affected by the outcome of the LDP Review (i.e. the RNeath Port 
Talbot LDP); and, 

 Outlines how the identified environmental and socio-economic characteristics and baseline 
conditions should be addressed within a replacement Neath Port Talbot LDP and considered 
within this ISA.  

A.1.3 This evidence is then used to: 

 Outline the expected evolution of baseline sustainability (including environmental) conditions 
in the absence of the LDP Review; and, 

 Define a suite of key sustainability issues which will need to be addressed within the LDP 
Review and which should be considered throughout this ISA (incorporating SEA) process.  

A.1.4 The purpose of this baseline review is therefore to inform both emerging proposals for the LDP 

Review and the content of a ISA Framework that will be used to assess all substantive components 

of the LDP Review (i.e. all emerging policy and site options, including reasonable alternatives to 

those preferred by NPTC).    

A.2 Overview of Designated Sites 

A.2.1 Table A.1 identifies sites designated at international, national or local level for reasons of 

biodiversity conservation, geological importance, heritage or landscape value which are considered 

to have the potential to be affected by the LDP Review. The site-specific context of these 

designated sites needs to be considered when characterising the sustainability baseline position 

and identifying the relevance of existing issues and problems to the LDP Review, as detailed in 

Section A.3. 

Tudalen239



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

Table A.1: Designated Sites of Relevance to the Neath Port Talbot LDP Review 

Relevant Sites Designation Type Qualifying Features / 
Interests 

Implications for Neath Port 
Talbot LDP Review 

Implications for ISA 

Biodiversity 

International/European 

Within the NPTC area: 
 

 None 

Outwith the NPTC area: 
 

 None 

Special Protection Area 
(SPA) 

N/A N/A N/A 

Within the NPTC area: 
 

 Kenfig/Cynffig 

 Crymlyn Bog / Cors Crymlyn 

 Coedydd Need a Mellte 

 

Special Area of 
Conservation (SAC) 

Kenfig / Cynffig:  Coastal sand 
dunes, sand beaches, machair, 
Tidal rivers, estuaries. 
 

Any RLDP resulting from the 
LDP Review must support 
the management of all 
internationally designated 
sites (including possible or 
proposed new European 
Sites) in pursuit of their 
defined conservation 
objectives.  

Relevant ISA objectives 
must afford adequate 
protection to international 
designations, taking 
account of their site-
specific characteristics and 
qualifying features. 

Crymlyn Bog / Cors Crymlyn: 
Bogs, Marshes, Fens, Broad 
leaved deciduous woodland.  
 

Coedydd Nedd a Mellte: Broad 
leaved deciduous woodland, 
heath & scrub. 

Crymlyn Bog  Ramsar Site Comprises a floodplain-valley 
mire located within a lowland 
coastal context and is the most 
extensive wetland of its type in 
Wales. Also, a SAC, SSSI and 
NNR.  

Outwith the NPT Area Boundary (within 15km): 
 

 Cefn Cribwr Grasslands  

 Blaen Cynon 

 Cwn Calan  

Special Area of 
Conservation (SAC) 

Cefn Cribwr Grasslands: Bogs, 
marshes, humid grassland, 
Heath, scrub, Broad leaves 
deciduous woodland.  

Any RLDP resulting from 
the LDP Review must 
support the management of 
all internationally 
designated sites with the 
potential to be affected by 
development in the NPT 
area (including those in 
close proximity to the NPT 
boundary in neighbouring 
authorities  and also 
including possible or 
proposed new European 
Sites) in pursuit of their 
defined conservation 
objectives. 

Relevant ISA objectives  
must afford adequate 
protection to international 
designations, taking 
account of their site-
specific characteristics 
and qualifying features. 

Blaen Cynon: Humid 
grassland, Bogs, Marshes, 
Water fringed vegetation, 
heath, scrub, improved 
grassland, dry grassland, 
Steppes.  

Cwm Calan: Humid grassland, 
bogs, marshes, water-fringed 
vegetation, Improved 
grassland, Broad leaved 
deciduous woodland.  

National 

21 SSSIs have been designated within the NPTC area: 
 
Caeau Ton-Y-Fildre, Cefn Gwrhyd, Rhydyfro, Cilybebyllcoed Cwm Du, Cilmaengwyn, Cors Crymlyn, Crymlyn bog,  
Craig-Y-Llyn, Crymlyn Burrows, Cwm Gwrelych and Nant Llyn Fach Streams, Cynffig/Kenfig, 

Site of Special Scientific 
Interest (SSSI) 

The identified SSSIs have been 
designated owing to the 
presence of nationally 

Any RLDP resulting from this 
LDP Review must support 
the management of all 
nationally designated sites in 

Relevant ISA objectives 
must afford adequate 
protection to national 
designations, taking 

T
udalen240



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

Relevant Sites Designation Type Qualifying Features / 
Interests 

Implications for Neath Port 
Talbot LDP Review 

Implications for ISA 

Dyffrynoedd Nedd a Mellte a Moel Penderyn, Earlswood Road Cutting and Ferryboat Inn quarries, Eglwys Nunydd Reservoir, Fforest Goch Bog, 
Frondeg, Gorsllwyn, Onllwyn, Gwrhyd Meadows, Hafod Wennol Grasslands, Margam Moors, Mynydd Ty-Isaf,  
Rhondda, Pant-Y-Sais, Tairgwaith 

 
 

 

important or rare habitat types 
within each. 

pursuit of their defined 
conservation objectives.  

account of their site-
specific characteristics and 
qualifying interests. 

Kenfig Pool and Dunes: 
 
Crymlyn Bog and Pant Y Sais 

National Nature Reserve 
(NNR). 

Kenfig Pool NNR hosts 
Glamorgan's largest lake  
whilst Crymlyn Bog and Pant Y 
Sais consists in part of the 
largest lowland fen in Wales. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Local 

The following SINCs are currently designated at the local level within the NPTC area:  
 
Catwg Wetland, Hawthorn Close, Hafodheulog Wood East Meadow, Tennant Canal, Gorsllwyn Meadows, Rolling 
Mill Cwmavan, Cwm Blaenpelenna , Harbourside Law Courts, Khartoum Tip, Baglan Bay, St David's Graveyard, 
Briton Ferry Waste Ground, Earlswood Area, Lower River Afan Estuary, The Quays Car Park Bunds, Jersey Marine 
Woods, Margam Country Park, Square Pond, Earlswood Grasslands, Tyle'r Waun, GCG Common, Pandy Farm, 
Swansea Canal, Neath Canal, Eglwys Nunydd, Caroline Street, Junction 38 Wetland Complex, Ynysdawle, Cwm du 
Glen & Glanrhyd Plantation, Land behind Marigold Place, Dyffryn Woods, Tiroedd Comin Cwm Amman Uchaf, 
Amazon Woodlands, Baglan Brownfield Slack, Lamb & Flag, Nant Y Cafn, Heol Heddwch, Baglan Panhandle, Sarn 
Helen, Bwlch Road Hedges, Derwydd Avenue, White Lady's Farm Orchard, Ffynnon Dawel Selar, Aberbaiden Farm 
Meadows, Giant's Grave, Brunel Dock Grassland, Cilfrew Meadow, Mynydd y Garth, Mynydd Gellionnen, Abernant 
Road Playing Field, Jaffa Land Baglan, Gelli Dochlithe, Dyffryn Cellwen, Rhos Common, Intervalley Road, Banwen, 
Blaendulais Marshy Grassland, Rheola Borrow Pits Grassland, Ynys Corrwg Farm, Bryn Goytre Cycleway, Cymer 
Tip, Treforgan, Resolven Minewater Treatment Units, Gwynfi Street, Rheola Lowland Grassland, Riverside 
Industrial Estate, Hafodheulog Wood North Meadow, Ynysmeudwy Molinia Meadow, Coed Hirwaun Wetland, 
Rhyslyn, Neath Estuary, St John's Graveyard, Nant Y Wern, Upper Melincourt Valley, Banwen Pond, Rhos Bends 
Bog, Glan-Yr-Afon, Gnoll Country Park, Brunel Dock Reedbed, Shelone Woods, Pen Yr Alltwen 
School Road, Crynant, Dan-Y-Coed, Little Warren, Preswylfa Dingle, Aberbaiden Farm Small Meadow, Fields 
Behind Heol Y Coedcau, Scotch Street, Meadow Row, Bryn, Parc Croeserw, Bryn Tip, Cwmavon Coal Tips, 
Pentreffynnon, Pant-Y-Brwyn, Garth Mor, Fabian Way Wildflower Verge, The Waun, Cimla, Bryncoch Farm, Coed 
Bach A'r Cwm, Floristically Diverse Forestry Verge, Betony Field, Triangular Pond, Crymlyn Burrows, Caeau 
Ynysgeinon, Carn Llechart, Coed Darcy Gcn Area, Bryn Gwyn, Red Jacket Fen, Adjacent to Gors Llwyn, Marden 
Park Baglan, Llandarcy Village Green, Cwmafan Green Corridor, Gwlyptir Mynachlog Need, Resolven Alluvial 
Meadows, Panasonic, Land behind Pen Y Bryn, Maerdy Playing Fields, Parc Rhiwfawr, Abernant Colliery, Onllwyn 
Coal Washery, Waun Sterw, Morfa Glas, Tonmawr Minewater Treatment & Surrounding Habitats, Afan Mineral 
Railway, Fferm Alltwenganol, Roman Way Reedbed, Aberhenwaun Uchaf, Penrhys Fawr, Resolven Minewater 
Treatment area OMH 

Sites of Importance for 
Nature Conservation 
(SINC). 

The identified SINCS host a 
wide range of locally important 
habitat types and either the 
observed presence of or 
potential to support a wide 
range of floral and faunal 
species, including indicator 
species. A number of the 
SINCS overlap with higher 
level statutory designations. 

Any RLDP resulting from this 
LDP Review should provide 
an appropriate level of 
protection and enhancement 
opportunities for biodiversity 
sites designated at the local 
level.    

Relevant ISA objectives 
must afford an appropriate 
level of protection for all 
designated sites, 
consumerate with their 
status and purpose. 

The following LNRs are currently designated at the local level within the NPTC area: 
 
 Pant-Y-Sais, Eaglesbush Valley, Cwm Du Glen and Glanrhyd Plantation, Bryn Tip, Swansea Canal 

Local Nature Reserve 
(LNR) 

LNR are sites which have 
interesting wildlife or geology 
but are also important for local 
residents, schools and are 
places where people who may 
have no specific interest in 
natural history can enjoy 
access to nature. NPTC’s 
countryside team aim to make 

Any RLDP resulting from this 
LDP Review should provide 
an appropriate level of 
protection and enhancement 
opportunities for nature 
reserves designated at the 
local level.    

Relevant ISA objectives 
must afford an appropriate 
level of protection for all 
designated sites, 
consumerate with their 
status and purpose. 

T
udalen241



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

Relevant Sites Designation Type Qualifying Features / 
Interests 

Implications for Neath Port 
Talbot LDP Review 

Implications for ISA 

the LNRs exemplars in the 
management of designated 
sites and green space, with the 
goals of conserving nature, 
providing opportunities for 
study or research and allowing 
access and recreation. 

Geological 

National 

Cwmgwrelych and Nant Llyn Fach Streams Site of Special Scientific 
Interest (SSSI) 

Geological SSSIs are 
designated owing to the 
presence of nationally 
important or rare geological 
features.  

Any RLDP resulting from this 
LDP Review must support 
the management of all 
nationally designated sites 
to maintain or improve their 
current condition.  
 

Relevant ISA objectives 
must afford adequate 
protection to national 
designations, taking 
account of their site-
specific characteristics and 
qualifying interests. 

Local 

2 RIGS have been designated within the NPTC area:  
 
Aberdulais Falls & Melincourt Brook  

Regionally Important 
Geodiversity Site (RIGS) 

 Any RLDP resulting from this 
LDP Review should provide 
an appropriate level of 
protection for locally 
designated regionally 
important geodiversity sites.    

Relevant ISA objectives 
must afford an appropriate 
level of protection for all 
designated sites, 
commensurate with their 
status and purpose. There 
is also a need to assess 
likely effects on important 
geological features under 
the ‘soil’ environmental 
topic as prescribed within 
Schedule 2 of the SEA 
Regulations. 

Cultural Heritage 

National 

97 Scheduled Monuments across the NPTC area Scheduled Monuments 
(SM) 

Of the 97 identified Scheduled 
Monuments (SM, 5 date from 
the Early Medieval period, 14 
from the Medieval period, 27 
Post Medieval/Modern, 45 
Prehistoric and 6 Roman.  
 
The majority are sited within 
Margam (15). A wide range of 
historic structures have been 
designated, including hill forts, 
chapels, standing stones, 
ironworks, castles and cairns, 
each of which is of historical 
significance and forms an 
important landscape feature. 
 

Any RLDP resulting from this 
LDP Review must support 
the protection and 
enhancement of all 
nationally designated 
heritage historic assets, 
including their setting. The 
identified heritage historic 
assets benefit from statutory 
protection which must be 
taken account of within 
policies, proposals and 
guidance within the RLDP. 
 
 

Relevant ISA objectives 
must afford adequate 
protection to nationally 
designated heritage 
historic assets, taking 
account of site-specific 
characteristics and the 
relevance of heritage 
historic assets to the NPTC 
area. 

T
udalen242



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

Relevant Sites Designation Type Qualifying Features / 
Interests 

Implications for Neath Port 
Talbot LDP Review 

Implications for ISA 

395 Listed Buildings across the NPTC area Listed Buildings A wide range of structures and 
buildings have been listed 
owing to their features of 
architectural importance. 
 

There are 6 Conservation Areas within the NPTC area:  
 
Cilybebyll, Neath Town Centre, Llandarcy Village, Tonna Canal Depot, Glynneath Woolen Mill, Margam Park 

Conservation Areas The designated Conservation 
Areas are centred upon 
clusters of Listed Buildings or 
other structures of architectural 
importance. 

Landscape 

National 

There are no AONB designated within the Neath Port Talbot Area. However, the Gower AONB is approx.20 miles 
from the NPTC boundary, covering much of the peninsula and is renowned for its scenic quality, particularly the 
coastline, much of which is Heritage Coast.  

Area of Outstanding 
Natural Beauty (AONB) 

N/A N/A N/A 

1 National Park which falls within the boundary of the NPTC area: 
 
Brecon Beacons National Park 

National Park National Parks are areas of 
exceptional natural beauty 
designated to conserve and 
enhance the natural beauty, 
wildlife and cultural heritage of 
the parks, protect the social 
and economic wellbeing of its 
communities and promote 
public enjoyment and 
understanding of their special 
qualities.  

Any RLDP resulting from this 
LDP Review should provide 
an appropriate level of 
protection and enhancement 
opportunities for the Brecon 
Beacons National Park. The 
duty relating to the purposes 
of the National Park also 
applies outside the park and 
in its setting. 

Relevant ISA objectives 
must afford adequate 
protection to national 
designations, taking 
account of their site-
specific characteristics and 
qualifying interests. 

Local 

The following SLAs are currently designated at the local level within the NPTC area:   
 
Mynydd y Garth, Dulais Valley, Vale of Neath, Margam, Mynddy Gelli, & Foel Trawsnant 
 

Special Landscape Areas 
(SLA) 

Policy ENV2 within the existing 
Neath Port Talbot LDP 
identifies these 6 Special 
Landscape Areas (SLAs) as 
being unique, exceptional or 
distinctive to the NPTC area. 
 
 

Any RLDP resulting from this 
LDP Review should provide 
an appropriate level of 
protection and enhancement 
opportunities for landscapes 
designated at the local level.    

Relevant ISA objectives 
must afford an appropriate 
level of protection for all 
designated sites, 
commensurate with their 
status and purpose. 

T
udalen243



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

A.3 Environmental and Socio-economic Baseline Conditions 

A.3.1 Informed by Table A.1, Table A.2 below outlines the current environmental and socio-economic 

conditions within the area likely to be affected by the LDP Review, in particular (but not exclusively) 

the NPTC administrative area. This review also identifies associated existing environmental and 

socio-economic problems and issues which the LDP Review should address and which should be 

considered throughout this ISA process. 

Tudalen244



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

Table A.2: Review of Relevant Environmental Aspects, Issues and Problems 

SEA Topic Baseline Key Characteristics 
Existing Objectives, 
Issues and Problems 

Implications for Neath Port 
Talbot LDP Review 

Implications for ISA 

1. Biodiversity, 

Fauna and 

Flora 

Designated sites: As detailed in Table 
A.1, the NPTC area hosts a number of 
designated sites at European, national 
and local levels for reasons of biodiversity 
conservation and value, whilst other 
designated sites out with the NPTC area 
could also be affected by the LDP Review. 
At the European level the NPTC area 
hosts 3 SACs and 1 Ramsar site. At the 
national level the NPTC area hosts 21 
SSSI’s and 2 NNRs. At the local level, 
NPTC has designated 129 SINCS, 2 
RIGS and 5 LNRs. 

All identified sites are 
designated for specific 
reasons of ecological 
important or biodiversity 
conservation and have 
conservation objectives 
related to these, e.g. the 
protection of relevant 
qualifying features. Table 
A.1 above identifies the 
qualifying features of 
relevant European sites 
(SACs and Ramsar sites). 
There is a need to 
safeguard these qualifying 
features from adverse 
effects, protect the integrity 
of designated sites and 
work towards the 
achievement of defined 
conservation objectives.       

Any proposals for development 
within the NPTC area could 
adversely impact designated 
sites and biodiversity through a 
range of direct and indirect 
effects, potentially including 
loss of roosting, foraging and 
other habitats, physical or noise 
disturbance, abstraction of river 
water, discharge of effluent, 
contamination and air pollution. 
As such, all proposals and 
policies within the emerging 
RLDP arising from the LDP 
Review must take account of 
relevant ecological sensitivities. 
This includes the need to 
support the management of all 
designated sites in relation to 
their status and in pursuit of 
their defined conservation 
objectives. Any RLDP must 
also provide an appropriate 
level of protection for protected 
species and non-designated 
ecological interests. 

The ISA Framework must 
include objectives relating 
to the appropriate 
conservation, protection 
and enhancement of 
statutorily and non-
statutorily designated sites. 

Priority and other notable habitats: 
NPTC's habitats include ancient 
woodlands, unimproved wet grasslands, 
chalk grassland, river valleys and rocky 
gorges, coastal sand dunes and 
saltmarsh. These habitats support varied 
flora and fauna, including many protected, 
rare or declining species. 

The ISA Framework should 
include appropriate 
objectives to assess 
potential effects on habitats 
and species from 
proposals (including 
cumulative development) 
and policies within the 
emerging RLDP. This 
should include 
consideration of impacts 
such as habitat loss, 
recreational impacts, water 
abstraction, pollution and 
disturbance effects.  

T
udalen245



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

SEA Topic Baseline Key Characteristics 
Existing Objectives, 
Issues and Problems 

Implications for Neath Port 
Talbot LDP Review 

Implications for ISA 

2. Population 

(including 

relevant 

socio-

economic 

conditions) 

Governance and Statistical 
Geographical Units: NPTC is the unitary 
authority responsible for local government 
across a 442km2 area of South Wales. 
The authority hosts five lower level Town 
Councils and 14 Community Councils. 
The unitary authority contains two whole 
constituencies: Aberavon & Neath.  
 
The principal towns in the NPTC area are 
Neath, Port Talbot and Pontardawe. The 
NPTC area stretches from the coast to the 
borders of the Brecon Beacons National 
Park. A large proportion of the NPTC area 
is characterised by uplands/semi-uplands 
and forestry. The upland areas are 
characterised by five valleys: Vale of 
Neath, Dulais Valley, Afan Valley, 
Swansea Valley and Upper Amman 
Valley.  
 
As a unitary authority, NPTC is also the 
single local planning authority (LPA) for 
the area. The Planning (Wales) Act 2015 
provides a legal framework for the 
preparation of Strategic Development 
Plans at the regional level (refer to 
Appendix B for further details). An SDP is 
expected be prepared in due course for 
the South West Wales Region 
incorporating the NPTC area. 
NPTC is also part of the Swansea Bay 
City Deal, a £1.3bn investment secured by 
the Swansea Bay City Region for 11 major 

N/A The preparation of any RLDP 
will need to be closely aligned 
with the preparation of the SDP 
to ensure that once adopted, 
both documents provide a 
coherent framework for 
effectively and efficiently 
addressing relevant planning 
issues.  

The ISA Framework should 
include appropriate 
objectives to assess the 
ability of the emerging 
RLDP to meet existing and 
predicted future population 
needs, in particular with 
regards to the accessibility 
and provision of public 
services.  
 
The ISA Framework 
proposed for use in the ISA 
of the LDP Review 
(Section 5) should be kept 
under review and tested for 
compatibility against the 
SA Framework for the SDP 
once this has been 
produced.     
 
 

T
udalen246



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

SEA Topic Baseline Key Characteristics 
Existing Objectives, 
Issues and Problems 

Implications for Neath Port 
Talbot LDP Review 

Implications for ISA 

projects across Pembrokeshire, 
Camarthenshire, Swansea and Neath Port 
Talbot. In the NPTC area, this will result in 
the creation of the Centre for Excellence 
in Next Generation Services for start-up 
businesses, the ASTUTE Factory of the 
Future for smart technologies and a new 
National Steel Innovation Centre for 
research, testing and knowledge sharing.  

Demographics: NPTC has an estimated 
population of 143,000 (20185), around 
4.6% of the total population of Wales 
(3,118,600).  
 
2018 based projections6 suggest that the 
population will increase from 142,906 in 
2018 to 143,621 by 2021, increasing to 
144,238 by 2028, which equates to an 
increase of 1% over the ten-year period. 
Additionally, between 2018-2028, those 
aged 15 and under are expected to 
decline by 4.46%, while those aged 16-64 
are projected to decline by 1.7%. 
Conversely, the proportion aged 65+ is 
projected to increase by 13.3% between 
2018 and 2028.  
 
In terms of statistical units, there are 91 
Lower Super Output Areas (LSOAs) within 

Projected population 
ageing is likely to create 
issues for long term 
workforce replacement and 
increase pressures on a 
range of public services. 

The LDP Review must take into 
account the characteristics of 
the resident and working 
populations of the NPTC area, 
particularly with regard to 
current and future predicted 
labour supplies, employment 
needs, skill levels and socio-
economic factors (as detailed 
below). 
 
It will be important for the 
RLDP to set out coherent 
strategies in respect of housing 
land and community 
infrastructure provision to meet 
current and expected future 
needs. Robust evidence to 
identify these needs should 
also therefore be collated and 

The ISA Framework should 
include appropriate 
objectives to assess the 
ability of the emerging 
RLDP to meet existing and 
predicted future population 
needs, in particular with 
regards to the accessibility 
and provision of public 
services. 

                                                      
5 NOMIS: https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/reports/lmp/la/1946157394/report.aspx 

6 StatsWales: https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Population-and-Migration/Population/Projections/Local-Authority/2018-based/populationprojections-by-localauthority-year 

T
udalen247

https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/reports/lmp/la/1946157394/report.aspx
https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Population-and-Migration/Population/Projections/Local-Authority/2018-based/populationprojections-by-localauthority-year


Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

SEA Topic Baseline Key Characteristics 
Existing Objectives, 
Issues and Problems 

Implications for Neath Port 
Talbot LDP Review 

Implications for ISA 

the NPTC area, representing 4.8% of the 
1909 total LSOAs in Wales. 

kept up to date throughout the 
LDP Review.  

Housing:  The JHLAS (2019) indicated 
that NPTC had a housing land supply, 
assessed against the current housing 
requirement of the Neath Port Talbot LDP, 
of 4.5-years; below the five-year target. 
Since the previous JHLAS (2018), the 
current housing land supply has declined 
by 0.5 years. The 2020 AMR shows that 
the delivery of homes has fallen short of 
annual targets since 2014/15, with the 
latest estimations (2020) showing a 
shortfall of 30% than the projected 8760 
homes by the end of the plan period.   
Neath Port Talbot is split into multiple 
housing wards. The top 5 largest number 
of households are in the following Wards- 
Neath East (3,048), Sandfields East 
(3,045), Baglan (2,924), Sandfields West 
(2,882) and Bryn & Cwmavon (2,850).  
 
In total there are an estimated 63,9787 
dwellings across the NPTC area, of which 
approximately 69% are owner occupied, 
19% are social rented, 10% private 
rented, 2% are living rent free and 0.2% 
shared ownership.  
Average house prices within NPTC 
increased by 7% from March 2019 

The identification of a 
current housing land 
shortfall means that 
insufficient housing is likely 
to be delivered through the 
planning system to meet 
identified needs. However, 
a RLDP must be 
underpinned by up to date 
and objective calculations 
of housing need, which 
may differ from the housing 
land requirements set 
under different economic 
conditions in 2016 for the 
existing LDP.   
 
Alongside the ageing 
population, housing 
demand is anticipated to 
increase with projected 
increases in the number of 
single person/lone parent 
households. 
 
At present the overall level 
of demand for affordable 
housing is not being met 

The LDP Review calculates the 
objectively assessed housing 
need (OAN) level for the NPTC 
area over the intended period 
of the RLDP and set a new 
housing land requirement 
accordingly. Any RLDP 
resulting from this LDP Review 
will then need to be 
underpinned by a clear housing 
land strategy and will need to 
allocate a sufficient quantum 
and appropriate range of 
housing sites to satisfy the 
identified housing land 
requirement.  
 

The ISA Framework should 
include objectives relating 
to housing provision to 
meet identified needs, both 
in terms of the availability 
and quality of the housing 
stock.  

                                                      
7 NPTCBCCBC Local Housing Strategy (2015): https://www.NPTCBC.gov.uk/media/3980/NPTCBCcbc_local_housing_strategy_2015.pdf 

T
udalen248

https://www.npt.gov.uk/media/3980/nptcbc_local_housing_strategy_2015.pdf


Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

SEA Topic Baseline Key Characteristics 
Existing Objectives, 
Issues and Problems 

Implications for Neath Port 
Talbot LDP Review 

Implications for ISA 

(£113,409) to March 2020 (£121,338) 
which is £40,346 below the average 
property prices for Wales at £161,684 
(March 2020)8.  
 
 
Over the Plan period, there is an identified 
need for approximately 8,000 dwellings 
over to the year 2026. The sub-area of 
Neath requires approximately 4,100 of 
these, in contrast to Amman Valley which 
requires approximately 1% (or 100 
homes). 
 
Over 20199, a total of 299 housing 
completions were recorded in Neath Port 
Talbot, falling short of the 2019 target of 
686 dwellings. Since the LDP base date in 
2011, a total of 2,126 houses have been 
built, falling short of the annual cumulative 
target of 3,582 in the same period. This is 
a shortfall of 1456 units, with just 59.4% of 
the cumulative annual target delivered to 
date.  
 
With regards to affordable housing, over 
the latest monitoring period (2019), no 
affordable housing units were recorded as 
delivered through the planning system. 50 
houses have been completed since the 

across the NPTC area. 
Furthermore, NPTC has 
identified clear shortfalls in 
the provision of extra care 
housing and smaller 
dwellings, in particular that 
of two-bedroom properties, 
across the affordable and 
general-purpose housing 
sectors. 

                                                      
8 UK House Price Index - Wales (March  2020) 

9 LDP Review Report, Neath Port Talbot Council (January 2020) 

T
udalen249



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

SEA Topic Baseline Key Characteristics 
Existing Objectives, 
Issues and Problems 

Implications for Neath Port 
Talbot LDP Review 

Implications for ISA 

LDP base rate (2011) against a target of 
478 in the same period, resulting in a 
10.5% delivery rate. This demonstrates a 
significant shortfall of affordable housing 
delivery across Neath Port Talbot. 

Educational 
Attainment/Qualifications10:  
In 2018 ,11% of the working age 
population (16 to 64yr) in the NPTC area 
held no qualifications, which is higher than 
the percentage of the population with no 
qualifications across Wales (8.6%). 
This trend was also observed each year 
between 2011 – 2017, although the 
proportion of the NPTC population with no 
qualifications is shrinking.  
 
The level of attainment achieved by the 
working age population with qualifications 
is also lower in Neath Port Talbot than 
across Wales: 48.5% in Neath Port Talbot 
are qualified to level NVQ3 or above 
compared with 55.1% across Wales and 
29.2% are qualified to level NVQ4 or 
above compared with 35.4% at the 
national level.  

The latest available 
statistics highlight that as a 
whole, the working age 
population within the NPTC 
area holds fewer and less 
advanced qualifications 
than across Wales, 
although current 
educational attainment 
amongst school aged 
people is similar across 
both geographies.  
 
The observed high 
proportion of the working 
age population with no 
qualifications. This is of 
concern as the limits the 
ability of a sizeable 
demographic group to be 
economically active and 
restricts local access by 
employers to high skilled 
labour. 

The LDP Review should 
identify adequate provision of 
community infrastructure to 
meet existing and projected 
future population needs, 
including with respect to 
education infrastructure 
capacity and choice. 

The ISA Framework should 
include appropriate 
objectives to assess the 
ability of the emerging 
RLDP to meet existing and 
predicted future population 
needs, including with 
regards to the adequacy, 
quality and spatial 
distribution of education 
infrastructure provision. 

                                                      
10 Educational attainment statistics sourced from NOMIS: Labour Market Profile – Neath Port Talbot 

T
udalen250



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

SEA Topic Baseline Key Characteristics 
Existing Objectives, 
Issues and Problems 

Implications for Neath Port 
Talbot LDP Review 

Implications for ISA 

Community Infrastructure: Neath Port 
Talbot CBC is split into multiple wards: 
Neath North, Neath South, Pelenna, 
Pontardawe, Resolven, Rhos, Sandfields 
West, Tonna, Trebanos,Ystalyfera, 
Baglan, Briton Ferry East, Bryn and 
Cwmavon, Margam, Onllwyn, Port Talbot, 
Sandfields East, Seven Sisters, Tai-bach, 
Aberavon, Aberdulais, Allt-wen, 
Blaengwrach, Briton, Ferry West, Bryn-
coch North, Bryn-coch South, Cadoxton, 
Cimla, Coedffranc Central, Coedffranc 
North, Coedffranc West, Crynant, 
Cwmllynfell, Cymmer, Dyffryn, 
Glyncorrwg, Glynneath, Godre'r graig, 
Gwaun-Cae-Gurwen, Gwynfi, Lower 
Brynamman, Neath East. 
 
Educational facilities 
 
Neath Port Talbot CBC act as the 
education authority in the area and 
operate the primary and secondary 
schools within the County. It operates 6 
infant schools, 6 junior schools, 56 
primary schools, 11 secondary schools 
and 3 special schools.  
 
Further education institutions include St 
Joseph’s Catholic School & Sixth Form 
Centre and Ysgol Gyfun Ystalyfera who 
provide sixth form opportunities. Neath 
Port Talbot College operates across the 
County Borough, with main activities 

 The Neath Port Talbot 
Wellbeing Assessment 
(2017) indicates that the 
NPTC area is presently 
served by a range of good 
quality community 
infrastructure and open 
spaces. However, funding 
shortfalls for cultural 
facilities may affect their 
availability. It will be 
important that these are 
protected and where 
possible enhanced and that 
the infrastructure is 
capable of meeting the 
changing needs of the 
population. In addition, 
further community 
infrastructure and open 
space provision will be 
required to support 
projected population 
growth within the NPTC 
area. 

The LDP Review should 
identify adequate provision of 
community infrastructure to 
meet existing and projected 
future population needs, 
including with respect to 
outdoor sport provision, 
children’s playing space, 
community halls, accessible 
natural open space and 
allotment provision. 

The ISA Framework should 
include appropriate 
objectives to assess the 
ability of the emerging 
RLDP to meet existing and 
predicted future population 
needs, including with 
regards to the provision 
and quality of community 
infrastructure. 

T
udalen251



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

SEA Topic Baseline Key Characteristics 
Existing Objectives, 
Issues and Problems 

Implications for Neath Port 
Talbot LDP Review 

Implications for ISA 

focused in two campuses in both Port 
Talbot and Neath.  
 
Higher education institutions in the area 
include Swansea University, which has a 
science and innovation campus in 
Crymlyn Burrows and the University of 
South Wales which has a campus located 
at Baglan Energy Park in Port Talbot.  
 
Community facilities 
 
There are 8 libraries managed by Neath 
port Talbot Libraries and 7 community 
managed libraries in the NPTC area.  
 
Four areas of Neath Port Talbot were 
awarded Green Flag status in 2019: Gnoll 
Estate Country Park, Margam Country 
Park, Talbot Memorial Park and Neath’s 
Victoria Gardens. Margam Country Park is 
one of only seven sites in Wales to be 
accredited as a Green Heritage Site. The 
Green Flag Community Award was also 
given to the Amman Valley Trotting Club, 
Glyncorrwg Ponds and Riverside Park. 

T
udalen252



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

SEA Topic Baseline Key Characteristics 
Existing Objectives, 
Issues and Problems 

Implications for Neath Port 
Talbot LDP Review 

Implications for ISA 

Employment11:  
In 2019, the employment rate within the 
NPTC area was 74.5%, which is slightly 
higher than across Wales (73.5%) but 
lower than the average across Great 
Britain (75.7%). In Neath Port Talbot, the 
percentage of the working age population 
that is economically active is also higher in 
Neath Port Talbot (77.6%) than across 
Wales (76.8%).  
 
The official unemployment rate in the 
NPTC area stood at 4.3% for 2019, which 
was higher than the unemployment rate 
across Wales (4.1%) and Great Britain 
(3.9%).  
 
Related to this, in 2019 the NPTC area 
had a jobs density of 0.60 (ratio of jobs to 
resident working age population) 
compared with 0.78 across Wales and 
0.86 for Great Britain. 
 
Neath Port Talbot accommodates a 
number of manufacturing facilities such as 
steel, petrochemicals, automotive 
engineering and apparel; most notably 
Port Talbot Steelworks, capable of 
producing almost 5 million tonnes of steel 
slab per annum and a key employer in the 
NPTC area.  

In recent years the NPTC 
area has consistently 
experienced a higher 
unemployment rate than 
the national averages for 
Wales and Great Britain. 
This indicates either that 
insufficient or unsuitable 
employment opportunities 
are provided for residents 
of the NPTC area, taking 
account of education and 
skills levels (which, as 
detailed below, are also 
below national averages).  
 
 
 

The LDP Review should 
develop and appropriate 
employment land and 
economic development 
strategy for the RLDP. It will be 
important for emerging policies, 
proposals and guidance to 
support the creation of a broad 
range of new employment 
opportunities which match the 
skill levels of the existing labour 
market, whilst also seeking to 
attract high value sectors such 
as energy, advanced 
manufacturing, logistics and 
ports.    

The ISA should assess 
whether the RLDP will be 
effective in providing 
increased employment 
opportunities in appropriate 
locations and appropriate 
sectoral diversification into 
high value industries. The 
ISA Framework should 
therefore include objectives 
relating to high quality 
employment, economic 
growth, sectoral 
diversification and inward 
investment. 

                                                      
11 All data sourced from NOMIS: Labour Market Profile – Neath Port Talbot  

T
udalen253



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

SEA Topic Baseline Key Characteristics 
Existing Objectives, 
Issues and Problems 

Implications for Neath Port 
Talbot LDP Review 

Implications for ISA 

 
The largest employment sectors in Neath 
Port Talbot are for manufacturing (19%) 
and human health and social work 
activities (17%). Wholesale and retail 
trade; repair of motor vehicles and 
motorcycles is the third largest employer 
by industry in Neath Port Talbot at 12.8%. 
This is comparable to that of Wales overall 
where human health and social work 
activities are undertaken by 17% of the 
population and wholesale and retail trade; 
repair of motor vehicles and motorcycles 
at 14%.    
 
The range of occupations within NPTC 
demonstrates that those employed as 
managers and directors, professional, 
associate professional and technical 
occupations falls below the Welsh and 
United Kingdom average whilst the 
process plant and machine operatives 
proportion is higher than the Wales 
average. 
 
ONS Annual Population Survey data 
indicates that over the period since 2015 
there has been a small shift in the industry 
of employment of residents of the NPTC 
area, as the proportion of those who work 
in retail and education has decreased 
while the proportion who worked in health, 

T
udalen254



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

SEA Topic Baseline Key Characteristics 
Existing Objectives, 
Issues and Problems 

Implications for Neath Port 
Talbot LDP Review 

Implications for ISA 

hotels, transport and communications 
increased12. 
 
In 2019, full-time workers gross weekly 
pay in Neath Port Talbot averaged at 
£613.40, which was £78.40 above the 
Wales level and £26.90 above the 
average across Great Britain. Females in 
Neath Port Talbot received £85.30 less in 
their gross weekly pay than the total 
average.  

Inequality, Social Exclusion and 
Deprivation: The Welsh Index of Multiple 
Deprivation (2019) identifies deprivation 
pockets throughout Wales.  
 
In 2019, of the 91 LSOAs in the NPTC 
are, 14 were in the most deprived 10% of 
Wales; 30 were in the most deprived 20%; 
41 were in the most deprived 30% and 63 
were in the most deprived 50% LSOAs13. 
 
The percentage of households that are 
workless in Neath Port Talbot is at 25.9%, 
considerable above the national average 
for Wales at 18.3%14. The percentage of 
the working age population who are 
claiming universal credit in NPTC is 3.4%, 

Some parts of the NPTC 
area, especially in the 
Valley communities, are 
among the most deprived 
areas of Wales, with low 
levels of economic activity 
and access to facilities and 
services, particularly for 
children, young people and 
elderly populations. 

A holistic strategy is needed to 
address multiple deprivation 
within parts of the NPTC area, 
including but not limited to the 
creation of new, high quality 
employment opportunities. Any 
RLDP resulting from this LDP 
should set out a clear 
employment land strategy to 
support the provision of new 
employment opportunities in 
appropriate and accessible 
locations. The RLDP should 
also include a regeneration 
strategy and associated 
policies and proposals to 
catalyse a range of physical, 

The ISA Framework should 
include appropriate 
objectives relating to 
equality, social inclusion, 
access to public services, 
employment opportunities, 
access to healthcare, 
access to open spaces and 
exposure to pollution (air, 
water, soil, etc). 
. 

                                                      
12 Business Register and Employment Survey- Neath Port Talbot (2019) 

13 StatWales Neath Port Talbot Local Authority Analysis (2019) 

14 Neath Port Talbot Public Services Board Well-being  

T
udalen255



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

SEA Topic Baseline Key Characteristics 
Existing Objectives, 
Issues and Problems 

Implications for Neath Port 
Talbot LDP Review 

Implications for ISA 

slightly higher than 3.1% across Wales 
and 3% across Great Britain.  
 
The level of worklessness is reflected 
through gross disposable household 
income (GDHI) per head, which is lower 
(£14,971) than the Wales average 
(£15,754). In 2014, GDHI in NPTC was 
£14,746.00. 

environmental, health and 
socio-economic improvements 
within identified deprived 
communities.  
 
 

3. Human 

Health 

Life expectancy15:  
 
Based on the latest figures for the NPTC 
area, life expectancy for males at birth is 
76.4 and for females, 80.4. With regard to 
healthy life expectancy, males at birth can 
expect a healthy life expectancy of 58.9 
years, while females from birth can expect 
a healthy life expectancy of 57 years.  
 
Across Wales, life expectancy for males at 
birth is 78.2, while for females it is 82.13. 
Healthy life expectancy from birth ranges 
from 60.9 for males to 61.5 for females.  

It is clear to see that there 
are large gaps in life 
expectancy and healthy life 
expectancy between males 
and females in the NPTC 
area compared to the 
Welsh average.   
 
Measures need to be put in 
place to firstly tackle 
deprivation which should 
then have a positive impact 
on life expectancy of both 
males and females.  
 
   

Any RLDP resulting from this 
LDP Review should take into 
consideration the lower life 
expectancy and notable health 
inequalities of the NPTC area 
resident population compared 
with regional and national 
averages. It should set out 
proposals, policies and 
guidance to safeguard and 
improve amenity. quality of life 
and health outcomes (physical 
and mental) for all within the 
NPTC area, i.e. for both the 
workforce and residents. 

The ISA Framework should 
include objectives relating 
to amenity, quality of life, 
health outcomes, physical 
health, mental health, 
wellbeing, safety and 
security. These issues 
should be considered 
holistically when assessing 
the proposed components 
of the emerging RLDP. 

                                                      
15 ONS, Life expectancy of females/males 2015-17 figures 

T
udalen256



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

SEA Topic Baseline Key Characteristics 
Existing Objectives, 
Issues and Problems 

Implications for Neath Port 
Talbot LDP Review 

Implications for ISA 

Physical Health/Lifestyle Choices:  
According to the ‘Our Healthy Future 
Interactive Tool 2015’ adults living within 
Neath Port Talbot undertook moderate to 
vigorous physical activity for 30 minutes or 
more on 2.1 times a week on average, this 
is slightly below the Wales average 
(2.4)16.   
 
The percentage of adults who reported to 
have eaten five or more portions of fruit 
and vegetables the previous day in NPTC 
was 27% which is slightly below the 
average for Wales at 33% (2013-2014). 
This has declined by 5% since 2009-
201017.  
 
Between 2010 and 2015 the proportion of 
those who had eaten five or more portions 
of fruit and vegetables the previous day 
for Neath Port Talbot has steadily 
decreased but is consistently still been 
below the average for Wales.   
 
Childhood obesity is a significant issue in 
NPTC with 12.4% of children aged 4-5 
years being classed as obese in 2019 in 
comparison to all-Wales average of 

Physical health and 
lifestyle choices within 
NPTC are under 
performing when compared 
to that for Wales. Increased 
education and awareness 
would be beneficial to the 
population of the County 
Borough.  

                                                      
16 NHS Wales Informatics Service, Our Healthy Future Interactive tool 2015, Average number of days of 30 

mins or more moderate to vigorous physical activity (capped) reported by adults, age standardised. 

17 Welsh Health Survey (WG) (2013-2014 data) Our healthy future indicators 

T
udalen257



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

SEA Topic Baseline Key Characteristics 
Existing Objectives, 
Issues and Problems 

Implications for Neath Port 
Talbot LDP Review 

Implications for ISA 

12%18.  In Neath Port Talbot, 62% of 
adults are reported as being obese or 
overweight, in comparison to the Welsh 
average (58%).  
 
In 2015, 23% of adults in Neath Port 
Talbot identified as currently being a 
smoker compared to the 21% average 
across Wales.  

Mental Health and Wellbeing: Neath 
Port Talbots’s health board (Abertawe Bro 
Morgannwg University Health Board) 
recorded 136.1 deaths per 100,000 
residents in 2016 which were due to 
mental health and behavioural issues.  
 
Projected numbers of residents in Neath 
Port Talbot who have at least one mental 
disorder is expected to decrease from 
26,864 (2015) to 25,758 (2035).19 

In line with the Neath Port 
Talbot Public Services 
Board The Neath Port 
Talbot We Want (Wellbeing 
Plan 2018 – 2023) there is 
a need to improve all 
aspects of the health and 
wellbeing of the resident 
population of the NPTC 
area, including physical 
heath, mental health and 
social wellbeing. 

Health Infrastructure: Healthcare 
facilities in the NPTC area are managed 
by the Abertawe Bro Morgannwg 
University Health Board. The Health 
Board has four acute hospitals: Singleton 
and Morriston Hospitals in Swansea, 
Neath Port Talbot Hospital in Port Talbot 

Adequate health 
infrastructure needs to be 
located in accessible 
locations to meet the needs 
of existing and future 
populations. A range of 
high quality physical and 

The LDP Review should 
identify adequate provision of 
community infrastructure to 
meet existing and projected 
future population needs, 
including with respect to 

The ISA Framework should 
include appropriate 
objectives to assess the 
ability of the emerging 
RLDP to meet existing and 
predicted future population 
needs, including with 

                                                      
18 Promoting healthy living among pupils in Neath Port Talbot. Available at: https://democracy.NPTCBC.gov.uk/documents/s52366/App%201%20-

%20Promoting%20Healthy%20Living%20Among%20Pupils%20in%20Neath%20Port%20Talbot%20Schools%20Task%20and%20Finish%20Gr.._.pdf 

19 Western Bay Population Assessment http://www.westernbaypopulationassessment.org/en/mental-health/  

T
udalen258

https://democracy.npt.gov.uk/documents/s52366/App%201%20-%20Promoting%20Healthy%20Living%20Among%20Pupils%20in%20Neath%20Port%20Talbot%20Schools%20Task%20and%20Finish%20Gr.._.pdf
https://democracy.npt.gov.uk/documents/s52366/App%201%20-%20Promoting%20Healthy%20Living%20Among%20Pupils%20in%20Neath%20Port%20Talbot%20Schools%20Task%20and%20Finish%20Gr.._.pdf
http://www.westernbaypopulationassessment.org/en/mental-health/


Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

SEA Topic Baseline Key Characteristics 
Existing Objectives, 
Issues and Problems 

Implications for Neath Port 
Talbot LDP Review 

Implications for ISA 

and the Princess of Wales Hospital in 
Bridgend. 
 
The Health Board manages two practices 
in the Neath Port Talbot area: in the Afan 
Valley and Neath town centre and one in 
Bridgend: Nantyffyllon with several other 
practises operating as independent 
organisations. The ABM Community 
Health Board has 70 GP centres, over 300 
General Practitioners, around 275 
dentists, 125 Community Pharmacies and 
60 Optometry premises as of 2019.  

mental health facilities are 
required to address the 
changing health needs of 
the population, in particular 
given projected population 
ageing.  

healthcare facilities and 
services. 

regards to the adequacy, 
quality and spatial 
distribution of healthcare 
facilities and services. 

4. Soil Geological and Ground Conditions:  
The NPTC area has varied geological and 
soil characteristics. Historically, NPTC has 
been an area of heavy industry, 
particularly metal, chemical and oil-based 
industries. Neath Port Talbot Council last 
published their Contaminated Land 
Strategy in 2015, setting out how they will 
remediate contaminated land across the 
County Borough20. A total of 34 sites have 
been investigated, with two of these 
confirmed as being contaminated: 
Pinetree Car Sales and the Former Briton 
Ferry Gas Works.  

New development must be 
appropriately sited and 
designed to reflect the 
geological and soil 
characteristics of the NPTC 
area.  

Any RLDP resulting from this 
LDP should set out appropriate 
proposals and policies to 
safeguard important geological 
characteristics and soil 
resources within the NPTC 
area, as well as a framework 
for remediating contaminated 
land. 

The ISA Framework should 
include objectives relating 
to contaminated land 
remediation, soil quality 
and pollution to ground 
receptors. Consequential 
human health and 
ecological risks and 
impacts should also be 
considered in a holistic 
manner.  

                                                      
20 Neath Port Talbot Council Contaminated Land Strategy (2015): https://democracy.NPTCBC.gov.uk/documents/s14150/Contaminated%20Land%20Strategy%202015%20-

%20Review%20and%20Updated%20from%20Consultation.pdf 

T
udalen259

https://democracy.npt.gov.uk/documents/s14150/Contaminated%20Land%20Strategy%202015%20-%20Review%20and%20Updated%20from%20Consultation.pdf
https://democracy.npt.gov.uk/documents/s14150/Contaminated%20Land%20Strategy%202015%20-%20Review%20and%20Updated%20from%20Consultation.pdf


Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

SEA Topic Baseline Key Characteristics 
Existing Objectives, 
Issues and Problems 

Implications for Neath Port 
Talbot LDP Review 

Implications for ISA 

5. Water Waterbodies: The NPTC area has one 
groundwater body classified poor under 
the Water Framework Directive (WFD); 
Pelenna. 
 
A number of waterbodies within the NPTC 
area are at risk of having poor water 
quality owing to ‘point source pollution’. 
Water quality issues within the County 
Borough have been attributed to 
abandoned mine workings and the 
associated discharges of acidified iron rich 
water. This is identified as an issue across 
Wales and in parts of Neath Port Talbot21. 

Waterbodies across the 
NPTC area vary in quality, 
ecological value and 
present condition. 
Management of water 
quality is essential for 
improving the long-term 
health of populations and 
the environment.   
 

Any RLDP resulting from this 
LDP Review should set out 
policies, proposals and 
guidance to protect and 
enhance the water environment 
and water resources, including 
surface and groundwater 
quantity and quality. This 
should include measures to 
eliminate contamination 
sources which harm the water 
environment and to regulate 
pollution discharges from new 
developments into receiving 
watercourses.  

The ISA Framework should 
include objectives relating 
to the quality of the water 
environment and water 
resources, as well as to 
manage flood risks.  

Flood risks: The four main watercourses 
in Neath Port Talbot are the Afan, Dulais, 
Neath and Tawe which all flow NE-SW 
towards Swansea Bay. There are three 
canals running through the County 
Borough: Neath Canal, Swansea Canal 
and Tennant Canal.  
Significant areas along all the main rivers, 
watercourses and coast of the County 
Borough are identified as being at risk of 
flooding. There is some risk of coastal and 
reservoir flooding in Baglan. Areas at risk 
of river flooding include Port Talbot and 
Briton Ferry. 

Flood risk is an ongoing 
issue within NPTC due to 
the setting of the local 
authority. Housing 
developments should be 
restricted where possible 
from development on flood 
plains. 

Any RLDP resulting from this 
LDP Review should seek to 
manage flood risks in a 
sustainable manner, including 
by directing development away 
from known flood risk areas. 

                                                      
21 Neath Port Talbot Council Contaminated Land Strategy (2015): https://democracy.NPTCBC.gov.uk/documents/s14150/Contaminated%20Land%20Strategy%202015%20-

%20Review%20and%20Updated%20from%20Consultation.pdf 

T
udalen260

https://democracy.npt.gov.uk/documents/s14150/Contaminated%20Land%20Strategy%202015%20-%20Review%20and%20Updated%20from%20Consultation.pdf
https://democracy.npt.gov.uk/documents/s14150/Contaminated%20Land%20Strategy%202015%20-%20Review%20and%20Updated%20from%20Consultation.pdf


Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

SEA Topic Baseline Key Characteristics 
Existing Objectives, 
Issues and Problems 

Implications for Neath Port 
Talbot LDP Review 

Implications for ISA 

It is estimated that 10-20% of properties 
throughout the NPTC area are located in 
Flood Zones. This equates to around 
13,353 properties in areas at risk of 
flooding22.  

6. Air Air Quality Management Areas 
(AQMAs) and Poor Air Quality:  There is 
one identified AQMA (Taibach/Margam) 
within NPTC, covering the majority of land 
and properties between Tata Steel Works 
and the M4 Motorway. 

Continued monitoring of air 
quality within NPTC is 
required with particular 
attention along the M4 
corridor as development 
and industry grows within 
the County Borough.   

Any RLDP resulting from this 
LDP Review should set out 
policies, proposals and 
guidance to tackle known areas 
of poor air quality and the likely 
impacts of new development on 
air quality, including from traffic. 
Any RLDP should seek to 
reduce local air pollution 
through setting out policies and 
proposals to promote 
sustainable and active travel 
modes. 

The ISA Framework should 
include objectives relating 
to local air quality and 
associated health impacts. 
The ISA should also 
recognise that changes to 
air quality can have an 
impact on ecosystem 
services which affect 
biodiversity and other 
environmental assets. 

7. Climatic 

Factors 

Greenhouse Gas Emissions: 2017 
statistics from InfoBase Cymru23 show that 
total greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions 
from within NPTC (53.2) show CO2 levels 
per resident (tonnes) significantly above 
the Welsh average (7.9). When measuring 
kilotonnes of industry and commercial 
CO2, Neath Port Talbot is significantly 
higher than all other authorities in Wales, 
emitting 7018.6 kilotonnes. This accounts 

Continued monitoring of 
GHG emissions within 
NPTC is required to meet 
climate change targets, 
while also avoiding or 
mitigating GHG emissions 
as a result of development 
in the County Borough 
where possible.  
 

Any RLDP resulting from this 
LDP Review should set out 
policies, proposals and 
guidance to support the 
transition to a low carbon 
economy. This should include 
the provision of a supportive 
policy framework for renewable 
and low carbon energy 
generation in appropriate 
locations. The RLDP should 

The ISA Framework should 
include objectives relating 
to energy use, resource 
efficiency, sustainable 
transport, GHG emissions 
and climate change 
mitigation.  

                                                      
22 Infobase Cymru http://www.infobasecymru.net/IAS/resources/Neath_Port_Talbot.pdf  

23  InfoBase Cyrmu http://www.infobasecymru.net/IAS/themes/environmentandsustainability/environment/tabular?viewId=518&geoId=1&subsetId=  

T
udalen261

http://www.infobasecymru.net/IAS/resources/Neath_Port_Talbot.pdf
http://www.infobasecymru.net/IAS/themes/environmentandsustainability/environment/tabular?viewId=518&geoId=1&subsetId=


Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

SEA Topic Baseline Key Characteristics 
Existing Objectives, 
Issues and Problems 

Implications for Neath Port 
Talbot LDP Review 

Implications for ISA 

for 51% of the total industry and 
commercial Co2 emissions for Wales.  
 
In 2019, the Welsh Government published 
the Energy Generation in Wales (2018) 
Report24, identifying NPTC as one of the 
top five local authority areas where 
electricity consumption is met by 
renewables (74%). Neath Port Talbot is 
identified as having the highest renewable 
energy generation at an estimated 1,092 
Gwh.  
 
Across Wales, NPTC is also the local 
authority which has the highest biomass 
electrical capacity, due to the 41.8 MWe 
Margam Green Energy Plant installed in 
2017.  
 
Neath Port Talbot also has the highest 
onshore wind capacity of all local 
authorities in Wales, generating 236MW 
from 11 projects.  
 

also include policies to 
encourage low carbon design 
and should set out a 
sustainable transport strategy 
which capitalises on 
existing rail and port 
infrastructure within the NPTC 
area to contribute to the 
decarbonisation of the transport 
sector. 

Climate Change Impacts: Climate 
change research predicts an increase in 
the severity and frequency of rainfall 
events. Flooding from rivers, sewers and 
surface water is therefore likely to 
increase throughout NPTC in the future. 
NPTC is also expected to become 

Predicted impacts from 
climate change up to 2050 
will place significant strain 
on infrastructure and 
available resources across 
the UK, including within the 
NPTC area. In particular, 

Any RLDP resulting from this 
LDP Review should set out 
policies, proposals and 
guidance which responds to 
predicted climate change 
impacts and allows 
communities and businesses in 

The ISA Framework should 
include objectives relating 
to climate change 
adaptation and the 
resilience of environmental 
assets within the NPTC 
area. 

                                                      
24 Energy Generation in Wales in 2018 (2019) https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-10/energy-generation-in-wales-2018.pdf 

T
udalen262

https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-10/energy-generation-in-wales-2018.pdf


Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

SEA Topic Baseline Key Characteristics 
Existing Objectives, 
Issues and Problems 

Implications for Neath Port 
Talbot LDP Review 

Implications for ISA 

increasingly vulnerable to tidal flooding as 
sea levels rise. Coastal erosion will 
increase and affect coastal infrastructure. 
Extreme weather events will occur more 
frequently with greater intensity. This will 
impact on human health directly and upon 
biodiversity and food production systems. 

the effects associated with 
flood risk. 

the NPTC area to adapt to the 
changing climate. 

8. Material 

Assets 

Land Use: Neath, Port Talbot and 
Pontardawe act as key hubs for services, 
employment, housing and retail 
developments for the surrounding 
communities. These towns are positioned 
at the top of the retail and commercial 
hierarchy of the County Borough. Briton 
Ferry, Skewen, Taibach and Glynneath 
play a strategic role within the County 
Borough as focus points for services, 
transport and community activity.  
 
NPTC has a number of historical, 
archaeological and architectural assets 
particularly Margam Country Park, playing 
an important role as a leisure and tourism 
destination.  
 
The existing LDP spatial strategy has 
sought to preserve material assets 
associated with land use broadly by 
focusing development along the coastal 
corridor and in the urban areas of Neath 
Port Talbot while providing a flexible 
approach to development in the Valleys.  

There is an ongoing need 
to regenerate communities 
within the NPTC area 
which have experienced 
post-industrial decline and 
have high levels of multiple 
deprivation. There is also a 
need to provide suitable 
land uses to meet identified 
needs, including increased 
housing and employment 
provision, whilst protecting 
sensitive land uses such as 
agriculture. 

Any RLDP resulting from this 
LDP Review should help 
support and promote the 
efficient and appropriate use of 
material assets. It should set 
out a spatial strategy, 
proposals and guidance to 
optimise the use of land, 
natural resources and 
infrastructure. In particular, the 
RLDP should set out a spatial 
strategy, proposals and policies 
which optimise the use of and 
safeguard existing 
infrastructure within the NPTC 
area.  
 
Any requirements for upgraded 
or new infrastructure to address 
existing capacity constraints, 
decarbonise key economic 
sectors or to support 
population, employment and 
economic growth should be 
planned for through the LDP 

The ISA Framework should 
include objectives relating 
to resource efficiency, land 
use, waste management, 
energy, natural resources, 
climate change mitigation, 
connectivity and 
accessibility.  

T
udalen263



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

SEA Topic Baseline Key Characteristics 
Existing Objectives, 
Issues and Problems 

Implications for Neath Port 
Talbot LDP Review 

Implications for ISA 

Transport infrastructure:  
 
Road Network 
 
The Core Roads Network connects the 
NPTC area to adjacent regions. The 
following roads constitute the Core Roads 
Network in the NPTC area: M4, and A465. 
 
The Strategic Roads Network in NPTC 
connects the major settlements and 
population centres in the County Borough 
and comprises mainly the A-roads 
(including the Core Roads Network).  
 
The local highway network connects local 
areas of population to the major 
settlements and comprises mainly the B 
road networks and all classified 
unnumbered routes within the NPTC area.  
 
Public Transport 
 
Neath Station and Port Talbot Parkway 
are mainline stations served by both the 
Great Western rail services from London 
(Paddington) to Swansea (with 
connections to West Wales) and 
Transport for Wales regional services.  
 
Both Neath and Port Talbot bus stations 
provide comprehensive local, short and 
medium distance bus services, including 
direct services to Cardiff and Swansea. 

At present, parts of the 
highway network 
experience congestion 
especially at peak times. 
 
The Swansea Bay Metro is 
at the early stages of 
development, it is aimed at 
better connecting 
communities across the 
Swansea Bay City Region 
by public transport, while 
also developing improved 
rail and bus links with other 
parts of the UK 

Review and must take account 
of relevant environmental 
issues. This means that the 
RLDP should include a policy 
framework to support the 
deployment of renewable 
energy technologies and heat 
networks in appropriate 
locations. T

udalen264



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

SEA Topic Baseline Key Characteristics 
Existing Objectives, 
Issues and Problems 

Implications for Neath Port 
Talbot LDP Review 

Implications for ISA 

 
 
Aviation and Maritime 
 
Cardiff International Airport is located 
within a 40-minute journey of Port Talbot 
and allows access to both National and 
International destinations for passengers 
and freight. 
 
The four major deep-water docks in Wales 
(Swansea, Port Talbot, Barry and 
Newport) provide freight access 
worldwide. Port Talbot is a nationally 
strategic port asset one of the only 
harbours in the UK capable of handling 
cape-size vessels.  
 
Active Travel 
 
There are various active travel routes 
within the NPTC area25 of which there are 
approximately 55 pedestrian routes 
totalling 47.143km in length and 24 
existing cycling routes totalling 36.403km 
in length.  
 
Part of NPTC’s active travel routes include 
the All Wales Coastal Path that provides a 
continuous walking route around the 
whole of Wales, totalling 870 miles. 

                                                      
25 Neath Port Talbot Council: Active Travel Existing Routes Map https://www.NPTCBC.gov.uk/6489 

T
udalen265

https://www.npt.gov.uk/6489


Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

SEA Topic Baseline Key Characteristics 
Existing Objectives, 
Issues and Problems 

Implications for Neath Port 
Talbot LDP Review 

Implications for ISA 

Utilities infrastructure:  
 
Biomass 
 
The Margam Green Energy Plant installed 
in Neath Port Talbot entered commercial 
operation in 2019, generating renewable 
electricity via the grid for homes and 
businesses. At a cost of £160m it converts 
energy generated from burning waste 
wood before converting and exporting to 
the grid.  
 
Solar Energy 
 
The NPTC Planning Register26indicates 
that in 2019 there was 1 application for a 
solar energy proposal to generate up to 
9.99MW of electricity.  
 
Wind Farms 
 
Neath Port Talbot has the highest onshore 
wind capacity of all local authorities in 
Wales, generating 236MW from 11 
projects. Several windfarms are 
operational in the NPTC area, including 
the Pen y Cymoedd windfarm which 
opened in 2017 and comprises of 76 
turbines with a capacity of 228 MW.   

There is a need for 
continued decarbonisation 
of the energy generation 
sector across Wales to 
support the transition to a 
low carbon economy and to 
help mitigate climate 
change. At the same time, 
a mix of energy generation 
sources is required to 
ensure continued security 
of supply and to overcome 
intermittency issues 
associated with wind and 
solar technologies.    

                                                      
26 Neath Port Talbot Council: Planning Register https://planningonline.NPTCBC.gov.uk/online-applications/simpleSearchResults.do?action=firstPage  

T
udalen266

https://planningonline.npt.gov.uk/online-applications/simpleSearchResults.do?action=firstPage


Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

SEA Topic Baseline Key Characteristics 
Existing Objectives, 
Issues and Problems 

Implications for Neath Port 
Talbot LDP Review 

Implications for ISA 

Waste management:  
 
In NPTC from 2018-2019, of the total 
69,990 tonnes of municipal waste 
generated, 42,560 tonnes were re-used, 
recycled or composted,17,881 tonnes 
were incinerated, and 3,312 tonnes sent 
for other recovery. This left only 5,883 
tonnes sent to landfill. Overall, 60.8% of 
waste was reused/recycled or composted.  
 
NPTC has a partnership agreement with 
nearby local authorities to process waste 
at the Materials Recovery and Energy 
Centre (MREC) located at Crymlyn 
Burrows within Neath Port Talbot. 

There is a need to continue 
to meet statutory targets for 
sustainable waste disposal 
in the NPTC area.  

Natural resources:  The NPTC area 
contains significant amounts of mineral 
resources; both coal and aggregate. The 
existing LDP described the ‘whole’ of the 
County Borough as underlain by coal 
resources. The coal is at its highest quality 
with anthracite in the north, with pockets 
of steam coals in the south east. Coal has 
been mined extensively in the NPTC area 
area for hundreds of years and is 
recognised for its positive economic 
contribution to the creation and 
sustenance of several valley communities. 
PPW 11th Edition states that proposals for 
new coal extraction will not be supported. 
Any such proposals must clearly 
demonstrate why they are needed in the 

There is a need to protect 
and restore landscapes 
with the potential to be 
affected by minerals 
extraction. 

T
udalen267



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

SEA Topic Baseline Key Characteristics 
Existing Objectives, 
Issues and Problems 

Implications for Neath Port 
Talbot LDP Review 

Implications for ISA 

context of climate change emissions 
reductions targets and for reasons of 
national energy security.  
 
There are two major hard rock quarries in 
the NPTC area at Gilfach (Neath) and 
Cwm Nant Lleici (Pontardawe) which 
supply aggregates to both the regional 
and UK markets.  
 

9. Cultural 

Heritage 

Historic assets: As detailed in Table A.1 
above, there are 97 identified Scheduled 
Monuments within the NPTC area. Of 
these, 5 date from the Early Medieval 
period, 14 from the Medieval period, 27 
Post Medieval/Modern, 45 Prehistoric and 
6 Roman. The majority are sited within 
Margam (15). There are also 395 listed 
buildings across the NPTC area, ranging 
from bridges to castles (e.g. Neath 
Castle). There are currently 260 Buildings 
of Local Importance' (BLIs) and 
Designated Canal Structures in the NPTC 
area. 

The NPTC area hosts a 
range of designated 
heritage historic assets, 
each of which need to be 
appropriately protected 
from effects on their 
integrity and setting. 

Any RLDP resulting from this 
LDP Review should set out 
policies and proposals to 
protect, conserve and enhance 
heritage historic assets across 
the NPTC area, including in 
terms of impacts on the setting 
of such assets and upon 
unknown archaeological 
resources. 

The ISA Framework should 
include objectives relating 
to the preservation, 
conservation, protection 
and enhancement of the 
historic environment.  

Welsh language:  NPTC’s Welsh 
Language Strategy commits the Council to 
treating Welsh and English on an equal 
basis when carrying out public business. 
NPTC are additionally dedicated to 
helping to raise the profile of the Welsh 
language and culture to residents and 
employees.  
 

There is a need to 
safeguard and support the 
increased use of the Welsh 
language amongst the 
resident population of the 
NPTC area.  

Any RLDP resulting from this 
LDP Review should include 
policy provisions to support 
growth in the use of the Welsh 
language. 

The ISA Framework should 
include objectives relating 
to the protection of the 
Welsh language. 

T
udalen268



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

SEA Topic Baseline Key Characteristics 
Existing Objectives, 
Issues and Problems 

Implications for Neath Port 
Talbot LDP Review 

Implications for ISA 

The annual population survey conducted 
by Office for National Statistics27 identified 
that 22.6% of the resident NPTC 
population stated that they spoke Welsh.  

10. Landscape Designated areas: As detailed within 
Table A.1 above there no AONBs within 
the NPTC area, but 2 NNRs and 6 SLAs 
have also been designated at a local level.   
 

There is a need to provide 
appropriate protection for 
designated landscapes, 
important landscape 
features and sensitive 
landscape character areas. 
There is also a need to 
protect key views and 
safeguard visual amenity. 

Any RLDP resulting from this 
LDP Review should set out a 
spatial strategy, policies and 
proposals which protect and 
enhance key landscape 
features, improve the quality of 
the local landscape character, 
are sensitive to relevant visual 
receptors and encourage local 
distinctiveness. The RLDP 
should also ensure that new 
developments are well 
integrated with existing 
communities to create a strong 
sense of place. 

The ISA Framework should 
include objectives relating 
to landscape features, 
landscape character and 
visual impacts. The SEA 
should assess the impacts 
of emerging spatial 
strategies, proposals, 
policies and guidance on 
these aspects to ensure 
that the LDP Review 
safeguards and where 
appropriate enhances the 
level of protection afforded 
to the landscape. 

Landscape fabric, character and 
capacity: NPTC covers an area of some 
442 square kilometres. Neath Port Talbot 
has a varying landscape, ranging from 
sand dunes and coastal salt marsh 
through to upland areas of purple moor 
grass and ancient woodlands. There are 
several conifer plantations and important 
geological features including glaciated 
valleys and rock formations.  
 
The Valleys are comprised of river valleys 
separated by upland plateaus and 
mountains. The settlement pattern and 
land use reflect the typical ribbon type 
associated with this area.  
 
NPTC is seen to be traversed by the M4 
motorway, A465 trunk road and the 
Swansea-Paddington railway line, which 
all influence the surrounding landscape. 

                                                      
27 StatsWales: Neath Port Talbot Council: Welsh Language speakers 

T
udalen269



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

SEA Topic Baseline Key Characteristics 
Existing Objectives, 
Issues and Problems 

Implications for Neath Port 
Talbot LDP Review 

Implications for ISA 

Visual amenity:  
 
Visual amenity is adversely impacted in 
places by high levels of deprivation, 
resulting in buildings and infrastructure not 
being well maintained. Several windfarms 
are operational in the NPTC area, with the 
potential to result in visual effects.  

T
udalen270



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

A.4 Evolution of Baseline Conditions in the Absence of the LDP Review 

A.4.1 This section responds to the requirement within the SEA Regulations to consider the likely 

evolution of the current state of the environment in the absence of the plan or programme under 

consideration, namely LDP Review. 

The Need for the LDP Review 

A.4.2 NPTC has determined that a review of the existing LDP (adopted January 2016) is needed to allow 

NPTC to prepare and adopt a RLDP prior to the end of the current LDP period in 2026. The Neath 

Port Talbot LDP Review Report (NPTC, 2020) concludes that the ‘Full Review’ procedure is 

needed to undertake a comprehensive review of the existing LDP and prepare a RLDP, as 

opposed to the ‘Short Form’ procedure which would only result in minor revisions (e.g. changes to 

the wording of individual policies or the addition of individual allocated sites) to the existing LDP. It 

is considered that a RLDP is needed to take account of a range of new Acts, policy frameworks, 

initiatives, evidence and spatial issues at national, regional and local levels since the adopted of 

the current LDP. 

A.4.3 In the absence of any LDP Review taking place, NPTC would be unable to either prepare a RLDP 

(as proposed) or propose minor revisions to the existing LDP before the end of the current LDP 

period in January 2026. The Neath Port Talbot LDP Review Report (NPTC, 2020) makes clear that 

the absence of an up to date Development Plan for the NPTC area would be likely to be exploited 

by the development industry, not least due to the identified housing land supply shortfall. In these 

circumstances’ development is likely to come forward that is not in accordance with the existing 

LDP’s economic regeneration-led strategy and there would be significant pressure to release 

greenfield sites in unsustainable locations. Both outcomes would be likely to result in a range of 

unacceptable significant adverse effects on the environmental topics prescribed within Schedule 2 

of the SEA Regulations, including: 

 Biodiversity, Flora & Fauna: Increased development pressure in unsustainable locations or 
contrary to the LDP strategy could put pressure on biodiversity, including the loss and 
fragmentation of habitats, whilst increases in traffic and noise could disturb sensitive species; 

 Population: Increased development pressure in unsustainable locations or contrary to the LDP 
strategy could result in a spatial mismatch between housing supply and demand for public 
service provision, economic opportunities and transport infrastructure. It could also result in 
the inability of public services and community infrastructure to meet identified population 
needs, including in relation to the demands of an ageing population; 

 Health: The absence of a competent and up to date LDP would restrict NPTC’s ability to 
improve the physical and mental health of the population through spatial planning policies and 
interventions. If significant increases in physical activity and active travel are not achieved, 
health issues including obesity, inactivity and poor air quality will continue to affect the 
population of the NPTC area, causing increases in ill-health, exacerbating health inequalities 
and restricting life expectancy. The absence of the LDP Review would also prevent NPTC 
from fully implementing the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and in 
particular from discharging the public sector duty under Section 3 of the Act, as there would be 
no mechanism available to align NPTC’s planning policy framework with the objectives 
specified within the Neath Port Talbot We Want (Well-being Plan 2018-2023). Additionally, 
increased development pressure in unsustainable locations or contrary to the LDP strategy 
could lead to the loss of areas of open space, reducing opportunities for physical activity, with 
associated adverse health outcomes; 

 Soil: Increased development pressure in unsustainable locations or contrary to the LDP 
strategy could prevent contaminated land from being remediated and result in the irreversible 
loss of important soil resources (e.g. high quality peatland). In the absence of an up to date 
LDP spatial strategy, increased pressure for the development of new facilities, housing and 

Tudalen271



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

employment generating uses could also lead to the loss of the best quality and locally 
important agricultural land; 

 Water: Increased development pressure in unsustainable locations or contrary to the LDP 
strategy could put pressure on water resources and adversely affect the quality of the water 
environment; 

 Air Quality & Climatic Factors: Dependency on private cars to access employment and 
services could increase if development takes places in unsustainable locations or contrary to 
the LDP strategy. Additionally, opportunities to pro-actively encourage transport modal shift to 
walking, cycling and public transport would be lost. In the absence of a major short-term shift 
towards the use of electric vehicles, the resulting increase in traffic would increase fossil fuel 
combustion, carbon emissions and local atmospheric pollution, in particular greater release of 
particulate matter. This would act against wider policy efforts to decarbonise key economic 
sectors including transport mitigate climate change. It could also lead to worsening air quality 
and result in NPTC requiring to designate additional Air Quality Management Areas (AQMAs) 
to address areas of poor air quality;  

 Material Assets: Increased development pressure in unsustainable locations or contrary to the 
LDP strategy would be likely to increase pressure and capacity constraints on a range of 
essential infrastructure. This could itself result in a range of environmental effects as well as 
restricting long term housing, economic and employment growth across the NPTC area. In 
short, without the LDP Review it is likely that a range of infrastructure required to meet 
identified needs across the NPTC area would not be delivered; 

 Cultural Heritage: Increased development pressure in unsustainable locations or contrary to 
the LDP strategy could add pressure to sensitive areas of historic and/or archaeological 
interest, as well as undermining the character of conservation areas; and, 

 Landscape: Increased development pressure in unsustainable locations or contrary to the LDP 
strategy could have a significant negative impact on the landscape character of the NPTC 
area, especially if additional new development were to be concentrated within areas of high 
landscape value (e.g. within the existing 6 SLAs across the NPTC area). 

A.4.4 In addition, in the absence of having a competent and up to date statutory Development Plan, 

NPTC’s planning resources may need to be diverted away from development planning activities in 

pursuit of preparing a new LDP towards resisting undesirable ‘planning by appeal’ cases. It is 

therefore expedient for NPTC to undertake the LDP Review before the end of the current LDP 

period in 2026. 

Use of the Full or Short Form LDP Review Procedure 

A.4.5 In the event that the Short Form procedure was used instead of the Full Review procedure for this 

LDP Review, any resulting changes to the existing LDP would be limited in scope. This would 

prevent the LDP from fully taking account of the range of new Acts, policy frameworks, initiatives, 

evidence and spatial issues at national, regional and local levels which have emerged since 

January 2016. The resulting adverse environmental effects are likely to be similar to, albeit not as 

severe as, those listed above in relation to the potential absence of a competent statutory 

Development Plan for the NPTC area. 

A.4.6 The LDP Review is therefore being undertaking in accordance with the ‘Full Review’ procedure to 

allow NPTC to prepare a comprehensive and up to date replacement LDP.  

 

Tudalen272



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

Appendix B  Review of Plans and Programmes 

B.1       Introduction 

B.1.1 This Appendix supports Section 3 of the Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA Scoping Report by 

providing a review of relevant qualifying plans, programmes and strategies of relevance to the LDP 

Review. The main purpose of this review is to identify relevant environmental protection objectives 

and wider policy requirements within relevant policy documents which should be taken account of 

within (or otherwise inform) the LDP Review and this associated ISA process. 

B.2      Review of Relevant Plans and Programmes 

B.2.1 Table B.1 below sets out a review of other plans and programmes of relevance to the LDP Review 

and the associated ISA process. This review will be updated as required throughout the LDP 

Review process to take account of emerging policy developments and it will be appended to each 

iteration of the Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA Report. Of note, Table B.1 does not consider 

the implications of Welsh national planning policy documents for the LDP Review; rather, these are 

addressed separately within Table B.2 given their central importance in determining the soundness 

of the replacement LDP which will result from the LDP Review.  

B.2.2 In terms of the possible impacts of the UK’s withdrawal from the European Union as of 31st 

December 2020, Table B.1 includes all relevant international plans and programmes of relevance 

to the LDP Review. At this time all European legislation of indirect relevance to the NPT LDP 

Review has been retained within Table B.1. While this is subject to change over the course of the 

preparation of the RLDP, some idea of the direction of future change can be gathered from the 

National Assembly for Wales Climate Change, Environment and Rural Affairs Committee has set 

out Environmental principles and governance post-Brexit (October 2019). This, the Committee’s 

second report to consider the effect of the UK’s departure from the European Union on 

environmental principles and governance structures in Wales, set out a series of recommendations 

for the Welsh Government’s future Bill to address environmental principles and governance gaps. 

In summary the Committee has recommended ‘non-regression’ or ‘progression’ as a principle of a 

future Bill and for the inclusion of the EU’s four core environmental principles: Precautionary; 

Preventative; Rectification at source; and Polluter-pays principle while assessing the benefits of 

including other EU and international principles.  

B.2.3 As of 1st January 2021, the UK Government committed to the maintaining of environmental 

standards and international obligations, stating that the following will remain in place: 

 The UK's legal framework for enforcing domestic environmental legislation by UK regulatory 
bodies or court systems; and 

 environmental targets currently covered by EU legislation - they are already covered in UK 
legislation. 

B.2.4 In addition, Wales Special Protection Areas and Special Areas of Conservation (Natura 2000 sites) 
have been confirmed to have the same protections they had when the UK was part of the 
European Union.  

 

Tudalen273



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

Table B.1: Review of Other Relevant Plans, Programmes and Strategies 

SEA Topic Relevant Plans, Programmes and Strategies Overview of Purpose and Key Requirements 
Implications for Neath Port Talbot LDP 
Review 

Implications for ISA 

International 

Population 
(including 
relevant socio-
economic 
issues) 

United Nations (2016) Habitat III (Quinto), United 
Nations Economic Commission for Europe (1998) 
The Aarhus Convention. 

These documents provide an international framework for 
promoting sustainable development within all decision 
making. National and local developments should take 
sustainability into account and openly share relevant 
information to the public.  

Any RLDP resulting from this LDP Review should 
set out policies, proposals, advice and guidance 
which furthers the delivery of sustainable 
development and safeguards transparency in 
decision making. The LDP Review process itself 
must also be objective, transparent, evidence 
based and conducted fairly. 

Applied as a whole, the ISA Framework should 
provide a holistic suite of assessment criteria 
to determine the contribution of any RLDP to 
the delivery of sustainable development.   

Human Health United Nations (1989) UN convention on the Rights 
of the Child 1989, United Nations (2016) Committee 
on the Rights of the Child Recommendations 
Report, World Health Organization (1999) 
Guidelines for Community Noise 1999, World 
Health Organisation (2004) Children’s Environment 
and Health Action Plan for Europe. 

These documents provide an international framework 
which recognises the importance of the preservation and 
protection of human health when undertaking development 
activities.  

Any RLDP resulting from this LDP Review should 
set out policies, proposals, advice and guidance 
for the prevention of negative effects to human 
health from local developments in line with 
international legislations.  

The ISA Framework should include objectives 
relating to the protection of human health.  

Biodiversity, 
Flora & Fauna 

The Ramsar Convention on Wetlands (1971), EU 
Biodiversity Strategy - Our Life Insurance, Our 
Nature Capital: An EU Biodiversity Strategy (2011), 
AEWA (1995) Convention on the Agreement on the 
Conservation of African – Eurasian Migratory Water 
birds (The Bonn Convention), UNESCO (1973) 
Convention on International Trade in Endangered 
Species of Wild Fauna and Flora, United Nations 
(1992) The Rio Convention on Biodiversity. 

These documents provide an international framework to 
protect sites designated at the international level for 
reasons of biodiversity conservation and important species 
from harm.  

Any RLDP resulting from this LDP Review should 
set out policies, proposals, advice and guidance 
for the avoidance of effects on biodiversity when 
allocating sites for redevelopment activities.  

  

The ISA Framework must include objectives 
relating to the appropriate conservation, 
protection and enhancement of designated 
sites. 

Soil & Land United Nations (2001) Stockholm Convention on 
Persistent Organic Pollutants. 

This convention aims to reduce the production and use of 
persistent organic pollutants. 

Any RLDP resulting from this LDP Review should 
set out policies, proposals, advice and guidance 
for the objective of ensuring that all development 
activities restrict the use of these pollutants. 

The ISA Framework should include objectives 
relating to the restriction of Persistent Organic 
Pollutants.  

Water United Nations (1982) Convention on Law of the 
Sea. 

This convention demonstrates the rights and 
responsibilities of nations for fair use of the world’s oceans. 

Any RLDP resulting from this LDP Review should 
set out policies, proposals, advice and guidance 
for the objective of ensuring that all development 
activities adhere with the conventions guidelines.  

The ISA Framework should include objectives 
pertaining to the protection of coastal areas 
and the avoidance of negative effects on the 
sea caused by development.  

Air WHO Air Quality Guidelines, United Nations (1979) 
Geneva Convention on Long Range Transboundary 
Air Pollution. 

These guidelines provide a scientific assessment of the 
health impacts of Air Pollution and provides guidelines 
applicable worldwide for various pollutants.  

Any RLDP resulting from this LDP Review should 
set out policies, proposals, advice and guidance 
for acceptable levels of Air Quality and proximity 
of communities to developments which may 
cause unacceptable levels of air quality.  

The ISA Framework should include objectives 
relating to local air quality and associated 
health impacts. 

Climatic Factors  Kyoto Protocol to the UN Convention on Climate 
Change, The United Nations Framework 
Convention on Climate Change, United Nations 
(2009) The Copenhagen Accord, United Nations 
(2010) Cancun Adaptation Framework, United 
Nations (2016) Paris Agreement. 

These documents provide an international framework 
which identifies the need for climate change mitigation and 
adaptation action. 

Any RLDP resulting from this LDP Review should 
set out policies, proposals, advice and guidance 
for the mitigation of climate change effects 
caused by development and meet the key 
requirements as outlined by the policies.  

The ISA Framework should include objectives 
relating to energy use, resource efficiency, 
sustainable transport, GHG emissions and 
climate change mitigation within the NPTC 
area.  

 

Material Assets United Nations (1989) Basel Convention. This convention seeks to reduce the movements of 
hazardous waste between nations and the amounts/toxicity 
of waste generated. 

Any RLDP resulting from this LDP Review should 
set out policies, proposals, advice and guidance 
for the reduction in toxic waste generated. 

The ISA Framework should include objectives 
relating to resource efficiency, land use, waste 
management, energy, connectivity and 
accessibility. 

Cultural 
Heritage 

World Cities Culture Report 2015 – measures and 
cultural assets, UNESCO (1972) Convention 
Concerning the Protection of the World Cultural and 

These documents provide an international framework to 
identify and protect cultural heritagehistoric assets. They 
aim to ensure the cultural heritagehistoric assets have a 

Any RLDP resulting from this LDP Review should 
set out policies, proposals, advice and guidance 
for the protection, preservation and presentation 

The ISA Framework should include objectives 
relating to the preservation, conservation, 

T
udalen274



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

SEA Topic Relevant Plans, Programmes and Strategies Overview of Purpose and Key Requirements 
Implications for Neath Port Talbot LDP 
Review 

Implications for ISA 

Natural Heritage, UNESCO (2001) Convention on 
the Protection of Underwater Cultural Heritage.  

function in the community and are integrated into various 
planning programmes.  

of cultural heritagehistoric assets as set out in 
international policy.  

protection and enhancement of the historic 
environment. 

Landscape N/A    

Interrelated 
Effects  

Johannesburg Declaration on Sustainable 
Development, Communication COM (2005) 666: 
Taking Sustainable use of resources forward, 
United Nations (1992) The Rio Declaration on 
Environment and Development, United Nations 
(2002) The World Summit on Sustainable 
Development. 

Commits the sustainable use of resources and promotes 
sustainable development.  

Any RLDP resulting from this LDP Review should 
set out policies, proposals, advice and guidance 
for the promotion of sustainable development.  

The ISA Framework should include guidance 
for achieving sustainable development goals.   

European: As a result of Brexit on 31/12/20 all relevant European law has now been incorporated into domestic UK law.  Limited European legislation which remains of indirect relevance is outlined below. 

Biodiversity, 
Flora & Fauna 

Council of Europe (1981) Convention on the 
Conservation of European Wildlife and Natural 
Habitats - The Bern Convention, EU Birds Directive 
(Directive 2009/147/EC/ on the conservation of wild 
birds), EU Habitats Directive (EU Directive 
92/43/EEC on the conservation of natural habitats 
and of wild fauna and flora (As amended by 
97/62/EC)). 

These documents provide a European framework to 
protect sites designated at the European level for reasons 
of biodiversity conservation and important species from 
harm.  

Any RLDP resulting from this LDP Review should 
set out policies, proposals, advice and guidance 
for the protection of biodiversity in accordance 
with European legislation & policy.  

The ISA Framework should include 
appropriate objectives to assess potential 
habitat loss, recreational impacts, water 
abstraction, pollution and disturbance effects 
from policies, proposals, advice and guidance 
contained within any replacement LDP 
resulting from the LDP Review. 

Water EU Water Framework Directive (Directive 
2000/60/EC), EU Floods Directive (Directive 
2007/60/EC), European Commission (2006) 
Groundwater Directive 2006/118/EC, European 
Commission (1991) The Urban Waste Water 
Directive 91/271/EEC, European Commission 
(1998) The Drinking Water Directive 98/83/EC, 
European Commission (2006) The Bathing Waters 
Directive 2006/7/EC, European Commission (2008) 
Marine Strategy Framework Directive 2008/56/EC.  

These documents provide a European framework which 
seek to protect the quality of the water environment, 
including through ensuring safe levels for bathing and 
drinking water and by promoting sustainable urban 
drainage.  

Any RLDP resulting from this LDP Review should 
set out policies, proposals, advice and guidance 
for mitigating flood risk, protecting the drinking 
water supply and the protection of the community 
from unsafe water levels.  

The ISA Framework should include objectives 
relating to the quality of the water environment 
and water resources, as well as to manage 
flood risks. 

Climatic Factors EU (2009) Renewable Energy Directive 
(2009/28/EC), A Resource Efficient Europe, United 
Nations (1994), European Commission (2001) 
National Emissions Ceiling Directive 2001/81/EC, 
European Commission (2007) The Integrated 
Climate and Energy Package, European 
Commission (2012) Energy Efficiency Directive 
(2012/27/EU), European Commission (2014) 2030 
Policy Framework for Climate and Energy. 

These documents provide a European framework to 
respond to the global challenge of climate change. 
Primarily, the minimisation of future climate change through 
mitigation and the implementation of adaptation measures 
are key themes. 

 

Any RLDP resulting from this LDP Review should 
set out policies, proposals, advice and guidance 
for the avoidance of contributing factors of 
climate change.  

The ISA Framework should include objectives 
for tIhe reduction of negative environmental 
effects from local development.  

National (UK) - all legislative and policy frameworks are informed by relevant higher level European and international frameworks 

Population 
(including 
relevant socio-
economic 
issues) 

The Enterprise and Regulatory Reform Act 2013, 
The Plan for Growth (BIS, 2011), Equality Act 2010, 
Local Growth: Realising every Place’s potential 
(BIS, 2010), HM Government (2013) Aviation Policy 
Framework. 

These documents provide a framework at the UK level to 
promote strong, sustainable and balanced growth across 
all economies. They aim to encourage investment and 
create an equal opportunity environment.  

Any replacement RLDP resulting from this LDP 
Review should set out policies, proposals, advice 
and guidance for the promotion of sustainable 
growth within the NPTC area for the benefit of its 
resident population. 

The ISA Framework should include guidelines 
pertaining to achieving economic growth as 
designated by national policy.  

Human Health The Marmot Review, The Health and Social Care 
Act (2012), Child Obesity Plan (2016), Health 
Protection Agency (2007) Children’s Environment 
and Health Action Plan, Health Protection Agency 
(2008) Health Effects of Climate Change in the UK 
2008 - An update of the  department of Health 
report 2001/2002, Health Protection Agency (2009) 
Health Strategy for the United Kingdom 2, Health 

These documents provide a framework at the UK level to 
reduce health inequalities and make improvements to 
public health while promoting active lifestyles.  

 

 

Any RLDP resulting from this LDP Review should 
set out policies, proposals, advice and guidance 
for access to good quality health services as set 
out in International and European legislation.  

The ISA Framework should include objectives 
relating to tackling health issues and creating 
adequate health and safety guidelines.  

T
udalen275



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

SEA Topic Relevant Plans, Programmes and Strategies Overview of Purpose and Key Requirements 
Implications for Neath Port Talbot LDP 
Review 

Implications for ISA 

and Safety Executive (2009) The Health and Safety 
of Great Britain: Be Part of the Solution, 
Sustainable Development Commission (2010) 
Sustainable Development: The Key to Tackling 
Health Inequalities. 

Biodiversity, 
Flora & Fauna 

The UK Post 2010 Biodiversity Framework (JNCC, 
2012), The Protection of Badgers Act 1992, The 
Natural Environment White Paper (DEFRA, 2012), 
Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 
(2006), The Conservation of Habitats and Species 
Regulations (The Conservation of Habitats and 
Species Regulations (2010) and amendments 
(2012)), 25 Year Environment Plan (UK 
Government, 2018), Defra (2007) Conserving 
Biodiversity the UK Approach 2007, Defra, Scottish 
Government, Welsh Assembly Government (2008) 
The Invasive and Non-Native Species Framework 
Strategy for Great Britain,  HM Government (1981) 
Wildlife and Countryside Act, HM Government 
(1990) Environmental Protection Act, HM 
Government (2010) Conservation of Habitats & 
Species Regulations 2010 (as amended 2011), HM 
Government (2010) Environmental Permitting 
(England and Wales) Regulations, Joint Nature 
Conservation Committee and Defra (2012) UK 
Post-2010 Biodiversity Framework, Strategic Plan 
for Biodiversity 2011-2020 (2010), UK National 
Ecosystem Assessment (2011) UK National 
Ecosystem Assessment: Understanding Nature’s 
Value to Society. 

These documents provide a framework at the UK level to 
provide protection for protected species and habitats.  

Any RLDP resulting from this LDP Review should 
set out policies, proposals, advice and guidance 
for protection of protected habitats and species, 
including any special protection areas.  

The ISA Framework should include objectives 
relating to national policy on the protection of 
Biodiversity, flora and fauna.  

Soil & Land Guiding Principles for Land Contamination, HM 
Government (1986) Agriculture Act (with numerous 
revisions) 1986. 

These documents provide a framework at the UK level to 
identify and remediate contaminated land, as well as 
regarding the management of agricultural land.  

Any RLDP resulting from this LDP Review should 
set out policies, proposals, advice and guidance 
for the protection of agricultural assets and land 
contamination policies.  

The ISA Framework should include objectives 
relating to contaminated land remediation, soil 
quality and pollution to ground receptors. 
Consequential human health and ecological 
risks and impacts should also be considered in 
a holistic manner. 

Water The Pitt Review: Learning Lessons from the 2007 
Floods (2008), Flood and Water Management Act 
(2010), Defra (2005) Safeguarding Sea Life, Defra 
(2007) Fisheries 2027: A long-term vision for 
sustainable fisheries, Defra (2009) Our Seas – a 
Shared Resource: High Level Marine Objectives, 
Defra (2010) Adapting to Coastal Change: 
Developing a Policy Framework, Defra (2012) 
Marine Strategy Part 1: UK Initial Assessment and 
Good Environmental Status, DECC (2010) Marine 
Energy Action Plan, Department for Transport 
(2007) Ports Policy Review Interim Report, 
Department for Transport (2011) National Policy 
Statement for Ports, Environment Agency (2005) 
Cleaner Coasts, Healthier Seas: EA Marine 
Strategy, Environment Agency (2013) Groundwater 
Protection Policy and Practice (GP3), HM 
Government (1973) The Protection of Wrecks Act 

These documents provide a framework at the UK level 
regarding flood risk management and the protection of 
water and coastal environments.  

 

 

Any RLDP resulting from this LDP Review should 
set out policies, proposals, advice and guidance 
relating to coastal preservation and management 
and flood risk within the NPTC area.  

The ISA Framework should include objectives 
relating to marine guidelines for cleaner 
oceans and provide flood risk mitigation.  

T
udalen276



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

SEA Topic Relevant Plans, Programmes and Strategies Overview of Purpose and Key Requirements 
Implications for Neath Port Talbot LDP 
Review 

Implications for ISA 

1973, HM Government (2003) The Water 
Environment (Water Framework Directive) (England 
and Wales) Regulations 2017, HM Government 
(2007) Offshore Marine Conservation (Natural 
Habitats, &c.) Regulations 2007 (as amended 
2010), HM Government (2009) Flood Risk 
Regulations, HM Government (2009) The Marine 
and Coastal Access Act, HM Government (2010) 
Marine Strategy Framework Directive - putting in 
place the legal framework for implementation, 
HMG, NI Executive, Scottish Government, Welsh 
Assembly Government (2011) UK Marine Policy 
Statement, Inshore Fisheries and Conservation 
Authorities Bylaws (various), Natural England and 
JNCC (2011) Marine Conservation Zone (MCZ) 
Project, NERC (2010) Marine Environmental 
Mapping Programme (MAREMAP), UK Marine 
Monitoring and Assessment Strategy (2010) 
Charting Progress 2: The State of UK Seas. 

Air The Air Quality Standards Regulations (2010) as 
amended, Air Quality Strategy for England, 
Scotland, Wales and Northern Ireland, UK’s Air 
Quality Action Plan (Defra, revised January 2016), 
The Environment Act (1995), Defra (2010) Air 
Pollution: Action in a Changing Climate, Defra 
(2011) Air Quality Plans for the Achievement of EU 
Air Quality Limit Values for Nitrogen Dioxide (NO2) 
in the UK: List of UK and National Measures. 

These documents provide a framework at the UK level to 
implement objectives for the reduction of air pollution.  

Any RLDP resulting from this LDP Review should 
set out policies, proposals, advice and guidance 
relating to the preservation of acceptable levels 
of air quality during local development in the 
NPTC area.  

The ISA Framework should include objectives 
pertaining to the protection and enhancement 
of local air quality and the minimisation of air 
pollution. 

Climatic Factors The Carbon Plan (DECC, 2011), Committee on 
Climate Change (2008) Building a Low-Carbon 
Economy - the UK's Contribution to Tackling 
Climate, DECC (2009) UK Ports for the Offshore 
Wind Industry: Time to Act, DECC (2011) Carbon 
Plan: Delivering our Low Carbon Future,, DECC 
(2009) Framework for the Development of Clean 
Coal, DECC (2011) National Policy Statements for 
Energy Infrastructure, DECC (2011) UK Renewable 
Energy Roadmap, DECC (2014) UK National 
Energy Efficiency Action Plan, Environment Agency 
(2010) Managing the Environment in a Changing 
Climate, HM Government (1998) Petroleum Act, 
HM Government (2006) The Stern Review: The 
Economics of Climate Change, HM Government 
(2008) Climate Change Act 2008, HM Government 
(2008) The Energy Act, HM Government (2015) 
Ozone-Depleting Substances Regulations 2015, 
HM Government (2017) UK Climate Change Risk 
Assessment. 

These documents provide a framework at the UK level 
regarding the need to mitigate and adapt to climate 
change. In particular, the Climate Change Act 2008 sets a 
legally binding target of reducing the UK’s GHG emissions 
by 80% by 2050 compared with 1990 and requires a 
programme of rolling carbon budgets to be set to achieve 
this.  

 

Any RLDP resulting from this LDP Review should 
set out policies, proposals, advice and guidance 
for the prevention of environmental effects 
caused by local redevelopment and the pursuit of 
renewable energies where possible.  

The ISA Framework should include objectives 
relating to renewable energy use, resource 
efficiency, sustainable transport, GHG 
emissions and climate change mitigation. 

Material Assets The National Infrastructure Plan (2011), HM 
Treasury (2014) National Infrastructure Plan, 
Reducing and Managing Waste Policy (DEFRA, 
2013, Waste Incineration (England and Wales) 
Regulations 2002, The Environmental Permitting 
(England and Wales) (Amendment) Regulations 

These documents provide a framework at the UK level 
regarding infrastructure development, environmental 
permitting, waste management and energy generation. 

Any RLDP resulting from this LDP Review should 
set out policies, proposals, advice and guidance 
for the efficient use of material assets, the 
deployment of renewable and low carbon energy 
generation sources and sustainable waste 
management within the NPTC area.  

The ISA Framework should include objectives 
relating to resource efficiency, land use, waste 
management, energy, connectivity and 
accessibility. 

T
udalen277



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

SEA Topic Relevant Plans, Programmes and Strategies Overview of Purpose and Key Requirements 
Implications for Neath Port Talbot LDP 
Review 

Implications for ISA 

2016, The Waste Electronic Equipment 
(Amendment) Regulations SI 2010/1155 amending 
The Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment 
(WEEE) (Waste Management Licensing) (England 
and Wales) Regulations 2006, The Hazardous 
Waste Regulations 2005 (England and Wales), The 
Waste Regulations 2011 (England and Wales), 
Landfill Regulations 2002 (England and Wales, 
amended 2005), Waste and Emissions Trading Act 
2003 (Amended), National Planning Policy for 
Waste (DCLG, 2014), Meeting the Energy 
Challenge: A White Paper on Energy (DECC, 
2007), The UK Renewable Energy Strategy (HM 
Government, 2009), Defra (2012) National Policy 
Statement for Waste Water, HM Government 
(1995) Environment Act 1995. 

Cultural 
Heritage 

Heritage Protection for the 21st Century: White 
Paper (DCMS, 2007), The Ancient Monuments and 
Archaeological Areas Act 1979, The Planning 
(Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 
1990, HM Government (1979) Ancient Monuments 
and Archaeological Areas Act 1979, HM 
Government (1996) The Treasure Act 1996. 

These documents provide a framework at the UK level 
regarding the protection and conservation of cultural and 
heritage historic assets, including listed buildings, ancient 
monuments and archaeological resources.  

Any RLDP resulting from this LDP Review should 
set out policies, proposals, advice and guidance 
for the protection and promotion of cultural and 
historic heritage assets in the NPTC area.  

The ISA Framework should include objectives 
relating to the protection, enhancement, 
conservation and preservation of heritage 
assets.  

Landscape 

 

Hedgerow Regulations 1997, Natural Environment 
and Rural Communities Act (2006), HM 
Government (1949) National Parks and Access to 
the Countryside Act 1949, HM Government (1967) 
Forestry Act 1967, HM Government (2000) 
Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000, HM 
Government (2006) Commons Act 2006.  

These documents provide a framework at the UK level 
regarding the protection of national parks, countryside and 
rural communities including rights of way and protection of 
forests.  

Any RLDP resulting from this LDP Review should 
set out policies, proposals, advice and guidance 
for the protection of landscapes and hedgerows, 
including protected areas within the NPTC area.  

The ISA Framework should include objectives 
relating to landscape features, landscape 
character and visual impacts.  

 

 

Interrelated 
Effects 

The UK Sustainable Development Strategy (HM 
Government, 2005), National Planning Policy 
Framework (DCLG, 2012), Planning Practice 
Guidance, Defra (2011) Mainstreaming Sustainable 
Development, Department for Transport (2008) 
Delivering a Sustainable Transport System, HM 
Government (1990) Planning (Listed Buildings and 
Conservation Areas) Act 1990, HM Government 
(2000) Transport Act 2000, HM Government (2006) 
Government of Wales Act 2006, HM Government 
(2017) The Wales Act, Royal Town Planning 
Institute (2017) Digital Economy and Town 
Planning, Sustainable Development Commission 
(2005) One Future – Different Paths. Shared 
Framework for Sustainable Development. 

These documents provide a framework at the UK level to 
promote sustainable development and sustainable 
transport initiatives. 

Any RLDP resulting from this LDP Review should 
set out policies, proposals, advice and guidance 
for the promotion of sustainable development in 
the NPTC area.  

The ISA Framework should include objectives 
relating to sustainable development targets.  

National (Wales) - all legislative and policy frameworks are informed by relevant higher-level UK, European and international frameworks 

Population 
(including 
relevant socio-
economic 
issues) 

Well Being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 
2015, Housing (Wales) Act, 2014 Growth and 
Competitiveness Commission (2016) Our Valleys, 
Our Future (July 2017), Welsh Government Future 
Trends Report (2017), The Strategy for Older 
People in Wales: Living Longer, Ageing Well (2013-
2023 (Welsh Assembly Government), Social 

These policies are informed by International, European and 
UK policies and broadly focus on progressive agendas for 
increasing economic growth and enhancing social 
wellbeing in Wales. 

 

Any RLDP resulting from this LDP Review should 
set out policies, proposals, advice and guidance 
relating to relevant socio-economic and 
population issues within the NPTC area.  

The ISA Framework should include objectives 
relating to the creation of acceptable policies 
for the benefit of the population. The quality of 
social services, job provision, equality 
legislation and economic growth targets 
should be considered in a holistic manner.  

T
udalen278



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

SEA Topic Relevant Plans, Programmes and Strategies Overview of Purpose and Key Requirements 
Implications for Neath Port Talbot LDP 
Review 

Implications for ISA 

Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 2014, Welsh 
Assembly Government (2007) One Wales – A 
Progressive Agenda for the Government of Wales, 
Welsh Assembly Government (2009) Getting On 
Together - a Community Cohesion Strategy for 
Wales, Welsh Assembly Government (2009) 
Improving Lives and Communities – Homes in 
Wales, Welsh Assembly Government (2006) Play 
Policy Implementation Plan, Welsh Assembly 
Government (2009) Farming, Food and 
Countryside: Building a Secure future – A New 
Strategy for Farming, Welsh Assembly Government 
(2009) Living Well Living Independent Lives, Welsh 
Assembly Government (2010) Economic Renewal: 
A New Direction, Welsh Assembly Government 
(2010) Food for Wales, Food from Wales 
2010:2020, Welsh Assembly Government (2010) 
Fulfilled Lives, Supportive Communities, Welsh 
Assembly Government (2010) Welsh Medium 
Education Strategy 2010, Welsh Assembly 
Government (2011) Sustainable Social Services for 
Wales: A Framework for Action, Welsh Assembly 
Government (2011) Rights of Children and Young 
Persons (Wales) Measure 2011, Welsh Assembly 
Government (2013) Partnership for Growth: The 
Welsh Assembly Government Strategy for Tourism 
2013 – 2020, Welsh Assembly Government (2013) 
Vibrant and Viable Places New Regeneration 
Framework, Welsh Assembly Government (2013) 
The Strategy for Older People in Wales 2013-2023, 
Welsh Assembly Government (2013) Framework 
for Action on Independent Living, Welsh Assembly 
Government (2014) Declaration of Rights for Older 
People, Welsh Assembly Government (2014) 
Housing (Wales) Act 2014, Welsh Assembly 
Government (2015) Green Growth Wales: Investing 
in the Future, Welsh Assembly Government (2015) 
Child Poverty Strategy for Wales, Welsh Assembly 
Government (2015) Volunteering Policy, Supporting 
Communities, Changing Lives, Welsh Assembly 
Government (2016) Strategic Equalities Plan, 
Welsh Assembly Government (2016) Social 
Services: The national outcomes framework for 
people who need care and support and carers who 
need support, Welsh Assembly Government (2016) 
Early Years Outcomes Framework, Welsh 
Assembly Government (2017) Prosperity for All 
:The National Strategy, Welsh Assembly 
Government 2015/16 Review of evidence of 
inequalities in Wales, Welsh Assembly Government 
Future Trends Report (2017), Welsh Assembly 
Government Population and Household Projections 
(2017). 

T
udalen279



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

SEA Topic Relevant Plans, Programmes and Strategies Overview of Purpose and Key Requirements 
Implications for Neath Port Talbot LDP 
Review 

Implications for ISA 

Human Health The Active Travel (Wales) Act (2015), Children’s 
Commissioners for Wales (2016) Annual Report 15-
16,  (2017) Public Health (Wales) Act 2017, NHS 
Wales (2011) Together for Health, Public Health 
Wales (2015) A Healthier, Happier and Fairer 
Wales, Welsh Assembly Government (2008) 
Designed to Add Value - a third dimension for One 
Wales, Welsh Assembly Government (2009) Rural 
Health Plan, Welsh Assembly Government (2010) 
Setting the Direction: Primary & Community 
Services Strategic Delivery Programme, Welsh 
Assembly Government (2006) Climbing Higher – A 
Strategy for Sport and Physical Activity, Welsh 
Assembly Government (2012) Working Differently – 
Working Together, Welsh Assembly Government 
(2012) Together for Mental Health: A Strategy for 
Mental Health and Wellbeing in Wales, Welsh 
Assembly Government (2013) A Noise Action Plan 
for Wales 2013-2018, Welsh Assembly 
Government/ NHS (2016) Measuring the health and 
well-being of a nation: Public Health Outcomes 
Framework for Wales. 

These documents provide a framework at the Welsh level 
to improve the physical and mental health of the 
population.  

Any RLDP resulting from this LDP Review should 
set out policies, proposals, advice and guidance 
for key health provisions and targets within the 
NPTC area.  

The ISA Framework should include objectives 
relating to adequate health provisions for all 
communities regardless of location.  

Biodiversity, 
Flora & Fauna 

Environment (Wales) Act, 2016,  (2009) 
Environmental Damage (Prevention and 
Remediation) (Wales) Regulations 2009, Wales 
Biodiversity Partnership (2010) Wales Biodiversity 
Framework, Welsh Assembly Government (2009) 
Woodlands for Wales Strategy, Welsh Assembly 
Government (2015) The Nature Recovery Plan for 
Wales – Setting the course for 2020 and beyond. 

These documents provide a framework at the Welsh level 
to protect biodiversity interests, including designated sites 
and important species.  

Any RLDP resulting from this LDP Review should 
set out policies, proposals, advice and guidance 
for the protection of biodiversity, flora and fauna 
within the NPTC area.  

The ISA Framework should include objectives 
relating to the preservation, protection and 
conservation efforts of biodiversity levels.  

Soil & Land Environment (Wales) Act, 2016, Joint Nature 
Conservation Committee (ongoing) Geological 
Conservation Review, Welsh Assembly (2012) 
Contaminated Land (Wales) (Amendment) 
Regulations 2012, The Nitrate Pollution Prevention 
(Wales) Regulations. 

These documents provide a framework at the Welsh level 
regarding the avoidance and remediation of contaminated 
land and the creation of a geological profile of Wales.   

 

Any RLDP resulting from this LDP Review should 
provide policies, proposals, advice and guidance 
for local developments which may be taking 
place on protected areas or contaminated land.  

 

The ISA Framework should include objectives 
relating to contaminated land remediation, soil 
quality and pollution to ground receptors. 
Consequential human health and ecological 
risks and impacts should also be considered in 
a holistic manner. 

Water Environment (Wales) Act, 2016, Countryside 
Council for Wales (now Natural Resources Wales) 
(2015) National Seascape Assessment for Wales, 
LUC, NRW, Environment Agency (2015) The 
Severn River Basin Management Plan, Natural 
Resources Wales (2015) Dee River Basin 
Management Plan, Natural Resources Wales 
(2015) Welsh Coastal Tourism Strategy (Welsh 
Assembly Government, 2008), Interim Marine 
Aggregates Dredging Policy (Welsh Assembly 
Government,  2007), Coastal Access Improvement 
Programme (Welsh Assembly Government, 2007) 
Making the Most of Wales’ Coast: The Integrated 
Coastal Zone Management Strategy for Wales 
(Welsh Assembly Government, 2008), Wales 
Fisheries Strategy (Welsh Assembly Government, 
2011) Strategic Policy Position on Water (Welsh 
Assembly Government, 2011) Marine Renewable 

These documents provide a framework at the Welsh level 
regarding the management of coastal and river areas, 
marine renewable energies, surface water management 
and coastal tourism.  

Any RLDP resulting from this LDP Review should 
provide policies, proposals, advice and guidance 
for local developments which may be affected by 
rising water levels, poor flood risk management 
or may be assisted by coastal and tourism 
strategies in the NPTC area. 

The ISA Framework should include objectives 
relating to the quality of the water environment 
and water resources, as well as to manage 
flood risks. 

T
udalen280



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

SEA Topic Relevant Plans, Programmes and Strategies Overview of Purpose and Key Requirements 
Implications for Neath Port Talbot LDP 
Review 

Implications for ISA 

Energy Strategic Framework, Welsh Assembly 
Government (2013) National Flood and Coastal 
Erosion Strategy for Wales, Welsh Assembly 
Government (2013) Wales Marine and Fisheries 
Strategic Action Plan Welsh Assembly Government 
(2015) The Welsh National Marine Plan, Welsh 
Assembly Government (2019) Water Strategy for 
Wales, Welsh Assembly Government (2015) Wales 
Marine Evidence Report, Welsh Water (2008) 
Surface Water Management Strategy, Welsh Water 
(2014) Final Water Resources Management Plan, 
Welsh Regional Coastal Groups, SMP 20 
Lavernock Point to St Ann’s Head (South Wales), 
The Nitrate Pollution Prevention (Wales) 
Regulations. 

Air Air Quality Standards (Wales) Regulations (2010). This document provides a framework at the Welsh level 
regarding the protection and improvement of air quality in 
accordance with limits set within European legislative. 

Any RLDPresulting from this LDP Review should 
provide policies, proposals, advice and guidance 
for appropriate levels of local air quality 
management within the NPTC area.  

The ISA Framework should include objectives 
relating to air quality and air pollution controls, 
as well as provide acceptable air quality levels 
for health purposes.  

Climatic Factors Environment (Wales) Act, 2016, Committee on 
Climate Change (2017) UK Climate Change Risk 
Assessment 2017 Evidence Report, Summary for 
Wales, Re-Energising Wales Project, Welsh 
Assembly Government (2006) Environment 
Strategy for Wales, Welsh Assembly Government 
(2010) Climate Change Strategy for Wales, Welsh 
Assembly Government (2010), Capturing the 
Potential: A Green Jobs Strategy for Wales, Welsh 
Assembly Government (2010), Low Carbon 
Revolution – the Welsh Assembly Government 
Energy Policy Statement, Welsh Assembly 
Government (2011) Policy Statement: Preparing for 
a Changing Climate, Welsh Assembly Government 
(2011) Preparing Wales for Climate Change: 
Adaptation Delivery Plan, Welsh Assembly 
Government (2012) Energy Wales: A Low Carbon 
Transition, Welsh Assembly Government (2014) 
Energy Wales: A Low Carbon Transition Delivery 
Plan, Welsh Assembly Government (2016) 
Environment (Wales) Act 2016.  

These documents provide a framework at the Welsh level 
to respond to the need to mitigation and adapt to climate 
change. The framework focuses on seeking to decarbonise 
key economic sectors, encouraging low carbon energy 
generation and enhancing the reliance of the natural 
environment.  

Any RLDP resulting from this LDP Review should 
provide policies, proposals, advice and guidance 
for the prevention of environmental effects 
caused by local redevelopment and the pursuit of 
renewable energies where possible. 

The ISA Framework should include objectives 
relating to renewable energy use, resource 
efficiency, sustainable transport, GHG 
emissions and climate change mitigation within 
the NPTC area. 

Material Assets HM Government (2010) Waste (Wales) Measure 
2010, Natural Resources Wales (2015) LIFE Natura 
2000 Programme for Wales Natural Resources 
Wales (2016) State of Natural Resources Report 
(SoNaRR), Sustainable Development Commission 
(2009) Low Carbon Wales, Welsh Assembly 
Government (2008) One Wales: Connecting the 
Nation, Welsh Assembly Government (2008) Wales 
Transport Strategy, Welsh Assembly Government 
(2010) Towards Zero Waste One Wales: One 
Planet. The Overarching Waste Strategy Document 
for Wales, Welsh Assembly Government (2012) 
Sustaining a Living Wales: A Green Paper on a 
New Approach to Natural Resource Management in 

These documents provide a framework at the Welsh level 
regarding the protection of natural resources, infrastructure 
development strategies and investment plans, and 
transport strategies and policies.  

Any RLDP resulting from this LDP Review should 
provide policies, proposals, advice and guidance 
for the enhancement and protection of material 
assets within the NPTC area.  

The ISA Framework should include objectives 
relating to waste regulations, protection of 
natural resources, resource management and 
green growth.  

T
udalen281



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

SEA Topic Relevant Plans, Programmes and Strategies Overview of Purpose and Key Requirements 
Implications for Neath Port Talbot LDP 
Review 

Implications for ISA 

Wales, Welsh Assembly Government (2012) Wales 
Infrastructure Investment Plan, Welsh Assembly 
Government (2013) Active Travel (Wales) Act, 
Welsh Assembly Government (2015) Green Growth 
Wales: Local Energy, Welsh Assembly Government 
(2016) Active Travel Action Plan for Wales, Welsh 
Assembly Government (2016) Energy Efficiency in 
Wales: A Strategy for the Next 10 years 2016-2026, 
Welsh Assembly Government (2017) Natural 
Resources Policy, Active Travel Act (Wales) 2013. 

Cultural 
Heritage 

Environment (Wales) Act 2016, Historic 
Environment (Wales) Act 2016, Valuing the Welsh 
Historic Environment Welsh Assembly Government 
(2010), Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011, 
Cymraeg 2050 A million Welsh speakers, Welsh 
Assembly Government, Welsh Assembly 
Government (2017), Light Springs through the 
Dark: A vision for culture in Wales (2016). 

These documents provide a framework at the Welsh level 
regarding the protection of cultural heritage; including 
heritage historic assets and the use of the Welsh language. 

Any RLDP resulting from this LDP review should 
provide policies, proposals, advice and guidance 
for the protection, preservation and presentation 
of cultural heritage and where possible, the 
inclusion of the Welsh language wherever 
relevant in the NPTC area.  

The ISA Framework should include objections 
relating to the protection of cultural 
heritagehistoric assets. 

Landscape Environment (Wales) Act 2016, Countryside 
Council for Wales (now Natural Resources Wales) 
(2001) Register of Landscapes of Historic Interest, 
Natural Resources Wales (ongoing) LANDMAP 
Programme. 

These documents provide a framework at the Welsh level 
regarding the protection and mapping of natural resources, 
protected and important landscapes of historic interest.  

Any RLDP resulting from this LDP Review should 
provide policies, proposals, advice and guidance 
for the preservation of protected landscapes and 
natural resources within the NPTC area.  

The ISA Framework should include objectives 
relating to landscape features, landscape 
character and visual impacts. 

Interrelated 
Effects 

Environment (Wales) Act, 2016,  Historic 
Environment (Wales) Act 2016, (2015) Planning 
(Wales) Act 2015, Welsh Assembly Government 
(2008) People, Places,  Future Wales 2040: The 
National Plan NDF (2021), Welsh Assembly 
Government (2009) One Wales: One Planet, A New 
Sustainable Development Scheme for Wales 
(2018), Welsh Government Future Trends Report 
(2017), Welsh Assembly Government (2011) Rural 
Development Plan for Wales (2014-2020), Welsh 
Assembly Government (2012) City Regions Final 
Report, Welsh Assembly Government (2016) 
Planning Policy Wales – Edition 11, Welsh 
Assembly Government (2016) Welsh Assembly 
Government Programme for government, Taking 
Wales Forward 2016-2021, Welsh Assembly 
Government: Wales We Want National 
Conversation, Reforming Local Government: 
Resilient and Renewed – Welsh Assembly 
Government Whitepaper (Jan 2017).   

These documents provide a framework at the Welsh level 
regarding sustainable urban and rural development, city 
regional development and spatial planning. 

Any RLDPresulting from this LDP Review should 
provide policies, proposals, advice and guidance 
for adhering to sustainable development 
guidelines where possible within the NPTC area.  

The ISA Framework should include objectives 
relating to sustainable development targets.   

Regional (Proposed SDP Level) 

Interrelated 
effects 

Swansea Bay City Deal (2017), Emerging Strategic 
South West Wales Strategic Development Plan, 
Regional Technical Statement (RTS) 2nd Review 
(2020) Natural Resources Wales - South West 
Wales Area Statement 2020. 

The Swansea Bay City Deal is a £1.3bn investment in 11 
major projects across the Swansea Bay City Region across 
Carmarthenshire, Neath Port Talbot, Pembrokeshire and 
Swansea. The City Deal is being funded, subject to the 
approval of project business cases, by the UK 
Government, the Welsh Government, the public sector and 
the private sector. 

 

The preparation of any RLDPwill need to be 
closely aligned with the preparation of the South 
West Wales SDP and the South Wales Regional 
Aggregate Working Parties RTS  to ensure that 
once adopted, both documents provide a 
coherent framework for effectively and efficiently 
addressing relevant planning issues.  

 

A separate SA/SEA process will need to be 
undertaken for the emerging South West 
Wales SDP once the lead Responsible 
Authority for the preparation of this plan has 
been determined. As with this LDP Review, 
SA/SEA Scoping will be needed to set an 
assessment framework prior to the 
development of substantive SPD components.  
 

T
udalen282



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

SEA Topic Relevant Plans, Programmes and Strategies Overview of Purpose and Key Requirements 
Implications for Neath Port Talbot LDP 
Review 

Implications for ISA 

The Swansea Bay City Deal is a £1.3 billion investment 
programme which aims to boost the regional economy by 
£1.8bn and generate up to 10,000 jobs. It is being led by 
the four regional local authorities: Carmarthenshire 
Council, Swansea Council, Neath Port Talbot Council and 
Pembrokeshire Council - together with the Abertawe Bro 
Morgannwg and Hywel DDA University Health Boards, 
Swansea University, the University of Wales Trinity Saint 
David, and private sector partners.  

 

It has focuses on four themes: 

 

1. Internet of Economic Acceleration; 

2. Internet of Life Science & Wellbeing; 

3. Internet of Energy; and, 

4. Smart Manufacturing; 

 

At the time of writing, local planning authorities have been 
invited to consider the development of Strategic 
Development Plans in addition to their own LDP reviews 
currently being undertaken. 4 SPDs are proposed to cover 
North Wales, Mid Wales, South East Wales and South 
West Wales. 

 

Under the provisions set out in Mineral Technical Advice 
Note 1 (MTAN1): Aggregates, the South Wales Regional 
Aggregates Working Party (SWRAWP) must prepare an 
RTS setting out how demand for aggregates will be met in 
the region across a 15-year period. The RTS assesses the 
supply and demand of aggregates in each Mineral 
Planning Authority (MPA) area, setting out each MPA’s 
contribution to meeting regional demand. The SWRAWP 
2nd Review was published for consultation in August 2019, 
setting out the demand for primary land-won aggregates in 
the South Wales sub regions at 12.486 mtpa. Neath Port 
Talbot is part of the Swansea City- Sub-Region on which 
calculations are based on two ‘theoretical’ options (i.e. only 
one of two options/datasets would be used to calculate 
demand)  These are split into Option A (historical sales) 
and Option B (housing requirements from each LPA). 

 

Based on historical sales across the South Wales region 
(option A), 0.611 mtpa of aggregate will be required from 
Neath Port Talbot to meet ongoing demand. 

Based on housing requirements outlined in the existing 
LDP and calculated against the demand across the South 
Wales region, 0.347 mtpa would be required from Neath 
Port Talbot would be required to meet demand across the 
region.  

 

Taking into account the differences in provision of types of 
aggregate across all local authorities in the South Wales 

The preparation of any RLDP will therefore need 
to align with the planned provision of aggregates 
with that for housing, to ensure that housing 
plans are not thwarted by an under-provision of 
aggregates. 

 

The South West Wales Area Statement provides 
a collaboratively developed identification of the 
key environmental challenges faced in the South 
West Wales Area. It identifies key thematic 
issues which the NPT RLDP needs to consider 
and build into the Review. It usefully provides a 
clear regional understanding of the key issues 
faced by NPT and its neighbours in the region 
and provides data sources which will be updated 
as the RLDP process progresses. 

 

 

 

 

The ISA Framework proposed for use in the 
ISA of the LDP Review (Section 5) should be 
kept under review and tested for compatibility 
against the SA Framework for the South West 
SPD once this has been produced.     
 
The South West Wales Area Statement should 
inform the ISA framework and be kept under 
review as the ISA is developed through the 
RLDP process. 

 

T
udalen283



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

SEA Topic Relevant Plans, Programmes and Strategies Overview of Purpose and Key Requirements 
Implications for Neath Port Talbot LDP 
Review 

Implications for ISA 

region, Preferred Annualised Apportionment for Neath Port 
Talbot has been calculated at 0.305 mtpa.  

 

Natural Resources Wales has produced its first Area 
Statements (2020). Each Area Statement outlines the key 
challenges facing that particular locality, what we can all do 
to meet those challenges, and how we can better manage 
our natural resources for the benefit of future generations. 
They will be updated regularly and improved year-on-year. 
Viewed together, the seven Area Statements can be seen 
as a collaborative response to what is known as the 
Natural Resources Policy, published by the Welsh 
Government in 2017, which sets out the key challenges 
and opportunities for the sustainable management of 
Wales’ natural resources into the future. 

 

NPT is located within the South West Wales Area 
Statement. This Area Statement identifies the key risks, 
opportunities and priorities that we all need to address to 
build the resilience of our ecosystems and support 
sustainable management of the natural resources. It sets 
out actions that NRW and its partners, will take forward to 
address the issues they have identified. 

 

The themes for South West Wales are:  

 

 Reducing health inequalities - This theme 
aims to examine the opportunities to address 
health inequalities in South West Wales by 
using natural resources and habitats; 

 Ensuring sustainable land management - 
Ensuring our land is sustainably managed for 
future generations; 

 Reversing the decline of, and enhancing, 
biodiversity - This theme aims to explore how 
we can reverse the decline of biodiversity by 
building resilient ecological networks; and, 

 Cross-cutting theme: Mitigating and adapting 
to a changing climate – This cross-cutting 
theme looks at how we can adapt and 
respond to a changing climate. 

Local (NPTC & Neighbouring Local Authorities) - all legislative and policy frameworks are informed by relevant higher-level Welsh, UK, European and international frameworks. 

Population 
(including 
relevant socio-
economic 
issues) 

Neath Port Talbot Strategic School Improvement 
Programme (NPTC, 2018). The Neath Port Talbot 
We Want (Well-being Plan 2018 – 2023), Aging 
Well in Neath Port Talbot Plan, Neath Port Talbot 
Public Services Board Assessment of Local Well-
being May 2017, Neath Port Talbot Single 
Integrated Plan 2013-2023, Neath Port Talbot CBC 

Local policies regarding socio-economic issues broadly 
address the following themes:  

 

 Improving quality of life for all; 

 Protecting and enhancing the environment; 

Any RLDP resulting from this LDP Review should 
provide policies, proposals, advice and guidance 
relating to the wellbeing and the prosperity for 
the community in the NPTC area.  

The ISA Framework should include objectives 
relating to the creation of acceptable policies 
for the benefit of the population. The quality of 
social services, job provision, equality 
legislation and economic growth targets 
should be considered in a holistic manner. 

T
udalen284



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

SEA Topic Relevant Plans, Programmes and Strategies Overview of Purpose and Key Requirements 
Implications for Neath Port Talbot LDP 
Review 

Implications for ISA 

Corporate Plan 2019-2022, Neath Port Talbot 
Welsh in Education Strategic Plan [WESP] 2017 – 
2020, NPTC Local Housing Strategy 2015-20, 
NPTC Homelessness Strategy 2018-22, Swansea 
Bay City Region Economic Regeneration Strategy 
2013-2030, Neath Port Talbot Strategic Equality 
Plan 2015-2019,  NPTC Local Development 
Strategy, Port Talbot Waterfront Enterprise Zone, 
Neath Port Talbot Digital Strategy (2018-2022) 
'Smart & Connected’, Neath Port Talbot Tourism 
Development Action Plan, Neath Port Talbot 
Destination Management Plan.  

 

 Increasing prosperity; 

 Delivering safer and more inclusive 
communities; 

 Achieving a healthier County Borough; and, 

 Ensure good quality housing.  

The Neath Port Talbot Public Services Board Wellbeing 
Assessment (2017) summarises the challenges to 
Economic, Environmental and Social Wellbeing affecting 
residents of the NPTC area, as required under the 
Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. 

 

Informed by the Wellbeing Assessment, the Neath Port 
Talbot We Want (Wellbeing Plan 2018-2023) identifies 
policy changes and actions to improve the health and 
wellbeing of the population within the NPTC area: 

 

 To support children in their early years, 
especially children at risk of adverse childhood 
experiences; 

 Create safe, confident and resilient 
communities, focussing on vulnerable people; 

 Put more life into our later years - Ageing 
Well; 

 Promote well-being through work and in the 
workplace; 

 Valuing green infrastructure and the 
contribution it makes to Well-being; and, 

 Tackling digital exclusion. 

The NPT We Want (Wellbeing Plan 2018-2023) also sets 
out wellbeing objectives for the NPTC area, particularly, 

 Develop the local economy and environment. 

Human Health Neath Port Talbot Council’s Plan for Adult Social 
Care 2019-2022, Neath Port Talbot Active Travel 
‘Existing Route Map’ (ERM) and Integrated Route 
Map (IRM), Neath Port Talbot Health, Social Care & 
Wellbeing Strategy, NPTC Strategic Delivery Plan 
for Mental Health Services (2018), The Neath Port 
Talbot We Want (Well-being Plan 2018 – 2023), 
Aging Well in Neath Port Talbot Plan, Neath Port 
Talbot Public Services Board Assessment of Local 
Well-being May 2017. 

 

The health policies relevant to NPTC address issues 
encompassing social inclusion, lifestyle and health and 
social care. 

 

The Neath Port Talbot Wellbeing Assessment summarises 
the challenges to Economic, Environmental and Social 
Wellbeing for residents in the NPTC area in accordance 
with the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 
2015. Informed by the Wellbeing Assessment, the Neath 
Port Talbot Public Services Board ‘The Neath Port Talbot 
We Want’ (Well-Being Plan 2018-2023) provides key 

Any RLDP resulting from this LDP review should 
provide policies, proposals, advice and guidance 
relating to healthcare targets set by NPTC in 
their LDP area.  

The ISA Framework should include objectives 
relating to tackling health issues and creating 
adequate health and safety guidelines. 

T
udalen285



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

SEA Topic Relevant Plans, Programmes and Strategies Overview of Purpose and Key Requirements 
Implications for Neath Port Talbot LDP 
Review 

Implications for ISA 

statistics to inform future local development plans, 
including: 

 The promotion of health lifestyles including 
regular exercise; 

 Addressing poor lifestyle choices and 
childhood poverty; 

 Addressing health inequalities within the 
NPTC area, including differences in life and 
health life expectancy; and, 

 Improve access to healthcare facilities.  

The NPT We Want (Wellbeing Plan 2018-2023) also sets 
out wellbeing objectives for the NPTC area, particularly, 

 Improve the well-being of children and young 
people; and, 

 Improve the well-being of all adults. 

Biodiversity, 
Flora & Fauna 

Neath Port Talbot Biodiversity Duty Plan (2017), 
Neath Port Talbot Local Biodiversity Action Plan 
(LBAP). 

The local biodiversity action plan and duty plans aim to 
map/quantify biodiversity and identify its importance for the 
NPTC area.  

Any RLDP resulting from this LDP review should 
provide policies, proposals, advice and guidance 
to protect biodiversity, flora and fauna and its 
habitats from being destroyed by local 
development.  

The ISA Framework should include objectives 
relating to conservation, protection and 
enhancement of biodiversity interests. 

Soil & Land N/A    

Water NPTC Flood Risk Management Strategy.  The NPTC Flood Risk Management Strategy sets out 
locally significant flood risk in the NPTC area. The main 
aim of the strategy is to reduce the social and economic 
impacts on the local community as a result of flooding while 
also reducing the overall risk of flooding.  

Any RLDP resulting from this LDP review should 
provide policies, proposals, advice and guidance 
to protect, prevent and mitigate adverse impacts 
on flood risk levels as a result of local 
development.  

The ISA Framework should include objectives 
relating to the reduction of flood risk while 
guiding local development decisions.  

Air NPTC Air Quality Strategy ‘Airwise: Clean Air for 
Everyone’ (2017). 

This Air Quality Strategy sets out NPTC’s approach to 
tackle air quality issues in the area now and in the future.  

Any RLDP resulting from this LDP review should 
provide policies, proposals, advice and guidance 
for the protection of air quality and the prevention 
of adverse impact on local, regional and national 
air quality standards as a result of development, 
including industry.   

The ISA Framework should include objectives 
relating to tackling air quality issues. 

Climatic Factors Neath Port Talbot Decarbonisation and Renewable 
Energy Strategy (2020). 

The Neath Port Talbot Decarbonisation and Renewable 
Energy Strategy sets out the framework to achieve the 
Council's carbon footprint reduction aspirations. It is based 
around three key themes: transportation, buildings and 
spaces; and, influencing behaviour. 

Any RLDP resulting from this LDP should provide 
policies, proposals, advice and guidance relating 
to climate change mitigation and adaptation. In 
particular, the LDP Review should plan for 
upgraded and new infrastructure to support the 
decarbonisation of key economic sectors within 
the NPTC area. The RLDP should therefore 
include a policy framework to support the 
deployment of renewable energy technologies 
and heat networks in appropriate locations The 
RLDP will therefore have a key role in facilitating 
the implementation of 

this overarching corporate strategy. 

The ISA Framework should include objectives 
relating to climate change mitigation and 
adaptation.  

T
udalen286



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

SEA Topic Relevant Plans, Programmes and Strategies Overview of Purpose and Key Requirements 
Implications for Neath Port Talbot LDP 
Review 

Implications for ISA 

Material Assets Joint Local Transport Plan 2015-2020, Regional 
Waste Plan for the South West Wales Region, 
Neath Port Talbot Public Services Board 
Assessment of Local Well-being May 2017, the 
Neath Port Talbot We Want (Well-being Plan 2018 
– 2023). 

The Joint Local Transport Plan sets out the transport 
strategy adopted by four local authorities 
(Carmarthenshire, Neath Port Talbot, Swansea and 
Pembrokeshire), replacing original individual plans. It 
provides a strategic outlook on road traffic reduction, road 
safety, public transport, parking, managing the 
transportation network, and cycling and walking.  

 

The regional waste plan policy aims to provide a land use 
planning framework at the regional level. Each Local 
Planning Authority (LPA) shall develop which service best 
suits their needs and manage their own waste.  

 

The Neath Port Talbot Wellbeing Assessment (2017) 
summarises the challenges to Economic, Environmental 
and Social Wellbeing for residents in the Neath Port Talbot 
area in accordance with the Wellbeing of Future 
Generations (Wales) Act 2015. Informed by the Wellbeing 
Assessment, the Neath Port Talbot Public Services Board 
‘The Neath Port Talbot We Want’ (Well-Being Plan 2018-
2023) provides key statistics and goals to inform future 
local development plans, including: 

 

 Promotion of a wider mix of uses on sites in 
existing employment areas to stimulate 
growth; 

 Provision of business and management skills 
training in NPTC; and, 

 Address inequalities faced by people living in 
the Valleys.  

Any RLDP resulting from this LDP should provide 
policies, proposals, advice and guidance relating 
to the reasoned provision of transport.  

The ISA Framework should include objectives 
relating to the growth of material assets.  

Cultural 
Heritage 

Neath Port Talbot Public Services Board 
Assessment of Local Well-being May 2017, the 
Neath Port Talbot We Want (Well-being Plan 2018 
– 2023), Neath Port Talbot Council Welsh 
Language Promotion Strategy.  

The Neath Port Talbot Council Welsh Language Promotion 
Strategy describes how NPTC will aim to raise the profile of 
the Welsh language and culture with its residents and 
employees.  

 

The Neath Port Talbot Wellbeing Assessment (2017) 
summarises the challenges to Economic, Environmental 
and Social Wellbeing for residents in the Neath Port Talbot 
area in accordance with the Wellbeing of Future 
Generations (Wales) Act 2015. Informed by the Wellbeing 
Assessment, the Neath Port Talbot Public Services Board 
‘The Neath Port Talbot We Want’ (Well-Being Plan 2018-
2023) provides key statistics and goals to inform future 
local development plans, including: 

 

 Work to maximise the benefit of residents of 
NPTC from cultural, built and natural assets 
understanding Welsh heritage by mapping 
sites and buildings, promoting the use of the 

Any RLDP resulting from this LDP should provide 
policies, proposals, advice and guidance relating 
to the preservation and promotion of the Welsh 
language and promote the economic, 
environmental and social wellbeing of the NPTC 
area.  

The ISA Framework should include objectives 
relating to the preservation of cultural 
heritagehistoric assets. 

T
udalen287



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

SEA Topic Relevant Plans, Programmes and Strategies Overview of Purpose and Key Requirements 
Implications for Neath Port Talbot LDP 
Review 

Implications for ISA 

Welsh language; and, promote awareness of 
the benefits of these assets.  

Landscape N/A    

Interrelated 
Effects 

Neath Port Talbot Public Services Board 
Assessment of Local Well-being May 2017, the 
Neath Port Talbot We Want Well-being Plan (2018 
– 2023). Neath Port Talbot Single Integrated Plan 
2013-2023. 

As noted above, these documents identify a wide-ranging 
set of socio-economic and wellbeing challenges affecting 
residents within the NPTC area and identify wellbeing 
objectives and associated measures to address these. 

Any RLDP resulting from this LDP must respond 
to the locally identified wellbeing objectives and 
demonstrate compliance with the Wellbeing of 
Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015.  

The ISA Framework should include objectives 
relating to all aspects of health and wellbeing, 
including each of the wellbeing objectives 
defined within the Neath Port Talbot We Want 
(Well-being Plan 2018 – 2023). 

T
udalen288



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

B.3       Review of National Planning Policy Requirements 

B.3.1 Table B.2 below presents a review of Welsh national planning policies and guidance in order 

to identify key policy requirements which will need to be taken account of within the LDP 

Review. National planning policy is presently contained within Planning Policy Wales (PPW) -

11th Edition (2021), comprising of policy themes concerning well-being goals in line with the 

Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and reflecting the Welsh Assembly 

Government strategies and policies. Future Wales 2040was published by the Welsh 

Government on 24th February, setting out the 20-year plan for Wales up to 2040, identifying 

nationally significant developments. Key policy requirements arising from the NDF of 

relevance to the LDP Review are also identified in Table B.2. 

Future Wales 2040: The National Plan National Development Framework 

(February 2021) 

B.3.2 In September 2020, the Minister for Housing and Local Government provided a working draft 
Future Wales National Development Framework (NDF), including a Schedule of Changes 
report, setting out the changes made since consultation was undertaken on the previous draft 
published in 2019. The NDF was then published by the Welsh Government on 24th February 
2021 alongside Planning Policy Wales 11th Edition.  

B.3.3 The NDF will be reviewed and updated every five years but provides a twenty-year spatial 
vision for development in Wales. The NDF provides a framework to be built upon by Strategic 
Development Plans (SDPs) and Local Development Plans which themselves will identify the 
location of infrastructure and development across the country. The Future Wales 2040 NDF 
(February 2021) has been reviewed, with the implications described under each SEA 
Objective in Table B2.  

Implications of the Covid-19 Pandemic  

B.3.4 Following the onset of the Covid-19 pandemic in early 2020, the preparation of RLDPs was 
impacted by changes to local authority capacity and resources, the ability to host the 
traditional LDP consultation events and the ability to adhere to the agreed Delivery 
Agreement (DA). In response, the Welsh Government released a letter on 18th March 2020 
requesting all Local Planning Authorities (LPAs) to reflect on their individual circumstances 
,providing guidance for LPAs at different stages of RLDP preparation.  

NPTC commenced work on the preparation of the LDP Review Report at the beginning of 
2020, completing the 6-week public consultation period on 16th March 2020. Following formal 
approval from NPTC, the LDP Review Report was submitted to the Welsh Government in July 
2020. The Draft DA has now been prepared and will be consulted on in tandem with this ISA 
Scoping Report. The Draft DA will set out  the review timetable (as required to be approved 
by Welsh Government), the Community Involvement Scheme (CIS) and the NPTC resources 
which will be committed to developing the RLDP. The finalised timescales for completion of 
these elements will be confirmed in the final version of the DA, expected in December 2021. 
month.  

Implications of Brexit  

B.3.5 On 31st December 2020, the United Kingdom left the European Union, with implications for 
legislative geographies taken under review as part of the SA of the emerging Neath Port 
Talbot LDP. The European Union (Withdrawl) Act 2018 which provides legal continuity, 
enabling the transposition of directly applicable existing EU law and converting it into UK law, 
creating a new category of domestic law for the United Kingdom named ‘Retained EU Law’. 
Brexit therefore has implications of the review of European legislative undertaken for this SA 
which has been addressed in the main policy tables. 

Tudalen289



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

Table B.2: Implications of Welsh National Planning Policies for NPT LDP Review 

SEA Topic Relevant Plans, Programmes and Strategies Overview of Purpose and Key Requirements 
Implications for Neath Port Talbot LDP 

Review 
Implications for ISA 

Approved Policy Documents 

Population 
(including 
relevant socio-
economic 
issues) 

Planning Policy Wales Edition 11 (2021), Future Wales 
2040: The National Plan National Development 
Framework (2021), Technical Advice Note (TAN) 2: 
Planning and Affordable Housing (2006),Technical 
Advice Note (TAN) 4: Retail and Commercial 
Development, Welsh Assembly Government (2010) 
Technical Advice Note (TAN) 6: Planning for 
Sustainable Rural Communities, Welsh Assembly 
Government (2009) Technical Advice Note (TAN) 16: 
Sport, Recreation and Open Space, Welsh Assembly 
Government (2014) Technical Advice Note (TAN) 23: 
Economic Development, Technical Advice Note (TAN) 
13: Tourism, Welsh Assembly Government (2013), 
Welsh Government Circular (005/2018): Planning for 
Gypsy, Traveller and 
Showpeople Sites (2018), Welsh Government 
'Prosperity for All': the National Strategy' (2017), Welsh 
Government Valleys Task Force: Our Valleys, Our 
Future (July 
2017). 
 

 

These documents require the preparation of LDPs to: 

 

 Co-ordinate development with infrastructure provision; 

 Follow the principles of sustainable development 
including demonstrating an appropriate consideration 
to the ‘five ways of working’ and an improvement in 
the delivery of all four aspects of wellbeing: social, 
economic, environmental and cultural; 

 Support national, regional, and local economic 
policies and strategies; 

 Align jobs and services with housing, wherever 
possible, so as to reduce the need for travel, 
especially by car; 

 Promote the re-use of previously developed, vacant 
and underused land; 

 Deliver physical regeneration and employment 
opportunities to disadvantaged communities; 

 Guide and control economic development to facilitate 
regeneration initiatives and promote environmental 
and social sustainability; 

 Reflect work with neighbouring authorities and other 
relevant stakeholders to plan strategically for 
employment land provision;  

 Be underpinned by an up to date and appropriate 
evidence base to support policy choices and land 
allocations for economic development; 

 Set out an evidence based economic vision for the 
area, including a broad assessment of anticipated 
employment change by broad sector and land use; 

 Provide targets on land provision for the employment 
uses (Classes B1-B8), showing net change in 
land/floorspace for offices and industry/warehousing 
separately, and protect these sites from inappropriate 
development; 

 Identify strategic employment sites at regional scale 
by agreement amongst local authorities, giving careful 
consideration to the attributes of strategic employment 
sites to ensure they provide a differentiated offer 
across the region; 

Any RLDP resulting from this LDP should 
provide policies, proposals, advice and guidance 
relating to relevant socio-economic and 
population issues within the NPTC area. 

The ISA Framework should include 
objectives relating to socio-
economic issues including 
economic competitiveness and 
economic growth, employment 
provision, social wellbeing, housing 
and open space.  

T
udalen290



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

SEA Topic Relevant Plans, Programmes and Strategies Overview of Purpose and Key Requirements 
Implications for Neath Port Talbot LDP 

Review 
Implications for ISA 

 Include policies relating to future development on 
existing employment sites to protect them from 
inappropriate development: – to encourage the 
regeneration and re-use of sites which are still 
suitable and needed for employment; – to control and 
manage the release of unwanted employment sites to 
other uses; 

 Seek to provide the right amount of land and 
qualitative mix of sites to meet the market demand for 
economic development uses; 

 Propose specific locations for those necessary 
industries which are detrimental to amenity and may 
be a source of pollution; 

 Seek to promote and facilitate development that will 
deliver physical regeneration; 

 Prioritise sites that deliver appropriate job and training 
opportunities to disadvantaged communities; 

 Concentrate development that attracts large numbers 
of people, including retail and offices, in city, town and 
village centres; 

 Include criteria-based policies to deal with 
development not specifically allocated in the 
development plan and help respond to unexpected 
change; 

 Include policies on the scope for new economic 
development in and adjoining rural settlements and 
identify suitable sites. In remote rural areas and 
smaller settlements, a criteria-based approach should 
be considered; 

 Include policies encouraging farm diversification and 
new rural development opportunities; 

 Identify protection zones around establishments that 
hold hazardous substances and protect the ability of 
existing establishments to operate or expand by 
preventing the incremental development of vulnerable 
uses in the vicinity of such sites; 

 Adopt the ‘town centres first’ principle with 
consideration always given to an existing centre; 

 Establish a local retail hierarchy which identifies the 
nature, type and strategic role to be performed by 
retail and commercial centres; 

T
udalen291



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

SEA Topic Relevant Plans, Programmes and Strategies Overview of Purpose and Key Requirements 
Implications for Neath Port Talbot LDP 

Review 
Implications for ISA 

 Set out measures to reinvigorate particular centres, as 
appropriate, including linking to centre-wide 
strategies, masterplans and place plans; 

 Promote vibrant, attractive and viable retail and 
commercial centres; 

 Identify the boundaries of retail and commercial 
centres contained within the hierarchy on the 
proposals map; 

 Allocate sites for retail and commercial centre uses 
where there is assessed to be a quantitative or 
qualitative need and where size and scale are in 
accord with the retail strategy. Sites should be 
identified using the sequential approach and, where 
appropriate, assessed for their impact on other 
centres; 

 Include a criteria-based policy against which 
proposals coming forward on unallocated sites can be 
judged; 

 Set out policies for primary and secondary areas, 
where appropriate; 

 Develop policies which deal flexibly with changes to 
existing buildings; 

 Include policies relating to future development on 
existing retail sites to protect them from inappropriate 
development and to control and manage the release 
of unwanted retail sites to other uses; 

 Monitor the health of retail centres to assess the 
effectiveness of policies; 

 Locate new commercial, retail, education, health, 
leisure and public service facilities within town and city 
centres with good access by public transport to and 
from the town/city and where appropriate the wider 
region. . LPAs should work in partnership with the 
private sector to identify sites which accord with the 
sequential approach and are in line with the LDPs 
retail strategy; 

 Incorporate the new sequential search methodology 
for identifying housing sites (PPW (2021) paras 3.41 – 
3.43); 

 Planning Authorities must use their housing trajectory 
as the basis for monitoring the delivery of their 
housing requirement and will form part of the basis for 
monitoring the delivery of LDP housing requirements 
as part of LDP AMRs and for subsequent plan review. 

T
udalen292



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

SEA Topic Relevant Plans, Programmes and Strategies Overview of Purpose and Key Requirements 
Implications for Neath Port Talbot LDP 

Review 
Implications for ISA 

The monitoring of housing delivery for AMRs must be 
undertaken by planning authorities in accordance with 
the guidance set out in the Development Plans 
Manual. Under delivery against the trajectory can 
itself be a reason to review a development plan; 

 Establish a strategic framework for the protection, 
provision and enhancement of well-designed tourism, 
sport, recreation and leisure facilities in the NPTC 
area; 

 Protect from development playing fields and open 
space that has significant amenity or recreational 
value to local communities; 

 Locate facilities which may generate high levels of 
travel demand in or close to town centres where 
possible; 

 Consider the scope to use disused land and routes as 
parks, linear parks or greenways in urban areas; and, 

 Encourage the multiple use of open space and 
facilities, where appropriate, to increase their effective 
use and reduce the need to provide additional 
facilities. 

Human Health Planning Policy Wales  11th Edition (2021), Future 
Wales 2040: The National Plan National Development 
Framework  (2021), Welsh Assembly Government 
(1997) Technical Advice Note (TAN) 11: Noise, Noise 
and Soundscape Action Plan (2018-2023). 

 

These documents require the preparation of LDPs to take into 
account EU limits and target values and WHO guidelines on the 
detrimental effects of noise on health, including: 

 

 Taking account of the ‘Agent of Change’ principle in 
the consideration of adverse impacts upon human 
health caused by air and soundscape quality affected 
by proposed developments; 

 The prioritisation of active travel modes to assist in 
achieving the Well-being Goals; and, 

 Support the introduction of Ultra Low Emission 
Vehicles through the provision of electric vehicle 
charging infrastructure.  

Any RLDP resulting from this LDP should 
provide policies, proposals, advice and guidance 
relating to the protection and promotion of 
human health within the NPTC area.  

The ISA Framework should include 
objectives relating to all aspects of 
human health and wellbeing.  

Biodiversity, 
Flora & Fauna 

Planning Policy Wales 11th Edition (2021), Future 
Wales 2040: The National Plan National Development 
Framework  (2021), Welsh Assembly Government 
(2009) Technical Advice Note (TAN) 5: Nature 
Conservation and Planning, Welsh Assembly 
Government (1997) Technical Advice Note (TAN) 10: 
Tree Preservation Orders, National Natural Resources 
Policy (NNRP) (2017). 
 

 

These documents require the preparation of LDPs to: 

 

 Identify all international, national and local designated 
sites (including potential SPAs, candidate SACs and 
listed Ramsar sites); 

 Provide criteria against which a development affecting 
the different types of designated site will be assessed, 
reflecting their relative significance; 

Any RLDP resulting from this LDP should 
provide policies, proposals, advice and guidance 
relating to the protection and preservation of 
biodiversity, flora and fauna in accordance with 
national planning policy.  

The ISA Framework should include 
objectives relating to biodiversity 
conservation.  

T
udalen293



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

SEA Topic Relevant Plans, Programmes and Strategies Overview of Purpose and Key Requirements 
Implications for Neath Port Talbot LDP 

Review 
Implications for ISA 

 Include locally-specific policies for the conservation 
and, where appropriate, enhancement of landscape 
and amenity; 

 Provide for the conservation and, where appropriate, 
enhancement of biodiversity and landscape outside 
designated areas, in particular identifying 
opportunities to conserve important local habitats and 
species, and to safeguard and manage landscape 
features of major importance for nature conservation 
or amenity; 

 Make appropriate provision for Local Nature 
Reserves; 

 Include, where appropriate, locally-specific policies for 
conserving native woodland and protecting and 
planting trees; 

 Clarify how biodiversity will be safeguarded outside 
statutory designated sites without unduly restricting 
development that is otherwise appropriate; 

 Provide for the protection and enhancement of open 
space of conservation value, seeking to identify 
opportunities to promote responsible public access for 
enjoyment and understanding of the natural heritage 
where this is compatible with its conservation and 
existing land uses; 

 Recognise the potential of and encourage land uses 
and land management practices that help to secure 
carbon sinks; 

 Consider the location of fragile habitats and species; 
and, 

 Encourage the diversification of farm enterprises and 
other parts of the rural economy for appropriate 
tourism, sport, recreation and leisure uses, subject to 
adequate safeguards for the character and 
appearance of the countryside, particularly its 
landscape, biodiversity and local amenity value. 

Soil & Land Planning Policy Wales 11th Edition (2021), Future 
Wales 2040: The National Plan National Development 
Framework  (2021). 

These documents require the preparation of LDPs to: 

 

 Take account of the physical and environmental 
constraints on development of land, including, for 
example, the level of contamination and stability; 

 Ensure new development is not undertaken without 
an understanding of the risks, including those 
associated with the previous land use, mine and 

Any RLDP resulting from this LDP should 
provide policies, proposals, advice and guidance 
relating to the safeguarding and efficient use of 
land and soil resources. 

The ISA Framework should include 
objectives relating to the 
safeguarding and efficient use of 
land and soil resources.  

T
udalen294



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

SEA Topic Relevant Plans, Programmes and Strategies Overview of Purpose and Key Requirements 
Implications for Neath Port Talbot LDP 

Review 
Implications for ISA 

landfill gas emissions, and rising groundwater from 
abandoned mines; 

 Ensure new development does not take place without 
appropriate remediation; 

 Ensure consideration is given to the potential impacts 
which remediation of land contamination might have 
upon the natural and historic environments; 

 Ensure new development is not undertaken without 
an understanding of the risks, including those 
associated with subsidence, landslips or rock falls; 

 Ensure development does not take place without 
appropriate precautions; 

 Take account of coastal / land erosion risks; 

 Seek to restore unstable and contaminated land; 

 Ensure that any proposals for opencast, deep mine 
development (in wholly exceptional circumstances 
only) clearly demonstrate why they are needed in the 
context of climate change emissions reductions 
targets and for reasons of national energy security; 
and, 

 Take account of the requirement to provide a Health 
Impact Assessment to accompany any applications 
for opencast coal working. 

 

Water Planning Policy Wales 11th Edition (2021), Future 
Wales 2040: The National Plan National Development 
Framework  (2021)Welsh Assembly Government 
(1998) Technical Advice Note (TAN) 14: Coastal 
Planning, Welsh Assembly Government (2004) 
Technical Advice Note (TAN) 15: Development and 
Flood Risk, Implementation of Schedule 3 to the Flood 
and Water Management Act 2010: the Mandatory Use 
of Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS) (2019).Welsh 
National Marine Plan (2019). 

These documents require the preparation of LDPs to: 

 

 Take account of the key role of flooding in strategic 
decision making on locations for growth and new 
infrastructure; 

 Take account of the physical and environmental 
constraints on development of land, including flood 
risk; 

 Include policies relating to PPW11 (2021) ‘Water and 
Flood Risk objectives regarding the effects of 
development on water supply and wastewater 
management; 

 Consider the effects of development on water supply 
and wastewater management, development plans and 
water and development management and water; and, 

Any RLDP resulting from this LDP should 
provide policies, proposals, advice and guidance 
relating to the protection and enhancement of 
water quality, water resources and the water 
environment.  

The ISA Framework should include 
objectives relating to the protection 
and enhancement of water quality, 
water resources and the water 
environment. 

T
udalen295



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

SEA Topic Relevant Plans, Programmes and Strategies Overview of Purpose and Key Requirements 
Implications for Neath Port Talbot LDP 

Review 
Implications for ISA 

 When preparing LDPs, LPAs should consult with 
adjacent authorities and Natural Resources Wales 
and ensure that, as well as not being at risk itself, 
development does not increase the risk of flooding 
elsewhere; 

Air Planning Policy Wales 11th Edition (2021), Future 
Wales 2040: The National Plan National Development 
Framework (2021). 

These documents require the preparation of LDPs to consider the 
effects of development on air quality and recognise that air quality 
impacts from development proposals must be assessed, including 
by: 

 Taking account of the ‘Agent of Change’ principle in 
the consideration of adverse impacts upon human 
health caused by air and soundscape quality affected 
by proposed developments. 

Any RLDP resulting from this LDP should 
provide policies, proposals, advice and guidance 
relating to air quality.  

The ISA Framework should include 
objectives relating to air quality. 

Climatic Factors Planning Policy Wales 11th Edition (2021), Future 
Wales 2040: The National Plan National Development 
Framework  (2021), , Welsh Government 'Prosperity for 
All: A Low Carbon Wales' (2019). 

These documents require the preparation of LDPs to: 

 

 Align with the need to meet Wales’ international 
commitments to address climate change targets. 

 Align with Wales’ targets for the generation of 
renewable energy, namely: 

o For 70% of consumed electricity to be generated 
from renewable energy by 2030; 

o For one gigawatt of renewable energy capacity to 
be locally owned by 2030; and, 

o For new renewable energy projects to have at 
least an element of local ownership from 2020. 

 Identify opportunities and plan positively for the 
implementation of District Heat Networks within 
Priority Areas for District Heat Networks as identified 
in the NDF; 

  Align with the Welsh Governments presumption in 
favour of large-scale wind-energy development 
(including repowering) within the Pre-Assessed Areas 
for Wind Energy as identified in the NDF; 

 Ensure that renewable and low carbon energy 
proposals are in alignment with the criteria set out in 
Policy 17 and 18 of the NDF; 

 Ensure that tackling the causes and consequences of 
climate change is taken into account in locating new 
development; 

Any RLDP resulting from this LDP needs to 
respond to the climate emergency and should 
provide policies, proposals, advice and guidance 
relating to climate change mitigation and 
adaptation, including the need to support 
developments which will contribute towards 
meeting international and national climate 
change targets such as the renewable energy 
targets  set out in the NDF. 

The ISA Framework should include 
objectives relating to climate 
change mitigation and adaptation.  

T
udalen296



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

SEA Topic Relevant Plans, Programmes and Strategies Overview of Purpose and Key Requirements 
Implications for Neath Port Talbot LDP 

Review 
Implications for ISA 

 Consider the increased risk of physical and 
environmental constraints as a result of climate 
change; 

 Policies 16-18 of the NDF note the priority areas for 
the development of new renewable energy (wind and 
solar farms and district heating networks) sites; 

 Commit to contributing towards a reduction in carbon 
emitting transport modes and mitigating poor air 
quality; 

 Support the introduction of Ultra Low Emission 
Vehicles through the provision of electric vehicle 
charging infrastructure; 

 Direct development to settlements that are resilient to 
the effects of climate change, by avoiding areas 
where environmental consequences and impacts 
cannot be sustainably managed. Where development 
takes place in areas of known risks, LDP policies 
must ensure that the development is designed for 
resilience over its whole lifetime; and, 

 Consider the effects of development on the adoption 
of renewable and low carbon energy. 

Material Assets Planning Policy Wales 11th Edition (2021) Future Wales 
2040: The National Plan National Development 
Framework  (2021), Welsh Assembly Government 
(2007) Technical Advice Note (TAN) 18: Transport, 
Welsh Assembly Government (2002) Technical Advice 
Note (TAN) 19: Telecommunications, Welsh Assembly 
Government (2014) Technical Advice Note (TAN) 21: 
Waste, Welsh Assembly Government (2009) Minerals 
Technical Advice Note (MTAN) Wales 2: Coal, Welsh 
Assembly Government (2004) Minerals Technical 
Advice Note (MTAN) Wales 1: Aggregates Welsh 
Assembly Government (2004). 
 

 

These documents require the preparation of LDPs to: 

 

 Be consistent and integrated with the strategies and 
policies contained in Local Transport Plans and other 
relevant strategies. Any LTP proposal that directly 
involves the development or use of land, or has land 
use implications, should appear as a policy or 
proposal in the development plan; 

 Ensure that transport centred projects undergo an 
assessment in accordance with the Welsh Transport 
Appraisal Guidance (WelTAG); 

 LDPs must support PPW (2021) objectives (promoting 
active travel, supporting public transport, managing 
traffic and parking and planning for roads, railways, 
airports, ports and inland waterways); 

 Take into account the land use implications of the 
Welsh National Marine Plan (WNMP) (2019); 

 Set out the land use/transportation strategy, 
addressing accessibility and the provision of strategic 
and integrated transport facilities, including roads, 
railways and interchanges; 

Any RLDP resulting from this LDP should 
provide policies, proposals, advice and guidance 
relating to infrastructure development, waste 
management and the sustainable use of natural 
resources.  

The ISA Framework should include 
objectives relating to infrastructure 
development, waste management 
and the sustainable use of natural 
resources. 

T
udalen297



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

SEA Topic Relevant Plans, Programmes and Strategies Overview of Purpose and Key Requirements 
Implications for Neath Port Talbot LDP 

Review 
Implications for ISA 

 Locate major generators of travel demand within 
existing urban areas, or in other locations that can be 
well served by walking, cycling and public transport; 

 Ensure that development sites which are highly 
accessible to non-car modes are used for travel 
intensive uses, reallocating their use if necessary; 

 Locate major generators of travel demand within 
existing urban areas, or in other locations that can be 
well served by walking, cycling and public transport; 

 In rural areas, designate local service centres, or 
clusters of settlements where a sustainable functional 
linkage can be demonstrated, as the preferred 
locations for new development; 

 Include specific measures to promote active travel in 
accordance with the Active Travel (Wales) Act 2013;  

 Set out policies to promote the use of public transport 
including new and improved interchange facilities and, 
where appropriate, park and ride schemes; 

 Include appropriate traffic management policies; • 
identify the primary road network, including trunk 
roads, and separately identify the core network; 

 Identify proposals for new roads and major 
improvements to the primary route network and the 
broad policy on priorities for minor improvements; 

 Include policies and proposals relating to the 
development of transport infrastructure other 
than roads; 

 Identify, and where appropriate protect, routes 
required for the sustainable movement of freight; 

 Protect disused transport infrastructure, including 
railways, rail sidings, ports, harbours and inland 
waterways from development that would compromise 
their future transport use, where re-use is a possibility; 

 Minimise the adverse impacts of transport 
infrastructure projects on the natural, historic and built 
environment and on local communities; 

 LDPs should maximise the use of existing 
infrastructure and should consider how the provision 
of different types of infrastructure can be co-ordinated; 
and,  

 LDPs should identify suitable locations for sustainable 
waste management as well as criteria for how 

T
udalen298



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

SEA Topic Relevant Plans, Programmes and Strategies Overview of Purpose and Key Requirements 
Implications for Neath Port Talbot LDP 

Review 
Implications for ISA 

applications for waste management development will 
be determined, recognising that the most appropriate 
locations will be those with the best potential to 
contribute to a broad infrastructure framework and 
those with the least adverse impact on the local 
population. LDPs should set out policies and 
proposals for the location of telecommunications 
equipment, allocating sites for major developments 
and including criteria-based policies to guide 
telecommunications developments where sites other 
than those identified in the plan may be proposed. 

Cultural 
Heritage 

Planning Policy Wales 11th Edition (20218), Future 
Wales 2040: The National Plan National Development 
Framework  (2021),Welsh Assembly Government 
(2016) Technical Advice Note (TAN) 12: Design, Welsh 
Assembly Government (1997) Technical Advice Note 
(TAN) 20: Planning and the Welsh Language, Welsh 
Assembly Government (2017) Technical Advice Note 
(TAN) 24: The Historic Environment.  
 
 

 

These documents require the preparation of LDPs to: 

 

 Adhere to the Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 
(2011) to support the preservation of the Welsh 
language; 

 Provide a statement about how the needs and 
interests of the Welsh language have been taken into 
account; 

 If necessary, language impact assessments may be 
carried out in respect of large developments not 
allocated in the LDP which are proposed in areas of 
particular sensitivity or importance for the language. 
Any such areas should be clearly defined in the 
development plan; 

 Emphasis on protecting and supporting the Welsh 
language in policy making and in its contribution 
towards achieving the Thriving Welsh language well-
being goal and the wider Welsh Government target of 
a million welsh language speakers by 2050; 

 Provide policies relating to the protection and 
preservation of world heritage sites, archaeological 
remains, listed buildings and conservation areas, local 
historic assets and historic parks and gardens; 

 Identify locally specific policies in relation to the 
historic environment and cover those historic heritage 
assets deemed to be important considerations from a 
local planning perspective; 

 Consider the risk archaeological and historic sites by 
housing developments; and, 

 Policies must also not be introduced which 
encourages discrimination between individuals based 
on their linguistic ability or seek to control housing 
occupancy on linguistic grounds. 

Any RLDP resulting from this LDP should 
provide policies, proposals, advice and guidance 
relating to the protection and enhancement of 
the historic environment and the promotion of the 
Welsh language.  

The ISA Framework should include 
objectives relating to the protection 
and enhancement of the historic 
environment and the promotion of 
the Welsh language.   

T
udalen299



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

SEA Topic Relevant Plans, Programmes and Strategies Overview of Purpose and Key Requirements 
Implications for Neath Port Talbot LDP 

Review 
Implications for ISA 

Landscape Planning Policy Wales 11th Edition (2021), Technical 
Advice Note (TAN) 7 Outdoor Advertisement Control, 
Future Wales 2040: The National Plan National 
Development Framework  (2021) 

These documents require the preparation of LDPs to: 

 

 Take into account designated historic landscapes in 
Wales and where it is appropriate, develop locally 
specific policies which will contribute to their 
conservation; 

 Consider the physical risks to landscape as a result of 
housing developments; 

 Support the Welsh Governments strategic framework 
for the enhancement of biodiversity and the resilience 
of ecosystems; 

 Include areas which could be protected as ecological 
networks for their potential importance for adaptation 
to climate change, habitat restoration or creation, or 
which provide key ecosystems services in 
development planning policy; 

 Support opportunities where strategic green 
infrastructure could be maximised as part of 
development proposals, requiring the use of nature-
based solutions as a key mechanism for securing 
sustainable growth, ecological connectivity, social 
equality and public well-being; and, 

 Cumulative action towards the enhancement of 
biodiversity and the resilience of ecosystems should 
be demonstrated as part of development proposals 
through innovative, nature-based approaches to site 
planning. 

Any RLDP resulting from this LDP should 
provide policies, proposals, advice and guidance 
relating to the protection and enhancement of 
designated landscapes, landscape character, 
landscape features and visual amenity.   

The ISA Framework should include 
objectives relating to the protection 
and enhancement of designated 
landscapes, landscape character, 
landscape features and visual 
amenity.   

Interrelated 
Effects 

Planning Policy Wales 11th Edition (2021), Future 
Wales 2040: The National Plan National Development 
Framework  (2021), Technical Advice Note (TAN) 3: 
Simplified Planning Zones (Welsh Assembly 
Government, 1996). 

These documents require the preparation of LDPs to: 

 

 Promote sustainable patterns of development, 
identifying previously developed land and buildings, 
and indicating locations for higher density 
development at hubs and interchanges and close to 
route corridors where accessibility on foot and by 
bicycle and public transport is good; 

 Maintain and improve the vitality, attractiveness and 
viability of town, district, local and village centres;  

 Development for tourism, sport and leisure uses 
should, where appropriate, be located on previously 
developed land; 

 Encourage higher density and mixed-use 
development near public transport nodes, or near 
corridors well served by public transport; 

Any RLDP resulting from this LDP should 
provide policies, proposals, advice and guidance 
to support the delivery of sustainable 
development.   

The ISA Framework should provide 
a suite of linked objectives to 
support the delivery of sustainable 
development.  

T
udalen300



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

SEA Topic Relevant Plans, Programmes and Strategies Overview of Purpose and Key Requirements 
Implications for Neath Port Talbot LDP 

Review 
Implications for ISA 

 Foster development approaches that recognise the 
mutual dependence between town and country, thus 
improving linkages between urban areas and their 
rural surroundings; 

 Locate development so that it can be well serviced by 
existing infrastructure (including for energy supply, 
waste management and water; 

 Ensure that development encourages opportunities 
for commercial and residential uses to derive 
environmental benefit from co-location; 

 Locate development in settlements that are resilient to 
the effects of climate change, by avoiding areas 
where environmental consequences and impacts 
cannot be sustainably managed. Where development 
takes place in areas of known risks, ensure that the 
development is designed for resilience over its whole 
lifetime; 

 Contribute to the wider efforts by the planning system 
to respond to the behavioural chances as a result of 
the Covid-19 pandemic and contribute to a 
sustainable recovery shaping places around a vision 
for healthy and resilient places; and,  

 Include strategic policies on the location of potentially 
polluting developments and should set out criteria by 
which applications for such developments will be 
determined, but they should not exclude provision for 
such projects or prohibit all applications to set them 
up. 

With reference to the protection of Green Belts and Green 
Wedges; LDPs should: 

 

 Provide opportunities for access to the open 
countryside; 

 Provide opportunities for outdoor sport and outdoor 
recreation; 

 Maintain landscape/wildlife interest; 

 Retain land for agriculture, forestry, and related 
purposes; 

 Improve derelict land; and, 

 Provide carbon sinks and help to mitigate the effects 
of urban heat islands. 

T
udalen301



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

SEA Topic Relevant Plans, Programmes and Strategies Overview of Purpose and Key Requirements 
Implications for Neath Port Talbot LDP 

Review 
Implications for ISA 

PPW (2021) also promotes the protection of agricultural land and 
the re-use of brownfield land alongside further sustainability 
guidelines. LDPs should identify opportunities to ensure higher 
sustainable building standards are adopted, ensure that proposed 
developments are evidence based and viable and encourage 
applications which reflect key principles of climate responsive 
developments.  

 

The preparation of LDPs must ensure that: 

 

 Their housing trajectory is used as the basis for 
monitoring the delivery of their housing requirement 
and will form part of the basis for monitoring the 
delivery of LDP housing requirements as part of LDP 
AMRs and for subsequent plan review. The 
monitoring of housing delivery for AMRs must be 
undertaken by planning authorities in accordance with 
the guidance set out in the Development Plans 
Manual. Under delivery against the trajectory can 
itself be a reason to review a development plan;  

 The availability of previously developed sites and 
empty or underused buildings and their suitability for 
housing use; 

 The location of potential development sites and their 
accessibility to jobs, shops and services by modes 
other than the car, and the potential for improving 
such accessibility; 

 The capacity of existing and potential infrastructure, 
including public transport, water and sewerage, other 
utilities and social infrastructure (such as schools and 
hospitals), to absorb further development, and the 
cost of adding further infrastructure; 

 The scope to build sustainable communities to 
support new physical and social infrastructure, 
including consideration of the effect on the Welsh 
language, and to provide sufficient demand to sustain 
appropriate local services and facilities; 

 The compatibility of housing with neighbouring 
established land uses which might be adversely 
affected by encroaching residential development; 

 Proposals for new settlements should be promoted 
through and fully justified in the LDP; 

 LDPs must include an authority wide target for 
affordable housing based in the LHMA and identify 

T
udalen302



Neath Port Talbot LDP Review ISA 

ISA Scoping Report 

 

 

SEA Topic Relevant Plans, Programmes and Strategies Overview of Purpose and Key Requirements 
Implications for Neath Port Talbot LDP 

Review 
Implications for ISA 

the expected contributions that policy approaches 
identified in the LDP will make to meeting this target; 

 LDPs should also include site thresholds or a 
combination of thresholds and site-specific targets 
including the correct proportion of affordable housing; 

 LDPs must be supported by an assessment of the 
accommodation needs at Gypsy/traveller sites; 

 Quantify the housing requirement (both market and 
affordable housing); 

 Set an affordable housing target; 

 Set out a settlement strategy; 

 Adopt the new sequential search methodology for 
identifying housing sites; 

 Include clear policy criteria against which applications 
for development of unallocated sites will be 
considered; 

 Specify the circumstances in which previously 
developed sites would be deemed to perform 
so poorly that their use would not be favoured before 
that of a (particular) greenfield site; 

 Set targets on land provision for the employment uses 
(Classes B1-B8), showing net change in 
land/floorspace for offices and industry/warehousing 
separately, and protect these sites from inappropriate 
development; 

 Include clear development management policies to 
guide the determination of applications, including 
guidance on design, access, density, off-street 
parking and open space provision for particular areas 
as appropriate; 

 Specify mechanisms to be used to monitor the take 
up of housing land; 

 Include policies for affordable housing in areas where 
need has been identified, including any areas where 
exception sites will be considered; and, 

 Include policies to indicate where developer 
contributions will be expected toward infrastructure, 
community facilities and affordable housing. 

T
udalen303



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX 5 
 

Heads of Terms for the RLDP Member Working Group 
 

  

Tudalen304



Heads of Terms for the RLDP Member Working Group 

 

Neath Port Talbot Council Replacement Local Development Plan (2021-2036) 

Introduction: The Council is embarking on the preparation of a Replacement Local 

Development Plan (RLDP). Once adopted, it will replace the current Local Development Plan 

(LDP) 2011-2026. The preliminary stage in this process is to prepare and agree with the Welsh 

Government a Delivery Agreement (DA) which includes a timetable for the preparation of the 

plan and a Community Involvement Scheme (CIS). The CIS establishes how and when the local 

community and stakeholders will be engaged in the RLDP preparation process.  

County Borough Councillors ultimately oversee this process and will need to endorse the 

content of the Plan. Those sitting on the Planning Committee in particular have significant 

experience in dealing with planning matters.  

The creation of an RLDP Member Working Group (MWG) is intended to provide feedback and 

guidance to officers during plan preparation. It is proposed that the MWG should be 

comprised of a representative selection of County Borough Councillors currently serving on 

the Planning Committee to reflect and communicate the views of the Council on key RLDP 

matters.  

Heads of Terms 

Name: 

RLDP Member Working Group 

Membership: 

The Membership of the RLDP Member Working Group shall be composed of: 

 Chair: Cabinet Member for Regeneration & Sustainable Development 

 6 party nominated members from the Planning Committee (2 for each party: Labour, 

Plaid Cymru and Independents), to include the current Planning Committee Chair. 

Planning Policy Team Officers will also attend meetings of the MWG (Subject to agenda/topic 

of discussion) 

Meeting frequency: 

Up to quarterly virtual meetings, dependant on stage of LDP preparation process. Subject to 

Members request, information may be distributed via email for feedback/consideration. 

The role of the Working Group: 

The role of the Working Group shall be to: 

 discuss and provide informal feedback to officers of the Planning Policy team on 

current LDP policies and proposals; 

 discuss and provide informal feedback  to officers of the Planning Policy team on key 

spatial planning issues in the County Borough of Neath Port Talbot; 

Tudalen305



Heads of Terms for the RLDP Member Working Group 

 

 consider and provide informal feedback  to officers of the Planning Policy team during 

the development of draft papers, a plan vision & objectives, strategic spatial & growth 

options & alternatives, preferred strategy (including Key/Strategic Site Allocations) & 

Deposit Plan (including Site Allocations); 

 contribute towards the conclusions of Topic Papers - policies/proposals to address key 

issues; 

 review Spatial Areas papers (there are 8 spatial planning areas); 

 receive updates on key pieces of evidence and  research findings; 

 oversee the RLDP preparation process & be informed of key stages e.g. Call for 

Candidate Sites, Publication of the Candidate Sites Register. 

NOTHING IN THESE HEADS OF TERMS SHALL BIND OR REQUIRE NEATH PORT TALBOT 

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL AS THE LOCAL PLANNING AUTHORITY (LPA) TO ACT IN ANY 

PARTICULAR WAY. THE ROLE OF THE WORKING GROUP WILL SIMPLY BE TO PROVIDE 

FEEDBACK, OVERSIGHT AND REVIEWS AS DETAILED WITHIN THE GROUP’S IDENTIFIED 

ROLES ABOVE. 

 

Tudalen306



 

Appendix 6 - Integrated Impact Assessments (IIA) First Stage 
 

Replacement Local Development Plan Delivery Agreement 
Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) - First Stage  

 
1. Details of the initiative  
  

Initiative description and summary: Neath Port Talbot Replacement Local Development 
Plan Delivery Agreement (RLDP DA) 

Service Area: Planning Policy, Planning and Public Protection 

Directorate: Environment and Regeneration 

 
2. Does the initiative affect:   

 
3. Does the initiative impact on people because of their:  
 

 Yes  No None/ 
Negligible 

Don’t 
Know 

Impact 
H/M/L 

Reasons for your 
decision 
(including 
evidence)/How 
might it impact? 

Age       The RLDP DA sets 
out the timetable for 
preparation of the 
RLDP together with 
the Community 
Involvement Scheme 
which details the 
ways in which 
involvement of 
stakeholders and the 
public will be carried 
out, the timing of the 
various stages and 
who will be involved. 
The DA could 
potentially affect any 
residents but is 
specifically intended 
to help ensure that no 
individual group will 
be impacted 
differently because of 

Disability       

Gender Reassignment      

Marriage/Civil 
Partnership 

     

Pregnancy/Maternity      

Race      

Religion/Belief      

Sex      

Sexual orientation      

 Yes No 

Service users   

Staff   

Wider community   

Internal administrative process only    

Tudalen307



 

their particular 
characteristics. 

 

Implementation of 
the DA will be 
inclusive and will 
involve the planning 
policy team working 
with all staff / sections 
throughout the 
Council, the wider 
public and a wide 
range of 
stakeholders 
including those from 
the public, private 
and community / 
voluntary sectors. 
This is embodied in 
the legislation and 
guidance controlling 
the parameters of the 
DA and will be 
checked and 
confirmed by it being 
signed off by the 
Welsh Government. 

 
4. Does the initiative impact on: 

 Yes  No None/ 
Negligible 

Don’t 
Know 

Impact 
H/M/L 

Reasons for your 
decision (including 
evidence)/ How might 
it impact? 

People’s opportunities 
to use the Welsh 
language  

 
 

 

 

  
 

The RLDP DA will not in 
itself have a significant 
impact on people’s 
opportunities to use the 
Welsh Language. The 
RLDP DA will be published 
in Welsh and the 
procedures it sets out will 
be undertaken in 
accordance with the Welsh 
Language Standards (No. 
1) Regulations 2015.  

Treating the Welsh 
language no less 
favourably than 
English  

 
 

 
 

 

  As above. This is 
embodied in the legislation 
and guidance controlling 
the parameters of the DA 
and will be checked and 
confirmed by it being 
signed off by the Welsh 
Government. 

 

Tudalen308



 

 

 

5. Does the initiative impact on biodiversity: 

 Yes No None/ 
Negligible 

Don’t 
know 

Impact 
H/M/L 

Reasons for your 
decision (including 
evidence) /  
How might it impact? 

To maintain and 
enhance biodiversity 

   

 

 

The RLDP DA will not in 
itself have any significant 
impact on the maintenance 
or enhancement of 
biodiversity since it is an 
agreement to be concluded 
between the Council and 
the Welsh Government 
about procedures for the 
preparation of the RLDP. 

To promote the 
resilience of 
ecosystems, i.e. 
supporting protection 
of the wider 
environment, such as 
air quality, flood 
alleviation, etc.  

   

 

 

The RLDP DA will not in 
itself have any significant 
impact on the promotion of 
the resilience of 
ecosystems since it is an 
agreement to be concluded 
between the Council and 
the Welsh Government 
about procedures for the 
preparation of the RLDP. 

 

6. Does the initiative embrace the sustainable development principle (5 ways of working): 

 Yes  No Details 

Long term - how the initiative 
supports the long term well-being of 
people  

 

 

 The RLDP DA is concerned with the 
delivery of the RLDP, which is a 
development plan covering the period 
from 2021 to 2036. The DA will contribute 
towards ensuring that the RLDP fully 
embraces the requirement to support the 
long term well-being of the people of 
NPT. 

Integration -  how the initiative 
impacts upon our wellbeing 
objectives  

 

 

 The RLDP DA sets out the processes 
and procedures to be undertaken in the 
preparation of the RLDP to ensure and 
require that the new plan will be fully 
integrated with all other relevant plans, 
initiatives and strategies, working towards 
the same well-being objectives. 

Tudalen309



 

 

7. Declaration - based on above assessment (tick as appropriate) 

 

A full impact assessment (second stage) is not required   

Reasons for this conclusion    

Equalities – The RLDP DA is part of a process intended to ensure that the RLDP embodies 
consideration of equalities issues from the start of its preparation, throughout the processes and 
procedures that govern its preparation and in all its resulting strategies and policies, thereby ensuring 
that local planning policy within NPT fully embraces all equalities considerations. 

Involvement -  how people have 
been involved in developing the 
initiative  

 

 

 The RLDP DA has been developed in 
consultation with officers across the 
Council, elected members and the Welsh 
Government. This report seeks the 
endorsement of the RLDP DA following 
full public consultation, which allowed full 
involvement of the general public, other 
bodies and organisations and 
neighbouring authorities. This has 
influenced changes and amendments to 
the document prior to further 
consideration through the council’s 
democratic decision making process. 
These procedures give a wide ranging 
opportunity for involvement across the 
county borough and beyond. 

Collaboration - how we have 
worked with other 
services/organisations to find 
shared sustainable solutions 

 

 

 

 As above, the consultation processes 
undertaken during the preparation of the 
DA have ensured full collaboration with 
stakeholders and partners in its 
development, including organisations 
from the public, private and 
community/voluntary sectors. 

Prevention -  how the initiative will 
prevent problems occurring or 
getting worse  

 

 

 

 The RLDP DA is concerned with ensuring 
that the RLDP will be delivered within a 
challenging timeframe, that all legal and 
regulatory requirements are met, 
adequate resources are provided and 
that the final document is found to be 
sound and is adopted. This is necessary 
in order to ensure that the council’s 
planning strategies and policies for the 
next fifteen years are legally adopted and 
implemented, aiming to help prevent a 
wide range of social, economic, 
environmental and cultural problems that 
would otherwise not be addressed 
through the planning system. 

Tudalen310



 

Welsh Language – The RLDP DA has been prepared in accordance with the Welsh Language 
Standards (No. 1)) Regulations 2015 and it embodies the principles of the regulations. The DA will 
help to ensure that the RLDP also takes into account Welsh Language requirements in its 
preparation and contents. 

Biodiversity – In itself, the RLDP DA will have a negligible effect on biodiversity, but it will help to 
ensure that the RLDP takes full account of all duties and requirements to maintain and enhance 

biodiversity and promote the resilience of ecosystems through its planning strategies and 
policies. 

Well-being of Future Generation (5 ways of Working) – the RLDP DA embraces all five ways of 
working. The document positively integrates with the Council’s well-being objectives; involves people 
and collaborates with partners in its development and implementation; and ultimately will help to 
address any foreseeable problems in achieving the adoption of the RLDP itself. 

 

 
  

 Name Position Date 

Completed by Lana Beynon Planning Policy Manager 02/11/2021 

Signed off by  Ceri Morris 
Head of Planning & 
Public Protection 

03/11/2021 

Tudalen311



 

Replacement Local Development Plan Integrated Sustainability Appraisal 
Scoping Report 

Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) - First Stage  
 
1. Details of the initiative  
  

Initiative description and summary: Neath Port Talbot Replacement Local Development 
Plan Integrated Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report (RLDP ISASR) 

Service Area: Planning Policy, Planning and Public Protection 

Directorate: Environment and Regeneration 

 
2. Does the initiative affect:   

 
3. Does the initiative impact on people because of their:  
 

 Yes  No None/ 
Negligible 

Don’t 
Know 

Impact 
H/M/L 

Reasons for your 
decision 
(including 
evidence)/How 
might it impact? 

Age       The RLDP ISASR 
sets the scope and 
framework for 
undertaking the ISA 
of the RLDP. The ISA 
will assess all 
aspects of the 
emerging RLDP and 
includes a full 
equalities impact 
assessment with the 
intention of ensuring 
that the emerging 
plan will not have any 
adverse effect on any 
group as a result of 
their particular 
characteristics. 

 

Application of the ISA 
will be inclusive and 
will involve 
consultants and the 

Disability       

Gender Reassignment      

Marriage/Civil 
Partnership 

     

Pregnancy/Maternity      

Race      

Religion/Belief      

Sex      

Sexual orientation      

 Yes No 

Service users   

Staff   

Wider community   

Internal administrative process only    

Tudalen312



 

planning policy team 
working with other 
staff / sections of the 
Council, the wider 
public and with a 
range of 
stakeholders 
including those from 
the public, private 
and community / 
voluntary sectors. 

 
4. Does the initiative impact on: 
 

 Yes  No None/ 
Negligible 

Don’t 
Know 

Impact 
H/M/L 

Reasons for your 
decision (including 
evidence)/ How might 
it impact? 

People’s opportunities 
to use the Welsh 
language  

 
 

 

 

  
L 

The RLDP ISA will include 
a Welsh Language Impact 
Assessment intended to 
ensure that the effects of 
the emerging RLDP will 
support the Welsh 
Language and enhance 
opportunities for its use. 
The RLDP ISASR sets out 
how this will be done and 
should help to ensure that 
the RLDP will have a 
positive impact on 
opportunities to use the 
Welsh language in the 
long term.  

Treating the Welsh 
language no less 
favourably than 
English  

 
 

 
 

  

L 

As above. The ISASR sets 
out ways to ensure that 
the RLDP will embody this 
principle. 

 

 

 

5. Does the initiative impact on biodiversity: 

 Yes No None/ 
Negligible 

Don’t 
know 

Impact 
H/M/L 

Reasons for your 
decision (including 
evidence) /  
How might it impact? 

To maintain and 
enhance biodiversity 

   

 

M 

The RLDP ISA 
incorporates full 
assessment of the effects 
of the emerging RLDP on 

Tudalen313



 

biodiversity, with the target 
that it should ensure the 
maintenance or 
enhancement of 
biodiversity. The ISASR 
sets out how this will be 
achieved and should have 
a positive effect on 
biodiversity in the long 
term. 

To promote the 
resilience of 
ecosystems, i.e. 
supporting protection 
of the wider 
environment, such as 
air quality, flood 
alleviation, etc.  

   

 

M 

As above, the intention of 
the RLDP ISASR is to set 
out how the ISA will work 
towards ensuring that the 
emerging RLDP will help to 
promote the resilience of 
ecosystems in the long 
term. 

 

6. Does the initiative embrace the sustainable development principle (5 ways of working): 

 Yes  No Details 

Long term - how the initiative 
supports the long term well-being of 
people  

 

 

 The RLDP ISASR and ISA will assess 
and influence the delivery of the RLDP, 
which is a development plan that will 
cover the period from 2021 to 2036. The 
ISA will incorporate a well-being 
assessment and is intended to contribute 
towards ensuring that the RLDP fully 
embraces the requirement to support the 
long term well-being of the people of 
NPT. 

Integration -  how the initiative 
impacts upon our wellbeing 
objectives  

 

 

 The RLDP ISASR sets out that the ISA 
will itself incorporate well-being objectives 
to assess the RLDP and ensure and 
require that the new plan will be fully 
integrated with all other relevant plans, 
initiatives and strategies, working towards 
the same well-being objectives. 

Involvement -  how people have 
been involved in developing the 
initiative  

 

 

 The RLDP ISASR has been developed in 
consultation with officers across the 
Council, elected members, statutory 
consultation bodies and the public. This 
report seeks the endorsement of the 
RLDP ISASR following public 
consultation, which has influenced 
changes and amendments to the 
document prior to further consideration 
through the council’s democratic decision 

Tudalen314



 

 

7. Declaration - based on above assessment (tick as appropriate) 

 

A full impact assessment (second stage) is not required   

Reasons for this conclusion    

Equalities – The RLDP ISASR is part of a process intended to ensure that the RLDP embodies 
consideration of equalities issues from the start of its preparation, throughout the processes and 
procedures that govern its preparation and in all its resulting strategies and policies, thereby ensuring 
that local planning policy within NPT fully embraces all equalities considerations. 

Welsh Language – The RLDP ISASR has been prepared in accordance with the Welsh Language 
Standards (No. 1)) Regulations 2015 and it embodies the principles of the regulations. The ISA will 
help to ensure that the RLDP fully takes into account Welsh Language requirements in its 
preparation, contents, policies and proposals. 

Biodiversity – The RLDP ISASR should ensure that the ISA undertakes extensive assessments of 
the likely effects of the emerging RLDP on biodiversity and is intended to help to ensure that the 
RLDP takes full account of all duties and requirements to maintain and enhance biodiversity and 

promote the resilience of ecosystems through its planning strategies and policies. 

Well-being of Future Generation (5 ways of Working) – the RLDP ISASR embraces all five ways 
of working. The document positively integrates with the Council’s well-being objectives; involves 
people and collaborates with partners in its development and implementation; and ultimately will help 
to address any foreseeable problems in achieving the adoption of the RLDP itself. 

 

  

making process. These procedures give 
a wide ranging opportunity for 
involvement across the county borough 
and beyond. 

Collaboration - how we have 
worked with other 
services/organisations to find 
shared sustainable solutions 

 

 

 

 As above, the consultation processes 
undertaken during the preparation of the 
ISASR have ensured full collaboration 
with stakeholders and partners in its 
development, including other public 
organisations and the general public. 

Prevention -  how the initiative will 
prevent problems occurring or 
getting worse  

 

 

 

 The RLDP ISASR sets out how the ISA 
will be undertaken with the intention of 
ensuring that the RLDP will take full 
account of all sustainability issues. This is 
intended to ensure that the council’s 
planning strategies and policies for the 
next fifteen years are fully sustainable, 
aiming to help prevent a wide range of 
social, economic, environmental and 
cultural problems that might otherwise not 
be addressed through the planning 
system. 

Tudalen315



 

 

 
 

 Name Position Date 

Completed by Lana Beynon Planning Policy Manager 02/11/2021 

Signed off by  Ceri Morris 
Head of Planning & 
Public Protection 

03/11/2021 

Tudalen316



 

 

 

 

 

NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

Regeneration and Sustainable Development Scrutiny Committee  
 

Friday 3rd December 2021 
 

Report of Simon Brennan Head of Property & Regeneration  
 

Matter for Information 
 
Wards Affected:   All Wards (but primarily Port Talbot, Briton Ferry, Neath, 
Glynneath, Pontardawe & Ystalyfera) 
 
 
Transforming Towns Place Making Grant  
 
Purpose of the Report 
 
To update members on the funding received from the Welsh Government 
to deliver the Transforming Towns Programme, South West Wales, Place 
Making Grant (TTPM). 

 
To inform members of the proposed settlement areas that the Council will 
be focusing on to deliver TTPM.     

Executive Summary 
 
The report summarises the main features of the Transforming Towns 
Programme, South West Wales, Place Making Grant (TTPM). 

 
The report identifies the settlement areas within Neath Port Talbot County 
Borough that will be the focus for the grant.  
 
The report also details the governance arrangements eligible project 
activities, intervention rates & commitments 
 

Background  
 
Transforming Towns Programme, South West Wales, Place Making Grant 
(TTPM) was launched by the Welsh Government in January 2021 to 

Tudalen317

Eitem yr Agenda11



address the decline in town centres and reduced demand for high street 
retail. 

 
The focus of TTPM is sustainable growth of our towns, and their 
transformation into places of living, working, learning and leisure, with a 
focus on town centres and the built environment.  The programme is 
initially for a one-year period but aims to be the basis for future 
regeneration activities beyond this time.  
 
The programme replaces the Targeted Regeneration Investment 
Programme (TRIP) for the south West Wales Property Enhancement Grant 
programme and Sustainable Living Grant programme which supported the 
successful regeneration programme for Port Talbot, Neath and NPT 
Valleys.  

 
The Welsh Government have allocated a grant allocation of £4.5m for 
South Wales over the one-year period with a maximum grant intervention 
rate of up to 70%.  
 
Target Areas 
 
To maximise the impact of TTPM the grant will be targeted at the following 
settlements: Port Talbot, Briton Ferry, Neath, Pontardawe, Glynneath and 
Ystalyfera.  These town centres are of sufficient size and scale, which 
satisfies the Welsh Government requirements to demonstrate impact from 
the interventions.   
 
The Welsh Government have confirmed what whilst the grant is to be 
targeted at the cores of the above town centres only, consideration will be 
given for all reasonable requests outside of these settlement areas, 
providing the project results in a significant positive impact for that 
particular community.  
 
Governance  
 
A Local Project Board, compromising public, private and third sector 
partners has been established for Neath Port Talbot and will be 
responsible for the assessment of every individual proposed project.  
 
Eligible Projects 
 
Eligible projects will follow on from the successful Targeted Regeneration 
Investment Programme and will include the following eligible activities: 
 

Tudalen318



 The conversion of vacant commercial floor space into residential 
accommodation. 

 Enhancement and upgrade of vacant commercial floor space into 
beneficial business use.  

 The provision of green infrastructure and biodiversity projects. 

 The provision of small-scale public realm enhancement schemes.  

 Small-scale acquisitions.  

 The development and enabling of local markets.  

 The establishment of temporary meanwhile or pop up uses in vacant 
premises.  

 Collective external shop frontage enhancements.  

 Digital towns to support Wi-Fi analytics and Lora Wan networks.  

 Provisions supporting or facilitating active travel routes.  
 
The purpose of the work is to boost the variety of services on offer in 
towns, create flexible working and living space; and increase access to 
services and leisure. 
 
The summary of eligible project activities, eligible applications and 
maximum allocation of grant is available at Appendix A for information.  
 
Intervention rates & commitments 
 
Grants will be awarded at the discretion of the Council and the amount of 
any grant offered will be assessed on an individual project basis, taking 
account of the environmental and economic benefits arising. The grant rate 
will be set at the minimum level needed for the project to proceed. 

 
As part of the Region’s commitment to community benefits, all grants   
are  required to generate community benefits and each grant applicant    
will be required to give information on how they will contribute to the 
Wellbeing of Future Generations and the Environment Acts, and improve 
wellbeing in Neath Port Talbot and enhance biodiversity and the 
resilience’s of ecosystems.  
 

 
Financial Impacts 
 
There is a limited allocation of grant funding available for eligible target     
areas in South West Wales and funding will be awarded on a competitive 
basis. Match funding contributions will be required from all approved 
applicants and will have to be in the form of an actual financial contribution. 

 

Tudalen319



Intervention rates will be assessed on an individual basis and the grant   
rate will be set at the minimum level needed for the project to proceed and 
cannot exceed 70% 
 
A project/programme management fee to the Council of up to 5% will be 
eligible.  

 
Integrated Impact Assessment 
 
An IIA is not required to accompany this report as the purpose of the     
report is for the information of Members rather than for decision. 

 
Valleys Communities Impacts 
 
There will be a continued positive impact on valleys communities such as 
Glynneath, Pontardawe and Ystalyfera, with a continued boost to the 
variety of services on offer 
 
Workforce Impacts 
 
There are no workforce impacts associated with this report.  
 
Legal Impacts 
 
The Council are required to comply with the terms and conditions    
attached to the Transforming Towns Programme, South West Wales,    
Place Making Grant funding.  
 
 
Risk Management Impacts 
 
None.  
 
Consultation 
 

There is no requirement for external consultation on this matter.  

 
Recommendations 
 
That Members note the eligible activities and proposed settlement areas to 
deliver the grant.   
 
Appendices 
 

Tudalen320



Appendix A – Summary of Eligible Activities  
 

List of Background Papers 
 
None 
 
Officer Contact 
 
Simon Brennan – Head of Property and Regeneration, Tel: 01639 686370 

Tudalen321



Mae’r dudalen hon yn fwriadol wag



Appendix A 
 
Summary of Eligible Activities 

 
 Scheme Detail Eligible Applicant  Maximum 

Allocation 
of grant 

Residential 
Units in Town 
Centres 
 

To convert vacant floor-
space on upper floors into 
new residential 
accommodation. The 
minimum requirement 
from each scheme is 1 x 
1 bedroom self-contained 
flat.  
Schemes are expected to 
be a mix of one and two 
bedroom units with ratio 
determined by layout of 
building and planning 
consent. 
Schemes should comply 
to the minimum floor 
space as recommended 
in the most up to date 
Welsh Housing Quality 
Standards, currently this 
is:- 
1. 46m² per one 

bedroom flat 
2. 59m² per two bedroom 

flat 
Social Housing and 
Student accommodation 
(bedsits and studios) are 
not eligible for grant 
funding 
Where acceptable to 
Local Planning Authorities 
potential conversion of 
ground floor, as well as 
upper floors may be 
considered for areas not 
considered to be core 
retail, where no 
alternative commercial 
use can be found. 
 

Occupiers or property 
owners of properties 
within town centres 
who either: 

 Own the freehold, 
or 

 Hold a lease with a 
seven year 
minimum period 
remaining at the 
planned grant 
payment date and 
who have secured 
their landlord's 
written consent to 
the proposed 
works.  

Up to 
£250,000 
per property 

Tudalen323



Commercial 
Property 
Improvement 
Grants 
 

The Property 
Improvement Grant is 
available to commercial 
building occupiers and 
owners within town 
centres. Its purpose is to 
enhance building 
frontages together with 
the upgrade of vacant 
commercial floor space to 
bring it back into 
beneficial business use.  
New / upgraded floor 
space must be for 
business use, with each 
scheme determined on its 
individual merits. In 
particular offices, 
independent leisure, 
retail, food and drink uses 
will be considered. Mixed-
use schemes will also be 
considered. 
Offices or commercial 
premises above retail 
units will also be 
considered for support. 
WORKS 
External   
External works to the 
building can include work 
deemed necessary for the 
structural integrity of the 
property. Items might 
include:   

 Shopfronts; 

 Signage; 

 Windows & doors; 

 External lighting; 

 Roofs and chimneys; 

 Rainwater goods 
(guttering and down 
pipes); 

 Rendering, stone 
cleaning and repairs, re-
pointing; and   

 Structural works. 
 
Internal 

Occupiers or property 
owners of commercial 
properties within the 
designated area who 
either: 

 Own the freehold, or 

 Hold a lease with a 
seven year 
minimum period 
remaining at the 
planned grant 
payment date and 
who have secured 
their landlord's 
written consent to 
the proposed works. 

 

Up to 
£250,000 
per property  

Tudalen324



Internal works to the 
building can include all 
work, visible or structural, 
necessary to complete 
the project to Building 
Regulations. This might 
include: 

 Windows & doors; 

 Improved accessibility; 

 Walls, ceilings, lighting; 

 Energy Efficiency 
measures when 
included as part of 
the overall scheme; 

 Utilities and services, 
including heating; 

 Welfare facilities (e.g. 
essential washroom 
and cleansing 
facilities only); and  

 Structural work  
 
New Build 
New build commercial 
floor-space could be 
eligible, where a local 
need for this has been 
identified. 

Green 
Infrastructure 
 

The provision of Green 
Infrastructure and 
Biodiversity projects in 
town centres. Specifically 
but not exclusively:- 

 Green Walls 

 Green Roofs 

 Rain Gardens 

 Greening. 

 Pocket Parks 
 
Other GI or general 
greening measures are 
eligible subject to 
approval of Welsh 
Government. Any 
intervention needs to be 
strategic and underpinned 
by a Town Centre Green 
Infrastructure Audit. 

 Local Authorities 

 Business 
Improvement 
Districts BIDs 

 Town and 
Community 
Councils 

 Occupiers or 
property owners of 
commercial 
properties within 
the designated 
area who either: 
o Own the 

freehold, or 
o Hold a lease 

with a seven 
year minimum 
period 
remaining at 
the planned 

Up to 
£250,000 
per project 

Tudalen325



This support will not 
contribute to ongoing 
maintenance costs in 
future financial years. 
 

grant payment 
date and who 
have secured 
their landlord's 
written consent 
to the proposed 
works. 

 

Public Realm 
 

The provision of small 
scale public realm 
enhancements where 
they are aligned with a 
natural clustering of 
regeneration activity in 
town centres. Where 
there is demonstrable 
social and economic 
impact. Specifically:- 

 The removal or 
dropping of curbs for 
access and egress. 

 The widening of 
pavement areas so as 
to provide outdoor 
seating and amenity 
areas. 

 Permanent planters 
and screening 
provision. 

 
Other measures may be 
eligible for support 
subject to approval of 
Welsh Government. 

 Local Authorities.  

 Business 
Improvement 
Districts BIDs  

 Town and 
Community 
Councils 

 

Up to 
£250,000 
per scheme. 

Strategic 
Acquisition 
 

Small Scale acquisitions 
within town centres. This 
support should not be 
used to acquire properties 
that are subject to, or 
could benefit from 
planning enforcement 
measures. Specifically, 
this support could be 
utilised to:- 

 Acquire properties in 
order to complete land 
assembly for larger 
strategic proposals. 

 Acquire properties for 
demolition in order to 

 Local Authorities 

 Business 
Improvement 
Districts BIDs  

 Town and 
Community 
Councils 

 Social Businesses 
and B – Corps 

 

Up to 
£250,000 
per 
acquisition. 

Tudalen326



deliver improved 
connectivity and 
permeability in town 
centres. 

 The acquisition of 
properties in order to 
provide greenspace, 
play facilities or 
enhanced public 
realm. 

 Demolition costs are 
eligible. 

Town Centre 
Markets 
 

The delivery of the ‘Every 
Town a Market Town’ 
philosophy. The 
development and 
enabling of local markets 
for the provision of 
produce, craft, food and 
value added products. 
This capital only funding 
will deliver:- 

 The provision of 
permanent electricity 
supplies to enable 
market trading. 

 The acquisition of 
trading stalls, stands 
and platforms. 

 
Works must conform and 
be aligned with the Welsh 
Government best practice 
guide for the 
establishment of local 
markets. This work 
should be aligned with 
any post Covid – 19 Town 
Centre works and 
planning. 

 Local Authorities 

 Business 
Improvement 
Districts (BIDs)  

 Town and 
Community 
Councils 

 Social Businesses 
and B – Corps 

 

Up to 
£250,000 
per location. 

Town Centre 
Meanwhile 
Uses 
 

The establishment of 
temporary meanwhile or 
pop – up uses in currently 
vacant premises in town 
centres. The support 
should be wholly aligned 
with the Welsh 
Government Meanwhile 
Uses Best Practice 
Guide. 

 Local Authorities 

 Business 
Improvement 
Districts BIDs  

 Town and 
Community 
Councils 

 Social Businesses 
and B – Corps 

Up to 
£250,000 
per location. 

Tudalen327



Shop 
Frontage 
Enveloping 
Schemes 
 

External shop frontage 
enhancements whereby 
no internal modification or 
redevelopment is 
undertaken. Adjacent of 
closely situated properties 
need to be targeted in a 
given town so as to 
achieve a critical mass 
and greater impact. It is 
suggested that a 
minimum of 6 properties 
should sign up to this 
support. 

 Occupiers or 
property owners of 
commercial 
properties within 
the designated 
area who either: 
o Own the 

freehold, or 

 Hold a lease with a 
seven-year 
minimum period 
remaining at the 
planned grant 
payment date and 
who have secured 
their landlord's 
written consent to 
the proposed 
works.  For projects 
that request less 
than £50k in grant 
a legal charge is 
not required so a 
lease with five 
years remaining at 
the final grant 
payment date is 
acceptable. 

Up to 
£250,000 
per location. 

Digital Towns The furthering of the 
‘digital towns’ agenda 
through the provision of 
capital items to support 
Wi-Fi analytics and Lora 
Wan networks. 

 Local Authorities  

 Business 
Improvement 
Districts BIDs  
o Town and 

Community 
Councils. 

Up to 
£250,000 
per town 
centre. 

Active Travel Provisions supporting or 
facilitating active travel 
routes in town centres 
where this cannot be 
funded through other 
means. Specifically the 
provision of bicycle 
storage, lockers and 
retrofit of show and 
hygiene facilities in 
commercial premises 
 

 Local Authorities 

 Business 
Improvement 
Districts BIDs  

 Town and 
Community 
Councils 

 Social Businesses 
and B – Corps 

 Private sector 
partners 

Up to 
£250,000 
per 
application. 

 
 

Tudalen328



  

 
 
 
 

 
NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNCIL 

 
Regeneration and Sustainable Development Cabinet Board 

3rd December 2021 
  

 

Report of the Head of Planning and Public Protection  
Ceri Morris 

 
Matter for Information  
 
Wards Affected:   
 
All Wards 
 
Contract Extension in Accordance with Rule 7.2 of the Contract 
Procedure Rules 
 
Purpose of the Report: 
 
To report, for information, details of a contract extension for interim 
Project Management of the regional European/WG funded Connecting 
Green Infrastructure Project that relies upon the exception to contract 
procedure rules 7.1.1-7.1.23.   
 
 
Executive Summary: 
 
To facilitate the delivery of the regional Connecting Green 
Infrastructure Project appointment of a consultant to provide interim 
project management services, until project staff are appointed, is 
necessary. Only one consultant has the necessary experience and 

Tudalen329

Eitem yr Agenda12



knowledge to be able to provide such a service.  Direct award of 
contract will slightly exceed contract procurement rules.  This report 
sets out a record of the justification and reliance upon exception to 
contract procedure rules 7.1.1-7.1.23.   
 
Background: 
 
In September 2021 we received confirmation of a grant from the Welsh 
Government’s Enabling Natural Resources and Well-being in Wales 
(ENRaW) Fund for the Connecting Green Infrastructure Project – 
South West Wales. The grant for £2,277,210 is to fund a regional 
partnership project, running up to 30th September, 2023.  
  
The project is funded by the Welsh Government’s Enabling Natural 
Resources and Well-being in Wales (ENRaW) Fund, supported by the 
European Agricultural Fund for Rural Development and Welsh 
Government.   
 
The primary aim of the project, working as part of a new regional 
partnership, is to facilitate the design and delivery of Green 
Infrastructure (GI) in ways that meets local needs, supports 
communities and their health, builds ecosystem resilience, and 
enhances biodiversity.  
  
The project is setting out a new and collaborative approach to 
designing and delivering Green Infrastructure (GI) across Neath Port 
Talbot (NPT), Swansea and Carmarthenshire, for the benefit of local 
communities and their natural environment.  This is a far-reaching, and 
ambitious project, involving local people in delivering improvements to 
their local environments in ways which also benefit wildlife, whilst 
supporting health, well-being and local communities.   
  
This is a partnership project.  NPT Council is acting as project lead, 
working alongside Swansea Council, Carmarthenshire County 
Council, Coed Lleol (Small Woods Association) and Cwmaman Town 
Council. 

Tudalen330



The project was originally proposed to be delivered over a 3 year 
period and some of the project staff were offered appointments in 
readiness for project start back in 2019.  However, the grant was not 
confirmed until September 2021 leaving around 18 months to deliver a 
3 year project. The previously secured staff had moved on in the 
interim period.  Due to the time restricted period and the increased 
administrative burden relating to the grant processes, consultancy help 
was procured from a local consultant – Catrin Evans Consultancy to 
help with the final grant administration before the grant award and 
subsequently for project management and set up. Project 
Management and set up was deemed necessary until new project staff 
are in place.   
 

 Contract Value Total Amount 
Invoiced against 
Contract  

Contract 1 – Grant 
Application 

£9947.50 £2,587.50 (contract 
ended with no 
further payments 
due) 

Contract 2 – Project 
Management and Set up 

£4875 £4875 

Contract 2 – Proposed 
Extension 

£4387.50 £4387.50 
(expected) 

Total   £11,850 

 
Due to difficulties with communicating with WG and continual 
additional grant administrative burden the original contracted hours for 
consultancy help have not been adequate and an extension is 
necessary. The extension will however, take the total value of contracts 
with this particular consultant over the direct award procurement 
threshold (under £10,000).  No further contract extensions are 
anticipated to be required as project staff are being appointed.  
However, this will be kept under continual review and if necessary the 
need for such services/advice will be considered for example if WG 
rejected the current re-profile or the upcoming grant claim.  

Tudalen331



Due to the timescales involved and the specialist advice required, that 
no other consultant is able to provide, including existing knowledge and 
experience of the project, grant and funding processes plus existing 
relationships with partner organisations it is considered appropriate to 
rely on the exception rules 7.1.1-7.1.23 to extend the current contract 
(also see detail in background paper 1).  This extension to the contract 
can be excluded from the requirements for competition in the Contract 
Procurement Rules. 
 
 
Financial Impacts:  
 
No implications. 
 
 
Integrated Impact Assessment: 
 
There is no requirement to undertake an Integrated Impact 
Assessment as this report is for monitoring / information purposes. 
 
Valleys Communities Impacts:  
 
No implications 
 
Workforce Impacts: 
 
No implications 
 
Legal Impacts: 
 
The proposed extensions to the existing contracts with third party 
providers gives rise to the question of whether the extensions amount 
to a direct award of the contracts and therefore are in breach of the 
Council’s Contract Procedure Rules (CPRs).  
 

Tudalen332



Under 7.1.4 the execution of Works or the Provision of Services of a 
specialised nature which are carried out by only one Contractor. 
 
No other consultant could provide such services within the necessary 
and immediate timescales.  No other consultancy would be able to 
meet these requirements as Catrin Evans is the only consultant with 
prior direct knowledge and experience of the project and the grant 
funding.  Catrin Evans has been involved in the project development 
and the grant application as such is the only consultant with full 
understanding of the project, how to deliver it and what the funding 
processes require.  Current project administration and set up is 
necessary, which requires prior knowledge and experience of the 
project and the grant requirements and processes. No other 
consultancy would be able to meet these requirements.   
 
A full project re-profile and grant claim is due over the next few months 
and therefore it is essential that experienced project management is in 
place to ensure such can be undertaken.   
 
No capacity is available within the existing staff arrangements of the 
Countryside and Wildlife Team.  As lead partner for the project, NPT 
Council are required to project manage and administer the grant on 
behalf of the other regional partners.  Therefore, to ensure the project 
is not put at risk, appropriate interim project management services are 
necessary until such time as project staff are in post and up to speed 
on the project.   
 
The only consultant that has previous experience of the project is 
Catrin Evans Consultancy and therefore is the only consultant able to 
deliver such services on the immediate basis necessary.      

 
As set out in the justification above it is considered that this exception 
to the rules apply and the extension to the contract can be excluded 
from the requirements for competition in the Contract Procurement 
Rules. 
 

Tudalen333



 
Risk Management Impacts:  
 
Risk management impacts are detailed in the Legal Impacts section 
above. 
 
Crime and Disorder Impacts:  
 
No impact  
 
Counter Terrorism Impacts:  
 
No impact 
 
Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence 
Impacts: 
 
No Impacts 
 
Consultation: 

There is no requirement for external consultation on this item. 
 
Recommendations:  
 
None.  For Information only. 
 
Reasons for Proposed Decision:  
 
None.  For Information only. 
 
Implementation of Decision: 
 
N/A 
 
List of Background Papers: 

Tudalen334



1. Report to Council in accordance with rule 7.2 of the Contract 
Procurement Rules 

 

Officer Contact: 
 
Lana Beynon, Planning Policy Manager l.beynon@npt.gov.uk 
 
Rebecca Sharp, Countryside and Wildlife Team Leader 
r.sharp@npt.gov.uk 
 

Tudalen335

mailto:l.beynon@npt.gov.uk
mailto:r.sharp@npt.gov.uk


                                         Private & Confidential 

 

 

Report to Council 

In accordance with rule 7.2 of the Contract Procedure Rules (the Rules) 

To report for information the fact that contracts have been let under rule 7.1.1 – 7.1.23 

 

Department : Countryside and Wildlife Team, Planning Policy 

 

Insert details of Contract: Provision of project management services in relation to the 
Connecting Green  Infrastructure Project South West Wales 

Contractor:  Catrin Evans Consultancy 

Description of works/service/goods: Project management services to: 

help to set up the Connecting Green Infrastructure Project, including outlining monitoring 
and reporting procedures/requirements for all partners as required by the Enabling Natural 
Resources and Well-Being (ENRaW) Grant Award letter, any conditions and guidance 
undertake project planning, including the development of a project grant chart/timetable 
covering (a) tasks necessary for initial project set up in the first quarter of the project; and 
(b) project reporting schedule; draft contracts for project delivery including for project 
monitoring and evaluation; provide the secretariat for the steering group; provide 
professional advice, support and assistance to NPTCBC including liaison with partners, 
undertake project administration and support the grant claim process; provide general 
assistance and support to facilitate the project delivery as agreed with NPTCBC; and at all 
times, respond within a reasonable time in accordance with the urgency of any requests. 
 

Contract Period: Consisting of 13.5 days work from 10th November  – end January 2021 

Total Contract Value: £4,387.50 

 

Details of exception relied upon (relevant rule 7.1.1 - .7.1.23): 

Reasons for relying upon the particular exception: This is an extension to an existing  

contract for project management and set up services needed to deliver a regional 
European/WG funded project until such time as project staff are in place.  In addition to 
this, a contract was also let to the same consultancy to help with the project grant 
application.  Together these contracts exceed the procurement threshold for direct 
appointment. However, due to the timescales involved and the specialist advice required it 
is considered appropriate to rely on the exception referred to above.     No other consultant 

Tudalen336



Annex 2 

could provide such services within the necessary and immediate timescales.  Current project 
administration and set up is necessary, which requires prior knowledge and experience of 
the project and the grant requirements and processes.  As well ask existing relationships 
with partner organisations. No other consultancy would be able to meet these requirements 
as Catrin Evans is the only consultant with prior direct knowledge and experience of the 
project and the grant funding.  Catrin Evans has been involved in the project development 
and the grant application as such is the only consultant with full understanding of the 
project, how to deliver it and what the funding processes require.  A full project re-profile 
and grant claim is due over the next few months and therefore it is essential that 
experienced project management is in place to ensure such can be undertaken.  No capacity 
is available within the existing staff arrangements of the Countryside and Wildlife Team.  As 
lead partner for the project NPT Council are required to project manage and administer the 
grant on behalf of the other regional partners.  Therefore, to ensure the project is not put at 
risk appropriate interim project management services are necessary until such time as 
project staff are in post and up to speed on the project.  The only consultant that has 
previous experience of the project is Catrin Evans Consultancy and therefore is the only 
consultant able to deliver such services on the immediate basis necessary.      

 

Signatory of Authorised Officer:  

Designation:  
 

Tudalen337



Mae’r dudalen hon yn fwriadol wag



Document is Restricted

Tudalen339

Eitem yr Agenda15
Yn sgil paragraff(au) 14 yn Rhan 4 Atodlen 12A%  Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972



Mae’r dudalen hon yn fwriadol wag



Document is Restricted

Tudalen345

Yn sgil paragraff(au) 14 yn Rhan 4 Atodlen 12A%  Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972



Mae’r dudalen hon yn fwriadol wag



Document is Restricted

Tudalen449

Eitem yr Agenda16
Yn sgil paragraff(au) 14 yn Rhan 4 Atodlen 12A%  Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972



Mae’r dudalen hon yn fwriadol wag



Document is Restricted

Tudalen457

Yn sgil paragraff(au) 14 yn Rhan 4 Atodlen 12A%  Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972



Mae’r dudalen hon yn fwriadol wag


	Agenda
	4 Cofnodion y Cyfarfod Blaenorol
	5 Blaenraglen Waith 2018-19
	6 Deddf Llywodraeth Leol (Darpariaethau Amrywiol) 1976 - Mabwysiadu Safleoedd Tacsi
	App 1 - Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 - Adoption of Taxi Stands

	7 Rheoliadau Lles Anifeiliaid (Trwyddedu Gweithgareddau sy’n Ymwneud ag Anifeiliaid) (Cymru) 2021
	9 Dangosyddion Perfformiad Allweddol 2021/2022 - Chwarter 2
	App 2 - Key Performance Indicators 2021 2022 – Quarter 2

	10 Cynllun Datblygu Lleol newydd Castell-nedd Port Talbot 2021-2036
	Appendix 2 Tracked Changes DA Post Consultation Version.pdf
	Note to Reader
	1 Introduction
	2 Background
	2.1 Purpose of the Delivery Agreement
	2.2 Stages in Delivery Agreement Preparation
	2.3 Structure of the Delivery Agreement

	3 The Replacement Local Development Plan
	3.1 Preparing the Replacement Local Development Plan
	3.2 Replacement Local Development Plan Format and Content
	3.3 Replacement Local Development Plan Impact Assessments
	3.4 Joint Local Development Plans and Regional Collaboration
	3.5 Independent Examination
	3.6 Supplementary Planning Guidance

	4 Replacement Local Development Plan Timetable
	4.1 Replacement Local Development Plan Timetable Definitive and Indicative Stages

	5 Community Involvement Scheme
	5.1 Engagement Principles
	5.1.1 Consensus Building
	5.1.2 Welsh Language
	5.1.3 Role of Stakeholders and Interested Parties
	5.1.4 Petitions
	5.1.5 Duly Made and Late Representations

	5.2 Engagement Methods
	5.2.1 Document Availability
	5.2.2 Methods of Involvement, Participation and Consultation
	5.2.2.1 Stakeholder Involvement
	5.2.2.2 Public Participation


	5.3 Replacement Local Development Plan Involvement - who will be involved?
	5.3.1 Community Profiling
	5.3.2 Specific and General Consultation Bodies
	5.3.3 Key Stakeholder Group
	5.3.4 Elected Members
	5.3.5 Community and Town Councils
	5.3.6 Hard to Reach and Protected Characteristics Groups
	5.3.7 Local Development Plan Consultee Database
	5.3.8 Developers, Agents and Other Site Promoters
	5.3.9 General Public

	5.4 Collaborative Working
	5.5 Feedback Arrangements
	5.6 Engagement Programme

	6 Decision Making and Delivery
	6.1 Decision Making and Delivery
	6.2 Internal Reporting
	6.3 Corporate Fit
	6.4 Staffing and Financial Resources
	6.5 Risk Management

	7 Monitoring and Review
	7.1 Monitoring and Review
	7.2 Annual Monitoring Reports
	7.3 Review of the RLDP

	Appendix A Detailed Replacement Local Development Plan Timetable
	Appendix B Key Stages of the LDP, ISA and HRA
	Appendix C Stages of Plan Preparation & Engagement Methods
	Appendix D Risk Assessment and Mitigation
	Appendix E Key Stakeholder Group
	Appendix F Specific Consultation Bodies
	Appendix G General and Other Consultation Bodies
	Appendix H Community Profile
	Appendix I Previous Community Involvement Scheme Review


	11 Grant Creu Lleoedd - Trawsnewid Trefi
	App A - Place Making Grant

	12 Estyniad Contract yn unol â Rheol 7.2 o'r Rheolau Gweithdrefnau Contractau
	15 Twnnel y Rhondda (eithriedig dan Baragraff 14)
	Appendix 1 Rhondda Tunnel

	16 Cynnig Arfaethedig i Gael Gwared ar Eiddo (eithriedig dan Baragraff 14)
	IIA - Private - Proposed Disposal of Property




